
 
 
 

 
Democratic Services Your ref:  
Riverside, Temple Street, Keynsham, Bristol BS31 1LA Our ref:  
Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard Date: 17 September 2010 
Direct Lines - Tel: 01225 395090  Fax: 01225 394439 E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk 
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk   
 
 
To: All Members of the Avon Pension Fund Committee 

 
Bath and North East Somerset Councillors: Gordon Wood (Chair), David Bellotti (Vice-
Chair), Tim Ball, Gabriel Batt and Victor Clarke 
 
Co-opted Voting Members: Ann Berresford (Independent Member), Carolan Dobson 
(Independent Member), Councillor M Drew (South Gloucestershire Council), Councillor 
Mary Blatchford (North Somerset Council), Councillor Tim Kent (Bristol City Council), Bill 
Marshall (HFE Sector) and Steve Paines (Trade Unions) 
 
Co-opted Non-voting Members: Richard Orton (Trade Unions), Rowena Hayward (Trade 
Unions), P Shiner (Trade Unions) and Keith Kirwan (Parish and Town Councils) 

 
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers  
Press and Public  

 
 
Dear Member 
 
Avon Pension Fund Committee: Friday, 24th September, 2010  
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Avon Pension Fund Committee, to be held on 
Friday, 24th September, 2010 at 2.00 pm in the Council Chamber - Keynsham Town Hall. 
 
A buffet lunch for Members will be available at 1.30pm. 
 
The agenda is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Sean O'Neill 
for Chief Executive 
 
 
 

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative 
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author 
whose details are listed at the end of each report. 

 
This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper 



NOTES: 
 

1. Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the 
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Sean O'Neill who is 
available by telephoning Bath 01225 395090 or by calling at the Riverside Offices 
Keynsham (during normal office hours). 
 

2. Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to 
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the 
meeting has power to do.  They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a 
group.  Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting 
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays notice must be received in Democratic 
Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday)  
 
The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions 
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in 
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must 
be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday). If an answer cannot 
be prepared in time for the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further 
details of the scheme can be obtained by contacting Sean O'Neill as above. 
 

3. Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for 
the next meeting.  In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Sean O'Neill as 
above. 
 
Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:- 
 
Public Access points - Riverside - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, Hollies - Midsomer 
Norton, and Bath Central, Keynsham and Midsomer Norton public libraries.   
 
For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research 
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms. 
 

4. Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the 
meeting. 
 

5. THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM 
NUMBER. 
 

6. Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 
When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the 
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point.  The designated exits are 
sign-posted. 
 
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people. 
 

 



 

 

Avon Pension Fund Committee - Friday, 24th September, 2010 
 

at 2.00 pm in the Council Chamber - Keynsham Town Hall 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  
 The Chair will ask the Committee Administrator to draw attention to the emergency 

evacuation procedure as set out under Note 8. 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 Members who have an interest to declare are asked to state: 

 
(a) the Item No in which they have an interest;  
(b) the nature of the interest; and  
(c) whether the interest is personal or personal and prejudicial. 
 
Any Member who is unsure about the above should seek the advice of the Monitoring 
Officer prior to the meeting in order to expedite matters at the meeting itself. 
 

4. TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
5. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS, 

PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS  
6. ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED AND ADDED MEMBERS  
 To deal with any petitions or questions from Councillors and where appropriate co-

opted and added members. 
 

7. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 
8. AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 

STATEMENT 2009/10 (Pages 9 - 30) 
 The Auditors will be present to answer questions. 
9. ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2009/10 (Pages 31 - 100) 
10. OVERVIEW OF THE LGPS FUNDS - PRESENTATION BY WM PERFORMANCE 

SERVICES  
11. FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT 2010 (Pages 101 - 124) 
12. PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION - EXPENDITURE FOR 4 MONTHS TO 31ST 

JULY 2010 AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING 



31ST JULY 2010 (Pages 125 - 150) 
13. REVIEW OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE FOR QUARTER ENDING 30 JUNE 

2010 (Pages 151 - 206) 
14. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE INVESTMENT PANEL (Pages 207 - 220) 
 Members are requested to note the recommendation that appendices 1 and 2 be taken 

in exempt session. 
15. ADMITTED BODIES REPORT - VERBAL UPDATE  
16. WORKPLANS (Pages 221 - 230) 
 
The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Sean O'Neill who can be contacted on  
01225 395090. 
 
 



 
 

1

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL 
 
AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 25TH JUNE 2010 
 
Present:-  
 
Voting Members: Cllr Gordon Wood (Chair), Cllr Tim Ball, Cllr Gabriel Batt, Cllr David 
Bellotti, Ann Berresford Cllr Mary Blatchford, Cllr Vic Clarke, Cllr Tim Kent, Steve Paines 
 
Non-voting Members: Rowena Hayward, Richard Orton, Paul Shiner 
 
Also in attendance: Andrew Pate (Director of Resources and Support Services), Tony 
Bartlett (Head of Business, Finance and Pensions), Liz Feinstein (Investments Manager), 
Matt Betts (Assistant Investments Manager), Steve McMillan (Pensions Manager), Martin 
Phillips (Finance & Systems Manager (Pensions)), Tony Earnshaw (Independent Adviser), 
Chris Hackett (Audit Commission) 
 
1 EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Clerk read out the procedure. 
2 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 

Cllr Bellotti was elected Vice-Chair for the Municipal Year 2010-2011 
3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

Apologies were received from Carolan Dobson, Cllr Mike Drew, Cllr Keith Kirwan, Bill 
Marshall. 
Apologies were also received from Dave Lyons (JLT Benefit Solutions) 

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were none. 

5 TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 
The Chair welcomed Cllr Tim Kent to his first meeting. 
He announced that the unions had informed him that Steve Paines would be the 
union-nominated voting member for 2010-2011. 

6 ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC – TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS, 
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS 
There were none. 

7 ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED AND ADDED MEMBERS 
There were none. 

8 MINUTES: 26 MARCH 2010 

Agenda Item 7

Page 1



 
 

2

These were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
9 DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE AVON PENSION FUND 2009/10 

The Finance & Systems Manager (Pensions) presented the report. He tabled an 
amendment to note 6 on page 8 of the Statement of Accounts. He said that the 
Statement of Accounts would be presented to the Corporate Audit Committee on 29 
June 2010. 
A Member noted that the information on page 4 of the accounts indicated a large 
increase in investment management expenses; the percentage increase in these was 
greater than the percentage increase in investment income. The Investments 
Manager explained that a large proportion of these expenses was based on the 
market-value of the assets managed and that as equity markets had witnessed large 
rises over the year, higher expenses were expected. Also, as the Fund has 
significant holdings in pooled funds, the majority of income from investments is 
retained and reinvested by the various funds, and not itemised as income in the 
accounts.  Therefore page 10 of the Accounts understates the income earned by the 
Fund. Another Member suggested that it would be helpful to have the investment 
management expenses split into the market-related and performance-related 
components. A Member noted that there was an apparent discrepancy between the 
figure for £1,712,000 stated for lump sum retirement benefits in the Accounts and the 
figure of £1,502,000 given in the note. The Finance & Systems Manager (Pensions) 
replied that apparent variance arose from the requirements of recommended 
accounting practice. The Director of Resources and Support Services said that the 
note would be expanded and clarified so that the figure given in the note did not 
appear to be a mistake. 
A Member noted the statement in the Audit Commission’s audit fee letter that the 
indicative fee for 2010/11 would be 8.5% above the scale because working papers 
supporting figures in the accounts were below minimum standards, the 2008/09 
accounts contained many presentational errors, and there were weaknesses relating 
to the control of journals. The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions responded 
that the Audit Commission had pointed out a number of areas where the Accounts 
fell below best practice last year.  This year the working papers have been prepared 
in line with best practice following advice from the Auditor. Mr Hackett said that the 
audit fee would be kept under review and would be reduced if there was significant 
improvement in these areas. 
RESOLVED 
1. To note the Draft Statement of Accounts for the year to 31 March 2010. 
2. To note the Audit Fee Letter for 2010/2011 and revision to 2009/10. 

10 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS, ADVISORS AND OFFICERS 
The Investments Manager presented the report. 
A Member commented on the number of advisers attending meetings of the 
Investment Panel. There had, on occasion, been 4 Members and 7 advisers at 
meetings. He was not suggesting this should change immediately, but he thought it 
should be kept under review. Another Member thought that the number of advisors 
was reasonable in the light of the Panel’s main objective, which was to look at issues 
in detail and to make informed recommendations to the main committee. The Director 

Page 2



 
 

3

of Resources and Support Services said that in his view the Panel was engaging with 
real issues and adding value to the work of the Committee.  
Members noted the rules about substitution in the Panel’s Terms of Reference. They 
agreed that it was beneficial at this stage to have continuity in the membership of the 
Investment Panel. 
RESOLVED 
1. To note the roles and responsibilities of the members, advisors and officers. 
2. To re-appoint Cllr Wood, Cllr Batt, Cllr Bellotti, Cllr Blatchford, and Ann Berresford 

as members of the Investment Panel for the year 2010-11, to get confirmation 
from Bill Marshall that he is willing to be re-appointed and to report back at a 
future meeting regarding substitutions. 

11 PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION – BUDGET MONITORING 2009/10, 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR QUARTER ENDING 31 MARCH 2010 AND 
RISK REGISTER ACTION PLAN 
The Finance & Systems Manager (Pensions) summarised the accounts. The bottom 
line was that there had been variance for the year of £996,000 over budget, mainly 
due to an increase in investment management and custody fees. Excluding these 
there was an underspend of £324,000. Salaries had been underspent because of 
unfilled vacancies. 
The Pensions Manager introduced the performance indicators for the two months to 
April 2010. He drew attention to the addition of a trend line to the graphs dealing with 
“completed and created”, “new case created and completed” and “outstanding 
cases”, which he thought would help put the monthly figures into context. He 
described past two months as being ones of “business as usual”. The team was 
keeping pace with work as it came in, despite major peaks and troughs. The backlog 
of transfers had been cleared following the receipt of the delayed advice from the 
Government Actuary’s Department, and clearance of transfers was above the target 
of 75%. The data cleansing exercise had identified leavers not notified by employers, 
resulting in a higher than normal number of cases needing to be processed. Sickness 
absence had been well below target. No complaints had been received. 
A Member asked whether Bath and North East Somerset had improved in the 
provision of information about employees to the Fund. The Pensions Manager replied 
that they had, and had provided additional staff to the Benefits Team to help them 
bring records up to date. 
A Member asked what the difference was between Appendix 4a and Appendix 4b, 
which were both headed “Responses to Retirement Questionnaire”, but gave 
different figures. The Pensions Manager replied that some questions in the 
questionnaires had options and that there was a need to relate the responses to the 
individual options. The presentation of this information was under review with the aim 
of getting it all onto a single sheet. The Member said that in his view all retirees 
should receive their lump sum and pension within one month of retirement. The 
Pensions Manager replied that this would be possible if employers were prompt at 
supplying information to the Benefits Team. The Member suggested that pressure 
needed to be maintained on Bath and North East Somerset to improve its 
performance in this area. 

Page 3



 
 

4

A Member asked how it was possible for graph 5 in Appendix 3b to show a figure in 
excess of 100% for cases completed and created. The Pensions Manager replied 
that the straight line showed the trend, whereas the wavy line showed the number of 
cases dealt with. If more cases were dealt with than received, the wavy line would go 
above 100%. This happened when the backlog of transfers was being cleared. 
A Member noted the trend line on graph 7 of Appendix 3b was moving upwards and 
asked whether there was any relation between this and the underspend on staff 
salaries. The Pensions Manager replied that the target was to clear 90% of new 
cases in the month received and performance was on target. Outstanding cases 
were going up because new cases were going up. There had also been additional 
work for the actuarial valuation of the Fund and for the testing of new upgrade 
software. The Member asked whether the vacant posts would be filled or deleted. 
The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions said that in the 2010/11 Service Plan 
there was a reduction in the overall number of posts, but no reductions in posts in the 
Benefits Team. The number of cases had increased over the past 5-6 years in line 
with the increase in the number of employers in the Fund. There were now 106 
employers in the Fund, an increase of over 30 in the last three years. Benchmark 
comparisons with other local authority funds showed that the Fund was reasonably 
efficient compared with the average. 
RESOLVED  
1. To note the expenditure for administration and management expenses incurred 

for the year ending 31st March 2010. 
2. To note the performance indicators for 2 months to 30th April 2010. 

12 REVIEW OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE FOR QUARTER AND YEAR ENDING 
31 MARCH 2010 
The Assistant Investments Manager presented the report and drew attention to the 
headline figures. Asset values had increased by £152m, or 6.1%, in the quarter. 
During the year the Fund had outperformed the strategic benchmark, but 
underperformed the customised benchmark because of underperformance by 
Jupiter. The Fund had underperformed the average of the WM Local Authority Fund 
universe because of its slight underweight in equities and overweight in bonds and its 
overweight position in hedge funds relative to the average fund. The value of the 
Fund was £2.36bn at the end of May. The funding level now covered 73% of 
liabilities. He said that the meetings with investment managers had not raised any 
concerns about individual managers, but had thrown up a number of generic issues, 
such as the split between active and passive mandates. He said that next quarter the 
report from JLT would include a qualitative report on each of the property managers. 
He tabled a briefing note on BP regarding the oil spill in the Gulf of Mexico. A 
Member raised two concerns in relation to this. He thought the proportion of the Fund 
(52%) invested through BlackRock was possibly too high in terms of operational risks 
with one manager. He requested officers to bring a paper about this to a future 
meeting. He noted that as BlackRock mirror the index they had a significant holding 
in BP (c. £18m), so that if the proportion of Fund invested through BlackRock had 
been capped at 30%, there would have been less exposure to BP. Secondly, he was 
surprised that although TT had come across at the recent Investment Panel 
workshop as a manager who were really concerned about risk, in May they had 
increased their holdings in BP; this might indicate that they had not assessed the 

Page 4



 
 

5

implications of the environmental crisis correctly. He suggested that they should be 
asked for a written statement setting out the rationale for their action.  A Member said 
that it was easy to be wise after the event; all equities involved risk and the 
Committee should not be selective in its concern, but it was quite in order to ask 
them to give their reasons for particular decisions. The Independent Adviser 
suggested that it might be better for them to present to the Committee so that they 
could respond to supplementary questions. He said that some investors would 
consider that the fall in the share price was an opportunity and that this was a value 
judgement and did not necessarily mean TT were taking a more risky approach than 
their mandate intended. The Chair noted that US investors owned 44% of BP and 
that it was not in their interests to allow BP to fail. The Investments Manager said that 
she would request a statement from TT and invite them to attend a meeting of the 
Investment Panel. The Director of Resources and Support Services noted that the 
holdings in BP formed only a very small proportion of the assets of the Fund. A 
Member responded that it was a higher proportion before the current crisis, and 
pointed out that all oil stocks had been affected by the fall out from the Gulf of Mexico 
and needed to be kept under review. Another Member referred to the decision of the 
Committee in March to reject the proposal to amend Jupiter’s mandate to allow them 
to invest in the UK extractives sector. He said that many extractive industries caused 
environmental damage, but poorer countries need the investment and few 
governments were able to apply the degree of pressure on the companies that the 
US had applied to BP. The Investments Manager said that the review of the Fund’s 
SRI policy would give more opportunity to discuss these issues in greater depth.  
RESOLVED to note the Fund’s return on investments and details of manager 
performance as set out in the report. 

13 INVESTMENT PANEL MINUTES 
RESOLVED to note the draft minutes of the meeting of the Investment Panel of 27 
May 2010. 

14 RECOMMENDATIONS FROM INVESTMENT PANEL 
A Member queried the cost of the intended active currency hedging mandate versus 
the returns it was estimated to produce. The Investments Manager explained that it 
was impossible to forecast returns accurately because the mandate would make 
returns when currency markets were against sterling, but when currency markets 
were in sterling’s favour and no hedge was required the Fund would incur base 
management fees. It was noted that during times when the currency markets were in 
sterling’s favour, the fund’s assets would benefit from the additional currency return, 
offsetting any fees during that period. 
After discussion, it was RESOLVED 
1.1 To appoint a specialist manager to implement an active currency hedging 

mandate over all US Dollar, Euro and Yen denominated equity assets (excluding 
those in emerging markets). 

1.2 That the manager to be appointed adopts a non-discretionary quantitative 
approach to active currency hedging. 

1.3 To delegate the appointment process to Officers in consultation with the Chair of 
the Committee and Members of the Investment Panel. 

Page 5



 
 

6

2.1 To agree the proposed tender process for the global equity manager as set out 
in paragraphs 6.1-6.3 of the report. 

2.2 To delegate the appointment of the global equity manager to the Investment 
Panel (the selection panel meeting will be open to other members of the 
Committee). 

3.  To agree the framework for the review of the hedge fund portfolio as set out in 
paragraph 7.1 of the report. 

15 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE TO COUNCIL 
The Investments Manager presented the report. She said that the Annual Report 
would be presented to Council at its September meeting and for the first time copies 
would be sent to all the employers in the Fund. She invited Members to suggest 
additions or amendments to the Annual Report. 
A Member suggested that the statement about the Members nominated to the 
Committee by the Trade Unions needed to make clear that there were three different 
unions involved. 
A Member suggested that it should be explained that the improved performance of 
the Fund over the past three years was due to the diversification strategy the Fund 
had adopted. 
RESOLVED to approve the Annual Report of the Committee to Council, subject to 
the recommended changes. 

16 COMMUNITY ADMISSION BODIES 
The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions presented the report. He said that it 
had been prepared in response to a request from a Member at the previous meeting. 
The key issue was that certain bodies were not guaranteed or underwritten. The 
exempt appendix to the report listed these bodies and gave details of their current 
deficit within the Fund. Officers were striving to protect the position of the Fund and 
were in active dialogue with these bodies. The steps being taken were acknowledged 
by the Committee 
The Director of Resources and Support Services advised that if Members wished to 
discuss the details of any of the bodies listed in the report they should consider the 
Public Interest Test and resolve to go into exempt session. 
A Member predicted that the Government’s austerity measures would result in the 
winding up of many organisations dependent on grants from the public sector, and 
suggested that the Committee should have a general strategy to address this. He did 
not wish to see the Fund spending large sums of money on legal fees to fight 
individual cases. A Member noted that it was Government policy that more public 
services should be provided by voluntary bodies and co-operatives. The Chair 
recalled that the Committee had set up a working party to consider the case of a 
community body that had become insolvent. A Member suggested a new  working 
group should be kept informed and consulted before officers took action in relation to 
any of the community bodies.  
A Member said that the original working party had received in-house legal advice that 
the Fund was obliged to pursue every outstanding liability through the courts. 

Page 6



 
 

7

However, the working party had responded that community bodies varied widely and 
that the circumstances of any insolvency needed to be addressed on a case by case 
basis  They discussed the policy  and whether the decision to pursue or not should 
be taken by the Committee or Council’s Section 151 Officer having done a cost 
benefit analysis.  A progress report will be brought to the next committee meeting. 
The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions reported that the Department of 
Communities and Local Government had recently issued a consultation paper to 
LGPS funds on the issue of admitted bodies. 
The Investments Manager said that this was a legacy issue, because bodies now 
had to give a guarantee or a bond before they were admitted to the Fund. The 
employer relationship team was spending a lot of time talking to the bodies listed in 
the appendix and advising them on how to manage their cash flow. 
RESOLVED to note the information set out in the report and to receive a further 
report at the next meeting of the Committee. 

17 WORKPLANS 
RESOLVED to note the workplans. 
 
The meeting finished at 4.10pm. 
Chair…………………………….. 
Date confirmed and signed…………………………. 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 1

 
Bath & North East Somerset Council 

 
MEETING: Avon Pension Fund Committee 
MEETING 
DATE: 24 September 2010 AGENDA 

ITEM 
NUMBER 8 

TITLE: Audited Statement of Accounts & the Annual Governance Report – 
2009/10 

WARD: ALL 
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM  

List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix 1 – 2009/10 Audited Statement of Accounts – subject to any further 
issues raised by the Auditor 
Appendix 2 – Draft Annual Governance Report 2009/10 – to follow 
 
 
 
1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 The Annual Governance Report summarises the results of the Audit 

Commission’s audit of the 2009/10 accounts.  It includes the issues arising from 
the audit of the financial statements and those issues which they are formally 
required to report under the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice and 
International Standard of Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA(UK&I) 260) – 
“Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”. 

1.2 The Audited Statement of Accounts is now presented for final approval. They 
remain subject to any issues raised by the Auditors prior to this meeting. If there 
are any such issues they will be discussed at this meeting.  

1.3 The Corporate Audit Committee will be recommended to approve the final audited 
Statement of Accounts for 2009/10 and note the issues raised in the Governance 
reports at its meeting on 30 September 2010, subject to any recommendations 
from the Avon Pension Fund Committee. 

 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
That the Committee: 
2.1 Approves the final audited Statement of Accounts for 2009/10. 
2.2 Notes the issues raised in the Annual Governance Report. 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 9



Printed on recycled paper 2

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 The Pension Fund’s Statement of Accounts shows the Total Net Assets at 31 

March 2010 as £2,458 million. This is unchanged from the figure in the draft 
accounts prior to the external audit. 

 
4 THE REPORT 
4.1 The Audit Committee approved the draft Statement of Accounts 2009/10 at its 

meeting of 29th June 2010.  
4.2 Since then there have been several presentational and technical changes to the 

accounts which require us to re-present the accounts.  
4.3 The main changes are:-  
 1) The insertion of a note to the Net Assets Statement regarding a Non Adjusting 

Post Balance Sheet Event, being the announcement in the Budget of 22nd June 
that Pensions Increases will be based on the CPI instead of RPI. This will reduce 
the Fund’s pension obligations by an estimated 5 to 8%.  

 2) The re-wording of paragraph 1.7 and insertion of 1.8 regarding the Actuary’s 
estimation of the funding level, in recognition of the announcement in the budget 
of 22nd June concerning the use of CPI in place of RPI. 

 3) The re-wording of the explanation regarding Lump Sum Retirement Benefits 
beneath Note 13. Following comments by the Committee in June this explanation 
has been revised to clarify that these benefits were not accrued for in the 2008/09 
accounts. 

 4)  The addition of Note 18 disclosing the Fund’s outstanding commitments at 31st 
March 2010 relating to future draw downs of £73m in property investments. 

4.4 In late July during a review of the invoicing process for Strain on the Fund costs, it 
was discovered that approximately £1m of Strain on the Fund costs were 
rechargeable at 31st March, but had not been included as debtors in the accounts. 
This matter was brought to the attention of the Auditors. They agreed that this was 
not material and did not require an amendment to the accounts. 

4.5 A discrepancy of £152k between the Creditor held on the B&NES balance sheet 
relating to the Pension Fund and the Debtor held on the Pension Fund balance 
sheet relating to B&NES has now been resolved. The discrepancy related to 
dividends and tax recoveries from former investment managers received in 
2008/09 that had been paid direct to the B&NES bank account rather than via the 
custodian. This was partly offset by differences in the recording of the value of 
cash injections in 2007/08 as a result of currency fluctuations. The net balance of 
these had been omitted from the initial transfer of cash on the setting up of the 
Pension Fund’s separate bank account.  

 
 
 

Page 10



Printed on recycled paper 3

5 RISK MANAGEMENT 
5.1 A proportionate risk assessment has been carried out in relation to the Councils 

risk management guidance. Management of the Avon Pension Fund remains a 
key risk although the work in relation to this years audit has not identified any new 
corporate risks or significant changes.  

6 EQUALITIES 
6.1 An equalities impact assessment is not necessary 
7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
7.1 None as this report is a statutory requirement. 
 
8 CONSULTATION 
8.1 Consultation has been carried out with the Section 151 Finance Officer. 
9 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
9.1 No decision as this is a statutory requirement. 
10 ADVICE SOUGHT 
10.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer (Divisional Director - 
Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for 
publication.  
 

Contact person  Martin Phillips, Finance and Systems Manager (Pensions) 
(01225) 395259 

Background 
papers 

Corporate Audit Committee – 29th June – Draft Statement of 
Accounts 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 1

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 2009/10                
 
Statement of Accounts  
 
Introduction  
 
1.1 The following comprises the Statement of Accounts for the Avon Pension Fund 

(The Fund). The accounts cover the financial year from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 
2010.  

1.2 These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting (‘Code of Practice’) in the United Kingdom 2009: A 
Statement of Recommended Practice as published by the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy.  As required by the Code of Practice the 
Pension Fund accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of 
the Statement of Recommended Practice of the pension SORP 2009).  The 
accounts have been prepared on an accruals basis, except for certain transfer 
values as described at ‘Statement of Accounting Policies’ – item 2.5.  They do not 
take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits in the future.  

1.3 The accounts are set out in the following order:  
 Statement of Accounting Policies which explains the basis of the figures in the 

accounts.  
 
 Fund Account which discloses the size and nature of financial additions to and 

withdrawals from the Fund during the accounting period and reconciles the 
movements in the net assets to the Fund Account. 

      Net Assets Statement which discloses the size and disposition of the net assets 
of the Fund at the end of the accounting period. 

      Notes to the Accounts which give supporting details and analysis concerning the 
contents of the accounts, together with information on the establishment of the 
Fund, its membership and actuarial position. 

Actuarial Valuation 
1.4 As required by the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2008 an 

actuarial valuation of the Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2007.  The market 
value of the Fund’s assets at the valuation date was £2,184 million.  The actuary 
has estimated that the value of the Fund was sufficient to meet 83% of its 
expected future liabilities in respect of service completed to March 2007. 

1.5 The deficit recovery period is currently set at a maximum of 20 years.  
1.6 The actuarial valuation was carried out using the projected unit actuarial method.  

The main assumptions, on the basis of which the employer’s contributions are set, 
are as set out below: 

 
 

Page 13



Printed on recycled paper 2

  
   Past Service Future Service 
Rate of Discount  6.75% per annum (pre retirement) 6.5% per annum 

5.6% per annum (post retirement)   
Rate of pensionable pay inflation 4.35% per annum 4.0% per annum 
Rate of price inflation 3.1% per annum 2.8% per annum 

 
1.7 The Actuary has estimated that the funding level as at 31 March 2010 is around 

80%.  This estimate takes into account the announcement in the 22 June 2010 
Emergency Budget that public sector pension payments will be linked to the 
Consumer Price Index rather than the Retail Price Index in the future.  This change 
reduces the Fund’s liabilities which offset, to some extent, the impact on the funding 
level of lower than expected investment returns since the 2007 valuation. 

 
1.8 The 2010 triennial valuation is currently being undertaken and will be calculated 

using values and membership data as at 31 March 2010.  This will set the employer 
contribution rates with effect from 1 April 2011. 

 
1.9 The Fund's Funding Strategy Statement can be found on the Fund's website 

(www.avonpensionfund.org.uk) or supplied on request from Liz Feinstein, 
Investments Officer. 

Statement of Investment Principles 
1.10The Fund's Statement of Investment Principles as required by the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulations 2009 can be found on the Fund's website 
(www.avonpensionfund.org.uk) or supplied on request from Liz Feinstein, 
Investments Officer. 

 
Statement of Accounting Policies  
 
Basis of Preparation 
2.1 Except where otherwise stated, the accounts have been prepared on an accruals 

basis, i.e. income and expenditure is recognised as it is earned or incurred, not as it 
is received or paid. The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

 
Investments  
2.2 Investments are shown in the accounts at market value, which has been determined 

as follows:  
i. Quoted Securities have been valued at 31 March 2010 by the Fund’s custodian 
using internationally recognized pricing sources (bid-price or ‘last trade’) where a 
quotation was available on a recognised stock exchange or the unlisted securities 
market. Unquoted securities are included at fair value. 

ii. Fixed interest securities exclude interest earned but not paid over at the year end, 
which is included separately within investment debtors. 

iii. Pooled investments are stated at their bid price or at the Net Asset Value quoted by 
their respective managers at 31 March 2010.  

iv. Investments held in foreign currencies are shown at market value translated into 
sterling at the exchange rates ruling as at 31 March 2010. 

v. Open futures contracts are included in the net asset statement at their fair market 
value, which is the unrealised profit or loss at the current bid or offer market quoted 
price of the contract. The amounts included in the change in market value are the 

Page 14



Printed on recycled paper 3

realised gains or losses on closed futures contracts and the unrealised gains or 
losses on open futures contracts. 

vi. Forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the year end are stated at fair 
value which is determined as the gain or loss that would arise if the outstanding 
contract was matched at the year end with an equal and opposite contract. 

vii. Acquisition costs of investments (e.g. stamp duty) are treated as part of the 
investment cost. 

viii. Additional Voluntary Contributions used to acquire money purchase benefits by 
scheme members are not included in the Fund’s financial statements. 

ix. Investment debtors and creditors at the year end are included in investment assets 
in accordance with the Pensions SORP.   

 
Contributions  
2.3 Contributions represent those amounts receivable from the employing bodies in 

respect of their own and their pensionable employees’ contributions. Employers’ 
contributions are determined by the Actuary on the basis of triennial valuations of 
the Fund’s assets and liabilities and take into account the Funding Strategy 
Statement set by the administering authority. Employees’ contributions have been 
included at the rates prescribed by the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007.  

 
Benefits, Refunds of Contributions and Cash Transfer Values  
2.4 Benefits payable and refunds of contributions have been brought into the accounts 

as they fall due. 
 
2.5 Cash Transfer Values are those sums paid to or received from other pension 

schemes and relate to previous periods of pensionable employment. Cash Transfer 
Values have been included in the accounts on the basis of the cheque payment 
date or “Bath & North East Somerset Council cash office received” date. Accruals 
are only made when it is certain that a transfer is to take place.  

 
Investment Income  
2.6 Dividends and interest have been accounted for on an accruals basis.  Income on 

pooled investments is accumulated and reflected in the valuation of the units.  
 
Investment Management & Administration  
2.7 The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 

Regulations 2009 permit Bath & North East Somerset Council to charge 
administration costs to the Fund. A proportion of relevant Council costs has been 
charged to the Fund on the basis of actual time spent on Pension Fund business.  

 
2.8 The fees of the Fund’s external investment managers reflect their differing 

mandates. Fees are linked to the market value of the Fund’s investments and 
therefore may increase or reduce as the value of the investment changes. Fees are 
also payable to the Fund’s global custodian and other advisors.  

 
Taxation  
2.9 The Fund is an exempt approved fund under the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 

1988 and is therefore not liable to certain UK income tax on investment income or  
to capital gains tax. As Bath & North East Somerset Council is the administering 
authority for the Fund, VAT input tax is recoverable on all Fund activities including 
expenditure on investment expenses. For taxation of overseas investment income 
please see note 3 iv. in the Notes to Accounts. 

Page 15



Printed on recycled paper 4

 

Fund Account  
For the Year Ended 31 March 2010 

Notes 2009/10 2008/09 
Contributions and Benefits  

 
£’000 £'000 

Contributions Receivable  4 134,681 
       

125,349  
Transfers In   14,934 

             
14,118  

Other Income  5 361 
                  

272  
  

149,976 
           

139,739  
Gross Benefits Payable  6 121,232 

           
111,161 

Less Benefits Recharged to Employers  7 (6,131) (5,957) 
  

115,101 
             

105,204  
Payments to and on account of Leavers  7 14,618 

               
9,259  

Administrative Expenses  8 2,340 
               

2,254  
  

132,059 
           

116,717 
    
Net Additions from dealings with members 

 
17,917 

             
23,022  

    
Returns on Investments  

   

Investment Income  10 16,014 
             

19,847  
Change in Market Value of Investments  11 612,435 (396,433) 
Investment Management Expenses  9 (6,860) (5,020) 
     
Net Returns on Investments   621,589 (381,606) 
     
Net Increase in the Fund during the year  639,506 (358,584) 
 

   

Net Assets of the Fund     
At 1 April  1,819,082 2,177,666 
At 31 March  2,458,588 1,819,082 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



Printed on recycled paper 5

Net Assets Statement  at 31 March 2010 
 

 
Notes 31 March 

2010   
31 March 

2009  
  £'000 % £'000 % 
INVESTMENT ASSETS      
Fixed interest securities : Public Sector  134,999 5.5 96,356 5.3 
      
Equities  241,264 9.8 167,867 9.2 
      
Index Linked securities : Public Sector  147,483 6.0 107,086 5.9 
      
Pooled investment vehicles :-                  

       - Property  102,713 4.2 - 0.0 

       - Other (Including Hedge Funds)  1,746,573 71.0 1,273,801 70.0 

      
Derivative Contracts: FTSE Futures  152 0.0 723 0.0 
      
Cash deposits  63,042 2.5 131,231 7.2 
      
Other  Investment balances  4,150 0.2 3,455 0.2 
INVESTMENT LIABILITIES      
Derivative contracts (Foreign Exchange 
hedge) 

 0 0.0 (56) 0.0 

      
Other  Investment balances  (738) 0.0 (1,130) (0.0) 
      
TOTAL INVESTMENT ASSETS   12 2,439,639  1,779,333  

Net Current Assets      

Current Assets 13 21,149 0.9 40,285 2.2 
      
Current Liabilities 13 (2,200) (0.1) (536) 0.0 
      
TOTAL NET ASSETS 
 2,458,588 100 1,819,082 

 100 
      
The Fund’s financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and 
other benefits after 31 March 2010. 
Non-adjusting post balance sheet events: It was announced in the Budget on 22 June 2010 
that from April 2011 the Government intends to adopt the Consumer Price Index (CPI) in place of 
the retail price index (RPI), for the indexation of public service pensions. Consequently future 
pensions increases under the Avon Pension Fund are expected to be slightly lower. This change 
is estimated to reduce benefit obligations by between 5% and 8%.  

Page 17



Printed on recycled paper 6

Notes to Accounts - Year Ended 31 March 2010 
 

1, GENERAL  
The Fund is administered by Bath & North East Somerset Council under arrangements 
made following the abolition of the former Avon County Council on 31 March 1996.  

 
The Fund is governed by the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2008 (as 
amended). Membership of the Fund is open to pensionable employees of scheduled 
bodies in the former Avon County area, together with employees of admitted bodies, a list 
of which can be found in note 18. 

 
Employers’ contributions are payable at the rate specified for each employing authority by 
the Fund’s actuary. The employees’ contribution rate is payable in accordance with the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) 
Regulations 2007.  

 
2, MEMBERSHIP  
Membership of the Fund at the year-end was as follows:-  
 

31 March  31 March 
 2010  2009 
    Employed Members 34,800                35,264  
Pensioners  21,313                20,361  
Members entitled to Deferred Benefits  24,544                22,579  
    
TOTAL  80,657                78,204  
 
 
3, TAXATION 
 
i. Value Added Tax  
 The Fund's administering authority Bath & North East Somerset Council is 

reimbursed VAT by H. M. Revenue and Customs and the accounts are shown 
exclusive of VAT.  

 
ii. Income Tax  
 The Fund is a wholly exempt fund and some UK income tax is recoverable from the 

Inland Revenue.  Where tax can be reclaimed, investment income in the accounts is 
shown gross of UK tax.  

 
iii. Capital Gains Tax 
 No capital gains tax is chargeable. 
 

iv. Taxation of Overseas Investment Income  
 The Fund receives interest on its overseas government bond portfolio gross, but a 

variety of arrangements apply to the taxation of interest on corporate bonds and 
dividends on overseas equities. 

 

Page 18



Printed on recycled paper 7

4, CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE  
 
Contributions receivable are analysed below:-  
 31 March 2010 31 March 2009 
  £’000  £'000 
Employers’ normal contributions      
      Scheduled Bodies  84,394  

                   
78,342   

      Admitted Bodies  7,564 91,958 
                     

7,271  
              

85,613  
Employers’ contributions- Augmentation     
      Scheduled Bodies 3,548  

                     
2,106   

      Admitted Bodies 814 4,362 
                        

468  
                

2,574  
Employers’ Deficit Funding     
      Admitted Bodies 241 241 453 453 
Members’ normal contributions      
      Scheduled Bodies  33,582  32,382  
      Admitted Bodies  3,595 37,177 

                
3,485  

              
35,867 

Members’ added years contributions      
      Scheduled Bodies  901  801  
      Admitted Bodies  42 943          41 842 
                                                        Total 

 
134,681 

            
125,349  

 
 The added years contributions above represent members’ purchase of added years or 
additional benefits under the Scheme.  
 
 A further facility is provided whereby members can make Additional Voluntary 
Contributions, on a money purchase basis, which are invested in insurance policies with 
The Equitable Life Assurance Society or Friends Provident on behalf of the individual 
members concerned. These contributions are not part of the Pension Fund and are not 
therefore reflected in the Fund's accounts.  A statement of the value of these investments 
is given in Note 16.  
 
 
5, OTHER INCOME  
 31 March 2010  31 March 2009 
 £'000  £'000 
Recoveries for services provided  356  269 
Cost recoveries  5  3 
 361  272 

 
‘Recoveries for services provided’ refers to administrative and accounting services 
provided to employing bodies. 
 

Page 19



Printed on recycled paper 8

6, BENEFITS PAYABLE  
 
Analysis of Gross Benefits Payable by Type:-  
 31 March 2010 31 March 2009 
  £'000  £'000 
     
Retirement Pensions  86,016  79,879  
Unfunded Pensions  6,131 92,147 5,957 85,836  
     
Commutation of pensions and      
    Lump Sum Retirement Benefits  26,536  22,248      
     
Lump Sum Death Benefits 2,549 29,085 3,077      25,325 
  121,232  111,161 

 
 
Analysis of Gross Benefits Payable by Employing Body:- 
   
  31 March 2010  31 March 2009 
  £'000  £'000 
Scheduled & Resolution Bodies  113,126                104,249  
Admitted Bodies  8,106                  6,912  
 

 121,232              111,161  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



Printed on recycled paper 9

7, BENEFITS RECHARGED TO EMPLOYERS  
Benefits recharged include all pension payments with regard to added year benefits 
awarded by the Employer to LGPS members, including related pension increases, and 
pension increases in respect of certain bodies with no pensionable employees in the Fund.  
There are also a small number of other pension supplements which are recharged and 
included in the figures below. 
 
 

31 March 2010 
 31 March 

2009 
 

£'000 
 

£'000 
Benefits Recharged  6,131             5,957  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

31 March 2010 
 31 March 

2009 
Leavers £'000  £'000 
Refunds to members leaving service  77 

                   
118  

Individual Cash Transfer Values to other schemes  14,541 
 

9,141 
Bulk Cash Transfers -                          

                        
-   

 
14,618 

                 
9,259  

 
There have been no bulk transfers during the year. 
 
 
8, ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES  
Costs incurred in the management and administration of the Fund are set out below. 
 

31 March 2010  31 March 2009 
 

£'000  £'000 
Administration and processing  1,680           1,641  
Actuarial fees  178                 243  
Audit fees  71                 70  
Legal and professional fees  1                   1  
Central recharges from Administering Authority 410               299  
 

2,340           2,254  
 
 
 

Page 21



Printed on recycled paper 10

9, INVESTMENT EXPENSES  
Expenses incurred in the management of the Fund are set out below. 
  

31st March 2010  31 March 2009 
  

£'000  £'000 
Portfolio management  

 
6,469                  4,818  

Global custody  
 

74                     68  
Investment advisors  

 
171                       31  

Performance measurement  
 

33                       32  
Investment accounting 

 
22                       24  

Other advisory fees  
 

91                       47  
 

 
6,860                  5,020  

 
 
10, INVESTMENT INCOME  
 

31 March 2010   31 March 2009  
  £'000    £'000  
Interest from fixed interest securities 4,135  4,731 
Dividends from equities 6,275  5,686 
Income from Index Linked securities 3,840  2,282 
Income from pooled investment vehicles 1,574  1,114 
Interest on cash deposits 172  6,012 
Other - Stock lending 18  22 
 16,014  19,847 

 
The Fund has an arrangement with its custodian (ABN AMRO Mellon) to lend eligible 
securities from its portfolio to third parties in return for which the third parties pay fees to 
the fund. The third parties provide collateral to the Fund which is held during the period of 
the loan.  This stock lending programme was introduced with effect from July 2004.  

 
The value of the stock on loan as at 31 March 2010 was £9.42 million (31 March 2009 
£62.16m).  This was secured by collateral worth £9.73 million comprising OECD sovereign 
debt. 

 
 
 

Page 22



Printed on recycled paper 11

 
11, INVESTMENTS  
       Change   
 Value at Purchases Sales In Market Value at 
 01/04/09 at Cost Proceeds Value 31/03/10 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
UK Fixed Interest Gilts 150,878 121,202 (82,901) (4,767) 184,412 
UK Index Linked Gilts 107,086 53,164 (19,800) 7,033 147,483 
Sterling Bonds  96,156 41,103 (48,000) 35,168 124,427 
Non-Sterling Bonds 58,642 13,000 0 707 72,349 
Equities  1,040,142 307,817 (365,004) 545,873 1,528,828 
Hedge Funds 192,928 311 0 19,734 212,973 
Property 0 132,224 (32,327) 2,816 102,713 
 1,645,832 668,821 (548,032) 606,564 2,373,185 
Cash Deposits 131,231  (68,719) 530 63,042 
Investment 
Debtors/Creditors 2,270   1,142 3,412 
Total Investment Assets 1,779,333 668,821 (616,751) 608,236 2,439,639 
    660,306  
Adjustments for  
Revenue, Debtors & 
Creditors 

39,749  (47,871) 18,949 
Total Net Assets 

1,819,082  612,435 2,458,588 
 
The Change in Market Value of investments comprises all gains and losses on Fund 
investments during the year, whether realised or unrealised. 
The Change in Market Value for cash deposits represents gains on foreign currency 
deposits and foreign exchange transactions during the year. 
Investment Transaction Costs totalling £831,338 are included in the above. These 
consist of any fees, commissions or taxes due in regard to transactions.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 23



Printed on recycled paper 12

12, INVESTMENT ASSETS  
 
Further analysis of the market value of investments as set out in the Net Assets Statement 
is given below:- 
 31 March 2010 31 March 2009 
UK Equities  £'000  £'000 
      Quoted 191,718  124,288  
      Pooled Investments 456,708  441,712  
      FTSE Futures 152 648,578 723 566,723 
Overseas Equities     
      Quoted 49,546  43,579  
      Pooled Investments 830,704 880,250      429,840  473,419     
UK Fixed Interest Gilts      
      Quoted 134,999       96,356   
      Pooled Investments 49,413 184,412 54,522 150,878 
UK Index Linked Gilts      
      Quoted  147,483  107,086  
      Pooled Investments  - 147,483                -   107,086 
Sterling Bonds (excluding Gilts)     
      Pooled Investments 124,427 124,427 96,156       96,156  
Non-Sterling Bonds     
      Pooled Investments 72,348 72,348        58,642  58,642 
Hedge Funds     
      Pooled Investments 212,973 212,973 192,928 192,928 

Property     

     Pooled Investments 102,713 102,713 - - 

Cash Deposits      
      Sterling 52,627       130,953   
      Foreign Currencies 10,415 63,042             278  131,231 
Investment Debtors/Creditors     
      Investment Income 3,231          2,617   
      Sales of Investments 919         839   
      Foreign Exchange Hedge -  (56)  
      Purchases of Investments (737) 3,413 (1,130)          2,270  
TOTAL INVESTMENT ASSETS   2,439,639  

1,779,333 
 
 
 

 
Page 24



Printed on recycled paper 13

POOLED INVESTMENTS ANALYSIS  31 March 2010  
  £'000  
Property  
Unit Trusts 43,608 
Unitised Insurance Policies 33,034 
Other Managed Funds 26,071 
Non Property  
Unitised Insurance Policies 873,040 
Other Managed Funds 873,533 
TOTAL POOLED INVESTMENT ASSETS 1,849,286 
 
 
 
 
 
DERIVATIVES ANALYSIS  31 March 2010  
 £'000 
“Over The Counter” - 

 
Exchange Traded 
Contract Type        Expiration                          Book Cost            Unrealised Gain 
FTSE Futures       Less than 3 months             20,887,180                     152,195 
 
A derivative is a financial contract between two parties, the value of which is determined 
by the underlying asset. Investment in derivatives may only be made if they contribute to a 
reduction of risks and facilitate efficient portfolio management. 
The UK Equity futures contracts are held to facilitate efficient portfolio management for a 
short term passively managed investment where the costs of investing directly in UK 
equities would be significant. 
Forward “over the counter” foreign exchange contracts are sometimes held by one of the 
investment managers to eliminate the impact of the currency on the sterling return. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



Printed on recycled paper 14

 
The proportion of the market value of investment assets managed by each external 
manager at the end of the financial year was:- 
 

31 March 2010  31 March 2009  
 

£'000 %  £'000 %  
Barclays Global Investors 1,402,836 57.5         1,121,178  63.0 
Capital International 57 0.0 

                   
130  

            
0  

Threadneedle Pensions 4 0.0 
             

38  
            
0  

Wellington Management 
International 18 0.0 

                     
22  

            
0  

Jupiter Asset Management 94,451 3.9 
              

65,064  
            

3.6  
Genesis 130,211 5.3 

              
51,923  

            
2.9  

Invesco 158,223 6.5            109,894  
            

6.2  
State Street 85,675 3.5 

              
58,061  

            
3.3  

 
Partners 26,100 1.1 - 0 
Royal London Asset Management 122,185 5.0            96,156  

            
5.4  

TT International 124,756 5.1            82,937  
    

4.7  
Man Investments 95,047 3.9            88,409  

            
5.0  

Gottex Asset Management 51,280 2.1 
              

44,799  
            

2.5  
Stenham Asset Management 11,544 0.5 

              
11,006  

            
0.6  

Signet Capital Management 45,279 1.9 
              

39,708  
            

2.2  
Lyster Watson Management 9,823 0.4               9,006  

            
0.5  

Schroder Investment Management 76,798 3.1 1,002 0.1 
Bank of New York Mellon 5,352 0.2 - 0.00 
TOTAL INVESTMENT ASSETS  2,439,639 100.00         1,779,333  100.0 

 
Residual values held by former Managers Capital International, Threadneedle 
Pensions and Wellington Management International relate to reclaimable tax.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



Printed on recycled paper 15

 
13, DEBTORS AND CREDITORS  
Provision has been made in the accounts for debtors and creditors known to be outstanding 
at 31 March 2010. 
Debtors and creditors included in the accounts are analysed below:-  
 
 31 March 2010 31 March 2009 
  £'000  £'000 
 DEBTORS      
 Bath & North East Somerset Council 10,027  29,480  
 Contributions Receivable       
 - Employers   7,267  

                
6,152   

 - Members   2,985  
                

2,593   
 Discretionary Early Retirement Costs  498  

                
8   

 Other Debtors   372 21,149 
                   

2,052         40,285  
     
 CREDITORS       
 Management Fees   (393)  (454)  
 Lump Sum Retirement Benefits   (1,712)  0  
 Other Creditors   (95) (2,200) (82) (536) 
 NET CURRENT ASSETS   

 
18,949 

 
       39,749  

 
The debtor with Bath & North East Somerset Council represents monies held by the 
Administering Authority and is the surplus of contributions over pensions. This 
variance was high at 31 March 2009 pending the review of investment strategy in 
2009. A normal commercial rate of interest is paid on this money. 
Lump Sum Retirement Benefits due as at 31st March 2010 but not paid have been 
accrued in accordance with recommended practise. In the year ending 31st March 
2009 Lump Sum Retirement Benefits were accounted for on a payments basis. Lump 
Sum Retirement Benefits due as at 31st March 2009 but not accrued as debtors, 
amounted to £1,502,000. 
 

14, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  
There were no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2010. (March 2009 – NIL) 

15, TRANSFERS IN  
Transfers In during the year were all in relation to individuals. There were no group 
transfers in to the fund during the year ending 31 March 2010. 

 

Page 27



Printed on recycled paper 16

16, ADDITIONAL VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS (AVCs) 
Scheme members may make Additional Voluntary Contributions that are invested in 
insurance policies with The Equitable Life Assurance Society or Friends Provident, the 
Fund's nominated AVC providers.  Additional Voluntary Contributions received from 
employees and paid to The Equitable Life Assurance Society during 2009/10 were 
£7,319 (2008/09 - £6,785).  Additional Voluntary Contributions received from employees 
and paid to Friends Provident during 2009/10 were £527,655 (2008/09 - £416,269). 
 
The total value of the assets invested, on a money purchase basis, with these AVC 
providers was:- 
 31 March 2010  31 March 2009 
 £'000  £'000 
Equitable Life    
With Profits Retirement Benefits  917           1,067  
Unit Linked Retirement Benefits               449                333  
Building Society Benefits               327                378  
          1,693            1,778  
    
Death in Service Benefit           296                297  
    
Friends Provident    
With Profits Retirement Benefits 263               284  
Unit Linked Retirement Benefits 3,227           2,590  
Cash Fund 482               501  
 3,972           3,375  
AVC investments are not included in the Fund’s financial statements. 
17, RELATED PARTIES 
In 2009/10 £36,893 was charged to the Fund in respect of Allowances paid to the voting 
Members of the Avon Pension Fund Committee (£18,422 in 2008/09). The increase 
reflects the greater number of Members entitled to vote on the Committee. 
Two Independent Trustees were paid allowances of £4,726 and £10,332 respectively 
during the year for their work in relation to the Pension Fund Committee and the 
Investment panel.  They are also entitled to claim reasonable expenses. 
Five voting members and three non voting members of the Avon Pension Fund Committee 
(including three B&NES Councillor Members) were members of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme during the financial year 2009/2010. (Three in 2008/2009, all B&NES 
Councillor Members ). The increase reflects the widening of the entitlement to vote on the 
Avon Pension Fund Committee. The Independent Trustees are not eligible to join the 
Local Government Pension Scheme. 
 
There are no other related party transactions except as already disclosed elsewhere. 
 

Page 28



Printed on recycled paper 17

 
18, OUTSTANDING COMMITMENTS  
As at the 31st March 2010 the Fund had outstanding commitments relating to 
investments in property that will be drawn down in tranches by the Investment Managers 
totalling £73,034,402. 
19, EMPLOYING BODIES 
 
As at 31 March 2010 the following employing bodies had scheme members in the Avon 
Pension Fund: 
 
Scheduled Bodies  
Principal Councils and Service Providers  Education Establishments 
Avon County Council  Bath Spa University College  
Avon Fire Brigade  Beechen Cliff School      
Avon Magistrates' Courts Committee   Bristol Cathedral Choir School  
Avon Probation Service   Cabot Learning Federation 
Bath & North East Somerset Council   City Academy Bristol   
Bristol City Council   City of Bath College   
North Somerset Council   City of Bristol College   
South Gloucestershire Council   Colston Girl’s School Academy 
 Filton College 
 Hayesfield School          
 Merchant’s Academy 
 Norton Radstock College  
 Oldfield School              
 Oasis Academy Brightstowe 
 Oasis Academy Bristol 
 St. Brendan's College   
 The Ridings Federation Winterbourne 
 The Ridings Federation Yate 
 University of the West of England 
 Weston College 
  
Designating Bodies   
Bath Tourism Plus Mangotsfield Parish Council  
Backwell Parish Council  Nailsea Town Council  
Bradley Stoke Town Council  Norton Radstock Town Council   
Charter Trustees of the City of Bath  Oldland Parish Council   
Clevedon Town Council Patchway Town Council    
Destination Bristol Paulton Parish Council   
Dodington Parish Council  Portishead & North Weston Town Council    
Downend & Bromley Heath Parish Council  Saltford Parish Council 
Easton in Gordano Parish Council Stoke Gifford Parish Council   
Filton Town Council  Thornbury Town Council   
Frampton Cotterell Parish Council  Westerleigh Parish Council  
Hanham Parish Council Weston Super Mare Town Council  
Hanham Abbots Parish Council  Whitchurch Parish Council  
Keynsham Town Council  Winterbourne Parish Council  
Long Ashton Parish Council  Yate Town Council  
  
  

Page 29



Printed on recycled paper 18

  
  
  
Admitted Bodies  
Active Community Engagement Ltd Mouchel Business Srvices Ltd (Nailsea IT)* 
Agincare Ltd. * Northgate Information Solutions * 
Aquaterra Leisure Ltd. * North Somerset Housing 
Aramark Ltd  * Off The Record Bath & Nrth East Somerset   
Ashley House Hostel  Prospect Services Ltd * 
BAM Construct UK Ltd (Henbury School) * RM Data Solutions 
Bath &NE Somerset Racial Equality Council Shaw Healthcare (North Somerset) Ltd*  
Bespoke Cleaning * SITA Holdings UK Ltd. * 
Brislington Neighbourhood Centre   Skanska (Cabot Learning Federation)* 
The Care Quality Commission  SLM Community Leisure * 
Centre For Deaf People   SLM Fitness and Health * 
Churchill Contract Services Somer Community Housing Trust   
Clifton Suspension Bridge Trust   Somer Housing Group Ltd.  
Community Action   South Gloucestershire Leisure Trust *  
Eden  Food  Services *  Southern Brooks Community Partnership   
English Landscapes* Southwest Grid for Learning Trust  
Holburne Museum of Art  STA Travel * 
ISS Mediclean (Bristol)* Team Clean Ltd * 
ISS Mediclean Cabot Learning Federation* The Brandon Trust  * 
Learning Partnership West Quadron Services* 
Mama Bears Baby Nursery Ltd University of Bath   
Merlin Housing Society Ltd Vision North Somerset  
Merlin Housing Society (SG) West of England Sports Trust 
MLA South West Yes Dining Ltd * 
Mouchel *  
Mouchel Business Services *  
 *Scope bodies: A body that provides, by 

means of contract, a service in a 
connection with the exercise of a function 
of a scheme employer. 

 
 
 
 

Page 30



Annual
Governance
Report
Avon Pension Fund

Audit 2009/10 

Date September 2010

Page 31



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive directors/ 
members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors 
accept no responsibility to: 

! any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

! any third party.

Contents

Key messages 4

Next steps 6

Financial statements 7

Glossary 10

Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Bath and North East 
Somerset Council 11

Audit Report to go with the Pension Fund Annual Report 16

Appendix 2 – Unadjusted misstatements in the accounts 19

Appendix 3 – Draft letter of representation 20

Page 32



Ladies and Gentlemen 

2009/10 Annual Governance Report

I am pleased to present my report on the results of my audit work for 2009/10. 

I discussed and agreed a draft of the report with the Divisional Director of Financial 
Services on 17 September 2010 and updated it as issues have been resolved. 

My report sets out the key issues that you should consider before I complete the audit.  

It asks you to: 

! consider the matters raised in the report before approving the financial statements 
(pages 7 to 9); 

! agree to adjust the misstatements in the financial statements I have identified, 
which management has declined to amend or set out the reasons for not amending 
the misstatements; (Appendix 2); and 

! approve the letter of representation on behalf of the Council before I issue my 
opinion and conclusion (Appendix 3). 

Yours faithfully 

Wayne Rickard 
District Auditor 

30 September 2010 

Page 33



Key messages 

Avon Pension Fund  4

Key messages 
This report summarises the findings from the 2009/10 audit which is substantially 
complete. It includes the messages arising from my audit of the pension fund 
accounting statements included within your financial statements.   

Financial statements Results Page

Unqualified audit opinion Yes 7

Pension fund accounting statements free from material error Yes 7

Adequate internal control environment Yes 7

Audit opinion 

1 Subject to the satisfactory clearance of outstanding issues I intend to issue an 
unqualified opinion on the accounts of Bath and North East Somerset Council including 
the Pension Fund by my deadline of 30 September 2010. Appendix 1 contains my draft 
report. I identified two non-trivial misstatements in the pension fund accounting 
statements. Management have not amended the financial statements. 

2 I identified one disclosure issue affecting the investments note 11 to the accounting 
statements. This has not been amended. 

Financial statements 

3 The Council approved the draft financial statements and annual governance statement 
before the statutory deadline of 30 June 2010. Electronic working papers were 
available at the start of the audit providing a clear audit trail. 

Audit fees 

4 On 15 April 2009 I notified you of my proposed fee of £70,900, in my audit fee letter, 
for 2009/10 for the audit of the pension fund accounting statements. In January 2010 I 
issued my opinion plan for 2009/10 and said that I would keep the audit fee under 
review. On 15 June 2010 I notified you that I would reduce the fee for the 2009/10 
audit to £47,000 because of changes to the way the Audit Commission calculates fees.

5 I have revisited the fee after completing the audit and I can confirm the revised fee of 
£47,000 remains appropriate. 

Page 34



Key messages 

5   Avon Pension Fund 

Independence

I can confirm that the audit has been carried out in accordance with the Audit 
Commission’s policies on integrity, objectivity and independence. 

Page 35



Next steps 

Avon Pension Fund  6

Next steps 
This report identifies the key messages that you should consider before I issue my 
opinion on the pension fund's accounts, which forms part of my report on the 
Council's financial statements. It includes only matters of governance interest that 
have come to my attention in performing my audit. My audit is not designed to 
identify all matters that might be relevant to you.

6 This report was taken to the Pension Fund Audit Committee on 24 September for 
information. I ask the Corporate Audit Committee to: 

! consider the matters raised in the report before approving the financial statements 
(pages 7 to 9); 

! agree to adjust the misstatements in the pension fund accounting statements I 
have identified that management has declined to amend or set out the reasons for 
not amending the misstatements (Appendix 2); and 

! approve the letter of representation on behalf of the Council before I issue my 
opinion and conclusion (Appendix 3). 

Page 36



Financial statements 

7   Avon Pension Fund 

Financial statements 
The Pension Fund's accounts are important means by which the Fund accounts for 
its stewardship of public funds. The Council has a final responsibility for these 
statements. It is important that you consider my findings before you adopt the 
financial statements and the annual governance statement. 

Opinion on the financial statements 

7 Subject to satisfactory clearance of outstanding matters, I plan to issue an audit report 
including an unqualified opinion on the financial statements. Appendix 1 contains a 
copy of my draft audit report. 

8 I found the Pension Fund accounts to be free of material misstatement. 

9 The Pension Fund has an adequate control environment.  

Outstanding matters 

10 My work on the financial statements is largely complete. I have outstanding queries in 
respect of debtors and audit closure procedures to complete. The latter includes our 
internal quality review procedures, updating the post balance sheet events review to 
the date of signing the opinion, and receipt and consideration of the letter of 
representation.

Misstatements in the financial statements 

11 I report all misstatements identified during the course of the audit that are above a 
trivial threshold. For this audit the threshold is £122,920. I have identified two 
misstatements that require reporting, these are set out at Appendix 2. Management 
have not adjusted the financial statements. 

Important weaknesses in internal control 

12 I have not identified any weakness in the design or operation of an internal control that 
might result in a material error in your financial statements of which you are not aware. 

Letter of representation 

13 Before I issue my opinion, auditing standards require me to ask you and management 
for written representations about your financial statements and governance 
arrangements. Appendix 3 contains the draft letter of representation.

Page 37



Financial statements 

Avon Pension Fund  8

Key areas of judgement and audit risk 

14 In planning my audit I identified specific risks and areas of judgement that I have 
considered as part of my audit.

Table 1 Key areas of judgement and audit risk 

Issue or risk Finding

Introduction of a separate bank account for 
the pension fund: we reviewed controls.  

Separate bank account set up during 
2009/10. Separate treasury management 
function introduced 1 April 2010. Bank 
reconciliation processes and controls are 
in place at the year end.  Bank 
reconciliations were not countersigned 
during the year. 

Changes in the Committee structure: we 
considered any risks for the accounts. 

Review of changes did not raise any 
additional risks. 

Changes to the accounting regulations: we 
considered any issues for the 2009/10 
accounts.

The financial statements were substantially 
prepared in accordance with Pensions 
Statement of Recommended accounting 
Practice.

Working papers: we liaised with officers 
over the quality of working papers. 

Electronic working papers available at the 
start of the audit providing a clear audit 
trail.

We considered the issue, first raised in 
2008/09, of the co-mingling of pension 
fund and Council investments to ensure 
the Pension Fund was receiving 
appropriate returns. 

Officers provided an analysis of short term 
cash investments showing the interest 
earned and paid to the pension fund.  This 
confirmed the pension fund was receiving 
the correct interest income. 

Unadjusted misstatements 

15 Two misstatements were identified during my audit, one of which was drawn to my 
attention by officers.  These are listed in appendix two and relate to the inclusion of 
debtors.

Page 38



Financial statements 

9   Avon Pension Fund 

Accounting practice and financial reporting 

16 I review the accounts as a whole ensuring the information across all the notes to the 
accounts is consistent and follows accounting guidance.  I consider also the non-
numeric content of your financial reporting. 

Table 2 Matters arising 

Issue Finding

Reconciliation of investments and the 
disclosure of derivatives.  

Recommended accounting practice is that 
the table in note 11 should show cash 
flows relating to derivatives, and the note 
should disclose that cash receipts and 
payments arising under derivatives 
contracts do not represent traditional 
purchases and sales 

Page 39



Glossary 

Avon Pension Fund  10

Glossary
Annual governance statement

17 A statement of internal control prepared by an audited body and published with the 
financial statements. 

Audit closure certificate

18 A certificate that I have completed the audit following statutory requirements. This 
marks the point when I have completed my responsibilities for the audit of the period 
covered by the certificate. 

Audit opinion

19 On completion of the audit of the accounts, auditors must give their opinion on the 
financial statements, including:  

! whether they give a true and fair view of the financial position of the audited body 
and its spending and income for the year in question; and 

! whether they have been prepared properly, following the relevant accounting rules.

Qualified  

20 The auditor has some reservations or concerns. 

Unqualified

21 The auditor does not have any reservations.  

Page 40



Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Bath and North East 
Somerset Council

11   Avon Pension Fund 

Appendix 1 – Independent 
auditor’s report to Members of 
Bath and North East Somerset 
Council
Opinion on the Authority accounting statements 
I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of Bath and North East 
Somerset Council for the year ended 31 March 2010 under the Audit Commission Act 
1998. The accounting statements comprise the Income and Expenditure Account, the 
Statement of the Movement on the General Fund Balance, the Balance Sheet, the 
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Cash Flow Statement, the 
Collection Fund and the related notes. The accounting statements have been prepared 
under the accounting policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies. 
This report is made solely to the members of Bath and North East Somerset Council in 
accordance with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set 
out in paragraph 49 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies 
published by the Audit Commission in April 2008. 

Respective responsibilities of the Divisional Director Finance and auditor 
The Divisional Director Finance is responsible for preparing the accounting statements in 
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended 
Practice are set out in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts.  
My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance 
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing 
(UK and Ireland).
I report to you my opinion as to whether the accounting statements give a true and fair 
view, in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of 
Recommended Practice, of the financial position of the Authority and its income and 
expenditure for the year. 
I review whether the governance statement reflects compliance with ‘Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: A Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 
2007. I report if it does not comply with proper practices specified by CIPFA/SOLACE or if 
the statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my 
audit of the accounting statements. I am not required to consider, nor have I considered, 
whether the governance statement covers all risks and controls. Neither am I required to 
form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s corporate governance procedures 
or its risk and control procedures. 

Page 41



 Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Bath and North East 
Somerset Council

Avon Pension Fund  12

I read other information published with the Authority accounting statements, and consider 
whether it is consistent with the audited Authority accounting statements. This other 
information comprises the Explanatory Foreword. I consider the implications for my report 
if I become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the 
Authority accounting statements. My responsibilities do not extend to any other 
information.

Basis of audit opinion 
I conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of 
Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission and International Standards on Auditing 
(UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, 
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounting 
statements and related notes. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates 
and judgments made by the Authority in the preparation of the accounting statements and 
related notes, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s 
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 
I planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations 
which I considered necessary in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give 
reasonable assurance that the accounting statements and related notes are free from 
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming my 
opinion I also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the 
accounting statements and related notes. 

Opinion
In my opinion the Authority accounting statements give a true and fair view, in accordance 
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended 
Practice, of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2010 and its income and 
expenditure for the year then ended. 

Opinion on the pension fund accounting statements 
I have audited the pension fund accounting statements for the year ended 31 March 2010 
under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The pension fund accounting statements comprise 
the Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and the related notes. The pension fund 
accounting statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out in the 
Statement of Accounting Policies. 

This report is made solely to the members of Bath and North East Somerset Council in 
accordance with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set 
out in paragraph 49 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies 
published by the Audit Commission in April 2008. 

Page 42



Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Bath and North East 
Somerset Council

13   Avon Pension Fund 

Respective responsibilities of the Divisional Director Finance and auditor
The Divisional Director Finance is responsible for preparing the pension fund accounting 
statements, in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of 
Recommended Practice are set out in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement 
of Accounts.
My responsibility is to audit the pension fund accounting statements and related notes in 
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards 
on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
I report to you my opinion as to whether the pension fund accounting statements give a 
true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement 
of Recommended Practice, of the financial transactions of the pension fund during the 
year and the amount and disposition of the fund’s assets and liabilities, other than liabilities 
to pay pensions and other benefits after the end of the scheme year.

I read other information published with the pension fund accounting statements and 
related notes and consider whether it is consistent with the audited pension fund 
accounting statements. This other information comprises the Explanatory Foreword.  I 
consider the implications for my report if I become aware of any apparent misstatements 
or material inconsistencies with the pension fund accounting statements and related notes. 
My responsibilities do not extend to any other information. 

Basis of audit opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of 
Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission and International Standards on Auditing 
(UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, 
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the pension fund 
accounts and related notes. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates 
and judgments made by the Authority in the preparation of the pension fund accounting 
statements and related notes, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 
the Authority’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 
I planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations 
which I considered necessary in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give 
reasonable assurance that the pension fund accounts and related notes are free from 
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming my 
opinion I also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the 
pension fund accounting statements and related notes. 

Opinion
In my opinion the pension fund accounting statements and related notes give a true and 
fair view, in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended Practice, of the financial 
transactions of the Pension Fund during the year ended 31 March 2010, and the amount 
and disposition of the fund’s assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2010, other than liabilities 
to pay pensions and other benefits after the end of the scheme year. 

Page 43



 Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Bath and North East 
Somerset Council

Avon Pension Fund  14

Conclusion on arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
the use of resources

Authority’s Responsibilities 
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and 
governance and regularly to review the adequacy and effectiveness of these 
arrangements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities 
I am required by the Audit Commission Act 1998 to be satisfied that proper arrangements 
have been made by the Authority for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires me 
to report to you my conclusion in relation to proper arrangements, having regard to the 
criteria for principal local authorities specified by the Audit Commission and published in 
May 2008 and updated in October 2009. I report if significant matters have come to my 
attention which prevent me from concluding that the Authority has made such proper 
arrangements. I am not required to consider, nor have I considered, whether all aspects of 
the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use 
of resources are operating effectively. 

Conclusion
I have undertaken my audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and having 
regard to the criteria for principal local authorities specified by the Audit Commission and 
published in May 2008 and updated in October 2009, and the supporting guidance, I am 
satisfied that, in all significant respects, Bath and North East Somerset Council made 
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 2010. 

Certificate 
The audit cannot be formally concluded and an audit certificate issued until I have 
completed my consideration of matters brought to my attention by local authority electors. I 
am satisfied that these matters do not have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Page 44



Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Bath and North East 
Somerset Council

15   Avon Pension Fund 

Wayne Rickard 

District Auditor 

Audit Commission 

3- 4 Blenheim Court 

Matford Business Park 

Lustleigh Close 

Exeter

EX2 8PW 

30 September 2010 

Page 45



 Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Bath and North East 
Somerset Council

Avon Pension Fund  16

Audit Report to go with the 
Pension Fund Annual Report 
Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Bath and North East Somerset 
Council
I have audited the pension fund accounting statements for the year ended 31 March 2010. 
The pension fund accounting statements comprise the Fund Account, the Net Assets 
Statement and the related notes. The pension fund accounting statements have been 
prepared under the accounting policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies. 
This report is made solely to the members of Bath and North East Somerset Council in 
accordance with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set 
out in paragraph 49 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies 
published by the Audit Commission in April 2008. 

Respective responsibilities of the Divisional Director Finance and auditor
The Divisional Director Finance is responsible for preparing the pension fund accounting 
statements, in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of 
Recommended Practice. In preparing this pension fund accounting statements, the 
Divisional Director Finance is responsible for: 

! selecting suitable accounting policies and then applying them consistently; 

! making judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 

! keeping proper accounting records which were up to date; 

! taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

My responsibility is to audit the pension fund accounting statements and related notes in 
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards 
on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

I report to you my opinion as to whether the pension fund accounting statements give a 
true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement 
of Recommended Practice, the financial transactions of the pension fund during the year 
and the amount and disposition of the fund’s assets and liabilities, other than liabilities to 
pay pensions and other benefits after the end of the scheme year. I also report to you 
whether, in my opinion, the information which comprises the commentary on the financial 
performance included within the Pension Fund Annual Report, is consistent with the 

Page 46



Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Bath and North East 
Somerset Council

17   Avon Pension Fund 

pension fund accounting statements. That information comprises [list elements as 
appropriate]I,

I review whether the governance compliance statement published in the Pension Fund 
Annual Report reflects compliance with the requirements of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 and related guidance. I report if it 
does not meet the requirements specified by the Department of Communities and Local 
Government or if the statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am 
aware of from my audit of the accounting statements. I am not required to consider, nor 
have I considered, whether the governance statement covers all risks and controls. 
Neither am I required to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s corporate 
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures 

I read other information published with the pension fund accounting statements and 
related notes and consider whether it is consistent with the audited pension fund 
accounting statements. This other information comprises the remaining elements of the 
Pension Fund Annual Report. I consider the implications for my report if I become aware of 
any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the pension fund accounting 
statements and related notes. My responsibilities do not extend to any other information. 

Basis of audit opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of 
Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission and International Standards on Auditing 
(UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, 
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the pension fund 
accounting statements and related notes. It also includes an assessment of the significant 
estimates and judgments made by the Authority in the preparation of the pension fund 
accounting statements and related notes, and of whether the accounting policies are 
appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately 
disclosed. 
I planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations 
which I considered necessary in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give 
reasonable assurance that the pension fund accounting statements and related notes are 
free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In 
forming my opinion I also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information 
in the pension fund accounting statements and related notes. 

Opinion
In my opinion: 

! the pension fund accounting statements and related notes give a true and fair view, 
in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended Practice, of the financial 
transactions of the Pension Fund during the year ended 31 March 2010, and the 
amount and disposition of the fund’s assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2010, 

Page 47



 Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Bath and North East 
Somerset Council

Avon Pension Fund  18

other than liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the end of the scheme 
year; and 

! the information given in the commentary on financial performance included within 
the Pension Fund Annual Report is consistent with the pension fund accounting 
statements.

Wayne Rickard 

District Auditor 

Audit Commission 

3- 4 Blenheim Court 

Matford Business Park 

Lustleigh Close 

Exeter

EX2 8PW 

30 September 2010 

Page 48



Appendix 2 – Unadjusted misstatements in the accounts

19   Avon Pension Fund 

Appendix 2 – Unadjusted 
misstatements in the accounts 

I identified the following misstatements during my audit, (one of which relating to the strain 
on the fund, was drawn to my attention by officers) but management has not adjusted the 
financial statements. I bring them to your attention to help you in fulfilling your governance 
responsibilities. If you decide not to amend, please tell me why in the representation letter. 
If you believe the affect of the uncorrected misstatements, individually and collectively, is 
immaterial, please reflect this in the representation letter. Please attach a schedule of the 
uncorrected misstatements to the representation letter. 

Table 3  

Description of misstatement Accounts affected Value of 
misstatement

£000s

Strain on the Fund costs relating 
to 2009/10 not invoiced. 

Debtors understated and 
contributions receivable 
understated.

1,074

Error on amount due from 
B&NES Council 

Debtors understated and 
fund account understated 

152

Page 49



 Appendix 3 – Draft letter of representation

Avon Pension Fund  20

Appendix 3 – Draft letter of 
representation

To: Wayne Rickard 
District Auditor 
Audit Commission 
3- 4 Blenheim Court 
Matford Business Park 
Lustleigh Close 
Exeter
EX2 8PW 

Bath and North East Somerset - Audit for the year ended 31 March 2010 

I confirm to the best of my knowledge and belief, having made appropriate enquiries of 
other directors, officers and Members of Bath and North East Somerset Council, the 
following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the Council’s 
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010.  All representations cover the 
Council’s accounts and Pension Fund accounts included within the financial statements. 

Compliance with the statutory authorities 
I acknowledge my responsibility under the relevant statutory authorities for preparing the 
financial statements in accordance with the Code of Practice for Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom: A Statement of Recommended, which give a true and 
fair view the financial position and financial performance of the Bath and North East 
Somerset Council and for making accurate representations to you.

Uncorrected misstatements 
I confirm that I believe that the effects of the uncorrected financial statements 
misstatements listed in the attached schedule are not material to the financial statements, 
either individually or in aggregate. These misstatements have been discussed with those 
charged with governance within the Council and the reasons for not correcting these items 
are as follows; 

reason 1 etc; 
reason 2 

Page 50



Appendix 3 – Draft letter of representation

21   Avon Pension Fund 

Supporting records 
All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit 
and all the transactions undertaken by the Council have been properly reflected and 
recorded in the accounting records. All other records and related information, including 
minutes of all Council and Committee meetings, have been made available to you. 

Irregularities
I acknowledge my responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control 
systems to prevent and detect fraud or error. 

There have been no: 

! irregularities involving management or employees who have significant roles in the 
system of internal accounting control; 

! irregularities involving other employees that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements; or

! communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance with, or 
deficiencies on, financial reporting practices which could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

!
I also confirm that I have disclosed: 

! my knowledge of fraud, or suspected fraud, involving either management, 
employees who have significant roles in internal control or others where fraud 
could have a material effect on the financial statements; and 

! my knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity’s 
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, 
regulators or others. 

!

Law, regulations, contractual arrangements and codes of practice 
There are no instances of non-compliance with laws, regulations and codes of practice, 
likely to have a significant effect on the finances or operations of the Council. 
The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual arrangements that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.  There has 
been no non-compliance with requirements of regulatory authorities that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

Fair Values 
I confirm the reasonableness of the significant assumptions within the financial statements. 
For the material assumptions used in the preparation of the accounts such as the method 
of calculating depreciation, I confirm: 

! the appropriateness of the measurement method; 

! the basis used by management to overcome the presumption under the financial 
reporting framework that estimates are not used; 

Page 51



 Appendix 3 – Draft letter of representation

Avon Pension Fund  22

! the completeness and appropriateness under the financial reporting framework; 
and

! if subsequent events require adjustment to the fair value measurement. 

!

Group entities 
The are no interests in companies or joint ventures other than those disclosed in the 
statement of accounts. 

Financial instruments 
There are no financial liabilities other than those disclosed in the statement of accounts. 

Assets
The following have been properly recorded and, where appropriate, adequately and 
completely disclosed in the financial statements: 

! losses arising from sale & purchase commitments; 

! agreements & options to buy back assets previously sold;  

! completeness of disposals;

! impairment of fixed assets; and 

! assets pledged as collateral. 

Compensating arrangements 
There are no formal or informal compensating balancing arrangements with any of our 
cash and investment accounts.

Provisions
Provisions have been fully and completely disclosed in the statement of accounts. 

Contingent liabilities 
There are no other contingent liabilities, other than those that have been properly recorded 
and disclosed in the financial statements. In particular: 

! there is no significant pending or threatened litigation, other than those already 
disclosed in the financial statements;  

! there are no material commitments or contractual issues, other than those already 
disclosed in the financial statements; and 

! no financial guarantees have been given to third parties. 

Contingent assets 
There are no contingent assets other than those disclosed in the statement of accounts. 

Page 52



Appendix 3 – Draft letter of representation

23   Avon Pension Fund 

Related party transactions 

I confirm the completeness of the information disclosed regarding the identification of 
related parties. 

The identity of, and balances and transactions with, related parties have been properly 
recorded and where appropriate, adequately disclosed in the financial statements 

Post balance sheet events 
Since the date of approval of the financial statements by the Council, no additional 
significant post balance sheet events have occurred which would require additional 
adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements, other than the additional disclosure 
made in respect of pension fund liabilities. 

The Council has no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or 
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

Specific representations 

I make the following specific representations.  I confirm that: 

! all unfunded liabilities e.g. discretionary added years awarded to staff in the LGPS 
and discretionary benefits awarded to teachers under the Teachers Pension 
scheme are included within the FRS17 liability figures; 

! there are no matters to include in the statement of accounts arising from plans to 
reorganise schools; 

! there are no matters to report in the accounts arising from the cancellation of 
capital schemes linked to changes in grant funding; 

! I have reviewed the Council’s contracts with the private sector and confirm that 
other than those disclosed in the financial statement there are no public to private 
service concession arrangements; 

! I have disclosed to you all contracts with the private sector involving infrastructure 
for public services and have provided you with all legal and financial advice 
received by the Council in relation to those contracts; and 

! all creditor payments are correctly initiated in the correct financial year. 

Signed on behalf of Bath and North East Somerset Council 
I confirm that the this letter has been discussed and agreed by the Corporate Audit 
Committee on 30 September 2010 

Page 53



 Appendix 3 – Draft letter of representation

Avon Pension Fund  24

Signed

Name  T R Richens 

Position Director of Financial Services (Section 151 Officer) 

Date 30 September 2010 

Page 54



Printed on recycled paper 1

  

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
MEETING 
DATE: 

24 September 2010 AGENDA  
ITEM 
NUMBER 9 

TITLE: ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2009/10  
WARD: ALL 
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report:  
Appendix 1  - Avon Pension Fund Annual Report & Accounts 2009/10 (draft) 
  
 
 

1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 The Avon Pension Fund Annual Report 2009/10 has been drafted and is now 

formally presented to the Committee.  
1.2 The annual report is a statutory document and as such the Committee is asked to 

approve the draft annual report, on the basis that no substantive changes will be 
made to it following Committee approval.  

1.3 The report will be published ahead of the deadline of 1 December 2010  
 
 
 
 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
That the Committee  
2.1 approves the draft Avon Pension Fund Annual Report 2009/10 
2.2 notes the arrangements for distribution of the Avon Pension Fund Report 

2009/10 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 55



Printed on recycled paper 2

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 The cost of producing the 2009/10 Annual Report of £3,000 is provided for in the 

budget.    
4 REPORT 
4.1 Under the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008, 

the annual report has become a statutory document, with all funds required to 
publish a report by 1 December 2010 for the 2009/10 reporting period.  As this is 
before the next committee meeting, the Committee are asked to approve the 
report in draft form.  No substantive changes will be made following the 
Committee’s approval. 

4.2 The 2009/10 Avon Pension Fund accounts will be approved as part of the 
Council’s accounts at a meeting of the Corporate Audit Committee on 30 
September 2010.  

4.3 A copy of the 2009/10 Annual Report will been sent to all employing bodies in the 
Avon Pension Fund (with a request that at least one copy be made available to 
their pension scheme members for reference purposes).   

6.2 Scheme members will be able to most easily access a copy of the Annual Report 
either via their employer, on the Avon Pension Fund website or at any of the 
clinics organised by the Fund. In addition, newsletters will include a synopsis of 
the Annual Report. 

5 RISK MANAGEMENT 
5.1 The Avon Pension Fund Committee is the formal decision-making body for the 

Fund.  As such it has responsibility to ensure adequate risk management 
processes are in place.  It discharges this responsibility by ensuring the Fund has 
an appropriate investment strategy and investment management structure in 
place that is regularly monitored.  In addition it monitors the benefits 
administration, the risk register and compliance with relevant investment, finance 
and administration regulations.  

6 EQUALITIES 
6.1 An equalities impact assessment is not necessary. 
7 CONSULTATION 
7.1 N/a 
8 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
8.1 N/a. 
9 ADVICE SOUGHT 
9.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) and Section 151 Officer 

(Divisional Director - Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and 
have cleared it for publication.  

Page 56



Printed on recycled paper 3

 

Contact person  Liz Feinstein, Investments Manager 01225 395306 
Background papers  
Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative 
format 
 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



AVON
PENSION

FUND

!"#$%&'$()#$%*+$,

!$$+-.%/'0#12
344563474

Page 59



!"#$"#%&"'(()*($+#*,('"-

Page 60



!"#$%#$&

'"()*(+,-.,$/%,!/*0(1*#

2%30%),"4,$/%,5%*(,

6"3%(#*#7%,8,9*#*:%1%#$,;$(<7$<(%

'<#+,6"3%(#*#7%

!"11<#07*$0"#&,

20&=,9*#*:%1%#$

>%#&0"#&,?+10#0&$(*$0"#,2%@"($

A#3%&$1%#$,2%@"($

?7$<*(0*B,2%@"($,8,'<#+0#:,;$(*$%:.,;$*$%1%#$

;$*$%1%#$,"4,$/%,!"#&<B$0#:,?7$<*(.

C1@B".%(&D,!"#$(0-<$0"#&,2*$%&

;$*$%1%#$,"4,?77"<#$&

;$*$%1%#$,"4,2%&@"#&0-0B0$0%&

?<+0$"(D&,2%@"($

E,5%*(,'0#*#70*B,;<11*(.

>%#&0"#,A#7(%*&%&

!"#$*7$,F*1%&

6B"&&*(.,"4,G%(1&

HI

HJ

HK

HL

MI

MN

MO

IH

JM

JI

JN

JO

EN

EE

EO

EL

EP

KH

G/%, ?3"#, >%#&0"#, '<#+, )"<B+, B0=%, $", $/*#=, *BB, $/%, ;7/%1%,
C1@B".%(&, )/", 7"#$(0-<$%+, $/%0(, 01*:%&, "4, &<77%&&, <&%+,
$/("<:/"<$,$/0&,.%*(&,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHR

!"3%(,@/"$":(*@/,!"<($%&.,"4,F07,S%B3%&,T("<:/$"#U,V#03%(&0$.,"4,T*$/

Page 61



'"()*(+,4("1,$/%,
!/*0(1*#

A#3%&$1%#$,1*(=%$&, 0#, $/%, B*&$,
$)%B3%, 1"#$/&, /*3%, :03%#,
B%&&, 7*<&%, 4"(, 7"#7%(#, $/*#,
0#, $/%, @(%30"<&, $)", .%*(&,
-<$, <#4"($<#*$%B., &0:#0W7*#$,
7/*BB%#:%&, #"), B0%, */%*+, 4"(,
$/%, @<-B07, &%7$"(, *#+, $/<&,
1*#.,"4, $/%,'<#+D&,%1@B".0#:,
-"+0%&R,

'("1, $/%, +%@$/&, "4, +%&@*0(,
0#, 9*(7/, IHHPU, +%&7(0-%+, -.,
&"1%,*$, $/%, $01%,*&, $/%,)"(&$,
%7"#"107,+")#$<(#,0#,KH,.%*(&U,
:B"-*B,%X<0$.,1*(=%$&,(%7"3%(%+,
*&,$/%.,-%:*#,$",*#$070@*$%,$/*$,
7%#$(*B, -*#=, 0#$%(3%#$0"#, $",
&$01<B*$%, $/%, :B"-*B, %7"#"1.,
)"<B+,-%,&<77%&&4<B,0#,*3%($0#:,
*, @("B"#:%+, (%7%&&0"#R, ?&, *,
(%&<B$,$/%,'<#+,@"&$%+,*,&$("#:,
0#3%&$1%#$, (%$<(#U, *, )%B7"1%,
"<$7"1%,4"BB")0#:,$/%,@(%30"<&,
$)",.%*(&R

A$, )*&, *, (%B*$03%B., X<0%$, .%*(,
4"(, -%#%W$&, *+10#0&$(*$0"#, *&,
$/%(%, )%(%, "#B., *, 4%), #%),
(%:<B*$0"#&,$",01@B%1%#$R,'<#+,
9%1-%(&/0@, ("&%, JY, *#+, $/%,
#<1-%(,"4,%1@B".%(&,("&%,EYU,
1*0#B., +<%, $", "<$&"<(70#:, -.,
&7/%1%, %1@B".%(&U, *, $(%#+,
)/07/,0&,*#$070@*$%+,$",7"#$0#<%R,
G", 1*#*:%, $/%, 0#7(%*&0#:B.,
+03%(&%,7"BB%7$0"#,"4,%1@B".0#:,
-"+0%&U,)%,/*3%,7(%*$%+,*,$%*1,
$",B0*0&%,)0$/,$/%,%1@B".%(&,*#+,
/"@%,$/*$,$/0&,)0BB,%#/*#7%,$/%,

&%(307%,)%,+%B03%(R

IHMHQMM, )0BB, -%, *, 3%(., -<&.,
.%*(, )0$/, $/%, IHMH, $(0%##0*B,
3*B<*$0"#, *B(%*+., <#+%()*.R,
S%&@0$%, $/%, &0:#0W7*#$,
(%-"<#+, 0#, $/%, '<#+D&, 3*B<%U,
$/%, 3*B<*$0"#, 0&, $*=0#:, @B*7%,
*:*0#&$,*,-*7=:("<#+,"4,&%3%(%,
7"&$,@(%&&<(%&,*#+,*,&$0BB,4(*:0B%,
:B"-*B, %7"#"1.R, G/%, '<#+,
*7=#")B%+:%&, $/%, +04W7<B$0%&,
$/0&,)0BB, @<$,"#,%1@B".%(&,*#+,
/*&,*B(%*+.,-%:<#,$",)"(=,)0$/,
%1@B".%(&, *#+, $/%, *7$<*(., $",
*++(%&&,$/%,4<#+0#:,+%W70$,0#,*,
(0&=,1*#*:%+,)*.R

A,*1,@B%*&%+,$",)%B7"1%,G"#.,
C*(#&/*),)/",)*&, *@@"0#$%+,
A#+%@%#+%#$, A#3%&$1%#$,
?+30&"(,$",$/%,'<#+R

'0#*BB.U, "#, -%/*B4, "4, $/%,
!"110$$%%U,A,)"<B+,B0=%,$",$/*#=,
*BB,$/%,&$*44,4"(,$/%0(,7"#$(0-<$0"#,
$",$/%,/0:/,&$*#+*(+,"4,&%(307%,
@("30+%+,-., $/%,'<#+, $",*BB, 0$&,
&$*=%/"B+%(&,+<(0#:,$/%,.%*(R,

!"#$"%&'""$

./ 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 62



!"1$3#7$"#*8'9-$#3*'"6*
45"6*2$9+&97'":$

Z/%#,$/%,W#*#70*B,.%*(,%#+%+,
*, .%*(, *:", $/%, &%#$01%#$, 0#,
%X<0$.,1*(=%$&,7"<B+,#"$,/*3%,
-%%#, 1"(%, #%:*$03%U, )0$/, $/%,
4%*(, "4, :B"-*B, (%7%&&0"#, 04, #"$,
+%@(%&&0"#, )0##0#:, "<$R, G/%,
$)%B3%, 1"#$/&, $", JM, 9*(7/,
IHMH,/*3%,&%%#,*, (%1*(=*-B%,
(%-"<#+, 0#, %X<0$0%&, *7("&&,
$/%, )"(B+U, (%[%7$0#:, )0$/,
/0#+&0:/$U, $/*$, 0#3%&$"(&, )%(%,
@%(/*@&,"3%(,@%&&010&$07,$/%#R,
\")%3%(U,$/%,(%7"3%(.,(%1*0#&,
4(*:0B%, *$, -%&$, *#+, $/%, #%]$,
$)%B3%, 1"#$/&, 7"<B+, @("3%,
1"(%,+04W7<B$,4"(,1*(=%$&R
,
'"BB")0#:, $/%, X<0$%,
<#@(%7%+%#$%+, :B"-*B, -*#=0#:,
7(0&0&, "4, IHHLQHPU, 0#3%&$"(&,
(%:*0#%+, 7"#W+%#7%, 0#, IHHP,
*&, $/%, %]$(*"(+0#*(., B%3%B, "4,
7%#$(*B, -*#=, *#+, :"3%(#1%#$,
*7$0"#, $", (%^0:#0$%, %7"#"107,
:(")$/, &<77%%+%+, 0#, *3"0+0#:,
*,@("B"#:%+,(%7%&&0"#R

G/%, "<$B""=, 4"(, 7"(@"(*$%,
%*(#0#:&, )*&, @""(, -<$,
7"1@*#0%&, -%:*#, $", (%@"($,
-%$$%(, $/*#, %]@%7$%+, (%&<B$&,
$/("<:/"<$, $/%, .%*(U, +<%, $",
*::(%&&03%, 7"&$, 7<$$0#:, *#+,
+%-$, (%+<7$0"#R, ?&, *, (%&<B$,
%X<0$., 1*(=%$&, (%-"<#+%+,
&$("#:B.R, 6"3%(#1%#$, -"#+,

1*(=%$&,+0+,B%&&,)%BB,*&,0#$%(%&$,
(*$%&, *#+, -"#+, .0%B+&, )%(%,
*B(%*+., B"), (%[%7$0#:, $/%,/0:/,
B%3%B,"4, B0X<0+0$.,-%0#:,@<1@%+,
0#$", $/%, B%#+0#:, &.&$%1, -.,
7%#$(*B,-*#=&R,\")%3%(U,-"#+&,
0&&<%+, -., 7"(@"(*$%, %#$0$0%&,
_*&, "@@"&%+, $", $/"&%, 0&&<%+,
-., :"3%(#1%#$&`, (%7"3%(%+,
*#+, (*BB0%+, &$("#:B.R, !(%+0$,
(0&=, +010#0&/%+, *&, &0:#&, $/*$,
7"(@"(*$%, %*(#0#:&, )%(%,
&$*-0B0&0#:, *#+, $/%(%, )%(%,
a:(%%#, &/""$&b, "4, %7"#"107,
:(")$/R,

\")%3%(U,$/%,(%-"<#+,0#,%X<0$.,
*#+,7"(@"(*$%,-"#+,1*(=%$&,+0+,
#"$,1%*#, $/%, 7(0&0&, )*&, "3%(R,
c%(.,/0:/,B%3%B&,"4,:"3%(#1%#$,
+%-$, *#+, /<:%, W&7*B, +%W70$&,
*7("&&, 1<7/, "4, $/%, )%&$%(#,
)"(B+,1%*#$,$/*$,*#.,(%7"3%(.,
)"<B+, -%, 4(*:0B%R, ?B$/"<:/,
"3%(, $/%, .%*(, &$%(B0#:, *7$<*BB.,
*@@(%70*$%+U, 0$, +%@(%70*$%+,
*:*0#&$,$/%,V;,S"BB*(,*#+,5%#,
0#, $/%, B*&$, $/(%%, 1"#$/&, "4,
$/%, .%*(U, (%[%7$0#:, 0#3%&$"(&D,
:(")0#:, 7"#7%(#&, "3%(, $/%,
W&7*B,+%W70$,0#,$/%,VdR,?:*0#&$,
$/%,C<("U,)0$/,0$&,")#,&0:#0W7*#$,
W&7*B, _*#+, @"B0$07*B`, @("-B%1&U,
&$%(B0#:,)*&,(%B*$03%B.,&$*-B%R
,
S<(0#:, $/%, .%*(, $/%, '<#+D&,
*&&%$&, ("&%, eKNL, 10BB0"#, "(,
JNREY, $", eIUNEN, 10BB0"#R, G/0&,
7"1@*(%&, $", $/%, Z9, f"7*B,
?<$/"(0$.,?3%(*:%,'<#+,2%$<(#,
"4,JERMYR,G/%,*&&%$,10],*$,$/%,
.%*(,%#+,)*&,KJY,0#,%X<0$0%&U,
IIY, 0#, -"#+&U, PY, 0#, /%+:%,
4<#+&U,NY, 0#,@("@%($.,*#+,IY,
0#,7*&/R,

!"1$3#7$"#*;#9'#$<)

S<(0#:, IHHPQMH, $/%, '<#+,
%1-*(=%+,"#,*,&$(*$%:07,(%30%),
"4, 0$&, 0#3%&$1%#$,&$(*$%:.R,G/%,
(%30%), 7"#7B<+%+, $", 1*0#$*0#,

$/%,&$(*$%:07,*BB"7*$0"#,"4,KHY,
$", %X<0$0%&U, IHY, $", -"#+&U,
MHY, $", @("@%($., *#+, MHY, $",
/%+:%, 4<#+&R, \")%3%(U, $/%,
@("@"($0"#&,0#3%&$%+,0#,Vd,*#+,
"3%(&%*&,%X<0$0%&,)%(%,*B$%(%+,
0#, 4*3"<(, "4, "3%(&%*&, %X<0$0%&,
)/%(%,$/%(%,*(%,&<@%(0"(,:(")$/,
@("&@%7$&, 0#, $/%, B"#:, $%(1R,,
G", 01@B%1%#$, $/0&, &)0$7/, "4,
*-"<$,KY,"4,$/%,'<#+D&,*&&%$&U,
$/%, *BB"7*$0"#, $", $/%, '<#+D&,
%1%(:0#:, 1*(=%$&, 1*#*:%(U,
6%#%&0&, ?&&%$, 9*#*:%1%#$U,
)*&, 1*(:0#*BB., 0#7(%*&%+,
*#+, )0$/0#, $/%, @*&&03%, %X<0$.,
@"($4"B0"U, Vd, %X<0$0%&, )%(%,
&)0$7/%+, 0#$", *, :B"-*B, %X<0$.,
4<#+R

S<(0#:, $/%, .%*(, $/%(%, )%(%, *,
#<1-%(,"4,$*7$07*B,"@@"($<#0$0%&,
)/%(%, $/%, '<#+, 7"<B+, $*=%,
*+3*#$*:%, "4, *&&%$&, $/*$,
/*+, -%%#, "3%(&"B+, -<$, )%(%,
4<#+*1%#$*BB., &%7<(%R, '"(,
%]*1@B%,$/%,'<#+,0#7(%*&%+,0$&,
*BB"7*$0"#, $", 7"(@"(*$%, -"#+&,
-., &%BB0#:, Vd, :"3%(#1%#$,
-"#+&, )/%#, 0$, )*&, 4%B$, $/*$,
$/%, 7"(@"(*$%, -"#+&, )%(%,
<#g<&$B., "3%(&"B+, 7"1@*(%+,
$", :"3%(#1%#$, -"#+&R, G/0&,
@"&0$0"#, )*&, (%3%(&%+, B*$%(, 0#,
$/%, .%*(U, /*30#:, :%#%(*$%+, *,
-%$$%(, (%$<(#U,#%$,"4, 4%%&U, $/*#,
)"<B+,/*3%,-%%#,"-$*0#%+,4("1,
/"B+0#:,:"3%(#1%#$,-"#+&R

0:#5'9%'(*5=6'#$

?$, $/%, B*&$, $(0%##0*B, 3*B<*$0"#,
0#,IHHOU, $/%, 4<#+0#:, B%3%B,)*&,
LJY, B%*30#:, *, +%W70$, "4, MOY,
"(, eNEP, 10BB0"#R, S%&@0$%, $/%,
&$("#:, (%7"3%(., 0#, 1*(=%$&,
0#, IHHPQMHU, )0$/, $/%, 4<#+D&,
*&&%$, 3*B<%, (0&0#:, JNREY, $",
eIUNEN, 10BB0"#U, $/%, +%W70$, /*&,
)0+%#%+,+<%,$",$/%,0#3%&$1%#$,
(%$<(#&,&0#7%,IHHO,-%0#:,-%B"),
%]@%7$*$0"#&R, \")%3%(U, $/%,

2%30%),"4,
$/%,5%*(

.>01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH Page 63



%&$01*$%+,IHMH,4<#+0#:,B%3%B,0&,
#"$,*&,B"),*&,0#0$0*BB.,*#$070@*$%+,
-%7*<&%,"4,$/%,*##"<#7%1%#$,
0#,$/%,!/*#7%BB"(D&,C1%(:%#7.,
T<+:%$, "4, II, h<#%, IHMH, $/*$,
*BB, @<-B07, &%7$"(, @%#&0"#,
@*.1%#$&,)0BB, -%, B0#=%+, $", $/%,
!"#&<1%(, >(07%, A#+%], _!>A`,
(*$/%(, $/*#, $/%, 2%$*0B, >(07%,
0#+%],_2>A`,0#,$/%,4<$<(%R,?&,$/%,
!>A,/*&,/0&$"(07*BB.,-%%#,B")%(,
$/*#, 2>AU, $/0&, 7/*#:%, 1%*#&,
$/%, 0#[*$0"#, *&&<1@$0"#, <&%+,
4"(,3*B<0#:,$/%,'<#+D&,B0*-0B0$0%&,
)0BB, -%, B")%(R,?&, *, (%&<B$U, $/%,
+%$%(0"(*$0"#, 0#, $/%, 4<#+0#:,
B%3%B, *#+, +%W70$, 0&, #"$, *&, -*+,
*&, 0#0$0*BB., *#$070@*$%+, *#+, $/%,
4<#+0#:,B%3%B,*$,JM,9*(7/,IHMH,
0&,%&$01*$%+,$",-%,*("<#+,LHYR,,

\")%3%(U, $/0&, )0BB, &$0BB, @<$,
<@)*(+, @(%&&<(%, "#, %1@B".%(,
7"#$(0-<$0"#, (*$%&U, *#+, :03%#,
$/%, *+3%(&%, @<-B07, &@%#+0#:,
-*7=+("@, *#+, $*=0#:, 0#$",
*77"<#$, *44"(+*-0B0$., "4, $/%,
%1@B".%(&U, $/%, 4"7<&, "4, $/%,
3*B<*$0"#,)0BB, -%, "#, &$*-0B0&0#:,
7"#$(0-<$0"#,(*$%&R,;$*-B%,(*$%&,
)0BB, -%, *7/0%3%+, -., %]$%#+0#:,
$/%, +%W70$, (%7"3%(., @%(0"+,
)/%(%, @"&&0-B%R, G/%, IHMH,
3*B<*$0"#, )0BB, &%$, %1@B".%(,
7"#$(0-<$0"#,(*$%&,4"(,$/%,$/(%%,
.%*(&,-%:0##0#:,M,?@(0B,IHMMR

G/%, 7"&$, "4, @<-B07, &%7$"(,
@%#&0"#&, 0&, *$, $/%, 4"(%4("#$, "4,
#*$0"#*B,@"B0$07&,*#+,)%,%]@%7$,
4<($/%(,7/*#:%&,$",$/%,&7/%1%,
$", 1*=%, 0$, 1"(%, *44"(+*-B%,
+<(0#:,$/%,#%]$,J,.%*(,3*B<*$0"#,
@%(0"+R, G/%(%, 0&, *, @"&&0-0B0$.,
$/*$, &"1%, 4<($/%(, 7/*#:%&,
)0BB, -%, *##"<#7%+, -%4"(%, $/%,
7<((%#$, 3*B<*$0"#, 0&, W#*B0&%+R,
>"$%#$0*B, 7/*#:%&, 1*.,
0#7B<+%, (*0&0#:, $/%, (%$0(%1%#$,
*:%, 4("1, KEU, *, (%+<7$0"#, 0#,
$/%, *77(<*B, (*$%, "4, -%#%W$&,

%*(#%+, *#+, /0:/%(, %1@B".%%,
7"#$(0-<$0"#&R, , A#, *++0$0"#U, $/%,
f"7*B, 6"3%(#1%#$, >%#&0"#,
;7/%1%, (%:<B*$0"#&, *B(%*+.,
*BB"), 7%($*0#, 7"&$&U, &<7/, *&,
0#7(%*&%&, 0#, B"#:%30$.U, $", -%,
&/*(%+, -%$)%%#, %1@B".%(&,
*#+, %1@B".%%&, 0#, $/%, 4<$<(%R,
\")%3%(U, $/0&, 0&, #"$, %]@%7$%+,
$",/*3%,*,&0:#0W7*#$,01@*7$,"#,
$/%,IHMH,3*B<*$0"#R
,
?&1$9"'":$

C#&<(0#:, $/*$, $/%, '<#+D&,
:"3%(#*#7%, &$(<7$<(%, (%[%7$&,
*BB, $/%, 3*(0"<&, &$*=%/"B+%(&,
0#, $/%, '<#+, *#+, $/*$, 0$, 0&,
*77"<#$*-B%,*#+,$(*#&@*(%#$,$",
&$*=%/"B+%(&U, 0&, "4, &0:#0W7*#$,
01@"($*#7%,$",$/%,*+10#0&$%(0#:,
*<$/"(0$., *&, 0$, +0&7/*(:%&, 0$&,
(%&@"#&0-0B0$., 4"(, $/%, '<#+R,
Z0$/, $/0&, 0#, 10#+U, +<(0#:, $/%,
.%*(, $/%, !"110$$%%, (%30%)%+,
0$&, :"3%(#*#7%, *((*#:%1%#$&U,
0#, @*($07<B*(, $/%, 3"$0#:, (0:/$&,
"#, $/%, ?3"#, >%#&0"#, '<#+,
!"110$$%%R,

'"BB")0#:, *, 7"#&<B$*$0"#,
)0$/, &7/%1%, , %1@B".%(&, *#+,
1%1-%(, (%@(%&%#$*$03%&U, *,
#%), :"3%(#*#7%, &$(<7$<(%,
)*&, 7(%*$%+, )/07/, %]$%#+%+,
3"$0#:,(0:/$&,"#,$/%,!"110$$%%R,
A#, *++0$0"#U, (%7":#0&0#:, $/%,
1"(%, 7"1@B%], #*$<(%, "4,
0#3%&$1%#$&U, , *#, A#3%&$1%#$,
>*#%B, )*&, %&$*-B0&/%+, $",
&<@@"($, $/%, !"110$$%%, "#,
0#3%&$1%#$,*#+,(%B*$%+,0&&<%&R,
G/%, #%), *((*#:%1%#$&, 7*1%,
0#$", 4"(7%, 0#,9*.,IHHPR,G/%&%,
*(%,+0&7<&&%+,0#,1"(%,+%$*0B,0#,
$/%,&%7$0"#,a6"3%(#*#7%b,_&%%,
@*:%,L`R

?&, *, 7"#&%X<%#7%, "4, $/%&%,
7/*#:%&, $/%, '<#+, (%30&%+,
0$&, 6"3%(#*#7%, !"1@B0*#7%,
;$*$%1%#$R, G/%, '<#+D&,
7"1@B0*#7%, )0$/, $/%, :<0+*#7%,
"#, :"3%(#*#7%, 0&&<%+, -.,
$/%, :"3%(#1%#$, 0&, /0:/, -<$, *,
#<1-%(, "4, *(%*&, /*3%, -%%#,
0+%#$0W%+, 4"(, &$(%#:$/%#0#:,
"3%(, $/%, #%]$, $)%B3%, 1"#$/&U,
&@%70W7*BB., 1%1-%(&D, $(*0#0#:,
*#+, &%B4, *&&%&&1%#$, "4, $/%,

.@ 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

!"#$%&'(()*+%,-#-).)*/%012-#)3(%4-#'/*)5)'*%673,89%:,';%15-.-%&<3(=-%
35%5<-%>3+)+%&';;"*)5$%!-3,*)*/%6**"3(%673,8+%#-,-;'*$%

>/"$":(*@/,7"<($%&.,"4,i*&0&,?7*+%1.,T(0&$"B

Page 64



!"110$$%%D&, +%70&0"#^1*=0#:,
@("7%&&R,

AB'"<$3*#&*;:B$7$*
C$<5('#%&"3*%"*/..DEF.

'"BB")0#:, $/%, 0#$("+<7$0"#, "4,
$/%, jF%), f""=, ;7/%1%D, 0#,
?@(0B, IHHLU, $/%, ?3"#, >%#&0"#,
'<#+, /*&, &%%#, *, #<1-%(,
"4, 4<($/%(, *1%#+1%#$&, *#+,
(%W#%1%#$&, $", $/%,2%:<B*$0"#&,
-., !"11<#0$0%&, *#+, f"7*B,
6"3%(#1%#$, _!f6`, 0#,
IHHPQIHMHR

G/%, 1"&$, &0:#0W7*#$, "4, $/%,
*1%#+1%#$&, 0#$("+<7%+, -.,
$/%,f"7*B,6"3%(#1%#$,>%#&0"#,
;7/%1%, _90&7%BB*#%"<&`,
2%:<B*$0"#&, IHHP, 7"#7%(#%+,
&<(303"(, -%#%W$&, 4"(, 7030B,
@*($#%(&, *#+, #"10#*$%+,
7"/*-0$0#:, @*($#%(&, )/07/, /*+,
@(%30"<&B.,"#B.,-%%#,7*B7<B*$%+,
"#, 1%1-%(&/0@, *77(<%+, *4$%(,
E$/,?@(0B,MPLLR,

!030B,@*($#%(&D,&<(303"(,-%#%W$&,
#"),0#7B<+%,*BB,&%(307%,@(0"(, $",

$/%,K,?@(0B,MPLL,*#+,&",)"<B+,-%,
-*&%+, "#, $/%,1%1-%(D&, %#$0(%,
B%#:$/,"4,&7/%1%,1%1-%(&/0@k,
$/0&, 1*=%&, $/%&%, -%#%W$&,
7"1@*(*-B%,)0$/,$/*$,"4,1*((0%+,
&7/%1%,1%1-%(&R

?B&"U, #%), @("30&0"#&, *BB"),
1%1-%(&U,)/",/*+,#"10#*$%+,
$/%0(, 7"/*-0$0#:, @*($#%(, $",
(%7%03%, &<(303"(, -%#%W$&U, $",
@*.,*++0$0"#*B, 7"#$(0-<$0"#&, &",
$/*$,*#.,@%(0"+,"4,1%1-%(&/0@,
-%4"(%, K$/, ?@(0B, MPLL, 7"<B+,
-%, $*=%#, 0#$", *77"<#$, 0#, $/%,
7*B7<B*$0"#, "4, $/%, &<(303"(D&,
-%#%W$R,

G/%&%, *1%#+1%#$&, *B&",
*BB"), %1@B".%(&, 7<((%#$B.,
-%0#:, (%7/*(:%+, %*7/, 1"#$/,
4"(, @%#&0"#, @*.1%#$&, +<%,
*&, *, (%&<B$, "4, *)*(+0#:,
a7"1@%#&*$"(., *++%+,
.%*(&b, <#+%(, +0&7(%$0"#*(.,
7"1@%#&*$0"#, (%:<B*$0"#&U,
$", @(%^4<#+, $/%&%, *++0$0"#*B,
@%#&0"#,(0:/$&,&",$/*$, $/%.,*(%,
@*0+, 4("1, $/%, >%#&0"#, '<#+R,
G/0&, @("30&0"#, 0&, B010$%+, $",

(%&"B<$0"#&, 1*+%, -%4"(%, M&$,
?@(0B, IHMM, *#+, $/%, %1@B".%(,
0&, (%X<0(%+, $", 1*=%, *, "#%^
"44, @*.1%#$, +%$%(10#%+, -.,
$/%, '<#+, ?7$<*(., $", @*&&, $/%,
B0*-0B0$.,$",$/%,'<#+R,

G/%,f%*(#0#:,*#+,;=0BB&,!"<#70B,
_f;!`, )*&, +0&&"B3%+, "#, JM,
9*(7/,IHMH,*#+,"3%(,OHH,&$*44,
$(*#&4%((%+, $", B"7*B, *<$/"(0$0%&,
)0$/, %44%7$, 4("1, M, ?@(0B, IHMH,
_$/0&,*44%7$%+,MI,&$*44,)0$/0#,$/%,
?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+`R,G/%,f"7*B,
6"3%(#1%#$, >%#&0"#, ;7/%1%,
_?1%#+1%#$`,2%:<B*$0"#&,IHMH,
%#*-B%+,$/%,%]^f;!,%1@B".%%&,
$",g"0#,$/%,f6>;,*#+,(%$*0#,$/%,
@("$%7$0"#&, "4, $/%0(, @(%30"<&,
&7/%1%, _$/%, >(0#70@*B, !030B,
;%(307%,>%#&0"#,;7/%1%`,"4,*,
#"(1*B,(%$0(%1%#$,*:%,"4,KH,*#+,
*#,%*(B0%&$,3"B<#$*(.,(%$0(%1%#$,
*:%,"4,EHR

.G01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

?35-%@'7*%&'"*#)(9+%3**"3(%A"+)#%B-+5).3(%)*%C)*/+/35-%D3,=

>/"$":(*@/,7"<($%&.,"4,5*$%,G")#,!"<#70B

Page 65



6"3%(#*#7%,8,
9*#*:%1%#$,
;$(<7$<(%

067%"%3#$9%"<*05#B&9%#)H! T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B

2$"3%&"*45"6*A&77%##$$*
I&#%"<*8$7,$93H
!
!"<#70BB"(,6"(+"#,Z""+,_!/*0(`, T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B
!"<#70BB"(,G01,T*BB, T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B
!"<#70BB"(,6*-(0%B,T*$$, T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B
!"<#70BB"(,h"/#,T%%&, T(0&$"B,!0$.,!"<#70B
!"<#70BB"(,S*30+,T%BB"$$0, T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B
?##,T%((%&4"(+, A#+%@%#+%#$,G(<&$%%
!"<#70BB"(,9*(.,TB*$7/4"(+, F"($/,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B
!"<#70BB"(,c07$"(,!B*(=%, T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B
!*("B*#,S"-&"#, A#+%@%#+%#$,G(<&$%%,
!"<#70BB"(,90=%,S(%), ;"<$/,6B"<7%&$%(&/0(%,!"<#70B
T0BB,9*(&/*BB, V#03%(&0$.,"4,$/%,Z%&$,"4,C#:B*#+
207/*(+,i($"#, V#0&"#

J&"*K*I&#%"<*8$7,$93H

2")%#*,\*.)*(+, , , 69T
d%0$/,d0()*#, , , , >*(0&/,8,G")#,!"<#70B&,_4("1,JHQPQHP`
;$%3%,>*0#%&,, , , V#0$%,$/%,V#0"#
>*<B,;/0#%(, , , , V#0$%,$/%,V#0"#

A&5":%(*L+M:$93H

?#+(%),>*$%,, , , S0(%7$"(,"4,2%&"<(7%&,8,;<@@"($,;%(307%&
G"#.,T*($B%$$, , , , \%*+,"4,T<&0#%&&,'0#*#7%,8,>%#&0"#&
f0l,'%0#&$%0#, , , , A#3%&$1%#$&,9*#*:%(
;$%3%,9790BB*#, , , >%#&0"#&,9*#*:%(
c%(#"#,\0$7/1*#,, , , ;"B070$"(,$",$/%,!"<#70B

!"6$=$"6$"#*!"1$3#7$"#*
061%3&9H

G"#.,C*(#&/*)

.N 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 66



!"1$3#7$"#*8'"'<$93H

0:#5'9)H

!"1$3#7$"#*A&"35(#'"#H

?(&,'(*A53#&6%'"H

O'"-$93H

P$<'(*061%3&93H

0IA*29&1%6$93H

.Q01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH Page 67



'<#+,
6"3%(#*#7%

01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6*
A&77%##$$

?&, *+10#0&$%(0#:, *<$/"(0$.U,
T*$/,*#+,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,
!"<#70BU,/*&,B%:*B,(%&@"#&0-0B0$.,
4"(, $/%, @%#&0"#, 4<#+, *&, &%$,
"<$, 0#, $/%, f"7*B, 6"3%(#1%#$,
>%#&0"#, ;7/%1%, 2%:<B*$0"#&R,,
G/%, !"<#70B, +%B%:*$%&, 0$&,
(%&@"#&0-0B0$., 4"(, *+10#0&$%(0#:,
$/%,'<#+, $", $/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,
'<#+, !"110$$%%U, )/07/, 0&,
$/%, 4"(1*B, +%70&0"#, 1*=0#:,
-"+., 4"(, $/%,'<#+R,G/%,G%(1&,
"4, 2%4%(%#7%, 4"(, $/%, ?3"#,
>%#&0"#, '<#+, !"110$$%%, *(%,
*&,4"BB")&m

E@'% 8)+#<3,/-% 5<-%
,-+2'*+)F)()5)-+% ':% G35<% 3*8%
H',5<% I3+5% 1';-,+-5% &'"*#)(%
)*% )5+% ,'(-%3+% (-38%3"5<',)5$% :',%
5<-% 38;)*)+5,35)'*% ':% 5<-%6.'*%
D-*+)'*% B"*8J% @<-+-% )*#("8-%
8-5-,;)*35)'*% ':% )*.-+5;-*5%
2'()#$% 'FK-#5).-+L% -*+",)*/%
322,'2,)35-% )*.-+5;-*5%
;3*3/-;-*5% 3,,3*/-;-*5+%
3,-% )*% 2(3#-% )*#("8)*/% 5<-%
322')*5;-*5% ':% )*.-+5;-*5%
;3*3/-,+% 3*8% ;'*)5',)*/%
)*.-+5;-*5% 2-,:',;3*#-M%
#';;)++)'*)*/% 3#5"3,)3(%
.3("35)'*+% )*% 3##',83*#-% 7)5<%
5<-% 2,'.)+)'*+% ':% 5<-% !'#3(%
N'.-,*;-*5% D-*+)'*% 1#<-;-%
4-/"(35)'*+M% #'*+)8-,)*/%
,-O"-+5+% :,';% ',/3*)+35)'*+%

7)+<)*/% 5'% K')*% 5<-% B"*8% 3+%
38;)55-8% F'8)-+M% ;3=)*/%
,-2,-+-*535)'*+%5'%N'.-,*;-*5%
3+%322,'2,)35-%#'*#-,*)*/%3*$%
2,'2'+-8%#<3*/-+%5'%5<-%!'#3(%
N'.-,*;-*5%D-*+)'*%1#<-;-M%
3*8% 3((% 3+2-#5+% ':% F-*-P5%
38;)*)+5,35)'*J% % 65% 3((% 5);-+L%
5<-%&';;)55--%;"+5%8)+#<3,/-%
)5+% ,-+2'*+)F)()5$% )*% 5<-% F-+5%
)*5-,-+5+% ':% 5<-% 6.'*% D-*+)'*%
B"*8JQ

G/%,!"110$$%%,1%1-%(&/0@,*&,
*$,JM,9*(7/,IHMH,0&,&%$,"<$,"#,
@*:%,KR,,G/%,!"110$$%%,1%%$&,
4"(1*BB., %*7/, X<*($%(, *#+,
*$$%#+*#7%, *$, $/%&%, 1%%$0#:&,
+<(0#:, $/%, .%*(, )*&, LPY, 4"(,

$/%, 3"$0#:, 1%1-%(&, *#+, OMY,
4"(, $/%, #"#, 3"$0#:, 1%1-%(&R,,
G/%, *$$%#+*#7%, (%7"(+, 4"(,
%*7/, !"110$$%%, 1%1-%(, 0&,
&%$,"<$, 0#,G*-B%,I,"#,@*:%,MHR,
A#, *++0$0"#, $", $/%, X<*($%(B.,
1%%$0#:&U, $/%,!"110$$%%, /%B+,
"#%, )"(=&/"@, 0#, IHHPQMH, $",
(%30%),$/%,&$(*$%:07,0#3%&$1%#$,
@"B07.,0#,,+%$*0BR,

A#,IHHP,4"BB")0#:,*,7"#&<B$*$0"#,
)0$/, &7/%1%, %1@B".%(&, *#+,
1%1-%(, (%@(%&%#$*$03%&U,
7/*#:%&, )%(%, 1*+%, $", $/%,
:"3%(#*#7%, &$(<7$<(%R, , '("1,
9*.,IHHPU,$/%,3"$0#:,4(*#7/0&%,
"#,$/%,!"110$$%%,)*&,%]$%#+%+,
$","$/%(,&7/%1%,%1@B".%(&,*#+,

.R 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

>/"$":(*@/,7"<($%&.,"4,F07,S%B3%&,T("<:/$"#U,V#03%(&0$.,"4,T*$/

N,38"35-+%,-#-).)*/%5<-),%373,8+%:,';%5<-%R*).-,+)5$%':%G35<

Page 68



.D01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

I&#%"<*7$7,$93*SF/TH E,%B%7$%+,1%1-%(&,4("1,T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B
I,0#+%@%#+%#$,1%1-%(&
J,%B%7$%+,1%1-%(&,#"10#*$%+,4("1,$/%,"$/%(,Z%&$,"4,C#:B*#+,
<#0$*(.,7"<#70B&
M,#"10#*$%+,4("1,$/%,\0:/%(Q'<($/%(,C+<7*$0"#,-"+0%&
M,#"10#*$%+,-.,$/%,G(*+%&,V#0"#&

J&"K1&#%"<*7$7,$93*S@TH M,#"10#*$%+,4("1,$/%,>*(0&/,!"<#70B&
J,#"10#*$%+,4("1,$/%,G(*+%&,V#0"#&

1%1-%(&D,(%@(%&%#$*$03%&R
G/%,#%),&$(<7$<(%, 0&,&/")#, 0#,
G*-B%,MR

,
!"1$3#7$"#*2'"$(

603%#,$/%,0#7(%*&%,0#,$/%,&0l%,"4,
$/%,!"110$$%%U, *#, A#3%&$1%#$,
>*#%B, /*&, -%%#, %&$*-B0&/%+,
$", 7"#&0+%(, 0#3%&$1%#$, 0&&<%&,
0#, :(%*$%(, +%@$/R, , G/%, >*#%B,
/*&, #", +%B%:*$%+, @")%(&U,
-<$, 1*=%&, (%7"11%#+*$0"#&,
$", $/%, ?3"#, >%#&0"#, '<#+,
!"110$$%%R

G/%, >*#%B, 7"#&0&$&, "4, <@, $",
&0], 3"$0#:, 1%1-%(&, "4, $/%,
!"110$$%%,*#+,1%%$&,*$, B%*&$,
4"<(, $01%&,*, .%*(R, ,G/%,G%(1&,
"4,2%4%(%#7%,4"(,$/%,>*#%B,*(%m

E@<-% ,'(-%':% 5<-%6.'*%D-*+)'*%
B"*8% &';;)55--% S6DB&T%
U*.-+5;-*5% D3*-(% +<3((% F-% 5'%
#'*+)8-,L% )*%/,-35-,%8-53)(% 5<3*%
5<-% 6DB&% )+% 3F(-L% ;355-,+%
,-(35)*/% 5'% 5<-% ;3*3/-;-*5%
3*8% )*.-+5;-*5% ':% 5<-% 3++-5+%
':%5<-%6.'*%D-*+)'*%B"*8%3*8%
5'% 38.)+-% 5<-% 6DB&% '*% +"#<%
;355-,+JQ,

?1"#:,"$/%(,$/0#:&U,$/%,>*#%B,
&/*BBm,
n, (%7"11%#+, &$(*$%:07,
0#3%&$1%#$, "-g%7$03%&U,
@"B07., *#+, &$(*$%:07, *&&%$,
*BB"7*$0"#

n, (%:<B*(B.,(%30%),0#,+%$*0B,*#+,

*&&%&&, $/%, @%(4"(1*#7%, "4,
$/%, 0#3%&$1%#$, 1*#*:%(&U,
0#3%&$1%#$, *+30&"(&U,
7<&$"+0*#,*#+,*7$<*(.

n, (%7"11%#+, *@@"0#$1%#$,
*#+, $%(10#*$0"#, "4,
0#3%&$1%#$, 1*#*:%(&,
*#+, @("4%&&0"#*B, &%(307%,
@("30+%(&,*&,(%X<0(%+

n, (%30%), $/%, ;$*$%1%#$, "4,
A#3%&$1%#$, >(0#70@B%&, *#+,
&<-10$,$",?>'!,4"(,*@@("3*B

n, 1*=%, (%7"11%#+*$0"#&, $",
$/%,?>'!,"#,1*$$%(&,(%B*$0#:,
$", 0#3%&$1%#$, &$(*$%:., *#+,
1*#*:%1%#$, *&, $/%, >*#%B,
7"#&0+%(&,*@@("@(0*$%R,G/0&,
)0BB,0#7B<+%,0&&<%&,"4,*,1"(%,
<(:%#$, #*$<(%U, )/%(%, $/%,
30%),"4,$/%,>*#%B,)"<B+,-%,
$*=%#, 0#$", 7"#&0+%(*$0"#R,

_G/%,&%7$0"#,MEM,i4W7%(,/*&,
+%B%:*$%+,@")%(&,(%:*(+0#:,
<(:%#$, *7$0"#&U, *#+, $/%&%,
)"<B+, -%, %]%(70&%+, /*30#:,
7"#&<B$%+, $/%, !/*0(, "4, $/%,
>*#%B`R

n, (%30%), *#., B%:0&B*$03%,
7/*#:%&, )/07/, /*3%,
01@B07*$0"#&, 4"(, 0#3%&$1%#$,
:"3%(#*#7%, *#+, 1*=%,
(%7"11%#+*$0"#&, $", $/%,
?>'!,*&,*@@("@(0*$%R

S<(0#:, $/%, .%*(, $/%, >*#%B,
/%B+, 4"<(, 1%%$0#:&, *#+,
*$$%#+*#7%, "3%(, $/%, .%*(,)*&,
LJYR, A#, *++0$0"#, $/%, >*#%B,
/%B+, "#%, )"(=&/"@, *&, @*($, "4,
*, @(":(*11%, $", (%30%), %*7/,
0#3%&$1%#$, 1*#*:%(, "3%(, *,
$)%B3%,1"#$/,@%(0"+R

@3F(-%VW%&';;)55--%15,"#5",-

>/"$":(*@/,7"<($%&.,"4,!0$.,"4,T(0&$"B,!"BB%:%

G,)+5'(%1=)((+%6#38-;$

Page 69



G*-B%,I,&/")&, $/%,*$$%#+*#7%,
"4,%*7/,1%1-%(,*$,!"110$$%%,
*#+,>*#%B,1%%$0#:&,+<(0#:,$/%,
.%*(R

U9'%"%"<

G/%, '<#+, (%X<0(%&, *BB,
!"110$$%%, 1%1-%(&, $",
<#+%($*=%, 4"(1*B, $(*0#0#:, "#,
*#, "#:"0#:, -*&0&R, S<(0#:, $/%,
.%*(,$/(%%,7"110$$%%,1%1-%(&,
*$$%#+%+, $/%, '<#+*1%#$*B&,
G(*0#0#:, !"<(&%, (<#, -., $/%,
f"7*B, 6"3%(#1%#$, >%#&0"#,
!"110$$%%R, 9%1-%(&, *(%,
%#7"<(*:%+, $", *$$%#+,
&%10#*(&, *#+, 7"#4%(%#7%&, $",
0#7(%*&%, $/%0(, <#+%(&$*#+0#:,
"4, 0#3%&$1%#$&R, A#, *++0$0"#,
)"(=&/"@&, *(%, "(:*#0&%+, $",
%]@B"(%, 1"(%, 7"1@B%], 0&&<%&,
0#,:(%*$%(,+%$*0B,$/*#,0&,@"&&0-B%,
*$,*,!"110$$%%,1%%$0#:R

S<(0#:,$/%,#%]$,$)%B3%,1"#$/&,
$/%, 4(*1%)"(=, 4"(, 1%1-%(,
$(*0#0#:, 0&, $", -%, +%3%B"@%+,
4<($/%(R, G/0&, )0BB, %#&<(%,
1%1-%(&D, =#")B%+:%, 0&,
1*0#$*0#%+, *$, *, &*$0&4*7$"(.,
B%3%B, "#, *#, "#:"0#:, -*&0&, 0#,
"(+%(, $/*$, $/%., *(%, *-B%, $",
+0&7/*(:%, $/%0(, (%&@"#&0-0B0$0%&,
*&,(%X<0(%+R

F. 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

A&77%##$$ !"1$3#7$"#*
2'"$(

F<1-%(,"4,9%%$0#:&,+<(0#:,.%*( N N
I&#%"<*8$7,$93
!"<#70BB"(,6"(+"#,Z""+,_!/*0(` J N
!"<#70BB"(,G01,T*BB N FQ?
!"<#70BB"(,6*-(0%B,T*$$ N I
!"<#70BB"(,h"/#,T%%& N FQ?
!"<#70BB"(,S*30+,T%BB"$$0 J N
?##,T%((%&4"(+ J N
!"<#70BB"(,9*(.,TB*$7/4"(+ N J

!"<#70BB"(,c07,!B*(=% N FQ?
!*("B*#,S"-&"# I FQ?
!"<#70BB"(,90=%,S(%) N FQ?
T0BB,9*(&/*BB N J

207/*(+,i($"# N FQ?
J&"K1&#%"<*7$7,$93
2")%#*,\*.)*(+ J FQ?
d%0$/,d0()*#,o I FQ?
;$%3%,>*0#%& N FQ?
>*<B,;/0#%( M FQ?
o,h"0#%+,$/%,!"110$$%%,)0$/,%44%7$,4("1,JH,;%@$%1-%(,IHHP

@3F(-%XW%&';;)55--%655-*83*#-%4-#',8

A)=-%6F*-55%':%Y"38,'*%1-,.)#-+L%;3)*53)*)*/%3%,'"*83F'"5%)*%G,)+5'(

>/"$":(*@/,7"<($%&.,"4,p<*+("#,;%(307%&,f010$%+

Page 70



FF01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

29%":%=($ A&7=(%'":$*3#'#53 A&77$"#
?&1$9"'":$*
3#95:#59$

!"1@B0*#$ G/%,+%70&0"#^1*=0#:,&$(<7$<(%,0&,7B%*(B.,
+%W#%+

C$=9$3$"#'#%&" >*($0*B,!"1@B0*#7% G/%(%,0&,-("*+,(%@(%&%#$*$0"#,"4,%1@B".%(&,
*#+,&7/%1%,1%1-%(&,"#,$/%,!"110$$%%R,
\")%3%(,*+10$$%+,-"+0%&,*(%,#"$,(%@(%&%#$%+,
*&,0$,0&,+04W7<B$,$",/*3%,1%*#0#:4<B,
(%@(%&%#$*$0"#,4("1,&<7/,*,+03%(&%,:("<@,"4,
%1@B".%(&R

;$($:#%&"*E*C&($*
&+*A&77%##$$*
8$7,$93

!"1@B0*#$ G/%,("B%,*#+,(%&@"#&0-0B0$0%&,"4,*BB,1%1-%(&,
*(%,&%$,"<$,0#,*,h"-,S%&7(0@$0"#,*#+,70(7<B*$%+,
@(0"(,$",*@@"0#$1%#$&R

I&#%"< !"1@B0*#$ G/%(%,0&,*,7B%*(,@"B07.,"#,3"$0#:,(0:/$&,)/07/,
/*3%,-%%#,%]$%#+%+,$",%1@B".%(,*#+,1%1-%(,
(%@(%&%#$*$03%&R

U9'%"%"<*E*4':%(%#)*
#%7$*E*VW=$"3$3

!"1@B0*#$ G/%(%,0&,*,7B%*(,@"B07.,"#,$(*0#0#:R,G/%,'<#+,
@*.&,*BB,*@@("3%+,$(*0#0#:,7"<(&%&,4"(,*BB,
1%1-%(&R,G/%,$(*0#0#:,@B*#,(%[%7$&,$/%,#%%+&,
"4,$/%,!"110$$%%,*:%#+*R

8$$#%"<3 !"1@B0*#$ '"(1*B,1%%$0#:&,*(%,/%B+,X<*($%(B.,*#+,
*BB,1%1-%(&,*(%,0#7B<+%+,0#,$/%,4"(1*B,
*((*#:%1%#$&R

0::$33 !"1@B0*#$ ?BB,1%1-%(&,/*3%,%X<*B,*77%&&,$",1%%$0#:,
@*@%(&,*#+,*+307%R

;:&=$ !"1@B0*#$ G/%,$%(1&,"4,(%4%(%#7%,0#7B<+%,*BB,*&@%7$&,"4,
-%#%W$&,*+10#0&$(*$0"#,*#+,*+10&&0"#&,$",$/%,
'<#+R,G/%,!"110$$%%,(%30%)&,$/%,(0&=,(%:0&$%(U,
$/%,0#$%(#*B,7"#$("B,(%@"($&,"4,=%.,J(+,@*($.,
&<@@B0%(&,*#+,*BB,&$*$<$"(.,@"B07.,&$*$%1%#$&R

25,(%:%#) !"1@B0*#$ ?BB,&$*$<$"(.,+"7<1%#$&,*(%,1*+%,*3*0B*-B%,$",
$/%,@<-B07R

?&1$9"'":$*A&7=(%'":$*
;#'#$7$"#

G/%, '<#+, 0&, (%X<0(%+, <#+%(,
$/%, (%:<B*$0"#&, $", @<-B0&/,
*, 6"3%(#*#7%, !"1@B0*#7%,
;$*$%1%#$,)/07/,+%1"#&$(*$%&,
$/%, %]$%#$, $", )/07/, $/%, '<#+,
7"1@B0%&, )0$/, -%&$, @(*7$07%&,
0#, @%#&0"#, 4<#+, :"3%(#*#7%R,,
G/%, '<#+D&, B*$%&$, &$*$%1%#$U,
*@@("3%+,-.,$/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,
'<#+, !"110$$%%, 0#, S%7%1-%(,
IHHPU, &/")&, *, /0:/, B%3%B, "4,
7"1@B0*#7%,)0$/,-%&$,@(*7$07%,
*#+,0&,&<11*(0&%+,0#,G*-B%,JR

!"@0%&,"4,$/%,B*$%&$,6"3%(#*#7%,
!"1@B0*#7%, ;$*$%1%#$,
*@@("3%+, 0#, S%7%1-%(, IHHP,
7*#, -%, "-$*0#%+, %0$/%(, 4("1,
$/%, '<#+D&, )%-&0$%, )))R
*3"#@%#&0"#4<#+R"(:R<=, "(,
4("1, *3"#q@%#&0"#r-*$/#%&R
:"3R<=

@3F(-%ZW%N'.-,*3*#-%&';2()3*#-

Page 71



!"11<#07*$0"#&

G/%, ?3"#, >%#&0"#, '<#+, 0&,
4<BB., 7"110$$%+, $", @("30+0#:,
;7/%1%, 9%1-%(&, *#+,
;7/%1%, C1@B".%(&, )0$/, *&,
1<7/, 0#4"(1*$0"#, *&, @"&&0-B%,
7"#7%(#0#:, $/%, "@%(*$0"#, "4,
$/%,f"7*B,6"3%(#1%#$,>%#&0"#,
;7/%1%,_f6>;`R

G/%, '<#+D&, !"11<#07*$0"#&,
@"B07., )0BB, -%, *, 4<#+*1%#$*B,
@*($, "4, $/%, >%#&0"#&,
?+10#0&$(*$0"#,;$(*$%:., $/*$, 0&,
-%0#:,+%3%B"@%+,0#,7"#g<#7$0"#,
)0$/, $/%, ;7/%1%, C1@B".%(&,
*#+,)0BB, -%,@<-B0&/%+, 0#,IHMHR,
G/%, >%#&0"#&, ?+10#0&$(*$0"#,
;$(*$%:.,)0BB, &%$, "<$, $/%, *01&U,
"-g%7$03%&, *#+, 1%$/"+&, "4,
+%B03%(0#:, $/%, @%#&0"#, &%(307%,
$",&$*=%/"B+%(&R

UB$*V7=(&)$9*C$('#%&"3B%=*
'"6*A&775"%:'#%&"3*U$'7

A#, F"3%1-%(, IHHPU, $/%, '<#+,
0#$("+<7%+, *, +%+07*$%+, $%*1,
$", *7$, *&, $/%, @(01*(., B0*0&"#,
-%$)%%#, $/%, '<#+, *#+, $/%,
:(")0#:, #<1-%(, "4, ;7/%1%,
C1@B".%(&, @*($070@*$0#:, 0#, $/%,
'<#+R,

G/0&, C1@B".%(, 2%B*$0"#&/0@,
*#+, !"11<#07*$0"#&, G%*1,
$(*0#&, $/%, "4W7%(&, "4, #%),
;7/%1%, C1@B".%(&, g"0#0#:,
$/%, '<#+U, *#+, %#&<(%&, $/*$,
;7/%1%, C1@B".%(&, *(%, =%@$,

0#4"(1%+,*-"<$, $/%,f6>;,*#+,
*#., 7/*#:%&, $", $/%, ;7/%1%U,
0#7B<+0#:,4<#+0#:,*#+,*7$<*(0*B,
1*$$%(&R

X$,3%#$

G/%, '<#+D&, )%-&0$%, 0&,
7"#$0#<*BB., <@+*$%+, $",
(%[%7$, 7/*#:%&, $", $/%, f6>;,
*#+, @(%&%#$, 0#4"(1*$0"#, $",
&$*=%/"B+%(&, 0#, $/%, 1"&$,
%44%7$03%, )*., @"&&0-B%R, G/%,
)%-&0$%,7<((%#$B.,/*&m

n, '"<(, &%@*(*$%, &%7$0"#&,
7"#$*0#0#:, 0#4"(1*$0"#,
$*0B"(%+, $",1%%$, $/%, #%%+&,
"4, $/%, +044%(%#$, 7*$%:"(0%&,
"4, ;7/%1%, 9%1-%(&m,
?7$03%U,S%4%((%+U,>%#&0"#%(,
*#+, !"<#70BB"(, 9%1-%(&U,
0#7B<+0#:, ;7/%1%, 6<0+%&U,
+")#B"*+*-B%, 4"(1&, *#+, *,
&01@B%,-%#%W$&,7*B7<B*$"(R

n, ?,j!"#$*7$&D,@*:%,)0$/,X<07=,
B0#=&, *BB")0#:, ;7/%1%,
9%1-%(&,$",:%$,0#,$"<7/,)0$/,
$/%, (%B%3*#$, ?3"#, >%#&0"#,
'<#+,&$*44,1%1-%(R

n, G/%, 4*70B0$., 4"(, ;7/%1%,
9%1-%(&,$",B":^0#,*#+,30%),
+%$*0B&,"4,$/%0(,")#,@%(&"#*B,
f6>;, -%#%W$&U, )0$/, +*$*,
&%7<(%B., %#7(.@$%+, $",
0#$%(#%$,-*#=0#:,&$*#+*(+&R

n, ?, &%7$0"#, 4"(, ;7/%1%,
C1@B".%(&U, 0#7B<+0#:,
%1@B".%(, :<0+%&, *#+,
+")#B"*+*-B%,4"(1&R

n, G/%, 4*70B0$., 4"(, ;7/%1%,
C1@B".%(&, $", B":^0#, *#+,
30%), *, &<11*(., "4, $/%0(,
1%1-%(&D, +*$*, *#+, $",
<@B"*+, 7"#W+%#$0*B, +*$*, $",
$/%,'<#+,30*,*,&%7<(%,@"($*BR

n, ;%7$0"#&, 4"(, '0#*#7%,
8, A#3%&$1%#$&U, *#+,
6"3%(#*#7%, *#+, 2%@"($&U,
)/07/, 0#7B<+%&, 7"@0%&, "4,
(%7%#$, *##<*B, (%@"($, *#+,
*77"<#$&, *#+, *7$<*(0*B,
(%@"($&R

F/ 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 72



X&9-=(':$*2$"3%&"*A(%"%:3

G/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,/"B+&,
)"(=@B*7%, @%#&0"#, 7B0#07&,
4"(, ?7$03%, 9%1-%(&U, )/%#,
0#30$%+, $", +", &", -., ;7/%1%,
C1@B".%(&R, ?$, @%#&0"#, 7B0#07&,
"<(, %]@%(0%#7%+, &$*44, *#&)%(,
$/%,0#+030+<*B,X<%(0%&,"4,?7$03%,
9%1-%(&, 0#, *, 7"#W+%#$0*B,
%#30("#1%#$R

A#,IHHP,$/%,'<#+,/%B+,L,@%#&0"#,
7B0#07&, *$, $/%, )"(=@B*7%&, "4,
?7$03%, 9%1-%(&, *#+, $/%,
4%%+-*7=,4("1,$/"&%,*$$%#+0#:,
)*&, @"&0$03%, )0$/, &*$0&4*7$0"#,
B%3%B&, :%#%(*BB., 3%(., /0:/R,
S<(0#:, IHMH, *, 4<($/%(, ME,
@%#&0"#, 7B0#07&, /*3%, -%%#,
@B*##%+R
,

J$Y3($##$93

G/%, ?3"#, >%#&0"#, '<#+,
@("+<7%&,#%)&B%$$%(&,4"(,?7$03%,
*#+,>%#&0"#%(,9%1-%(&, $)07%,
*,.%*(m

Z* 01&"* 2$"3%&"* J$Y3*
_4"(, *7$03%, 7"#$(0-<$0#:,
1%1-%(&`, 7"#$*0#&, $"@07*B,
0$%1&,*-"<$,$/%,f6>;k,*#+,
*B&", <@^$"^+*$%, 0#4"(1*$0"#,
*-"<$, *#., 7/*#:%&, $/%(%,
1*.,/*3%,-%%#,$",$/%,f6>;,
2%:<B*$0"#&,*44%7$0#:, $/"&%,
@*.0#:,0#$",$/%,;7/%1%R

Z* '#!"#!, _4"(, @%#&0"#%(,
1%1-%(&`,7"#$*0#&,(%B%3*#$,
0#4"(1*$0"#,*-"<$,$/%,f6>;U,
@0%7%&,)(0$$%#,-.,>%#&0"#%(,
9%1-%(&, $/%1&%B3%&U, *#+,
*B&", 0#4"(1*$03%, $"@07*B,
*($07B%&R

0""5'(*O$"$M#*;#'#$7$"#3

G/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,0&&<%+,
*#, ?##<*B, T%#%W$, ;$*$%1%#$,
0#,IHHLQHP, $",%*7/,?7$03%,*#+,
S%4%((%+,9%1-%(,4"(,)/"1,)%,
/"B+,*,7<((%#$,*++(%&&R

0""5'(*C$=&9#*S%":(56%"<*'*
;B&9#$"$6*I$93%&"T

?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+D&, IHHPQMH,
?##<*B, 2%@"($, )0BB, -%, 0&&<%+,
$", %*7/, ;7/%1%, C1@B".%(R,
!"@0%&, )0BB, *B&", -%, *3*0B*-B%,
30*, $/%,f0-(*(.,;%(307%&,"4, $/%,
V#0$*(.,?<$/"(0$0%&, 0#, $/%,?3"#,
*(%*R, G/%, ?##<*B, 2%@"($, )0BB,
*B&", -%, *3*0B*-B%, $", +")#B"*+,
4("1, $/%, ?3"#, >%#&0"#, '<#+,
)%-&0$%R

?, &/"($%#%+, 3%(&0"#, "4, $/%,
IHHPQMH,?##<*B,2%@"($,)0BB,-%,
0&&<%+, $", *BB, ?7$03%, 9%1-%(&,
0#, $/%, #%]$, %+0$0"#, "4, ?3"#,
>%#&0"#,F%)&R

F>01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH Page 73



T*$/, 8, F"($/, C*&$, ;"1%(&%$,
!"<#70B, 0&, (%&@"#&0-B%, 4"(, $/%,
*+10#0&$(*$0"#, "4, $/%, ?3"#,
>%#&0"#,'<#+R,G/%,!"<#70B,/*&,
+%B%:*$%+, $/0&, (%&@"#&0-0B0$.,
$", $/%, ?3"#, >%#&0"#, '<#+,
!"110$$%%,)/", 0&, (%&@"#&0-B%,,
4"(, $/%, (0&=, 1*#*:%1%#$,
@("7%&&, *#+, 7"1@B0*#7%, )0$/,
(%:<B*$0"#&R
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
A#,%&$*-B0&/0#:,$/0&,:"3%(#*#7%,
&$(<7$<(%U,$/%,!"<#70B,0&,&*$0&W%+,
$/*$, $/%(%, *(%, *+%X<*$%, (0&=,
1*#*:%1%#$, @("7%&&%&, 0#,
@B*7%,$",*++(%&&,$/%,(0&=&,4*7%+,
-., $/%, '<#+R, G/%, 7(%*$0"#, "4,
$/%, A#3%&$1%#$, >*#%B, 0#, IHHP,
/*&, &$(%#:$/%#%+, $/%, (0&=,
1*#*:%1%#$, @("7%&&, )0$/,
(%:*(+,$",0#3%&$1%#$,0&&<%&R,

G/%, '<#+D&, *@@("*7/, $", (0&=,
1*#*:%1%#$,0&,$",1*#*:%,(0&=,
(*$/%(,$/*#,%B010#*$%,0$,%#$0(%B.R,
G/%, 0#3%&$1%#$, +%70&0"#^
1*=0#:, @("7%&&U, &<@@"($%+,
-., %]@%($, *+307%U, 0&, +%&0:#%+,
$", 0+%#$04., 0#3%&$1%#$, (0&=&,
*#+, *7$, 0#, *, $01%B.,1*##%(, $",
%#&<(%,$/*$,$/%&%,(0&=&,*(%,=%@$,
$", $/%, 10#01<1, #%7%&&*(., $",
*7/0%3%, $/%, '<#+D&, B"#:, $%(1,
0#3%&$1%#$, "-g%7$03%&R, A#$%(#*B,
7"#$("B&, *#+, @("7%&&%&, *(%, 0#,
@B*7%,$",1*#*:%,*+10#0&$(*$0"#U,
W#*#70*B,*#+,"$/%(,"@%(*$0"#*B,
(0&=&R

G/%, !"110$$%%, *##<*BB.,
(%30%)&, $/%, '<#+D&, 20&=,
2%:0&$%(, )/07/, 0&, +(*)#, <@,
0#, *77"(+*#7%, )0$/, T*$/, 8,
F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70BD&,
(0&=, 1*#*:%1%#$, @"B07.R, G/%,
(%:0&$%(, 0+%#$0W%&,$/%,=%.,(0&=&,
$/*$, $/%, '<#+, 0&, %]@"&%+, $",
*#+U, /*30#:, %3*B<*$%+, $/%,
01@*7$,"4,$/%,(0&=,"#,$/%,'<#+D&,
"-g%7$03%&U, &$*$%&, $/%, *7$0"#&,
$*=%#,$",10$0:*$%,*#+,%44%7$03%B.,
1*#*:%,$/%,(0&=R,G/%,!"<#70BD&,
A#$%(#*B,?<+0$, *##<*BB., *&&%&&,
$/%, @("7%&&%&, 0#, @B*7%, )0$/0#,
$/%, @%#&0"#, 4<#+, 0#, "(+%(, $",
@("30+%,0#+%@%#+%#$,*&&<(*#7%,
$/*$, *+%X<*$%, 7"#$("B&, *(%, 0#,
@B*7%R

G/%,!"110$$%%,0&,&<-g%7$,$",$/%,
!"<#70BD&,;$*#+0#:,i(+%(&,*#+,
W#*#70*B,(%:<B*$0"#&,*&,)%BB,*&,
$/%,!"+%,"4,!"#+<7$R
,
!"1$3#7$"#*C%3-3

A#3%&$1%#$&,-.,$/%0(,3%(.,#*$<(%,
%]@"&%, $/%, '<#+, $", 3*(.0#:,
+%:(%%&,"4, (0&=R,G/%,1*0#, $""B,
4"(,7"#$("BB0#:,$/%&%,0#3%&$1%#$,
(0&=&,0&,$/%,;$(*$%:07,A#3%&$1%#$,
>"B07.R,i#%,"4,$/%,@(0#70@*B,)*.&,
0#, )/07/, $/%, '<#+, 1*#*:%&,
(0&=, 0&, $/("<:/, +03%(&0W7*$0"#,
"4, *&&%$&U, $/%, *@@("*7/%&, $",
0#3%&$0#:,_4"(,%]*1@B%,@*&&03%,
0#3%&$0#:, "(, *7$03%, 0#3%&$0#:`,
*#+,1*#*:%(&R,

G/%,@("30&0"#,"4,%]@%($,*+307%,
0&, 7(<70*B, $", $/%, +%70&0"#^
1*=0#:, *#+, (0&=, 1*#*:%1%#$,
@("7%&&R, G/%, '<#+, /*&,
*@@"0#$%+, hfG, ?7$<*(0%&,
*#+, !"#&<B$*#$&, $", @("30+%,
"#:"0#:, 0#3%&$1%#$, *+307%R,
G/0&, )0BB, 0#7B<+%, *+30&0#:, "#,
1*#*:%(&D,@%(4"(1*#7%,*&,)%BB,
*&,&$(*$%:07,*+307%R,G/%,'<#+D&,
*@@"0#$%+, *7$<*(.U, 9%(7%(U,
@("30+%&,*7$<*(0*B,*+307%R,i$/%(,

%]@%($, "(, &@%70*B0&$, *+307%,
_0#7B<+0#:,$*],*#+,B%:*B,*+307%`,
0&,7"110&&0"#%+,*&,(%X<0(%+R,

A#, *++0$0"#U, $/%, !"110$$%%D&,
B%3%B, "4, =#")B%+:%, "4,
0#3%&$1%#$&,1<&$,-%,&<4W70%#$,
4"(, *+307%, $", -%, 7/*BB%#:%+,
*#+, <#+%(&$""+R, G", 4*70B0$*$%,
$/0&U, $/%,'<#+, 0&, 7"110$$%+, $",
$(*0#0#:, *#+, $/%, !"110$$%%,
1%1-%(&,*(%,(%X<0(%+,$",*$$%#+,
%]$%(#*B, $(*0#0#:, 7"<(&%&, *#+,
0#$%(#*B, )"(=&/"@&, 0#, "(+%(,
$", +0&7/*(:%, $/%0(, +<$0%&R,
A#, *++0$0"#U, $/%, '<#+, /*&,
*@@"0#$%+, *#, A#+%@%#+%#$,
A#3%&$1%#$,?+30&"(, $", &<@@"($,
$/%,!"110$$%%,*#+,A#3%&$1%#$,
>*#%B, 1%1-%(&R, G/%, ("B%, "4,
$/%,*+30&"(,0&,$",%#&<(%,$/*$,*BB,
$/%, (%B%3*#$, *+307%, /*&, -%%#,
@(%&%#$%+,$",$/%,1%1-%(&,*#+,
$/*$,$/%,0&&<%&,/*3%,-%%#,4<BB.,
7"#&0+%(%+,*#+,+%-*$%+,-.,$/%,
!"110$$%%,*#+Q"(,>*#%BR
,
9<7/, "4, $/%, 0#3%&$1%#$,
1*#*:%1%#$, @("7%&&, 0&,
"<$&"<(7%+, $", 0#3%&$1%#$,
1*#*:%(&, *#+, $/%, :B"-*B,
7<&$"+0*#R, G/0&, *((*#:%1%#$,
@("30+%&, *, 7B%*(, &%:(%:*$0"#,
"4,+<$0%&,)0$/0#, $/%,'<#+U,)0$/,
$/%,0#^/"<&%,A#3%&$1%#$&,G%*1,
7B"&%B., 1"#0$"(0#:, 7"1@B0*#7%,
)0$/,(%:<B*$0"#&,*#+,1*#+*$%&R,
G/%, (0&=&, "4, $/%, J(+, @*($.,
&<@@B0%(&, *(%, 1"#0$"(%+, -.,
$/%, '<#+, *#+, $/%, A#$%(#*B,
!"#$("B, 2%@"($&, "4, *BB, $/%,
&%(307%,@("30+%(&,*(%,(%30%)%+,
*##<*BB.,-.,$/%,!"110$$%%R,,

G/%, !"110$$%%, 1"#0$"(&,
-"$/, $/%, @%(4"(1*#7%, "4, $/%,
'<#+, *#+, $/%,1*#*:%(&, "#, *,
X<*($%(B.,-*&0&R,G/%,A#3%&$1%#$,
>*#%B,&<@@"($&, $/%,!"110$$%%,
-., (%30%)0#:, 0#, :(%*$%(, +%$*0B,
$/%, 0#3%&$1%#$, 1*#*:%(&D,
@%(4"(1*#7%, *#+, (*0&0#:, *#.,

20&=,
9*#*:%1%#$

F@ 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 74



0&&<%&, )0$/, $/%, !"110$$%%R,,
?, ("-<&$, 1*#*:%(, &%B%7$0"#,
@("7%&&,0&,<#+%($*=%#,0#,)/07/,
$/%, (0&=&, "4, $/%, 0#3%&$1%#$,
*@@("*7/U, *#+, $/%(%4"(%, $/%,
(0&=,*,1*#*:%(,)0BB,@"&%,$",$/%,
'<#+U, *(%, +%$%(10#%+, *$, $/%,
"<$&%$R,,

0:#5'9%'(*C%3-3,

G/%, '<#+0#:, ;$(*$%:.,
;$*$%1%#$,&%$&,"<$,$/%,4<#+0#:,
&$(*$%:., 4"(, $/%, '<#+R, A$, 0&,
(%30%)%+, *$, B%*&$, %3%(., $/(%%,
.%*(&,*&, 0$, 4"(1&, $/%,-*&0&, 4"(,
$/%, $(0%##0*B, 3*B<*$0"#R, ?, =%.,,
(0&=, 4"(, %1@B".%(&, 0&, $/*$, $/%,
%1@B".%(, 7"#$(0-<$0"#, (*$%, 0&,
0#7"((%7$B.,7*B7<B*$%+,+<%,$",$/%,
1%1-%(&/0@, 0#4"(1*$0"#, /%B+,
-., '<#+, #"$, -%0#:, *77<(*$%R,
G/%, '<#+, (%:<B*(B., (%7"#70B%&,
$/%,1%1-%(&/0@,+*$*,$",0+%#$04.,
*#+, (%&"B3%, +*$*, X<%(0%&, )0$/,
%1@B".%(&R

G/%, @"$%#$0*B, 0#&"B3%#7., "4,
&7/%1%, %1@B".%(&U, B%*30#:,
"<$&$*#+0#:, B0*-0B0$0%&, 0#, $/%,
'<#+U,0&,*,&0:#0W7*#$,(0&=,$",$/%,
'<#+,*#+,"$/%(,%1@B".%(&R,G/%,
'<#+, (%X<0(%&, *BB, -"+0%&, $/*$,
)0&/,$",-%,*+10$$%+,$",$/%,'<#+,
$",-%,:<*(*#$%%+,-.,*,&7/%1%,
%1@B".%(_&`, "(, $", @("30+%, *,
-"#+, $", @("$%7$, $/%, '<#+, 0#,
$/%, %3%#$, "4, 0#&"B3%#7.R, G/%,
'<#+, 1"#0$"(&, $/%, W#*#70*B,
&<&$*0#*-0B0$., "4, $/%, &7/%1%,
%1@B".%(&, *#+, $*=%&, $/0&,
0#$", *77"<#$, 0#, $/%, 3*B<*$0"#,
%]%(70&%R

;"1%, *7$<*(0*B, (0&=&, 7*#, -%,
10$0:*$%+, -., $/%, 0#3%&$1%#$,
&$(*$%:.R, G/%, 4<#+0#:, *#+,
0#3%&$1%#$, &$(*$%:0%&, 4"7<&,
"#, $/%, %]@%7$%+, (%*B, (%$<(#&,
4("1,$/%,*&&%$&U,$/<&,10$0:*$0#:,
$/%, *44%7$, "4, 0#[*$0"#, )/07/,
*44%7$&, $/%, 3*B<%, "4, $/%,

@%#&0"#, B0*-0B0$0%&R, A#, *++0$0"#U,
$/%, *BB"7*$0"#, $", 0#+%]^B0#=%+,
-"#+&,(%+<7%&,&"1%,"4,$/%,(0&=,
"4, 0#[*$0"#, -%0#:, /0:/%(, $/*#,
%]@%7$%+R,

4%"'":%'(*C%3-3,

G/%, '<#+, "@%(*$%&, )0$/0#,
$/%, !"<#70BD&, , W#*#70*B,
1*#*:%1%#$, 4(*1%)"(=R, G/%,
-<+:%$U, )/07/, 0&, &%$, *##<*BB.,
*&, @*($, "4, $/%, $/(%%^.%*(,
4"()*(+,B""=0#:,&%(307%,@B*#U,0&,
1"#0$"(%+, -., $/%, !"110$$%%R,
G/%, W#*#70*B, *77"<#$0#:,
&.&$%1, 0&, 0#$%:(*$%+, )0$/, $/%,
!"<#70BD&, *#+, $/%, &%:(%:*$0"#,
"4, +<$0%&, *#+, 7"#$("B, &$(<7$<(%,
0&, *:(%%+, )0$/, *#+, *##<*BB.,
(%30%)%+,-.,A#$%(#*B,?<+0$R

?,=%.,W#*#70*B, (0&=, 0&, $/%,#"#^
@*.1%#$, "4, 7"#$(0-<$0"#&, -.,
%1@B".%(&R, G/%, (%:<B*$0"#&,
@("30+%, *, &*#7$0"#, 4"(, B*$%,

@*.1%#$&R, >("7%&&%&, *(%,
0#, @B*7%, $", %#&<(%, $/*$,
7"#$(0-<$0"#&, *(%, (%7"#70B%+,
(%:<B*(B.R

;0#7%,M,?@(0B,IHHP,$/%,@%#&0"#,
4<#+, /*&, "@%(*$%+, *, &%@*(*$%,
-*#=,*77"<#$,4("1,$/%,!"<#70BD&,
$", 01@("3%, $/%, $(*#&@*(%#7.,
*#+, *77"<#$*-0B0$., "4, $/%,
'<#+D&,-*#=0#:,*((*#:%1%#$&R,,
G/%, '<#+D&, 7*&/, -*B*#7%, 0&,
1*#*:%+, -., $/%, !"<#70BD&,
G(%*&<(., 9*#*:%1%#$, G%*1R,
A#, *#$070@*$0"#, "4, (%:<B*$"(.,
7/*#:%&, $", @("/0-0$, $/%, 7"^
10#:B0#:,"4, $/%,@%#&0"#, 4<#+D&,
*#+, !"<#70BD&, 0#3%&$1%#$,
7*&/U, *, &%@*(*$%, G(%*&<(.,
9*#*:%1%#$, >"B07., 4"(, $/%,
'<#+, )*&, *+"@$%+, 4("1,
S%7%1-%(,IHHPR,
,

FG01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH Page 75



O$"$M#3*067%"%3#9'#%&"*
C%3-3,

G/%, *+10#0&$(*$0"#, (0&=&,
(%B*$%, 1*0#B., $", $/%, 0#*-0B0$.,
"4, $/%, ?+10#0&$(*$"(, $", 1%%$,
0$&, "-B0:*$0"#&, $", *+10#0&$%(,
$/%, '<#+, *#+, @*., -%#%W$&,
*77<(*$%B., *#+, "#, $01%, *&,
*:(%%+, )0$/, %1@B".%(&, "(,
<#+%(, &$*$<$%R,G/%,1*0#,*(%*&,
"4,(0&=&,*(%,#"#^@*.1%#$,"(,B*$%,
@*.1%#$,"4,1%1-%(&D,-%#%W$&U,
0#7"((%7$,7*B7<B*$0"#,"4,-%#%W$&U,
-(%*7/, "4, S*$*, >("$%7$0"#,
2%:<B*$0"#&,"(,4*0B<(%,$",7"1@B.,
)0$/, '(%%+"1, "4, A#4"(1*$0"#,

?7$,(%X<%&$&,*#+,S0&7B"&<(%,"4,
A#4"(1*$0"#,(%X<0(%1%#$&R,?BB,"4,
$/%,*-"3%,7"<B+,B%*+,$",*+3%(&%,
@<-B070$.,*#+, B"&&,"4, (%@<$*$0"#,
*#+, <B$01*$%B., &$*$<$"(., W#%&R,
G/%&%, *(%, *++(%&&%+, 0#, $/%,
T<&0#%&&, !"#$0#<0$., >B*#, _&%%,
-%B")`, *#+, 10$0:*$%+, 0#, $/%,
20&=,2%:0&$%(R,

O53%"$33*A&"#%"5%#)*2('",

?#, <@^$"^+*$%, T<&0#%&&,
!"#$0#<0$., >B*#, 0&, 0#, @B*7%,
1*0#B., $", +%*B, )0$/, a+0&*&$%(,
(%7"3%(.b, *#+, 0#7B<+%&,
7"#$0#:%#7., 1%*&<(%&R, G/%,

>B*#, 0+%#$0W%&, 7(0$07*B, *7$030$0%&,
)/"&%,4*0B<(%,)"<B+,B%*+,$",*#,
<#*77%@$*-B%, B"&&, "4, &%(307%U,
+"7<1%#$&, *#+, @<$, 0#, @B*7%,
1%*&<(%&, $",10#010&%, $/%, (0&=,
"4, +0&(<@$0"#, $", &%(307%, *#+,
&@%70W%&, )/*$, a$(0::%(&b, $/%,
7"#$0#:%#7.,1%*&<(%&, 7"10#:,
0#$",%44%7$R

C%3-*C$<%3#$9
,
?, &<11*(., "4, $/%, =%., (0&=&,
0+%#$0W%+, 0#, $/%,@%#&0"#, 4<#+D&,
20&=,2%:0&$%(,*(%,4"<#+,0#,
G*-B%,NR

C%3- 8'"'<$7$"#*':#%&"
G/%,'<#+,4*0B&,$",*7/0%3%,0#3%&$1%#$,(%$<(#&,
&<4W70%#$,$",1%%$,0$&,B0*-0B0$0%&R

;%$,*,'<#+,&@%70W7,-%#7/1*(=,)/07/,
+%$%(10#%&,$/%,*@@("@(0*$%,(0&=,*+g<&$%+,
(%$<(#,&$(*$%:.,$",1%%$,$/%,B0*-0B0$0%&R,'<#+,
@%(4"(1*#7%,*#+,4<#+0#:,B%3%B,1"#0$"(%+,%*7/,
X<*($%(,-.,!"110$$%%R

A#4"(1*$0"#,;%7<(0$.m,30(<&,*$$*7=,+*1*:0#:,
+*$*,7*<&0#:,&%(0"<&,(%$(0%3*B,@("-B%1&,*#+,
;%(307%,4*0B<(%,0&&<%&R

G/%,?+10#0&$(*$0"#,?<$/"(0$.,1*0#$*0#&,&"B0+,
&.&$%1&,"4,7"#$("B,^,("-<&$,30(<&,7/%7=%(&,*#+,
W(%)*BB,0#,@B*7%,_7"#&$*#$B.,1"#0$"(%+`R

i4W7%&,*#+Q"(,&.&$%1&,*$,203%(&0+%,*(%,#"$,
*77%&&0-B%R,A1@B07*$0"#&m,'*0B<(%,)"<B+,7*<&%,
+0&(<@$0"#,$",-%#%W$,7*B7<B*$0"#&,*#+,+%B*.,
-%#%W$,@*.1%#$&,@B<&,*,-<0B+,<@,"4,-*7=B":,"4,
7*&%&,*#+,+"7<1%#$&,$",-%,&7*##%+R

T<&0#%&&,7"#$0#<0$.,Q,+0&*&$%(,(%7"3%(.,@"B07.,
*#+,@B*#&,*(%,0#,@B*7%R,G/%&%,7"#&0+%(,$/%,
+044%(%#$,&7%#*(0"&,"4,-<0B+0#:&U,/*(+)*(%,
*#+,&.&$%1&,#"$,-%0#:,*3*0B*-B%,*#+,&@%704.,
$/%,70(7<1&$*#7%&,0#,)/07/,+0&*&$%(,(%7"3%(.,
1%*&<(%&,$(0::%(%+R

F"#,7"1@B0*#7%,)0$/,S*$*,>("$%7$0"#,?7$R,
A1@B07*$0"#&m,'0#%&,01@"&%+k,7(010#*B,Q,7030B,
@("&%7<$0"#&k,+*$*,@("7%&&0#:,&<&@%#+%+k,
*+3%(&%,@<-B070$.R

MR,G/%,'<#+,0&,S>,(%:0&$%(%+,$/("<:/,$/%,
?+10#0&$(*$0"#,?<$/"(0$.
IR,!"#W+%#$0*B0$.,?:(%%1%#$&,"-$*0#%+,
4("1,$/0(+,@*($0%&,"#,(%&$(07$0"#&,"#,<&%,"4,
7"#W+%#$0*B,1%1-%(,+*$*R,

f*7=,"4,7"#$0#<0$.,)0$/0#,!"110$$%%,)/07/,
*(0&%&,-%7*<&%,1"&$,1%1-%(&,4*7%,(%^%B%7$0"#,
&01<B$*#%"<&B.R

?@@"0#$%+,$)",0#+%@%#+%#$,$(<&$%%&,$",$/%,
!"110$$%%R

@3F(-%[W%C-$%4)+=+

FN 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 76



>%#&0"#&,
?+10#0&$(*$0"#
2%@"($,

F[*2$9+&97'":$*
!"6%:'#&93

G/%, '<#+, @*($070@*$%&, 0#, $/%,
!A>'?, >%#&0"#, ?+10#0&$(*$0"#,
T%#7/1*(=0#:, !B<-, *#+,
&<-10$&, 0#4"(1*$0"#, "#, 0$&,
@%(4"(1*#7%, *#+, )"(=B"*+,
*##<*BB.R, G/%, 4"BB")0#:, 0&,
$*=%#, 4("1, $/%, IHMH, 2%@"($,
)/07/, 7"1@*(%&, $/%, +*$*, *#+,
@%(4"(1*#7%, "4, B"7*B, *<$/"(0$.,
@%#&0"#,4<#+&,0#,$/%,7B<-,_"3%(,
NH, "<$, "4, PN, f6>;, 4<#+&`R, A$,
&/")&, @%(4"(1*#7%, *:*0#&$,
0#+<&$(.,&$*#+*(+,$*(:%$&R

A#,1"&$,*(%*&,$/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,
'<#+,/*&,%]7%%+%+,$/%,0#+<&$(.,
&$*#+*(+, $*(:%$&R, G/%, '<#+D&,
")#,$*(:%$&,*(%,+%$%(10#%+,-.,
$/%,;%(307%, f%3%B,?:(%%1%#$&,

_a;f?&b`, 0$, /*&, 0#, @B*7%, )0$/,
0$&, B*(:%, $",1%+0<1,%1@B".%(&,
7"3%(0#:,"3%(,PHY,"4,$/%,*7$03%,
1%1-%(&R,A#,1*#.,7*&%&,$/%&%,
$*(:%$&, *(%, 1"(%, 7/*BB%#:0#:,
$/*#, $/%, 0#+<&$(., &$*#+*(+R,
2%:<B*(, ;f?, (%30%), 1%%$0#:&,
*(%,/%B+,)0$/,1%+0<1, $", B*(:%,
%1@B".%(&R

G/%, '<#+, *B&", @<-B0&/%&, *,
;%(307%, !/*($%(, )/07/, 0&, "#,
0$&, )%-&0$%R, G/0&, 0#7B<+%&, 0$&,
$*(:%$&, _0#, )"(=0#:, +*.&`, 4"(,
7"1@B%$0"#, "4, %*7/, $.@%, "4,
1%1-%(,-%#%W$R

FQ01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

2$9+&97'":$*!"6%:'#&9 P?2A
;#'"6'96
U'9<$#

45"6
':B%$1$6
'<'%"3#
#'9<$#*\

A!240
:(5,

'1$9'<$

f%$$%(,+%$*0B0#:,$(*#&4%(,0#,X<"$% MH,+*.& PPRJY LERKY
f%$$%(,+%$*0B0#:,$(*#&4%(,"<$,X<"$% MH,+*.& PLREY LJROY
>("7%&&,(%4<#+,*#+,0&&<%,@*.1%#$,3"<7/%( E,+*.& PJREY PHRMY
f%$$%(,#"$04.0#:,(%$0(%1%#$,-%#%W$,*1"<#$,s,$3#%7'#$3 MH,+*.& PLRHY PMRIY
f%$$%(,#"$04.0#:,':#5'(,(%$0(%1%#$,-%#%W$& E,+*.& PPRLY PJRIY
f%$$%(,*7=#")B%+:0#:,+%*$/,"4,1%1-%( E,+*.& OKRMY PJRLY
f%$$%(,#"$04.0#:,*1"<#$,"4,+%@%#+*#$D&,-%#%W$& E,+*.& PEROY PHRHY
!*B7<B*$%,*#+,#"$04.,+%4%((%+,-%#%W$& MH,+*.& PERNY LHRKY

@3F(-%\W%D-,:',;3*#-%U*8)#35',+%X]]^_V]

Page 77



/[*8$7,$9*;'#%3+':#%&"

G/%, '<#+, @B*7%&, 1<7/,
01@"($*#7%, "#, 4%%+-*7=, 4("1,
1%1-%(&, "#, $/%, &%(307%, 0$,
@("30+%&,$",$/%1R

p<%&$0"##*0(%&, *(%, $/%(%4"(%,
"-$*0#%+,*&,4"BB")&m

2$"3%&"*A(%"%:3
G/%,'<#+,"44%(&,$",/"B+,@%#&0"#,
7B0#07&, 4"(, *BB, %1@B".%(&, *$,
B%*&$, "#7%, *, .%*(R, S<(0#:, $/%,
7*B%#+*(, .%*(, IHHPU, L, 7B0#07&,
)%(%, /%B+, *#+, IIN, 1%1-%(&,
)%(%, &%%#, "#, *#, 0#+030+<*B,
-*&0&R, G/%&%, 1%1-%(&, )%(%,
*&=%+, $",7"1@B%$%,&*$0&4*7$0"#,
X<%&$0"##*0(%&, (*$0#:, $/%,
*+%X<*7., "4, "<(, (%&@"#&%U,
$/%, /%B@4<B#%&&, "4, "<(, &$*44U,
$/%,&<0$*-0B0$.,"4,$/%,3%#<%,*#+,
0$&, B"7*$0"#, *#+, $/%, @(03*7.,
*44"(+%+,$/%1R,2*$0#:&,(*#:%+,
4("1, LLY, $", PPY, )0$/, *#,
*3%(*:%,(*$0#:,"4,PNYR,

C$#%9$7$"#3
?$, $/%, $01%, "4, (%$0(%1%#$U,
X<%&$0"##*0(%&, *(%, &%#$, $",
1%1-%(&, 4"(, 4%%+-*7=, "#, $/%,
X<*B0$., *#+, $01%B0#%&&, "4, $/%,
&%(307%, $/%.,(%7%03%+, 4("1,$/%,
?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+, 0#,+%*B0#:,
)0$/,$/%0(,(%$0(%1%#$R,?#,"3%(*BB,
(*$0#:, "4, PMY, *&, :""+, "(,
%]7%BB%#$, )*&, (%7%03%+, "#, $/%,
X<*B0$.,"4,&%(307%,(%7%03%+R

>[*A&7=('%"#3

G/%, '<#+, (%7%03%+, #",
7"1@B*0#$&,+<(0#:,$/%,.%*(R,

@[*!"#$9"'(*]%3=5#$*
C$3&(5#%&"*29&:$659$

G/%,'<#+,"@%(*$%&,*#,A#$%(#*B,
S0&@<$%,2%&"B<$0"#,>("7%+<(%U,
$/%,$%(1&,"4,)/07/,*(%,+%W#%+,
-., &$*$<$%R, G/0&, @("7%+<(%, 0&,
<&%+,0#,7*&%&,)/%(%,*,1%1-%(,
+0&*:(%%&,)0$/,$/%,-%#%W$&,/%Q
&/%,/*&,-%%#,*)*(+%+,"(,0&,0#,
+0&*:(%%1%#$, )0$/, *, +%70&0"#,
1*+%,-.,/0&Q/%(,%1@B".%(,$/*$,
*44%7$&, $/%, -%#%W$&, /%Q&/%, 0&,
*)*(+%+R, G/%, >("7%+<(%, 0&,
&/")#, 0#, +%$*0B, "#, $/%, '<#+D&,
)%-&0$%R

S<(0#:, $/%,.%*(, $/%(%,)%(%,#",
;$*:%,M,7*&%&,_*@@%*B&,*:*0#&$,
*,+%70&0"#,"4,$/%,*+10#0&$%(0#:,
*<$/"(0$.`R,

G/%(%,)*&,M,7*&%, 0#,@(":(%&&,
<#+%(, ;$*:%, I, _4<($/%(, *@@%*B,
)/%(%, &$*:%, M, 7"1@B%$%+, -.,
%1@B".%(`R

G[*^$)*;#'+M"<*!"6%:'#&93

G/%, ?3"#, >%#&0"#, '<#+, 0&,
*+10#0&$%(%+, -., T*$/, 8, F"($/,
C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B,*#+,$/%,
*+10#0&$(*$0"#, "4, $/%, &7/%1%,
-%#%W$&, 0&, <#+%($*=%#, a0#,
/"<&%a, -., %1@B".%%&, "4, $/%,
!"<#70BR,G/%,>%#&0"#&,;%(307%,
0&,&@B0$,0#$",J,&%7$0"#&U,#*1%B.U,
A#3%&$1%#$, *#+, ?77"<#$0#:U,
T%#%W$&, ?+10#0&$(*$0"#, *#+,
$/%, ;.&$%1&, ;<@@"($, *#+,
>*.1%#$&, G%*1R, , ?, +%$*0B%+,
$%&"'(#")(*'+ ,-"%), 0&,
*3*0B*-B%,"#,$/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,
'<#+,)%-&0$%m,
)))R*3"#@%#&0"#4<#+R"(:R<=

G/%,$"$*B,#<1-%(,"4,&$*44,0#,$/%,
>%#&0"#&,;%(307%,*+10#0&$%(0#:,
$/%, ;7/%1%, )*&, JLRE, 0#,
IHHPQMH,_NHRJ,0#,IHHLQHP`,*#+,
"4, $/%&%U, MLRN, *(%, 0#3"B3%+, 0#,
-%#%W$&,*+10#0&$(*$0"#R

G/%, 4"BB")0#:, 0&, *#, *#*B.&0&,
4("1,$/%,!A>'?,T%#7/1*(=0#:,
!B<-, IHMH, 2%@"($, _&%%,
@(%30"<&,&%7$0"#,M,*-"3%`R,G/0&,
&/")&, $/%, *3%(*:%,#<1-%(, "4,
@%#&0"#,1%1-%(&,+%*B$,)0$/,-.,
%*7/, "4, $/%, -%#%W$&, &$*44, *#+,
$/%, *3%(*:%, #<1-%(, "4, 7*&%&,
@("7%&&%+,@%(,1%1-%(,"4,&$*44R

FR 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

^$)*;#'+M"<*!"6%:'#&93 /.F. SA!240
:(5,

'1$9'<$T

/..D SA!240
:(5,

'1$9'<$T
F<1-%(,"4,&$*44,*+10#0&$%(0#:,$/%,
f6>;,&7/%1%

MLRN MLRN

'<#+,9%1-%(,Q,;$*44,(*$0" NUEHI _JUNHN` NUNHM _JJEL`
?3%(*:%,#<1-%(,"4,7*&%&,+%*B$,)0$/,-.,
-%#%W$&,&$*44

JLI NNH

@3F(-%`W%C-$%153:P*/%U*8)#35',+%X]]^_V]

Page 78



FD01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

G/%, '<#+, 9%1-%(Q;$*44, (*$0",
/*&, 01@("3%+, -., IRJY, )/0B%,
$/%,#<1-%(,"4,7*&%&,+%*B$,)0$/,
-., %*7/, 1%1-%(, "4, -%#%W$&,
&$*44, /*&, +%7(%*&%+, -., MJRIY,
(%[%7$0#:, $/%, &B")+")#, 0#,
B%*3%(&, 4("1, $/%, '<#+U, *#+,
*&&"70*$%+,$(*#&4%(&,0#,*#+,"<$R,

N[*8$7,$93B%=*U9$"63*

G/%, #<1-%(, "4, 1%1-%(&, 0#,
$"$*B, 0&, 0#7(%*&0#:U, (%[%7$0#:,
/0:/%(, %1@B".%(, &$*44, B%3%B&U,
*#, 0#7(%*&%, 0#, $/%, #<1-%(, "4,
#%), %1@B".%(&, *#+, 0#, (%7%#$,
.%*(&, *, /0:/%(, $*=%, <@, (*$%,
-., #%), %1@B".%%&, g"0#0#:, $/%,
;7/%1%R, 2%+<7$0"#&, 0#, *7$03%,
1%1-%(&/0@, 0#, IHHOU, IHHP,
*#+,IHMH,*(%,*&,*,(%&<B$,"4,$/%,
"#:"0#:,+*$*,7B%*#&0#:,%]%(70&%,
)/07/, (%1"3%&,1%1-%(&, )/",
/*3%, B%4$, %1@B".%(&, "(, "@$%+,
"<$, "4, $/%, ;7/%1%, 4"BB")0#:,
B*$%,#"$0W7*$0"#&R

03*'#*>F3#*8'9:B /.F. /..D /..R /..Q /..N
0:#%1$ JNUOHH JEUIKN JKUHJO JJUJML JNUKML
]$+$99$6 INUEJJ IIUEOP IHUNMK MOUKJJ MLUMKE
2$"3%&"$93 IMUJMI IHUJKM MPUNPL MLUNPE MOUONJ
U&#'( LHUENE OLUIHN OEUPEM KPUNNK OHUEIK

@3F(-%aW%B).-%?-3,%A-;F-,+<)2%@,-*8

H',5'*%438+5'#=%&'((-/-9+%4-*8-.'"+%@,3)*)*/%&3:-%7)*+% 3%b-3(5<$%
I35)*/%673,8%:,';%G35<%c%H',5<%I3+5%1';-,+-5%&'"*#)(

>/"$":(*@/,7"<($%&.,"4,F"($"#,2*+&$"7=,!"BB%:%

Page 79



A#3%&$1%#$
2%@"($,

F[*!"1$3#7$"#*C$<5('#%&"3

S'T*!"1$3#7$"#*P%7%#3

G/%, ?3"#, >%#&0"#, '<#+, 0&, *,
4<#+%+, &7/%1%, )/07/, 1%*#&,
$/*$,$/%,7"#$(0-<$0"#&,*#+,4<#+,
1"#0%&, #"$, 7<((%#$B., #%%+%+,
$", 1%%$, @%#&0"#, *#+, -%#%W$,
@*.1%#$&, *(%, 0#3%&$%+, *#+,
$/%,'<#+,(%7%03%&,0#7"1%,4("1,
$/%&%,0#3%&$1%#$&R,,G/%,'<#+D&,
"-g%7$03%, 0&, $",1%%$, $/%, 4<$<(%,
@%#&0"#,@*.1%#$&,"4,-"$/,@*&$,
*#+,7<((%#$,1%1-%(&R

G/%,f"7*B,6"3%(#1%#$,>%#&0"#,
;7/%1%, (%:<B*$0"#&, @("30+%, *,
4(*1%)"(=, 4"(, $/%, 0#3%&$1%#$,
&$(*$%:.R, , ?, )0+%, (*#:%, "4,
0#3%&$1%#$&, *(%, @%(10$$%+, -<$,
7%($*0#,B010$&,*(%,&%$,$",%#&<(%,
+03%(&0W7*$0"#, "4, *&&%$&, *#+,
(%+<7%,(0&=R,G/%,B010$&,(%B%3*#$,
$",$/%,'<#+,*(%m

n, #", 1"(%, $/*#, IEY, 1*.,
-%, 0#3%&$%+, 0#, <#0$, $(<&$&,
1*#*:%+,-.,*#.,"#%,-"+.k,

n, #", 1"(%, $/*#, MHY, "4, $/%,
'<#+, 1*., -%, 0#3%&$%+, 0#,
<#B0&$%+,&%7<(0$0%&k,

n, #", 1"(%, $/*#, MHY, "4, $/%,
'<#+,1*.,-%, 0#3%&$%+, 0#,*,
&0#:B%,0#3%&$1%#$,/"B+0#:k,

n, #", 1"(%, $/*#, MHY, "4, $/%,
'<#+, 1*., -%, +%@"&0$%+,
)0$/,*#.,"#%,-*#=k

n, B"*#&, 4("1, $/%, '<#+, 1*.,
#"$,%]7%%+,MHY,"4,$/%,3*B<%,
"4,$/%,'<#+k

n, #", 1"(%, $/*#, JEY, 1*.,
-%, 0#3%&$%+, 0#, *#., "#%,
0#&<(*#7%,7"#$(*7$k,

n, #", 1"(%, $/*#, EY, 1*.,
-%, 0#3%&$%+, 0#, *#., &0#:B%,
@*($#%(&/0@k,

n, 0#3%&$1%#$&,0#,@*($#%(&/0@&,
1*.,#"$, %]7%%+,EY,"4, $/%,
3*B<%,"4,$/%,'<#+R,

S,T*;#'#$7$"#*&+*!"1$3#7$"#******
* 29%":%=($3,

G/%, ;$*$%1%#$, "4, A#3%&$1%#$,
>(0#70@B%&, _;A>`, &%$&, "<$, $/%,
0#3%&$1%#$, @(0#70@B%&, "4, $/%,
'<#+,*#+,/"),$/%,0#3%&$1%#$&,
*(%, 1*#*:%+, 0#, B0#%, )0$/, $/%,
@(0#70@B%&R,

G/%, ;A>, )*&, (%30&%+, +<(0#:,
$/%,.%*(,$",(%[%7$,$/%,4"BB")0#:,
7/*#:%&m

n, ?, 7/*#:%, 0#, $/%, &$(*$%:07,
*&&%$, *BB"7*$0"#, 4("1,
Vd, %X<0$0%&, $", i3%(&%*&,
%X<0$0%&,

n, A#7B<&0"#, "4, $/%, '<#+D&,
@"B07.,"#,&$"7=,B%#+0#:,

n, V@+*$%+, &$*$%1%#$, "#, $/%,
'<#+D&,7"1@B0*#7%,)0$/,$/%,
(%30&%+, 9.#%(&, @(0#70@B%&,
_&%%,-%B"),4"(,1"(%,+%$*0B&`

d%.,%]7%(@$&,"4, $/%, B*$%&$,;A>,
$/*$, *(%, #"$, +0&7<&&%+, 4<($/%(,
0#, $/%, 0#3%&$1%#$, 7"11%#$*(.,
*(%,0#,T"],MR

/. 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 80



/F01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

A#, *++0$0"#, $", $/%, ;2A, @"B07.,
&$*$%+, 0#,T"], M, $/%, '<#+, 0&, *,
1%1-%(,"4, $/%,f"7*B,?<$/"(0$.,
>%#&0"#,'<#+,'"(<1,_f?>''`U,
*, 7"BB*-"(*$03%, -"+., $/*$,
%]0&$&, $", &%(3%, $/%, 0#3%&$1%#$,
0#$%(%&$&, "4, B"7*B, *<$/"(0$.,
@%#&0"#, 4<#+&R, , A#, @*($07<B*(U,
f?>'', &%%=&, $", 1*]010&%,
$/%, 0#[<%#7%, $/%, 4<#+&, /*3%,
*&, &/*(%/"B+%(&, $/("<:/, 7"^
"(+0#*$0#:,&/*(%/"B+%(,*7$030&1,
*1"#:&$,$/%,@%#&0"#,4<#+&R

A&7=(%'":$*Y%#B*#B$*8)"$93*
29%":%=($3

?&,@*($,"4,$/%,;A>U,*+10#0&$%(0#:,
*<$/"(0$0%&, *(%, (%X<0(%+, $",
&$*$%,/"),$/%.,7"1@B.,)0$/,$/%,
9.#%(&,>(0#70@B%&, *#+, %]@B*0#,
)/%(%,$/%.,+",#"$,7"1@B.R

G/%,"(0:0#*B,9.#%(&,>(0#70@B%&,
)%(%,@<-B0&/%+,0#,i7$"-%(,IHHM,
4"BB")0#:,*,:"3%(#1%#$,(%30%),
0#, (%&@"#&%, $", 7"#7%(#&, $/*$,
$/%, -%/*30"<(, "4, 0#3%&$1%#$,
0#&$0$<$0"#&, )*&, +0&$"($0#:,
%7"#"107, +%70&0"#, 1*=0#:,
$", $/%, +%$(01%#$, "4, &1*BB, *#+,
1%+0<1,&0l%+,%#$%(@(0&%&R,G/%,
(%30%), &%$, "<$, MH, 0#3%&$1%#$,
@(0#70@B%&,7"+04.0#:,*,1"+%B,"4,
-%&$,@(*7$07%,4"(,0#3%&$"(&R

'"BB")0#:, *, (%30%), 0#,i7$"-%(,
IHHL, *#, <@+*$%+, &%$, "4, K,
>(0#70@B%&, )%(%, @<-B0&/%+,
)0$/, $/%, 0#$%#$0"#, "4, /*30#:,
:(%*$%(, j0#+<&$(., ")#%(&/0@D,
"4, $/%, @(0#70@B%&, *#+, $", @B*7%,
$/%, "#<&, "#, $(<&$%%&, "(, $/%0(,
%X<03*B%#$, $", (%@"($, $/%0(, ")#,
@(*7$07%&R, A$, 0&, 0#$%#+%+, $/*$, *,
&1*BB%(,#<1-%(,"4,/0:/%(,B%3%B,
@(0#70@B%&, @("30+%&, :(%*$%(,
[%]0-0B0$.,4"(,@%#&0"#,&7/%1%&R

O&W*FH*^$)*$W:$9=#3*&+*#B$*;!2H

;&:%'(_*V"1%9&"7$"#'(*'"6*V#B%:'(*A&"3%6$9'#%&"3

G/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,/*&,*,W+<70*(.,+<$.,$",0#3%&$,'<#+,
1"#0%&,0#,"(+%(,$",*7/0%3%,$/%,-%&$,@"&&0-B%,W#*#70*B,(%$<(#,
7"#&0&$%#$,)0$/,*#,*77%@$*-B%,B%3%B,"4,(0&=R,,i@%(*$0#:,
)0$/0#,$/0&,4(*1%)"(=U,$/%,'<#+,*@@"0#$%+,h<@0$%(,0#,IHHM,
$",1*#*:%,*,Vd,%X<0$.,@"($4"B0",_EY,"4,$/%,'<#+D&,*&&%$&`,
0#,*77"(+*#7%,)0$/,;"70*BB.,2%&@"#&0-B%,A#3%&$1%#$,_;2A`,
7(0$%(0*R,G/%,;2A,@"($4"B0",0#7B<+%&,7"1@*#0%&,@("30+0#:,
@("+<7$&,)/07/,&"B3%,%#30("#1%#$*B,*#+,&"70*B,@("-B%1&,
*#+,$/"&%,)/07/,10#010&%,$/%,%#30("#1%#$*B,*#+,&"70*B,
01@*7$&,"4,$/%0(,@("7%&&%&R,,G/%,7*$%:"(0%&,"4,&$"7=,)/07/,
$/%,@"($4"B0",)"<B+,%]7B<+%,*(%,4"(,%]*1@B%U,$"-*77"U,
*(1*1%#$&U,#<7B%*(,@")%(,*#+,*#01*B,$%&$0#:,"4,7"&1%$07&,
*#+,$"0B%$(.,@("+<7$&R,

VW$9:%3$*&+*I&#%"<*C%<B#3

G/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,(%7":#0&%&,0$&,(%&@"#&0-0B0$.,
*&,*,&/*(%/"B+%(,$",*7$03%B.,%#7"<(*:%,:""+,7"(@"(*$%,
:"3%(#*#7%,&$*#+*(+&,0#,$/%,7"1@*#0%&,0#,)/07/,0$,0#3%&$&R,,
A#,"(+%(,$",4<BWB,$/0&,(%&@"#&0-0B0$.U,$/%,'<#+,(%X<0(%&,0$&,
1*#*:%(&,$",3"$%,$/%0(,Vd,7"1@*#.,&/*(%&,0#,B0#%,)0$/,
$/%0(,0#$%(#*B,3"$0#:,@"B07.,*#+,%]@B*0#,*#.,3"$%&,$/*$,+",#"$,
7"1@B.,)0$/,$/%,!"1-0#%+,!"+%R,,G/%,1*#*:%(&D,3"$0#:,
*7$030$.,0&,1"#0$"(%+,-.,$/%,!"110$$%%,"#,*,X<*($%(B.,-*&0&R,
'"(,"3%(&%*&,1*(=%$&,3"$0#:,0&,B%4$,$",$/%,+0&7(%$0"#,"4,$/%,
1*#*:%(&,-<$,$/%.,*(%,%#7"<(*:%+,$",%]%(70&%,3"$0#:,(0:/$&,
)/%(%,@(*7$07*BR

;#&:-*P$"6%"<*2&(%:)

G/%,'<#+,*BB")&,&$"7=,/%B+,-.,$/%,'<#+,)0$/0#,0$&,
&%:(%:*$%+,@"($4"B0"&,$",-%,B%#$,"<$,$",1*(=%$,@*($070@*#$&R,,
G/%,'<#+D&,7<&$"+0*#,*7$&,*&,$/%,'<#+D&,B%#+0#:,*:%#$,*#+,
$/%,'<#+,(%7%03%&,0#7"1%,4("1,$/%,B%#+0#:,*7$030$0%&R,,G/%,
'<#+,(%$*0#&,$/%,(0:/$,$",(%7*BB,B"*#%+,&$"7=,"(,-B"7=,&$"7=,
4("1,-%0#:,B"*#%+,4("1,0$&,&%:(%:*$%+,@"($4"B0"&,&/"<B+,
$/%,'<#+,)0&/,$",#"$,B%#+,$/%,&$"7=,4"(,*#.,(%*&"#R,G/%,
&$"7=,B%#+0#:,@"B07.,"#,@""B%+,4<#+&,0&,+%$%(10#%+,-.,$/%,
0#+030+<*B,0#3%&$1%#$,1*#*:%(&R,?#.,0#7"1%,0&,0#7"(@"(*$%+,
0#,$/%,#%$,*&&%$,3*B<%&,"4,%*7/,@""B%+,4<#+R

G/%,B*$%&$,;A>,)*&,*@@("3%+,-.,$/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,
!"110$$%%,*$,0$&,1%%$0#:,0#,S%7%1-%(,IHHPR,,?,7"@.,"4,$/%,
&$*$%1%#$,7*#,-%,"-$*0#%+,%0$/%(,4("1,$/%,)%-&0$%,
)))R*3"#@%#&0"#4<#+R"(:R<=,,"(,-.,%1*0B,4("1,
*3"#q@%#&0"#r-*$/#%&R:"3R<=,

Page 81



G/%,'<#+D&,7<((%#$,7"1@B0*#7%,)0$/,$/%,9.#%(&D,@(0#70@B%&,0&,4"<#+,0#,G*-B%,LR

@3F(-%dW%b'7%5<-%6.'*%D-*+)'*%B"*8%3#<)-.-8%&';2()3*#-%7)5<%A$*-,+%D,)*#)2(-+

F*V++$:#%1$*6$:%3%&"K7'-%"< A&7=(%'"#
!B%*(,:"3%(#*#7%,&$(<7$<(%,4"(,+%70&0"#^1*=0#:U,&<@@"($%+,-.,%]@%($,*+30&"(&,*#+,"4W7%(&,)0$/,
7B%*(,(%&@"#&0-0B0$0%&R
h"-,+%&7(0@$0"#&,&%$$0#:,"<$,$/%,("B%,*#+,(%&@"#&0-0B0$0%&,"4,*BB,!"110$$%%,1%1-%(&R

!"110$$%%,1%1-%(&,<#+%($*=%,$(*0#0#:,"#,"#:"0#:,-*&0&R
?,4"()*(+,B""=0#:,$/(%%^.%*(,-<&0#%&&,@B*#R

/*A($'9*L,`$:#%1$3 A&7=(%'"#
!B%*(,0#3%&$1%#$,"-g%7$03%,*#+,&$(*$%:.U,$*=0#:,0#$",*77"<#$,$/%,*7$<*(0*B,@"&0$0"#,*#+,01@*7$,"#,
&7/%1%,%1@B".%(&,*#+,$*],@*.%(&R
?,7<&$"10&%+,-%#7/1*(=,(%[%7$0#:,$/%,'<#+D&,")#,B0*-0B0$.,@("WB%R
!"#&0+%(*$0"#,"4,+044%(%#$,*&&%$,7B*&&%&,*#+,$/%0(,01@*7$,"#,(%$<(#,*#+,(0&=R
A#+030+<*B,@%(4"(1*#7%,$*(:%$&,4"(,$/%,0#3%&$1%#$,1*#*:%(&U,1"#0$"(%+,-.,$/%,!"110$$%%R
C]@%($,*+307%,)/%#,7"#&0+%(0#:,0$&,0#3%&$1%#$,"-g%7$03%,*#+,&$(*$%:.R

>*C%3-*'"6*P%',%(%#%$3 A&7=(%'"#
A#3%&$1%#$,"-g%7$03%,*#+,&$(*$%:.,(%[%7$&,$/%,&@%70W7,B0*-0B0$.,@("WB%,"4,$/%,&7/%1%,1%1-%(&R
!"3%#*#$,"4,$/%,%1@B".%(,*#+,$/%0(,*-0B0$.,$",@*.,7"#$(0-<$0"#&,0&,$*=%#,0#$",*77"<#$R
20&=,1*#*:%1%#$,@("7%&&,0#,@B*7%,$",%#&<(%,(0&=&,*(%,0+%#$0W%+,*#+,10$0:*$0#:,*7$0"#,0&,$*=%#,
)/%(%,@"&&0-B%R

@*2$9+&97'":$*033$337$"# A&7=(%'"#
'<#+D&,@%(4"(1*#7%,1%*&<(%+,*:*0#&$,0#3%&$1%#$,"-g%7$03%U,,0#3%&$1%#$,1*#*:%(&,@%(4"(1*#7%,
1%*&<(%+,*:*0#&$,$/%0(,-%#7/1*(=&R
!"#$(*7$&,)0$/,*+30&"(&,*&&%&&%+,"#,*#,"#:"0#:,-*&0&R
>%(4"(1*#7%,"4,+%70&0"#^1*=0#:,-"+0%&,*&&%&&%+,-.,%]$%(#*B,*<+0$"(&R

G*C$3=&"3%,($*LY"$93B%= A&7=(%'"#
9*#*:%(&,*+"@$,$/%,A#&$0$<$0"#*B,;/*(%/"B+%(&D,!"110$$%%,;$*$%1%#$,"4,>(0#70@B%&R
>"B07.,"#,(%&@"#&0-B%,")#%(&/0@,0&,0#7B<+%+,0#,;$*$%1%#$,"4,A#3%&$1%#$,>(0#70@B%&R

N*U9'"3='9$":)*'"6*C$=&9#%"< A&7=(%'"#
!B%*(,@"B07.,$",7"11<#07*$%,*#+,7"#&<B$,)0$/,0$&,&7/%1%,1%1-%(&U,(%@(%&%#$*$03%&,*#+,
%1@B".%(&,*&,*@@("@(0*$%R,
?BB,+"7<1%#$&,*#+,&$*$%1%#$&,1*+%,*3*0B*-B%U,*##<*B,(%@"($,7"#$*0#&,0#4"(1*$0"#,*#+,+*$*,
(%B%3*#$,$",0$&,1*#.U,+03%(&%,&$*=%/"B+%(&R
,

// 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 82



/>01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

/[*!"1$3#7$"#*;#9'#$<)

G/%,"-g%7$03%,"4,$/%,0#3%&$1%#$,
&$(*$%:., 0&, $", *7/0%3%, $/%,
0#3%&$1%#$, (%$<(#, (%X<0(%+, -.,
$/%,4<#+0#:,&$(*$%:.,0#,"(+%(,$",
1%%$, $/%,'<#+D&, B0*-0B0$0%&,"3%(,
$01%,*#+,$",(%7"3%(,*#.,4<#+0#:,
+%W70$R, G/%, &$(*$%:., 1<&$,
@("+<7%, 0#3%&$1%#$, (%$<(#&,
$/*$, )0BB, /%B@, &$*-0B0&%, *#+,
10#010&%,%1@B".%(,7"#$(0-<$0"#,
(*$%&,0#,$/%,B"#:,$%(1,*&,)%BB,*&,
(%[%7$0#:, $/%,-*B*#7%,-%$)%%#,
1*]010&0#:, (%$<(#&U, @("$%7$0#:,
*&&%$, 3*B<%&U, *#+, 1*$7/0#:,
$/%, B0*-0B0$0%&, _$", 10#010&%,
0#3%&$1%#$,(0&=`R,,

G/%, 0#3%&$1%#$, &$(*$%:., )0BB,
(%[%7$, $/%, '<#+D&, *@@%$0$%, 4"(,
(0&=,*#+,0$&,)0BB0#:#%&&,$",*77%@$,
&/"($, $%(1, 3"B*$0B0$., )0$/0#, *,
B"#:, $%(1, &$(*$%:.R, G/%, '<#+,
@<(&<%&, *, @"B07., "4, 1*#*:0#:,
(0&=, $/("<:/, +03%(&0W7*$0"#, -.,
*&&%$, 7B*&&,*#+,-., 0#3%&$1%#$,
1*#*:%(&R, ,G/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,
'<#+, !"110$$%%, @%(0"+07*BB.,
(%30%)&,0$&,0#3%&$1%#$,&$(*$%:.,
0#,"(+%(, $",%#&<(%, $/%,&$(*$%:.,
(%[%7$&, $/%, '<#+D&, B0*-0B0$.,
@("WB%R

A#, IHHO, $/%, '<#+, *+"@$%+, *,
1"(%, +03%(&0W%+, 0#3%&$1%#$,
&$(*$%:., , -., 0#3%&$0#:, 0#,
@("@%($.,*#+,/%+:%,4<#+&R,G/0&,
&$(*$%:., )*&, (%30%)%+, -., $/%,
!"110$$%%, 0#, IHHP, 4"BB")0#:,
$/%,1*(=%$, $<(1"0B, "4, IHHOQHLR,
G/%,!"110$$%%,7"#7B<+%+,$/*$,
$/%, *&&%$, *BB"7*$0"#, (%1*0#%+,
*@@("@(0*$%, -<$, /0:/B0:/$%+,
*(%*&,)/%(%, $/%,'<#+,1*.,-%,
*-B%,$",%#/*#7%,(%$<(#&,)0$/"<$,
&0:#0W7*#$B., 0#7(%*&0#:, (0&=R,,
A#, @*($07<B*(U, $/%, '<#+, )*&,
*+30&%+,$",(%+<7%,0$&,*BB"7*$0"#,
$",Vd,%X<0$0%&,*#+,0#7(%*&%,0$&,
*BB"7*$0"#,$","3%(&%*&,%X<0$0%&R,

G/0&, )*&, 01@B%1%#$%+, 0#, $/%,
W(&$,X<*($%(,"4,IHMHR

;#9'#$<%:*033$#*0((&:'#%&"

G/%, &$(*$%:07, *&&%$, *BB"7*$0"#,
*$,JM,9*(7/,IHMH, 0&,&%$,"<$, 0#,
G*-B%,PR,

033$#*A('33 \*&+*45"6

Vd,CX<0$0%& IOY
i3%(&%*&,CX<0$0%& JJY
U&#'(*Va5%#%$3 N.\

A#+%]^f0#=%+,60B$& KY
'0]%+,A#$%(%&$,60B$& KY
Vd,!"(@"(*$%,T"#+& EY
i3%(&%*&,'0]%+,A#$%(%&$ JY
U&#'(*O&"63 /.\

45"6*&+*b$6<$*45"63 F.\

29&=$9#) F.\

@3F(-%^W%15,35-/)#%6++-5%6(('#35)'*

>:P#)3(% '2-*)*/%':% 5<-%R*).-,+)5$% ':%G35<9+% *-7%e-+5%G")(8)*/%F$%1),%
f3;-+%g$+'*

>/"$":(*@/,7"<($%&.,"4,F07,S%B3%&,T("<:/$"#U,V#03%(&0$.,"4,T*$/,

Page 83



?&, *$, JM, 9*(7/, IHMHU, $/%,
'<#+D&, @("@%($., 0#3%&$1%#$,
1*#*:%(&U, ;7/("+%(&, *#+,
>*($#%(&,6("<@U,*(%,&$0BB, 0#, $/%,
@("7%&&, "4, 0#3%&$0#:, $/%, 4<#+&,
$/*$, /*3%, -%%#, *BB"7*$%+, $",
@("@%($.R,G/%,*&&%$,*BB"7*$0"#,*$,
.%*(, %#+U, @%#+0#:, 7"1@B%$0"#,
"4,$/%,0#3%&$1%#$,0#,@("@%($.U,0&,
&/")#,0#,!/*($,MR

S<(0#:, $/%, .%*(, $/%, 4<#+,
+%30*$%+, 4("1, $/%, &$(*$%:07,
-%#7/1*(=U, 0#7(%*&0#:, 0$&,
%]@"&<(%, $", 7"(@"(*$%, -"#+&,
"#,*,$*7$07*B,-*&0&R,G/0&,$*7$07*B,
@"&0$0"#, $""=, *+3*#$*:%,
"4, $/%, @%(7%03%+, 3*B<%, "4,
7"(@"(*$%,-"#+&,(%B*$03%,$",Vd,
:"3%(#1%#$,-"#+&R,G/%,$*7$07*B,
@"&0$0"#, )*&, (%3%(&%+, 0#, $/%,
W(&$,X<*($%(,"4,IHMH,+%B03%(0#:,*,
#%$,-%#%W$,$",$/%,'<#+R

!"1$3#7$"#*8'"'<$7$"#*
;#95:#59$

G/%,'<#+D&,0#3%&$1%#$,
1*#*:%1%#$,&$(<7$<(%,*#+,$/%,

*1"<#$,"4,*&&%$&,$/%.,1*#*:%,
"#,-%/*B4,"4,$/%,'<#+,*&,*$,JM,
9*(7/,IHMH,0&,&%$,"<$,0#,
G*-B%,MHR

S<(0#:,$/%,.%*(U,T*(7B*.&,
6B"-*B,A#3%&$"(&,_T6A`,)*&,
&"B+,$",TB*7=2"7=,?&&%$,
9*#*:%1%#$R

033$#*A('33 8'"'<$9 I'(5$*&+*
'33$#3*B$(6*

Sc7T

2$9:$"#'<$*
&+*45"6

9<B$0,?&&%$,^>*&&03% TB*7=2"7=,_4"(1%(B.,T6A` MUNHIRL EORE
Vd,CX<0$0%& GG,A#$%(#*$0"#*B MINRL ERM

h<@0$%(,?&&%$,9*#*:%1%#$,_;"70*BB.,
2%&@"#&0-B%,9*#+*$%`

PNRE JRP

i3%(&%*&,CX<0$0%& A#3%&7",>%(@%$<*B MELRI KRE
;$*$%,;$(%%$,6B"-*B,?+30&"(& LERO JRE

C1%(:0#:,9*(=%$,
%X<0$0%&

6%#%&0&,A#3%&$1%#$,9*#*:%1%#$ MJHRI ERJ

Vd,!"(@"(*$%,T"#+& 2".*B,f"#+"#,?&&%$,9*#*:%1%#$ MIIRI ERH
'<#+,"4,\%+:%,'<#+& 9?F,@B7 PERH JRP

6"$$%],?&&%$,9*#*:%1%#$ EMRJ IRM
;0:#%$,!*@0$*B,9*#*:%1%#$ NERJ MRP
;$%#/*1,?&&%$,9*#*:%1%#$ MMRE HRE
f.&$%(,Z*$&"# PRL HRN

Vd,>("@%($. ;7/("+%(&,A#3%&$1%#$,9*#*:%1%#$ OKRL JRM
i3%(&%*&,>("@%($. >*($#%(&,6("<@ IKRM MRM

/@ 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

JM,9*(7/,IHHP

JM,9*(7/,IHMH

&<3,5%VW%6++-5%g)+5,)F"5)'*%X]]^_V]

@3F(-%V]W%U*.-+5;-*5%A3*3/-;-*5%15,"#5",-

Page 84



/G01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

>[*8'9-$#*O':-<9&5"6

'"BB")0#:, $/%, %]$(*"(+0#*(.,
%3%#$&, "4, $/%, @(%30"<&, .%*(U,
IHHPQMH, )0BB, -%, 30%)%+, *&,
*, .%*(, 0#, )/07/, 1*(=%$&,
(%7"3%(%+, &$("#:B., -<$, #%3%(,
4<BB., %&7*@%+, 4<#+*1%#$*B,
*#]0%$., &<(("<#+0#:, 4<$<(%,
:(")$/,@("&@%7$&R,T.,$/%,%#+,"4,
$/%, .%*(, 7"#7%(#&, *-"<$, +%-$U,
$/0&,$01%,:"3%(#1%#$,+%-$U,/*+,
(%$<(#%+, $", +*1@%#, 1*(=%$,
(%$<(#&R

G/%, .%*(, -%:*#, )0$/, 1*#.,
%X<0$., 1*(=%$&, *$, $/%0(, B")%&$,,
B%3%B, &0#7%, 9*(7/, IHHJU, *#+,
$/%, Vd, 6"3%(#1%#$, /*30#:,
7"11%#7%+, $/%0(, jX<*#$0$*$03%,
%*&0#:D, @(":(*11%U, @B*.0#:,

$/%0(, @*($, 0#, <#@(%7%+%#$%+,
@"B07., 0#$%(3%#$0"#&, -., :B"-*B,
:"3%(#1%#$&R, G/%&%, *7$0"#&,
)%(%, &<77%&&4<B, $", $/%, %]$%#$,
$/*$,$/%.,@(%3%#$%+,*,7"1@B%$%,
7"BB*@&%,0#,$/%,W#*#70*B,&.&$%1k,
/")%3%(,$/%.,4*0B%+,$",&"B3%,$/%,
0&&<%&, "4, %]7%&&03%, -"((")0#:,
*#+, :B"-*B, 01-*B*#7%&, )/07/,
)%(%,$/%,7*<&%,"4,$/%,W#*#70*B,
7(0&0&R,2*$/%(U,"3%(,$/%,.%*(U,$/%,
0&&<%&,"4,0#+%-$%+#%&&,*#+,"3%(,
&@%#+0#:,/*3%,&/04$%+,4("1,$/%,
@(03*$%,*#+,7"(@"(*$%,&%7$"(,$",
$/%,:"3%(#1%#$,&%7$"(R

603%#, )/%(%, 0#3%&$1%#$,
1*(=%$&,-%:*#,$/%,.%*(U,&$("#:,
*-&"B<$%,(%$<(#&,)%(%,*7/0%3%+,
+<(0#:,$/%,.%*(,0#,*B1"&$,%3%(.,
*&&%$,7B*&&,%]7%@$,7*&/R

G/%, (%$<(#&, 4"(, $/%, 0#+030+<*B,
1*(=%$&,0#,IHHPQMH,*(%,&%$,"<$,,
0#,!/*($,I,*B"#:,)0$/,$/%,$/(%%,
.%*(,(%$<(#&,0#,&$%(B0#:R

CX<0$.,9*(=%$&,@%(4"(1%+,3%(.,
&$("#:B.,"3%(,$/%,$)%B3%,1"#$/&,
*&,7"1@*#0%&,&"<:/$, $", (%@*0(,
-*B*#7%, &/%%$&, *#+, (%&$"(%,
@("W$*-0B0$.U, *#+, 0#3%&$"(D&,
*@@%$0$%, 4"(, (0&=, (%$<(#%+,
*4$%(, 4%*(&, *-"<$, 7"(@"(*$%,
+%4*<B$&, *#+, %7"#"107, :(")$/,
4*0B%+, $", 1*$%(0*B0&%R, , Vd,
%X<0$0%&, +%B03%(%+, EIY, :(")$/,
*#+, %1%(:0#:, 1*(=%$&, *#,
*&$"#0&/0#:, OIY, (%$<(#, 0#,
&$%(B0#:R,\")%3%(U,$/0&,4"BB")%+,
(%$<(#&, "4, ^IPY, *#+, ^IKY,
(%&@%7$03%B., 0#, $/%, @(%30"<&,
.%*(R, c"B*$0B0$., (%1*0#%+,

';GC,?BB&/*(%

'G;C,F"($/,?1%(07*

'G;C,C<("@%,_Vd`

';GC,h*@*#

'G;C,?&0*,>*70W7,_%],h*@*#`

9;!A,C1%(:0#:,9*(=%$&

'G;C,Vd,60B$&,_tME.(&`

'G;C,Vd,A#+%]^f0#=%+,_tE.(&`

0T"]],;$%(B0#:,F"#,60B$&,_*BB,9*$&`

h>,9"(:*#,F"#^Vd,6"3$R,T"#+

\'2A,\%+:%,'<#+,A#+%]

A>S,>("@%($.

!*&/,O^+*.,fATAS

M,.%*(,2%$<(#,0#,f"7*B,!<((%#7.

M,.%*(,2%$<(#,0#,;$%(B0#:

J,.%*(,2%$<(#,0#,;$%(B0#:

&<3,5%XW%D-,:',;3*#-%F$%6++-5%&(3++%S4-5",*%h%2J3JT

Page 85



0#, $/%, 1*(=%$&, *#+, $/%(%,
)%(%, $)", @%(0"+&, "4, 1*(=%$,
(%$(%#7/1%#$U, "#%, 0#, &<11%(,
IHHP,*#+,$/%#,*:*0#,0#,$/%,W(&$,
X<*($%(,"4,IHMHR,G/%,B*$$%(,)*&,
@("1@$%+,-., 4%*(&,"4,*,+"<-B%,
+0@, (%7%&&0"#, *#+, 0#7(%*&0#:,
7"#7%(#&,*-"<$,&"3%(%0:#,+%-$,
+%4*<B$,0#,C<("@%R

6(%*$%(, 7"#W+%#7%, *-"<$, $/%,
:B"-*B, (%7"3%(., %#7"<(*:%+,
0#3%&$"(&,$",&)0$7/,4("1,$/%,j&*4%,
/*3%#D, "4, :"3%(#1%#$, -"#+&,
0#$", 7"(@"(*$%, -"#+&, :03%#,
$/%0(, /0:/%(, .0%B+&R, G")*(+&,
$/%,%#+,"4, $/%,.%*(, $/%,&%BB,"44,
0#, :"3%(#1%#$, -"#+&, +<%, $",
4%*(&, *-"<$, $/%, &$*$%, "4, @<-B07,
W#*#7%&,(%&<B$%+,0#,*,(%B*$03%B.,
@""(,.%*(,4"(,:"3%(#1%#$,-"#+&,
7"1@*(%+,$",7"(@"(*$%,-"#+&R

>("@%($., +0&*@@"0#$%+, 0#, $/%,
W(&$,/*B4,"4, $/%,.%*(,+<%,$",$/%,
<#7%($*0#$., "4, $/%, %7"#"107,
"<$B""=, -<$, &<-&%X<%#$B.,
%]@%(0%#7%+, &$("#:, +%1*#+,
4("1, (%$*0B, *#+, 0#&$0$<$0"#*B,
0#3%&$"(&,@("1@$%+,-.,&0:#&,"4,,
%7"#"107,(%7"3%(.R,

9%*#)/0B%U, /%+:%, 4<#+&, /*+,
*, @"&0$03%, .%*(, "<$@%(4"(10#:,
$/%0(, 7*&/, -*&%+, -%#7/1*(=&,
-<$, <#+%(@%(4"(10#:, %X<0$.,
1*(=%$&, 0#, *::(%:*$%R, A#,
@%(0"+&,"4,&$("#:,%X<0$.,1*(=%$,
(*BB0%&, /%+:%, 4<#+&, )/07/,
j/%+:%D, "<$, 1*(=%$, %]@"&<(%,
*(%, %]@%7$%+, $", <#+%(@%(4"(1,
%X<0$.,1*(=%$&R

S%&@0$%, 7"#&0+%(*-B%, 3"B*$0B0$.U,
7"11"+0$0%&,@("+<7%+,@"&0$03%,
(%$<(#&,"3%(,$/%,.%*(,*&,:B"-*B,
0#+<&$(0*B, +%1*#+, &/")%+,
&0:#&, "4, 01@("30#:U, B*(:%B., *&,
*, (%&<B$, "4, (%&0B0%#$, %1%(:0#:,
%7"#"10%&,&<7/,*&,!/0#*,*#+,
T(*l0BR,S<%,$",0$&,7/*(*7$%(0&$07&,
*&,*,/%+:%,*:*0#&$,0#[*$0"#,*#+,

*,j&*4%,/*3%#DU,:"B+,*7/0%3%+,*,
(%7"(+,/0:/,"4,uMUIHH,*#,"<#7%,
-%4"(%, 4*BB0#:, -*7=, &B0:/$B., $",
%#+, $/%, .%*(, *$, uMUMHH, @%(,
"<#7%R
,
S<(0#:, IHHPQMH, &$%(B0#:,
&$(%#:$/%#%+, *:*0#&$, -"$/,
$/%, V;, S"BB*(, *#+, $/%, C<(",
*B$/"<:/, 7"#7%(#&, *-"<$, $/%,
B%3%B, "4, Vd, -"((")0#:, 7*<&%+,
&$%(B0#:, $", +%@(%70*$%, *:*0#&$,
1"&$, 1*g"(, 7<((%#70%&, 0#, $/%,
W(&$, X<*($%(, "4, IHMHR, i4W70*B,
0#$%(%&$,(*$%&,0#,$/%,V;U,C<("@%,
*#+, $/%, Vd, /*3%, (%1*0#%+,
*$, /0&$"(07, B")&, +<%, 1*0#B., $",
$/%, 7%#$(*B, -*#=&D, 1%*&<(%&,
$", &$01<B*$%, %7"#"107, :(")$/R,
6B"-*B, 0#[*$0"#, (%1*0#%+, B"),
$/("<:/"<$, $/%, .%*(, *B$/"<:/,
0#, $/%, Vd, 0$, &@0=%+, 0#, $/%, W(&$,
X<*($%(,"4,IHMH,)/%#,$/%,2%$*0B,
>(07%, A#+%], ("&%, $", NRNYR,
\")%3%(U, +<%, $", $/%, 4(*:0B0$.,
"4, $/%, %7"#"107, (%7"3%(., 0#,
$/%, +%3%B"@%+, )"(B+U, :B"-*B,
0#[*$0"#, 0&, %]@%7$%+, $", (%1*0#,
&<-+<%+R,

?&,$/%,.%*(,+(%),$",*,7B"&%,$/%,
:B"-*B, %7"#"1., )*&, :(")0#:,
*:*0#U, )0$/, $/%, Vd, -%0#:, $/%,

B*&$, "4, $/%, 6IH, %7"#"10%&,
$", %1%(:%, 4("1, (%7%&&0"#R,
\")%3%(, $/%, (0&=, "4, &"3%(%0:#,
+%4*<B$, 0&, /0:/%(, $/*#, <&<*B,
*#+, $/%, 4<#+*1%#$*B, W#*#70*B,
01-*B*#7%&, $/*$, @(%7%+%+,
$/%, (%7%#$, 7(0&%&, (%1*0#,
<#(%&"B3%+R

9*(=%$&, (%1*0#, 3<B#%(*-B%, $",
$/%, (0&=&, "4, @"B07., %(("(, *#+,
1*(=%$,&/"7=,*&,&%%#,(%7%#$B.,
)0$/, 6(%%=, -"#+&, *#+, $/%,
C<("R, G/%, (0&=, "4, 7"#$*:0"#,
(%1*0#&, /0:/R, G/%(%, 0&,
<#7%($*0#$.,*("<#+,$/%,@*7%,"4,
)0$/+(*)*B, "4, $/%, B0X<0+0$., $/*$,
/*&, <#+%(@0##%+, *&&%$, 3*B<%&,
+<(0#:, $/%, B*&$,.%*(,"(,&"U,*#+,
$/%, *-0B0$., "4, $/%, *<$/"(0$0%&, $",
/*#+B%,@"$%#$0*B,&"3%(%0:#,+%-$,
@("-B%1&R, G/%, "<$B""=, 0&, $/*$,
0#$%(%&$, (*$%&, *(%, %]@%7$%+, $",
&$*., B"), 0#, $/%, 4*7%, "4, %]7%&&,
7*@*70$.,*#+,$/%,&$(0#:%#$,W&7*B,
$0:/$%#0#:, -%0#:, 01@B%1%#$%+,
*7("&&, 1"&$, "4, $/%, +%3%B"@%+,
)"(B+R

1'"5<% N('"#-+5-,+<),-% !-)+",-% 2,'K-#5% #3((-8% +5"8)'W@-#<% F3+-8% 35%
G,38(-$%15'=-%!-)+",-%&-*5,-

>/"$":(*@/,7"<($%&.,"4,;"<$/,6B"<7%&$%(&/0(%,f%0&<(%,G(<&$

/N 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 86



@[*!"1$3#7$"#*2$9+&97'":$

S'T*UB$*45"6

'"BB")0#:, *, +04W7<B$, IHHLQHP,
)/%(%, $/%, 3*B<%, "4, $/%, '<#+D&,
*&&%$&, +%7(%*&%+, -., MORJYU,
+<(0#:, IHHPQMH, $/%, 3*B<%, "4,
$/%, '<#+, ("&%, -., eKNL,10BB0"#,
_"(, JNY`, $",eIRNE,-0BB0"#,*$, JM,
9*(7/, IHMHR, G/0&, )*&, +(03%#,
-., @"&0$03%, (%$<(#&, *7("&&, *BB,
*&&%$,7B*&&%&,*#+,@"($4"B0"&U,0#,
@*($07<B*(, $/%, %X<0$., @"($4"B0"&R,
i3%(, $/%, B*&$, $/(%%, .%*(&, $/%,
'<#+D&, (%$<(#, 0&, JRIY, @%(,
*##<1,(0&0#:,$",OROY,@%(,*##<1,
)/%#,30%)%+,"3%(, $/%, B*&$,W3%,
.%*(&R,\")%3%(U,"3%(,$%#,.%*(&,
$/%, '<#+D&, (%$<(#, "4, JREY, @%(,
*##<1,0&,-%B"),$/*$,(%X<0(%+,$",
1*0#$*0#,*,&*$0&4*7$"(., 4<#+0#:,
B%3%BR

G/%, (%7%#$, *#+, B"#:%(, $%(1,
@%(4"(1*#7%, "4, $/%, '<#+,
0&, &/")#, 0#, !/*($, J, -%B"),
_$/%, (%$<(#&, *(%, *##<*B0&%+`R,,
G/%, '<#+, /*&, *, 7<&$"10&%+,
-%#7/1*(=U,$/%,(%$<(#,4"(,)/07/,
0&,0#7B<+%+,0#,!/*($,E,*&,)%BB,*&,
$/%, Z9, f"7*B, ?<$/"(0$., '<#+,
?3%(*:%,(%$<(#R

!"1@*(%+, $", $/%, X8* P&:'(*
05#B&9%#)* 45"6* 5"%1$93$U,
$/%, '<#+, <#+%(@%(4"(1%+, $/%,
*3%(*:%, 4<#+, "3%(, $/%, .%*(R,,
G/0&, )*&, +<%, $", $/%, '<#+D&,
&B0:/$, <#+%()%0:/$, 0#, %X<0$0%&,
*#+, "3%()%0:/$, 0#, -"#+&,
(%B*$03%, $", $/%, *3%(*:%, 4<#+,
*#+, $/%, "3%()%0:/$, @"&0$0"#,
0#, /%+:%, 4<#+&, _)/07/, B*::%+,
%X<0$0%&, 0#, *-&"B<$%, (%$<(#&`R,,
\")%3%(U, "3%(, $/(%%, .%*(&,
$/%,'<#+D&, (%$<(#,"4,JRIY,,@%(,

*##<1,,0&,*/%*+,"4,$/%,*3%(*:%,
4<#+,(%$<(#,"4,MROY,,,@%(,*##<1,,,
G/0&,0&,+<%,$",$/%,'<#+D&,/0:/%(,
*BB"7*$0"#,$",-"#+&,*#+,*,B")%(,
*BB"7*$0"#, $", @("@%($., $/*#, $/%,
*3%(*:%,4<#+R
,
G/%, +03%(&0W7*$0"#, 0#$", /%+:%,
4<#+&,*#+,@("@%($.,$/*$,@("30+%+,
@("$%7$0"#,4"(,$/%,'<#+,4("1,$/%,
1*(=%$,4*BB&,0#,IHHLQHPU,+0+,#"$,
&0:#0W7*#$B.,/*1@%(,$/%,'<#+D&,
*-0B0$.,$",%#g".,$/%,&$("#:,1*(=%$,
(%$<(#&,"4,IHHPQMHR

?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+

!<&$"10&%+,T%#7/1*(=

Z9,f"7*B,?<$/"(0$.,?3%(*:%

2
%$
<(
#,
_Y
,@
*`

/Q01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

&<3,5%ZW%!'*/%@-,;%D-,:',;3*#-

Page 87



S,T*UB$*!"1$3#7$"#*8'"'<$93

A#,:%#%(*BU,1"&$,*&&%$,7B*&&%&,
+%B03%(%+, (%$<(#&, )%BB, *-"3%,
B"#:, $%(1, %]@%7$*$0"#&, *&,
$/%., (%-"<#+%+, 4("1, B*&$,
.%*(&, 4*BB&R,G/%,'<#+,1*$7/%+,
"(, "<$@%(4"(1%+, 1*(=%$,
-%#7/1*(=&,0#,*BB,*&&%$,7B*&&%&,
%]7%@$, /%+:%, 4<#+&R,\")%3%(U,
$/%, /%+:%, 4<#+, 1*#*:%(&,
"<$@%(4"(1%+, , $/%0(, &@%70W7,
@%(4"(1*#7%,$*(:%$&R,

!/*($,N,&/")&,$/%,@%(4"(1*#7%,
"4,%*7/,*&&%$,7B*&&,*:*0#&$,$/%,
1*(=%$,-%#7/1*(=&,+<(0#:, $/%,
.%*(R

?:*0#&$, 0$&, 7<&$"10&%+,
-%#7/1*(=, _)/07/, 1%*&<(%&,
$/%, (%B*$03%, @%(4"(1*#7%, "4,
$/%, 1*#*:%(&`U, $/%, '<#+,
1*(:0#*BB., <#+%(@%(4"(1%+,
"3%(,$/%,.%*(U,1*0#B.,+<%,$",$/%,
<#+%(@%(4"(1*#7%, "4, h<@0$%(,
*#+, GG, A#$%(#*$0"#*B, 3%(&<&,
$/%0(, -%#7/1*(=&R, , 2".*B,
f"#+"#,*#+,6%#%&0&,*7/0%3%+,
@*($07<B*(B., :""+, (%$<(#&,
*:*0#&$, $*(:%$U, )0$/, LRPY, *#+,
INY, *-"3%, $/%0(, (%&@%7$03%,
-%#7/1*(=&U,*&,+0+, $/%,/%+:%,
4<#+, 1*#*:%(&R, TB*7=2"7=,
1*#*:%, @*&&03%, @"($4"B0"&, 4"(,
$/%, '<#+, *#+, $/%(%4"(%, $/%,
(%$<(#, "#, $/%&%, @"($4"B0"&, 0&,

3%(.,&010B*(,$",$/%,(%$<(#,"4,$/%,
<#+%(B.0#:,0#+%]R

!/*($,E,&/")&,$/%,@%(4"(1*#7%,
"4, $/%, 1*#*:%(&, *:*0#&$, $/%0(,
-%#7/1*(=, +<(0#:, IHHLQHPR,
F"$%, $/*$, $/%, @%(4"(1*#7%, "4,
>*($#%(&,*#+,;7/("+%(&,(%[%7$&,
$/%, 4*7$, $/*$, $/%., *(%, &$0BB, @*($,
)*., $/("<:/, 0#3%&$0#:, $/%0(,
@"($4"B0"&R

,

?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+

T%#7/1*(=

&<3,5%[W%6.'*%D-*+)'*%B"*8%_%D-,:',;3*#-%F$%6++-5%&(3++%X]]^_V]

/R 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 88



/D01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+

T%#7/1*(=

&<3,5%\W%B"*8%A3*3/-,%D-,:',;3*#-%X]]^_V]

8'"'<$9 J57,$9*&+*
7$$#%"<3*
1&#$6*'#

I&#$6*Y%#B*
7'"'<$7$"#

0,3#'%"$6 I&#$6*'<'%"3#*
7'"'<$7$"#

h<@0$%(,?&&%$,9*#*:%1%#$ PJ LJY OY MHY
GG,A#$%(#*$0"#*B EJ LJY HY MOY
6%#%&0&,A#3%&$1%#$,
9*#*:%1%#$

PM OHY PY IMY

TB*7=2"7= IUNEP KEY EY JHY
;$*$%,;$(%%$,6B"-*B,?+30&"(& OOJ PMY HY PY
A#3%&7",>%(@%$<*B OE LKY MY MJY

@3F(-%VVW%i'5)*/%1";;3,$%X]]^_V]

!"1$3#7$"#*8'"'<$93d*I&#%"<*
C$:&96

G*-B%, MM, &<11*(0&%&, $/%,
*7$030$., <#+%($*=%#, -., $/%,
'<#+D&, %]$%(#*B, 0#3%&$1%#$,
1*#*:%(&,$",3"$%,$/%,7"1@*#.,
&/*(%&,$/%.,/"B+,"#,$/%,'<#+D&,
-%/*B4R

Page 89



N[*!"1$3#7$"#*067%"%3#9'#%&"

G/%, '<#+D&, 7<&$"+0*#, 0&,
(%&@"#&0-B%, 4"(, $/%, &*4%s
=%%@0#:, "4, $/%, '<#+D&, *&&%$&,
*#+, *7$&, *&, $/%, '<#+D&, -*#=U,
&%$$B0#:, $(*#&*7$0"#&, *#+,
7"BB%7$0#:, 0#7"1%R, , A#, *++0$0"#,
$/%.,@("30+%,*,(*#:%,"4,&<@@"($,
&%(307%&,0#7B<+0#:,&$"7=,B%#+0#:,
*#+,0#3%&$1%#$,*77"<#$0#:R

A#, ;%@$%1-%(, IHHL, $/%,
!"110$$%%,*:(%%+,$",%&$*-B0&/,
*, &%@*(*$%, -*#=, *77"<#$, 4"(,
$/%,@%#&0"#,4<#+,$",01@("3%,$/%,
$(*#&@*(%#7.,*#+,*77"<#$*-0B0$.,
"4, $/%, '<#+D&, *#+, !"<#70BD&,
-*#=0#:, *((*#:%1%#$&R, , G/%,
&%@*(*$%, -*#=, *77"<#$, )*&,
"@%(*$0"#*B,4("1,M,?@(0B,IHHPR,,

A#, *#$070@*$0"#, "4, (%:<B*$"(.,

7/*#:%&, $", @("/0-0$, $/%, 7"^
10#:B0#:, "4, $/%, @%#&0"#, 4<#+D&,
*#+, !"<#70BD&, 0#3%&$1%#$,
7*&/U, $/%, !"110$$%%,
*+"@$%+, *, &%@*(*$%, G(%*&<(.,
9*#*:%1%#$,>"B07.,4"(,$/%,'<#+,
0#,S%7%1-%(,IHHPR,,?&,*,(%&<B$,
$/%,'<#+,*B(%*+.,7"1@B0%&,)0$/,
(%:<B*$"(., 7/*#:%&, )/07/, )0BB,
$*=%,%44%7$,4("1,M,?@(0B,IHMMR

U&=*F.*P'9<$3#*]%9$:#*Va5%#)*b&(6%"<3 \*&+*45"6
\;T! eMJULPHUMHPRIE HREOY
2".*B,S<$7/,;/%BB eMHUHNMUHNLRNO HRNMY
T6,6("<@ eOUPNIUPEHRHH HRJIY
?&$(*l%#%7* eOUNLLUPMNRML HRJMY
G%&7" eKULKOUKKNRJN HRILY
6B*]";10$/dB0#% eKUKMMUENORLH HRIOY
20",G0#$" eKUEOIUJKKROK HRIOY
T*(7B*.& eKUEMPUKLERKI HRIOY
c"+*4"#%,6("<@ eKUIOOUIPORKI HRIKY
A1@%(0*B,G"-*77" eEUJPEUKOMROE HRIIY

U&=*F.*P'9<$3#*!"1$3#7$"#*b&(6%"<3 \*&+*45"6
?X<0B*,f04%,Vd,CX<0$.,A#+%],'<#+,_TB*7=2"7=` eNENUENKUKEJRIK MLREKY
A#3%&7",>%($<*B,6B"-*B,%],Vd,C#/*#7%+,A#+%],'<#+ eMELUIIIUPLIRKK KRNKY
TB*7=2"7=,Z"(B+,A#+%],'<#+ eMNEUNIMUOKLRMN ERPNY
6%#%&0&,C1%(:0#:,9*(=%$&,A#3%&$1%#$,'<#+ eMJHUIMHUOLNRPP ERJIY
2f>>!,Vd,!"(@"(*$%,T"#+,'<#+,_2".*B,f"#+"#` eMIIUMLEUMJMROK NRPPY
TB*7=2"7=,C<("@%,%]^Vd,A#+%],'<#+ eMIMUJEJULMMRMN NRPEY
9;!A,CX<0$.,A#+%],'<#+,T^V;,_TB*7=2"7=` eMHJUMPHUIHKRKL NRIMY
29',A#3%&$1%#$,;$(*$%:0%&,;>!,_9?F` ePEUHNKULOLREN JRLLY
?X<0B*,f04%,i3%(&%*&,T"#+,A#+%],'<#+,_TB*7=2"7=` eOIUJNLUNMNRKJ IRPEY
9>',>*70W7,C#/*#7%+,CX<0$.,A#+%],'<#+,_;;:?` eEEUJNLULKJREE IRIKY

G[*P'9<$3#*b&(6%"<3

G/%, MH, B*(:%&$, 0#3%&$1%#$&,
*#+, $/%, $"@, MH, B*(:%&$, +0(%7$,
%X<0$., /"B+0#:&, "4, $/%, '<#+, *$,
JM, 9*(7/, IHMH, *(%, &/")#, 0#,
G*-B%&,MI,8,MJR

@3F(-%VXW%@'2%V]%!3,/-+5%U*.-+5;-*5%b'(8)*/+

@3F(-%VZW%@'2%V]%!3,/-+5%g),-#5%IO")5$%b'(8)*/+

>. 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 90



?7$<*(0*B,2%@"($,
*#+,'<#+0#:,
;$(*$%:.,
;$*$%1%#$,

A#,B0#%,)0$/,$/%,f6>;,(%:<B*$0"#&,
$/%,'<#+D&,*7$<*(0*B,@"&0$0"#,0&,
(%30%)%+, %3%(., $/(%%, .%*(&R,
G/%,#%]$,$(0%##0*B,3*B<*$0"#,)0BB,
$*=%,@B*7%,*&,*$,JM,9*(7/,IHMH,
)/07/, )0BB, &%$, $/%, %1@B".%(,
7"#$(0-<$0"#,(*$%&,4"(,$/%,@%(0"+,
M,?@(0B,IHMM,$",JM,9*(7/,IHMNR,

?$, $/%, B*&$, *7$<*(0*B, 3*B<*$0"#,
-*&%+, "#, 1%1-%(&/0@, +*$*,
*#+,*&&%$, 3*B<%&,*$, JM,9*(7/,
IHHOU, $/%, 4<#+0#:, B%3%B, )*&,
LJY,B%*30#:,*,+%W70$,"4,MOYR,

A#, 9*(7/, IHHP, *#, 0#$%(01,
3*B<*$0"#, 7*B7<B*$%+, $/*$, $/%,
4<#+0#:,B%3%B,/*+,4*BB%#,$",KHY,
+<%, 1*0#B., $", $/%, &0:#0W7*#$,
4*BB,0#,*&&%$,3*B<%&,*$,$/*$,+*$%R,
G/%, &<-&%X<%#$, (%7"3%(., 0#,
*&&%$,3*B<%&,0#,IHHPQMH,1%*#$,
$/*$, $/%, 4<#+0#:, B%3%B, *$, JM,
9*(7/, IHMHU, %&$01*$%+, <&0#:,
$/%, &*1%, *&&<1@$0"#&, *&, 0#,
IHHOU,)*&,*@@("]01*$%B., OJY,
B%*30#:,*,+%W70$,"4,IOYR,

\")%3%(U, 0#, h<#%, IHMH, $/%,
:"3%(#1%#$, *##"<#7%+, $/*$,
*BB, f6>;, @%#&0"#, -%#%W$&,
*(%, $", -%, B0#=%+, $",!>A, (*$/%(,
$/*#, 2>AR, T%7*<&%, !>A, /*&,
/0&$"(07*BB., -%%#, B")%(, $/*#,
2>A, -., -%$)%%#, HRE, ^, MRHY,
@%(, *##<1U, $/%, %44%7$, 0&, $",
(%+<7%,$/%,'<#+D&, B0*-0B0$0%&,-.,
*#,%&$01*$%+,E,^,LY,*#+,*&,*,
7"#&%X<%#7%, $/%, +%W70$, *$, JM,

9*(7/,IHMH,0&,%&$01*$%+,$",-%,
*@@("]01*$%B.,LHYU,7"1@*(%+,
$",LJY,0#,IHHOR

S%&@0$%, $/%, %&$01*$%+, IHMH,
4<#+0#:, B%3%B, -%0#:, &010B*(, $",
$/*$, 0#, IHHOU, $/%, *7$<*B, +%W70$,
)0BB,/*3%,0#7(%*&%+R,G/0&,1%*#&,
$/*$, $/%(%,)0BB, &$0BB,-%,@(%&&<(%,
4"(,%1@B".%(,7"#$(0-<$0"#,(*$%&,
$",(0&%,*#+,$/0&,)0BB,#%%+,$",-%,
1*#*:%+, -., $/%, '<#+, *#+, 0$&,
*7$<*(.,0#,"(+%(,$",10#010&%,$/%,
01@*7$,"#,%1@B".%(&R

G/%,(%:<B*$0"#&,@("30+%,$/*$,$/%,
'<#+0#:, ;$(*$%:., ;$*$%1%#$,
1<&$,
n, %&$*-B0&/, *, 7B%*(, *#+,

$(*#&@*(%#$, 4<#+^&@%70W7,
&$(*$%:., )/07/, )0BB, 0+%#$04.,
/"), %1@B".%(&D, @%#&0"#,
B0*-0B0$0%&,*(%,-%&$,1%$,:"0#:,
4"()*(+k

n, $", &<@@"($, $/%, (%:<B*$"(.,
(%X<0(%1%#$, $",1*0#$*0#,*&,
#%*(B., 7"#&$*#$, %1@B".%(,
7"#$(0-<$0"#, (*$%&, *&,
@"&&0-B%k,*#+

n, $", $*=%, *, @(<+%#$, B"#:%(^
$%(1, 30%),"4, 4<#+0#:, $/"&%,
B0*-0B0$0%&R

V&0#:, $/%, [%]0-0B0$., @("30+%+,
)0$/0#, $/0&, 4(*1%)"(=U, $/%,
'<#+,)0BB, #%%+, $", -*B*#7%, $/%,
011%+0*$%, 7*&/["),@(%&&<(%&,
"#, $/%, 0#+030+<*B, %1@B".%(&,
)0$/, $/%, B"#:%(, $%(1, (0&=, $/%,
B0*-0B0$0%&,@"&%,$",$/%,'<#+U,*#+,
$/<&,*BB, $/%,%1@B".%(&R,Z/%(%,
@"&&0-B%U, $/%, +%W70$, (%7"3%(.,
@%(0"+,)0BB,-%,%]$%#+%+,-%."#+,
$/%,7<((%#$,IH,.%*(&,$",1*0#$*0#,
&$*-B%,7"#$(0-<$0"#,(*$%&R

G/%(%,0&,*,@"&&0-0B0$.,$/*$,+<(0#:,
$/%,.%*(,&"1%,4<($/%(,7/*#:%&,
1*.,-%,1*+%, $",@<-B07, &%7$"(,
@%#&0"#, &7/%1%&U, 0#7B<+0#:,
$/%, f6>;U, $", (%+<7%, $/%, 7"&$,
"4, -%#%W$&, )/07/, 1*., -%,

0#7"(@"(*$%+, 0#$", $/%,3*B<*$0"#,
%]%(70&%R, A#, *++0$0"#U, $/%,
(%:<B*$0"#&, *BB"), 4"(, 7"&$^
&/*(0#:, -%$)%%#, %1@B".%(&,
*#+, %1@B".%%&R, G/0&, 7"<B+,
7"1%, 0#$", %44%7$, +<(0#:, $/0&,
IHMH^MJ, 3*B<*$0"#, 7.7B%, 04, $/%,
7"&$&,"4,4<$<(%,&%(307%,0#7(%*&%,
&0:#0W7*#$B.R, \")%3%(U, $/%,
7"&$^&/*(0#:,1%7/*#0&1,0&,#"$,
%]@%7$%+, $", (*+07*BB., (%+<7%,
%1@B".%(, 7"&$&, 0#, $/%, &/"($,
$%(1R
,
G/%, #%), :"3%(#1%#$, /*&,
*##"<#7%+, *#, 0#+%@%#+%#$,
7"110&&0"#U, G/%, \<$$"#,
!"110&&0"#U,$",(%30%),$/%,B"#:,
$%(1,*44"(+*-0B0$.,"4,@<-B07,&%7$"(,
@%#&0"#&U, )/0B%, @("$%7$0#:,
*77(<%+, (0:/$&R, G/%(%4"(%, 0$, 0&,
/0:/B.,@("-*-B%, $/*$,&0:#0W7*#$,
7/*#:%&,$",$/%,f6>;,&$(<7$<(%,
)0BB, -%, 0#$("+<7%+, *$, $/%, IHMJ,
3*B<*$0"#U,04,#"$,-%4"(%R

?,7"@.,"4,$/%,'<#+0#:,;$(*$%:.,
;$*$%1%#$, 7*#, -%, "-$*0#%+,
%0$/%(, 4("1, $/%, )%-&0$%, )))R
*3"#@%#&0"#4<#+R"(:R<=, "(,
4("1, *3"#q@%#&0"#r-*$/#%&R
:"3R<=

>F01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH Page 91



?#, *7$<*(0*B, 3*B<*$0"#, "4, $/%,
?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,)*&,7*((0%+,
"<$, *&, *$, JM, 9*(7/, IHHO, $",
+%$%(10#%,$/%,7"#$(0-<$0"#,(*$%&,
)0$/,%44%7$,4("1,M,?@(0B,IHHL,$",
JM, 9*(7/, IHMMR, G/%, (%&<B$&,
"4, $/%, 3*B<*$0"#, *(%, 7"#$*0#%+,
0#, "<(, (%@"($, +*$%+, JM, 9*(7/,
IHHLR, G/%, 3*B<*$0"#, *BB")%+,
4"(,$/%,#%),B""=,f6>;,-%#%W$,
&$(<7$<(%,)/07/,)*&,0#$("+<7%+,
4("1,M,?@(0B,IHHLR

i#,$/%,-*&0&,"4,$/%,*&&<1@$0"#&,
*+"@$%+U,$/%,3*B<*$0"#,(%3%*B%+,
$/*$, $/%, 3*B<%, "4, $/%, '<#+D&,
*&&%$&, (%@(%&%#$%+, LJY, "4,
$/%, '<#+0#:, G*(:%$, *$, $/%,
3*B<*$0"#, +*$%R, G/%, 3*B<*$0"#,
*B&", &/")%+, $/*$, *, 7"11"#,
(*$%, "4, 7"#$(0-<$0"#, "4, MMROY,
"4,@%#&0"#*-B%,@*.,@%(,*##<1,
)*&, (%X<0(%+, 4("1, %1@B".%(&R,
G/%,7"11"#,(*$%,0&,7*B7<B*$%+,
*&, -%0#:, &<4W70%#$U, $":%$/%(,
)0$/, 7"#$(0-<$0"#&, @*0+, -.,

1%1-%(&U,$",1%%$,*BB, B0*-0B0$0%&,
*(0&0#:, 0#, (%&@%7$, "4, &%(307%,
*4$%(,$/%,3*B<*$0"#,+*$%R

?+"@$0#:, $/%, &*1%, 1%$/"+,
*#+, *&&<1@$0"#&, *&, <&%+, 4"(,
*&&%&&0#:, $/%, '<#+0#:, G*(:%$,
$/%,+%W70$,)"<B+,-%,%B010#*$%+,
-., *#, *3%(*:%, *++0$0"#*B,
7"#$(0-<$0"#, (*$%, "4, NRPY, "4,
@%#&0"#*-B%, @*., 4"(, IH, .%*(&R,
G/0&, )"<B+, 01@B., *#, *3%(*:%,
%1@B".%(, 7"#$(0-<$0"#, (*$%, "4,
MKRKY, "4, @%#&0"#*-B%, @*., 0#,
$"$*BR

A#, @(*7$07%U, %*7/, 0#+030+<*B,
%1@B".%(D&, @"&0$0"#, 0&,
*&&%&&%+, &%@*(*$%B., *#+, $/%,
7"#$(0-<$0"#&, (%X<0(%+, *(%,
&%$, "<$, 0#, "<(, (%@"($, +*$%+, JM,
9*(7/,IHHLR, A#,*++0$0"#, $", $/%,
7%($0W%+, 7"#$(0-<$0"#, (*$%&U,
@*.1%#$&, $", 7"3%(, *++0$0"#*B,
B0*-0B0$0%&, *(0&0#:, 4("1, %*(B.,
(%$0(%1%#$&,_"$/%(,$/*#,0BB^/%*B$/,

(%$0(%1%#$&`,)0BB,-%,1*+%,$",$/%,
'<#+,-.,%1@B".%(&R

G/%, 4<#+0#:, @B*#, *+"@$%+, 0#,
*&&%&&0#:, $/%, 7"#$(0-<$0"#&,
4"(, %*7/, 0#+030+<*B, %1@B".%(,
0&, 0#, *77"(+*#7%, )0$/, $/%,
'<#+0#:, ;$(*$%:., ;$*$%1%#$,
_';;`R,A#,@*($07<B*(U,$/%(%,)%(%,
3*(0*$0"#&, 0#, $/%, *@@("*7/,
*+"@$%+,0#,&%$$0#:,$/%,'<#+0#:,
G*(:%$, 4"(, 7%($*0#, %1@B".%(&R,
S044%(%#$, *@@("*7/%&, *+"@$%+,
0#, 01@B%1%#$0#:, 7"#$(0-<$0"#,
0#7(%*&%&, *#+, +%W70$, (%7"3%(.,
@%(0"+&,*(%,+%$%(10#%+,$/("<:/,
$/%,';;,7"#&<B$*$0"#,@("7%&&R

?&,*, (%&<B$, "4, $/%, 3*B<*$0"#U, *,
(%30&%+,2*$%&,*#+,?+g<&$1%#$&,
!%($0W7*$%, )*&, @(%@*(%+, 4"(,
$/%,$/(%%,.%*(&,7"11%#70#:,M,
?@(0B, IHHLR, G/%, (*$%&, @*.*-B%,
-.,$/%,V#0$*(.,?<$/"(0$0%&,)%(%,
7%($0W%+,*&,4"BB")&m

;$*$%1%#$,"4,
!"#&<B$0#:,
?7$<*(.,

2$9:$"#'<$*&+*2$"3%&"',($*2')*=$9*'""57
IHHLQHP IHHPQMH IHMHQMM
Y Y Y

T(0&$"B,!0$.,!"<#70B MERN MKRJ MORI
T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B MORE MORE MORE
F"($/,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B MKRP MORO MLRK
;"<$/,6B"<7%&$%(&/0(%,!"<#70B MERM MERP MKRL

>/ 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 92



>>01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

G/%, 3*B<*$0"#, )*&, 7*((0%+,
"<$, <&0#:, $/%, @("g%7$%+, <#0$,
*7$<*(0*B,1%$/"+,*#+,$/%,1*0#,
*7$<*(0*B,*&&<1@$0"#&,<&%+,4"(,
*&&%&&0#:, $/%, '<#+0#:, G*(:%$,,
*#+, $/%, 7"11"#, 7"#$(0-<$0"#,
(*$%,)%(%,*&,4"BB")&m

4&9*='3#*3$91%:$*(%',%(%#%$3 4&9*+5#59$*3$91%:$*(%',%(%#%$3
2*$%,"4,(%$<(#,"#,0#3%&$1%#$&m
^,@(%,(%$0(%1%#$ KROEY,@%(,*##<1 KREY,@%(,*##<1
^,@"&$,(%$0(%1%#$ ERKY,@%(,*##<1 KREY,@%(,*##<1

2*$%,"4,@*.,0#7(%*&%&m NRJEY,@%(,*##<1 NY,@%(,*##<1

2*$%,04,0#7(%*&%&,0#,@%#&0"#&,0#,
@*.1%#$,_0#,%]7%&&,"4,6<*(*#$%%+,
90#01<1,>%#&0"#`

JRMY,@%(,*##<1 IROEY,@%(,*##<1

G/%, *&&%$&, )%(%, *&&%&&%+, *$,
1*(=%$,3*B<%R

G/%, ?+10#0&$%(0#:, ?<$/"(0$.,
+%$%(10#%+, $/*$, 7%($*0#,
%1@B".%(&,)0$/,*,B%&&%(,W#*#70*B,
7"3%#*#$,_-*&%+,"#,7(0$07*B,&%$,
-.,$/%,?+10#0&$%(0#:,?<$/"(0$.`,
)"<B+, /*3%, $/%0(, 7"#$(0-<$0"#,
(%X<0(%1%#$, *&&%&&%+, )0$/,
(%4%(%#7%, $", 1"(%, 7*<$0"<&,
*7$<*(0*B, *&&<1@$0"#&, -*&%+,

"#, 7"(@"(*$%, -"#+, .0%B+&R,
'<($/%(, +%$*0B&, &<(("<#+0#:,
$/0&,*@@("*7/,7*#,-%, 4"<#+, 0#,
$/%,';;,*B"#:,)0$/, 4<BB, +%$*0B&,
"4, $/%, *&&<1@$0"#&, *+"@$%+,
-%0#:, &%$, "<$, 0#, "<(, *7$<*(0*B,
3*B<*$0"#,(%@"($R

;0#7%, $/%, IHHO, 3*B<*$0"#, $/%,
1*(=%$&, /*3%, &/")#, *, /0:/,
+%:(%%,"4,3"B*$0B0$.U,*#+,$/%,'<#+,
/*&,1"#0$"(%+,$/%,01@B07*$0"#&,

4"(, 4<#+0#:,7B"&%B.,)0$/, 4<($/%(,
*7$<*(0*B,*+307%,@("30+%+R

G/%, #%]$, $(0%##0*B, *7$<*(0*B,
3*B<*$0"#,"4,$/%,'<#+,0&,+<%,*&,
*$, JM, 9*(7/, IHMHR, T*&%+, "#,
$/%,(%&<B$&,"4,$/0&,3*B<*$0"#U,$/%,
7"#$(0-<$0"#, (*$%&, @*.*-B%, -.,
$/%,0#+030+<*B,%1@B".%(&,)0BB,-%,
(%30&%+,)0$/,%44%7$,4("1,M,?@(0B,
IHMMR

2'5(*8%66($7'"
'%BB"),"4,$/%,A#&$0$<$%,"4,?7$<*(0%&
9%(7%(,f010$%+
h<#%,IHMH

Page 93



2'9#%:%='#%"<*V7=(&)$93 A&"#9%,5#%&"*C'#$3
e$'9*V"6$6*>F3#*8'9:B /.F. /..D

\ \

;:B$65($6*O&6%$3
29%":%='(*A&5":%(3*'"6*;$91%:$*29&1%6$93
?3"#,'0(%,8,2%&7<% MERN MERN
T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B MORE MORE
T(0&$"B,!0$.,!"<#70B MKRJ MERN
F"($/,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B MORO MKRP
;"<$/,6B"<7%&$%(&/0(%,!"<#70B MERP MERM

459#B$9*f*b%<B$9*V65:'#%&"*V3#',(%3B7$"#3
T*$/,;@*,V#03%(&0$.,!"BB%:% MERP MERP
!0$.,"4,T*$/,!"BB%:% MJRH MIRK
!0$.,"4,T(0&$"B,!"BB%:% MNRI MJRO
'0B$"#,!"BB%:% MJRM MMRP
F"($"#,2*+&$"7=,!"BB%:% MIRP MMRO
;$R,T(%#+*#D&,!"BB%:% MJRL MJRL
V#03%(&0$.,"4,$/%,Z%&$,"4,C#:B*#+ MNRE MNRE
Z%&$"#,!"BB%:% MNRH MJRJ

L#B$9*V65:'#%&"*V3#',(%3B7$"#3
T%%7/%#,!B044,;7/""B,,,,,,, MORE MORE
T(0&$"B,!*$/%+(*B,!/"0(,;7/""B,?7*+%1. MMRO MMRO
!*-"$,f%*(#0#:,'%+%(*$0"#,"4,?7*+%10%& MIRH ^
!0$.,?7*+%1.,T(0&$"B MHRK MHRM
!"B&$"#,60(BD&,;7/""B,?7*+%1. MNRH MJRH
\*.%&W%B+,;7/""B,,,,,,,,,,,, MORE MORE
9%(7/*#$D&,?7*+%1. MJRO MJRO
i*&0&,?7*+%1.,T(0:/$&$")% MIRK MIRK
i*&0&,?7*+%1.,T(0&$"B MJRI MJRI
iB+W%B+,;7/""B,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, MORE MORE

C1@B".%(&D,
!"#$(0-<$0"#,
2*$%&

>@ 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 94



G/%,20+0#:&,'%+%(*$0"#,"4,?7*+%10%&,Z0#$%(-"<(#% MJRH ^
G/%,20+0#:&,'%+%(*$0"#,"4,?7*+%10%&,5*$% MMRL ^

]$3%<"'#%"<*O&6%$3
T*$/,G"<(0&1,>B<& MNRH MNRH
T*7=)%BB,>*(0&/,!"<#70B MKRN MERP
T(*+B%.,;$"=%,G")#,!"<#70B MKRK MMRN
!/*($%(,G(<&$%%&,"4,$/%,!0$.,"4,T*$/ MJRL MIRI
!B%3%+"#,G")#,!"<#70B MNRH MNRH
S%&$0#*$0"#,T(0&$"B MMRJ LRO
S"+0#:$"#,>*(0&/,!"<#70B MNRL MNRL
S")#%#+,*#+,T("1B%.,\%*$/,>*(0&/,!"<#70B PRL LRO
C*&$"#,0#,6"(+*#",>*(0&/,!"<#70B MNRH ^
'0B$"#,G")#,!"<#70B PRI LRO
'(*1@$"#,!"$$%(%BB,>*(0&/,!"<#70B MNRH MMRN
\*#/*1,>*(0&/,!"<#70B INRL MLRN
\*#/*1,?--"$&,>*(0&/,!"<#70B MNRH ^
d%.#&/*1,G")#,!"<#70B IHRH MNRO
f"#:,?&/$"#,>*(0&/,!"<#70B INRK INRK
9*#:"$&W%B+,2<(*B,>*(0&/,!"<#70B MNRJ MNRJ
F*0B&%*,G")#,!"<#70B MKRK MKRK
F"($"#,2*+&$"7=,G")#,!"<#70B MPRK MORL
iB+B*#+,>*(0&/,!"<#70B MHRE PRL
>*$7/)*.,G")#,!"<#70B MERK MERK
>*<B$"#,>*(0&/,!"<#70B MNRM MIRI
>"($0&/%*+,8,F"($/,Z%&$"#,G")#,!"<#70B MLRL MKRI
;*B$4"(+,>*(0&/,!"<#70B MNRH MJRH
;$"=%,6044"(+,>*(0&/,!"<#70B MORP MKRK
G/"(#-<(.,G")#,!"<#70B IMRH IHRI
Z%&$%(B%0:/,>*(0&/,!"<#70B MIRE MIRE
Z%&$"#,;<@%(,9*(%,G")#,!"<#70B MHRJ PRK
Z/0$7/<(7/,>*(0&/,!"<#70B MHRE MHRE
Z0#$%(-"<(#%,>*(0&/,!"<#70B MERL MJRP
5*$%,G")#,!"<#70B MERP MERP

A&775"%#)*067%33%&"*O&6%$3
?&/B%.,\"<&%,\"&$%B MKRM MJRJ
T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,2*70*B,CX<*B0$.,!"<#70B MNRE MIRP
T(0&B0#:$"#,F%0:/-"<(/""+,!%#$(% LRN ORK
!%#$(%,'"(,S%*4,>%"@B% MOY,v,eMKUMNH MOY,v,eEUJPH
!B04$"#,;<&@%#&0"#,T(0+:%,G(<&$ MJRE MIRP
G/%,!*(%,p<*B0$.,!"110&&0"# MKRP MERL
f%*(#0#:,>*($#%(&/0@,Z%&$,f010$%+,
_!"##%]0"#&,Z%&$,"4,C#:B*#+`

MNRK MNRK

>G01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH Page 95



\"B-<(#%,9<&%<1,"4,?($ MMRK PRO
9%(B0#,\"<&0#:,;"70%$.,_;6` MIRE MIRE
9%(B0#,\"<&0#:,;"70%$.,f$+ MNRL MIRE
9f?,;"<$/,Z%&$ MORM MORM
F"($/,;"1%(&%$,\"<&0#: MHRL MHRJ
i44,$/%,2%7"(+,T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$ MHRL PRE
;"1%(,!"11<#0$.,\"<&0#:,G(<&$ MERH MERH
;"1%(,\"<&0#:,6("<@,f$+ PRN PRN
;"<$/%(#,T(""=&,!"11<#0$.,>*($#%(&/0@ MHRL PRE
;"<$/)%&$,6(0+,4"(,f%*(#0#:,G(<&$ MIRH MIRH
V#03%(&0$.,"4,T*$/ MNRJ MNRJ
Z%&$,"4,C#:B*#+,;@"($,G(<&$ MNRK MNRK
c0&0"#,F"($/,;"1%(&%$ INRI IMRK

U9'"3+$9$$3*067%##$6*O&6%$3*S;:&=$T
?7$03%,!"11<#0$.,C#:*:%1%#$,f$+ MHRI MHRI
?:0#7*(% MKRK MKRK
?X<*$%((*,f%0&<(%,f$+R MHRE MHRE
?2?9?2d MNRN MNRN
T?9,!"#&$(<7$,Vd,f$+,_4"(,\%#-<(.,;7/""B` MERN MERN
T%&@"=%,!B%*#0#: MKRE ^
!/<(7/0BB,!"#$(*7$,;%(307%& MORH ^
C+%#,'""+,;%(307%&,_A#0$0*B,!*$%(0#:` MJRO MJRO
C#:B0&/,f*#+&7*@%& MKRH ^
29,S*$*,;"B<$0"#&,f$+ IHRH IHRH
A;;,9%+07B%*# MMRP MMRP
A;;,9%+07B%*#,_T(0&$"B` MIRK MIRK
9*1*,T%*(&,S*.,F<(&%(.,f$+ MERM ^
9"<7/%B,T<&0#%&&,;%(307%&,f$+ MLRK MKRO
9"<7/%B,T<&0#%&&,;%(307%&,f$+,_F*0B&%*,AG` MERM ^
F"($/:*$%,A#4"(1*$0"#,;"B<$0"#& PRM PRM
>("&@%7$,;%(307%&,f$+ MJROY,v,eMMPUMHH MJROY,v,eMMPUMHH
p<*+("#,;%(307%& MJRO MJRO
;/*),\%*B$/7*(%,_F"($/,;"1%(&%$`,f$+ IMRE IHRN
;AG?,\"B+0#:&,Vd,f$+ MEROY,v,eEJUOKH MEROY,v,eEJUOKH
;=*#&=*,_!*-"$,f%*(#0#:,'%+%(*$0"#` PRE PRE
;f9,!"11<#0$.,f%0&<(% MHRP MHRP
;f9,'0$#%&&,8,\%*B$/ LRO LRO
;"<$/,6B"<7%&$%(&/0(%,f%0&<(%,G(<&$ ORE KRE
G%*1,!B%*#,f$+ MJRJ MJRJ
G/%,T(*#+"#,G(<&$ MKRP MKRE
5%&,S0#0#:,f$+ MIRI MIRI

>N 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 96



>Q01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

;$*$%1%#$,
"4,?77"<#$&,
IHHPQMH,

!"#9&65:#%&"

MRM, G/%,4"BB")0#:,7"1@(0&%&,
$/%,;$*$%1%#$, "4,?77"<#$&, 4"(,
$/%, ?3"#, >%#&0"#, '<#+, _G/%,
'<#+`R,G/%,*77"<#$&,7"3%(,$/%,
W#*#70*B,.%*(,4("1,M,?@(0B,IHHP,
$",JM,9*(7/,IHMHR
,
MRI, G/%&%, *77"<#$&, /*3%,
-%%#, @(%@*(%+, 0#, *77"(+*#7%,
)0$/, $/%, !"+%, "4, >(*7$07%, "#,
f"7*B, ?<$/"(0$., ?77"<#$0#:,
_j!"+%,"4,>(*7$07%D`,0#,$/%,V#0$%+,
d0#:+"1, IHHPm, ?, ;$*$%1%#$,
"4, 2%7"11%#+%+, >(*7$07%, *&,
@<-B0&/%+, -., $/%, !/*($%(%+,
A#&$0$<$%,"4,><-B07,'0#*#7%,*#+,
?77"<#$*#7.R,,?&,(%X<0(%+,-.,$/%,
!"+%, "4, >(*7$07%, $/%, >%#&0"#,
'<#+, *77"<#$&, /*3%, -%%#,
@(%@*(%+, 0#, *77"(+*#7%, )0$/,
$/%,@("30&0"#&,"4,$/%,;$*$%1%#$,
"4, 2%7"11%#+%+, >(*7$07%, "4,
$/%, @%#&0"#, ;i2>, IHHPR, G/%,
*77"<#$&, /*3%, -%%#, @(%@*(%+,
"#, *#, *77(<*B&, -*&0&U, %]7%@$,
4"(, 7%($*0#, $(*#&4%(, 3*B<%&, *&,
+%&7(0-%+, *$, j;$*$%1%#$, "4,
?77"<#$0#:,>"B070%&D,s,0$%1,IRER,
G/%., +", #"$, $*=%, *77"<#$, "4,
B0*-0B0$0%&, $", @*., @%#&0"#&, *#+,
"$/%(,-%#%W$&,0#,$/%,4<$<(%R

,MRJ, G/%, *77"<#$&, *(%, &%$,
"<$,0#,$/%,4"BB")0#:,"(+%(m,

;#'#$7$"#*&+*0::&5"#%"<*
2&(%:%$3,
)/07/,%]@B*0#&,$/%,-*&0&,"4,$/%,
W:<(%&,0#,$/%,*77"<#$&R,

45"6*0::&5"#,
)/07/, +0&7B"&%&, $/%, &0l%, *#+,
#*$<(%,"4,W#*#70*B,*++0$0"#&, $",
*#+,)0$/+(*)*B&,4("1,$/%,'<#+,
+<(0#:, $/%, *77"<#$0#:, @%(0"+,
*#+,(%7"#70B%&,$/%,1"3%1%#$&,
0#, $/%, #%$, *&&%$&, $", $/%, '<#+,
?77"<#$R
,,,
J$#*033$#3*;#'#$7$"#
)/07/, +0&7B"&%&, $/%, &0l%, *#+,
+0&@"&0$0"#, "4, $/%, #%$, *&&%$&,
"4, $/%, '<#+, *$, $/%, %#+, "4, $/%,
*77"<#$0#:,@%(0"+R
,,,
J&#$3*#&*#B$*0::&5"#3
)/07/, :03%, &<@@"($0#:, +%$*0B&,
*#+, *#*B.&0&, 7"#7%(#0#:, $/%,
7"#$%#$&, "4, $/%, *77"<#$&U,
$":%$/%(, )0$/, 0#4"(1*$0"#, "#,
$/%,%&$*-B0&/1%#$,"4,$/%,'<#+U,
0$&, 1%1-%(&/0@, *#+, *7$<*(0*B,
@"&0$0"#R

0:#5'9%'(*I'(5'#%&"

MRN, ?&, (%X<0(%+, -., $/%,
f"7*B, 6"3%(#1%#$, >%#&0"#,
;7/%1%, 2%:<B*$0"#&, IHHL, *#,
*7$<*(0*B,3*B<*$0"#,"4,$/%,'<#+,
)*&,7*((0%+,"<$,*&,*$,JM,9*(7/,
IHHOR,G/%,1*(=%$,3*B<%,"4, $/%,
'<#+D&,*&&%$&,*$, $/%, 3*B<*$0"#,
+*$%, )*&, eIUMLN, 10BB0"#R, G/%,
*7$<*(.,/*&,%&$01*$%+,$/*$,$/%,
3*B<%,"4,$/%,'<#+,)*&,&<4W70%#$,
$", 1%%$, LJY, "4, 0$&, %]@%7$%+,
4<$<(%, B0*-0B0$0%&, 0#, (%&@%7$, "4,
&%(307%, 7"1@B%$%+, $", 9*(7/,
IHHOR

MRE, G/%, +%W70$, (%7"3%(.,
@%(0"+, 0&, 7<((%#$B., &%$, *$, *,
1*]01<1,"4,IH,.%*(&R,

MRK, G/%, IHHO, *7$<*(0*B,
3*B<*$0"#,)*&,7*((0%+,"<$,<&0#:,
$/%, @("g%7$%+, <#0$, *7$<*(0*B,
1%$/"+R,G/%,1*0#,*&&<1@$0"#&U,
"#, $/%, -*&0&, "4, )/07/, $/%,
%1@B".%(D&, 7"#$(0-<$0"#&, *(%,
&%$U,*(%,*&,&%$,"<$,-%B")m

2'3#*;$91%:$ 45#59$*;$91%:$
2*$%,"4,S0&7"<#$ KROEY,@%(,*##<1,_@(%,(%$0(%1%#$`

ERKY,@%(,*##<1,_@"&$,(%$0(%1%#$`
KREY,@%(,*##<1

2*$%,"4,@%#&0"#*-B%,@*.,0#[*$0"# NRJEY,@%(,*##<1 NRHY,@%(,*##<1
2*$%,"4,@(07%,0#[*$0"# JRMY,@%(,*##<1 IRLY,@%(,*##<1

Page 97



O'3%3*&+*29$='9'#%&"

IRM, C]7%@$,)/%(%,"$/%()0&%,
&$*$%+U,$/%,*77"<#$&,/*3%,-%%#,
@(%@*(%+,"#,*#,*77(<*B&,-*&0&U,
0R%R, 0#7"1%,*#+,%]@%#+0$<(%, 0&,
(%7":#0&%+, *&, 0$, 0&, %*(#%+, "(,
0#7<((%+U,#"$,*&,0$,0&,(%7%03%+,"(,
@*0+R,G/%,*77"<#$&,/*3%,-%%#,
@(%@*(%+, "#, *, :"0#:, 7"#7%(#,
-*&0&R

!"1$3#7$"#3*

IRI, A#3%&$1%#$&, *(%, &/")#,
0#,$/%,*77"<#$&,*$,1*(=%$,3*B<%U,
)/07/,/*&,-%%#,+%$%(10#%+,*&,
4"BB")&m

0R, p<"$%+, ;%7<(0$0%&,
/*3%, -%%#, 3*B<%+, *$,
JM, 9*(7/, IHMH, -., $/%,
'<#+D&, 7<&$"+0*#, <&0#:,
0#$%(#*$0"#*BB., (%7":#0&%+,
@(070#:, &"<(7%&, _-0+^@(07%,
"(, jB*&$, $(*+%D`, )/%(%, *,
X<"$*$0"#, )*&, *3*0B*-B%,
"#, *, (%7":#0&%+, &$"7=,
%]7/*#:%, "(, $/%, <#B0&$%+,
&%7<(0$0%&, 1*(=%$R,
V#X<"$%+, &%7<(0$0%&, *(%,
0#7B<+%+,*$,4*0(,3*B<%R

00R, '0]%+, 0#$%(%&$, &%7<(0$0%&,
%]7B<+%, 0#$%(%&$, %*(#%+,
-<$, #"$, @*0+, "3%(, *$,
$/%, .%*(, %#+U, )/07/, 0&,
0#7B<+%+,&%@*(*$%B.,)0$/0#,
0#3%&$1%#$,+%-$"(&R

000R, >""B%+, 0#3%&$1%#$&, *(%,
&$*$%+, *$, $/%0(, -0+, @(07%,

"(,*$, $/%,F%$,?&&%$,c*B<%,
X<"$%+,-.,$/%0(,(%&@%7$03%,
1*#*:%(&, *$, JM, 9*(7/,
IHMHR,

03R, A#3%&$1%#$&, /%B+, 0#,
4"(%0:#, 7<((%#70%&, *(%,
&/")#, *$, 1*(=%$, 3*B<%,
$(*#&B*$%+, 0#$", &$%(B0#:, *$,
$/%,%]7/*#:%,(*$%&,(<B0#:,
*&,*$,JM,9*(7/,IHMHR

3R, i@%#, 4<$<(%&, 7"#$(*7$&,
*(%, 0#7B<+%+, 0#, $/%, #%$,
*&&%$, &$*$%1%#$, *$, $/%0(,
4*0(, 1*(=%$, 3*B<%U, )/07/,
0&, $/%, <#(%*B0&%+, @("W$,
"(, B"&&, *$, $/%, 7<((%#$, -0+,
"(, "44%(, 1*(=%$, X<"$%+,
@(07%, "4, $/%, 7"#$(*7$R,
G/%, *1"<#$&, 0#7B<+%+,
0#, $/%, 7/*#:%, 0#, 1*(=%$,
3*B<%, *(%, $/%, (%*B0&%+,
:*0#&,"(,B"&&%&,"#,7B"&%+,
4<$<(%&, 7"#$(*7$&, *#+, $/%,
<#(%*B0&%+,:*0#&,"(,B"&&%&,
"#,"@%#,4<$<(%&,7"#$(*7$&R

30R, '"()*(+,4"(%0:#,%]7/*#:%,
7"#$(*7$&, "<$&$*#+0#:, *$,
$/%, .%*(, %#+, *(%, &$*$%+,
*$, 4*0(, 3*B<%, )/07/, 0&,
+%$%(10#%+, *&, $/%, :*0#,
"(, B"&&,$/*$,)"<B+,*(0&%, 04,
$/%, "<$&$*#+0#:, 7"#$(*7$,
)*&,1*$7/%+, *$, $/%, .%*(,
%#+, )0$/, *#, %X<*B, *#+,
"@@"&0$%,7"#$(*7$R

300R, ?7X<0&0$0"#, 7"&$&, "4,
0#3%&$1%#$&, _%R:R, &$*1@,
+<$.`, *(%, $(%*$%+, *&, @*($,
"4,$/%,0#3%&$1%#$,7"&$R

3000R, ?++0$0"#*B, c"B<#$*(.,
!"#$(0-<$0"#&, <&%+, $",
*7X<0(%, 1"#%., @<(7/*&%,
-%#%W$&, -., &7/%1%,
1%1-%(&,*(%,#"$,0#7B<+%+,
0#, $/%, '<#+D&, W#*#70*B,
&$*$%1%#$&R

0]R, A#3%&$1%#$, +%-$"(&, *#+,
7(%+0$"(&, *$, $/%, .%*(, %#+,
*(%,0#7B<+%+,0#,0#3%&$1%#$,
*&&%$&,0#,*77"(+*#7%,)0$/,
$/%,>%#&0"#&,;i2>R,

MRO,, G/%, ?7$<*(., /*&,
%&$01*$%+,$/*$,$/%,4<#+0#:,B%3%B,
*&,*$,JM,9*(7/,IHMH,0&,*("<#+,
LHYR, G/0&, %&$01*$%, $*=%&, 0#$",
*77"<#$, $/%, *##"<#7%1%#$, 0#,
$/%, II, h<#%, IHMH, C1%(:%#7.,
T<+:%$, $/*$, @<-B07, &%7$"(,
@%#&0"#, @*.1%#$&, )0BB, -%,
B0#=%+, $", $/%, !"#&<1%(, >(07%,
A#+%], (*$/%(, $/*#, $/%, 2%$*0B,
>(07%, A#+%], 0#, $/%, 4<$<(%R,G/0&,
7/*#:%, (%+<7%&, $/%, '<#+D&,
B0*-0B0$0%&, -., *#, %&$01*$%+, E,
^, LY, )/07/, "44&%$U, $", &"1%,
%]$%#$U, $/%,#%:*$03%, 01@*7$,"#,
$/%,4<#+0#:, B%3%B,"4, B")%(,$/*#,
%]@%7$%+, 0#3%&$1%#$, (%$<(#&,
&0#7%,$/%,IHHO,3*B<*$0"#R

G/%,IHMH, $(0%##0*B,3*B<*$0"#, 0&,
7<((%#$B.,-%0#:,<#+%($*=%#,*#+,
)0BB,-%,7*B7<B*$%+,<&0#:,3*B<%&,
*#+,1%1-%(&/0@,+*$*,*&,*$,JM,
9*(7/, IHMHR, G/0&, )0BB, &%$, $/%,
%1@B".%(, 7"#$(0-<$0"#, (*$%&,
)0$/,%44%7$,4("1,M,?@(0B,IHMMR

MRL, G/%, '<#+D&, '<#+0#:,
;$(*$%:., ;$*$%1%#$, 7*#, -%,
4"<#+, "#, $/%, '<#+D&, )%-&0$%,
_)))R*3"#@%#&0"#4<#+R"(:R<=`,
"(,&<@@B0%+,"#,(%X<%&$,4("1,f0l,
'%0#&$%0#U,A#3%&$1%#$&,i4W7%(R

;#'#$7$"#*&+*!"1$3#7$"#*
29%":%=($3

MRP, G/%, '<#+D&, ;$*$%1%#$,
"4, A#3%&$1%#$, >(0#70@B%&,
*&, (%X<0(%+, -., $/%, f"7*B,
6"3%(#1%#$, >%#&0"#, ;7/%1%,
_9*#*:%1%#$, *#+, A#3%&$1%#$,
"4,'<#+&`,2%:<B*$0"#&,IHHP,7*#,
-%,4"<#+,"#,$/%,'<#+D&,)%-&0$%,
_)))R*3"#@%#&0"#4<#+R"(:R<=`,
"(,&<@@B0%+,"#,(%X<%&$,4("1,f0l,
'%0#&$%0#U,A#3%&$1%#$&,i4W7%(R

;$*$%1%#$,"4,
?77"<#$0#:,
>"B070%&,

>R 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 98



>D01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

A&"#9%,5#%&"3
*
IRJ, !"#$(0-<$0"#&, (%@(%&%#$,
$/"&%, *1"<#$&, (%7%03*-B%,
4("1, $/%, %1@B".0#:, -"+0%&,
0#, (%&@%7$, "4, $/%0(, ")#, *#+,
$/%0(, @%#&0"#*-B%, %1@B".%%&D,
7"#$(0-<$0"#&R, C1@B".%(&D,
7"#$(0-<$0"#&, *(%, +%$%(10#%+,
-., $/%, ?7$<*(., "#, $/%, -*&0&,
"4, $(0%##0*B, 3*B<*$0"#&, "4, $/%,
'<#+D&,*&&%$&,*#+,B0*-0B0$0%&,*#+,
$*=%, 0#$", *77"<#$, $/%, '<#+0#:,
;$(*$%:., ;$*$%1%#$, &%$, -.,
$/%, *+10#0&$%(0#:, *<$/"(0$.R,
C1@B".%%&D, 7"#$(0-<$0"#&,
/*3%, -%%#, 0#7B<+%+, *$, $/%,
(*$%&, @(%&7(0-%+, -., $/%, f"7*B,
6"3%(#1%#$, >%#&0"#, ;7/%1%,
_T%#%W$&U, 9%1-%(&/0@, *#+,
!"#$(0-<$0"#&`, 2%:<B*$0"#&,
IHHOR,

O$"$M#3_*C$+5"63*&+*
A&"#9%,5#%&"3*'"6*A'3B*
U9'"3+$9*I'(5$3
*
IRN, T%#%W$&, @*.*-B%, *#+,
(%4<#+&, "4, 7"#$(0-<$0"#&, /*3%,
-%%#,-("<:/$,0#$",$/%,*77"<#$&,
*&,$/%.,4*BB,+<%R

IRE, !*&/,G(*#&4%(,c*B<%&,*(%,
$/"&%,&<1&,@*0+,$","(,(%7%03%+,
4("1, "$/%(, @%#&0"#, &7/%1%&,
*#+, (%B*$%, $", @(%30"<&, @%(0"+&,
"4, @%#&0"#*-B%, %1@B".1%#$R,
!*&/, G(*#&4%(, c*B<%&, /*3%,
-%%#, 0#7B<+%+, 0#, $/%, *77"<#$&,
"#, $/%, -*&0&, "4, $/%, 7/%X<%,
@*.1%#$,+*$%,"(,aT*$/,8,F"($/,
C*&$, ;"1%(&%$, !"<#70B, 7*&/,
"4W7%, (%7%03%+b, +*$%R,?77(<*B&,
*(%,"#B.,1*+%,)/%#,0$,0&,7%($*0#,
$/*$,*,$(*#&4%(,0&,$",$*=%,@B*7%R,

!"1$3#7$"#*!":&7$
,
IRK, S030+%#+&, *#+, 0#$%(%&$,
/*3%, -%%#, *77"<#$%+, 4"(, "#,
*#, *77(<*B&, -*&0&R, A#7"1%,
"#, @""B%+, 0#3%&$1%#$&, 0&,
*77<1<B*$%+, *#+, (%[%7$%+, 0#,
$/%,3*B<*$0"#,"4,$/%,<#0$&R,

!"1$3#7$"#*8'"'<$7$"#*f*
067%"%3#9'#%&"
*
IRO, G/%, f"7*B, 6"3%(#1%#$,
>%#&0"#,;7/%1%,_9*#*:%1%#$,
*#+, A#3%&$1%#$, "4, '<#+&`,
2%:<B*$0"#&, IHHP, @%(10$, T*$/,
8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B,
$", 7/*(:%, *+10#0&$(*$0"#, 7"&$&,
$", $/%, '<#+R, ?, @("@"($0"#, "4,
(%B%3*#$, !"<#70B, 7"&$&, /*&,
-%%#, 7/*(:%+, $", $/%, '<#+, "#,
$/%, -*&0&, "4, *7$<*B, $01%, &@%#$,
"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,-<&0#%&&R,

IRL, G/%, 4%%&, "4, $/%, '<#+D&,
%]$%(#*B, 0#3%&$1%#$, 1*#*:%(&,
(%[%7$,$/%0(,+044%(0#:,1*#+*$%&R,
'%%&, *(%, B0#=%+, $", $/%, 1*(=%$,
3*B<%,"4,$/%,'<#+D&,0#3%&$1%#$&,
*#+, $/%(%4"(%, 1*., 0#7(%*&%,
"(, (%+<7%, *&, $/%, 3*B<%, "4, $/%,
0#3%&$1%#$, 7/*#:%&R, '%%&,
*(%,*B&",@*.*-B%, $", $/%,'<#+D&,
:B"-*B, 7<&$"+0*#, *#+, "$/%(,
*+30&"(&R,

U'W'#%&",

IRP, G/%, '<#+, 0&, *#, %]%1@$,
*@@("3%+, 4<#+, <#+%(, $/%,
A#7"1%,*#+,!"(@"(*$0"#,G*]%&,
?7$, MPLL, *#+, 0&, $/%(%4"(%, #"$,
B0*-B%, $", 7%($*0#, Vd, 0#7"1%,
$*], "#, 0#3%&$1%#$, 0#7"1%, "(,
$",7*@0$*B,:*0#&, $*]R,?&,T*$/,8,
F"($/, C*&$, ;"1%(&%$, !"<#70B,
0&, $/%, *+10#0&$%(0#:, *<$/"(0$.,
4"(, $/%, '<#+U, c?G, 0#@<$, $*],
0&, (%7"3%(*-B%, "#, *BB, '<#+,
*7$030$0%&, 0#7B<+0#:, %]@%#+0$<(%,
"#, 0#3%&$1%#$, %]@%#&%&R, '"(,
$*]*$0"#,"4,"3%(&%*&,0#3%&$1%#$,
0#7"1%,@B%*&%,&%%,#"$%,J,03R,0#,
$/%,F"$%&,$",?77"<#$&R

Page 99



F"$%& /..DEF. IHHLQHP
A&"#9%,5#%&"3*'"6*O$"$M#3 cd... eDHHH
!"#$(0-<$0"#&,2%7%03*-B% N MJNUKLM MIEUJNP
G(*#&4%(&,A# MNUPJN MNUMML
i$/%(,A#7"1% E JKM IOI

F@D_DQN MJPUOJP
6("&&,T%#%W$&,>*.*-B% K MIMUIJI MMMUMKM
f%&&,T%#%W$&,2%7/*(:%+,$",C1@B".%(& O _KUMJM` _EUPEO`

FFG_F.F MHEUIHN
>*.1%#$&,$",*#+,"#,*77"<#$,"4,f%*3%(& O MNUKML PUIEP
?+10#0&$(*$03%,C]@%#&%& L IUJNH IUIEN

F>/_.GD MMKUOMO

J$#*066%#%&"3*+9&7*6$'(%"<3*Y%#B*7$7,$93 FQ_DFQ IJUHII,

C$#59"3*&"*!"1$3#7$"#3
A#3%&$1%#$,A#7"1%, MH MKUHMN MPULNO,
!/*#:%,0#,9*(=%$,c*B<%,"4,A#3%&$1%#$& MM KMIUNJE _JPKUNJJ`
A#3%&$1%#$,9*#*:%1%#$,C]@%#&%&, P _KULKH` _EUHIH`
J$#*C$#59"3*&"*!"1$3#7$"#3* N/F_GRD _JLMUKHK`
J$#*!":9$'3$*%"*#B$*45"6*659%"<*#B$*)$'9 N>D_G.N _JELUELN`

J$#*033$#3*&+*#B$*45"6*
0#*F*0=9%( F_RFD_.R/ IUMOOUKKK
0#*>F*8'9:B /_@GR_GRR MULMPUHLI

@. 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

'<#+,?77"<#$
'"(,5%*(,C#+%+,
JM,9*(7/,IHMH,

Page 100



@F01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

F"$%& >F*8'9:B*
/.F.

JM,9*(7/,
IHHP

!JIV;U8VJU*0;;VU; cd... \ eDHHH Y
'0]%+,0#$%(%&$,&%7<(0$0%&,m,><-B07,;%7$"( F>@_DDD G[G PKUJEK ERJ
CX<0$0%& /@F_/N@ D[R MKOULKO PRI
A#+%],f0#=%+,&%7<(0$0%&,m,><-B07,;%7$"( F@Q_@R> N[. MHOUHLK ERP
>""B%+,0#3%&$1%#$,3%/07B%&,m^,,,,,
,,>("@%($. F./_QF> @[/ ^ HRH
,,i$/%(,_A#7B<+0#:,\%+:%,'<#+&` F_Q@N_GQ> QF[. MUIOJULHM OHRH
S%(03*$03%,!"#$(*7$&m,'G;C,'<$<(%& FG/ .[. OIJ HRH
!*&/,+%@"&0$& N>_.@/ /[G MJMUIJM ORI
i$/%(,,A#3%&$1%#$,-*B*#7%& @_FG. .[/ JUNEE HRI
!JIV;U8VJU*P!0O!P!U!V;
S%(03*$03%,7"#$(*7$&,_'"(%0:#,C]7/*#:%,/%+:%` . .[. _EK` HRH
i$/%(,,A#3%&$1%#$,-*B*#7%& SQ>RT .[. _MUMJH` _HRH`
ULU0P*!JIV;U8VJU*0;;VU; MI /_@>D_N>D MUOOPUJJJ

J$#*A599$"#*033$#3
!<((%#$,?&&%$& MJ /F_F@D .[D NHUILE IRI
!<((%#$,f0*-0B0$0%& MJ S/_/..T S.[FT _EJK` HRH
ULU0P*JVU*0;;VU; /_@GR_GRR F.. MULMPUHLI MHH

F%$,?&&%$&,
;$*$%1%#$,*$,
JM,9*(7/,IHMH

G/%,'<#+D&,W#*#70*B,&$*$%1%#$&,+",#"$,$*=%,*77"<#$,"4,B0*-0B0$0%&,$",@*.,@%#&0"#&,*#+,"$/%(,-%#%W$&,
*4$%(,JM,9*(7/,IHMHR,

J&"K'6`53#%"<*=&3#*,'('":$*3B$$#*$1$"#3
,
A$,)*&,*##"<#7%+,0#,$/%,T<+:%$,"#,II,h<#%,IHMH,$/*$,4("1,?@(0B,IHMM,$/%,6"3%(#1%#$,0#$%#+&,$",
*+"@$,$/%,!"#&<1%(,>(07%,A#+%],_!>A`,0#,@B*7%,"4,$/%,(%$*0B,@(07%,0#+%],_2>A`U,4"(,$/%,0#+%]*$0"#,"4,
@<-B07,&%(307%,@%#&0"#&R,!"#&%X<%#$B.,4<$<(%,@%#&0"#&,0#7(%*&%&,<#+%(,$/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,*(%,
%]@%7$%+,$",-%,&B0:/$B.,B")%(R,G/0&,7/*#:%,0&,%&$01*$%+,$",(%+<7%,-%#%W$,"-B0:*$0"#&,-.,-%$)%%#,EY,
*#+,LYR,

Page 101



F"$%&,$",
?77"<#$&,^,5%*(,
C#+%+,JM,9*(7/,
IHMH

@/ 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

F_*?VJVC0P*

G/%, '<#+, 0&, *+10#0&$%(%+, -., T*$/, 8, F"($/, C*&$, ;"1%(&%$, !"<#70B, <#+%(, *((*#:%1%#$&, 1*+%,
4"BB")0#:,$/%,*-"B0$0"#,"4,$/%,4"(1%(,?3"#,!"<#$.,!"<#70B,"#,JM,9*(7/,MPPKR,

G/%,'<#+,0&,:"3%(#%+,-.,$/%,f"7*B,6"3%(#1%#$,>%#&0"#,;7/%1%,2%:<B*$0"#&,IHHL,_*&,*1%#+%+`R,
9%1-%(&/0@,"4,$/%,'<#+,0&,"@%#,$",@%#&0"#*-B%,%1@B".%%&,"4,&7/%+<B%+,-"+0%&,0#,$/%,4"(1%(,?3"#,
!"<#$.,*(%*U,$":%$/%(,)0$/,%1@B".%%&,"4,*+10$$%+,-"+0%&U,*,B0&$,"4,)/07/,7*#,-%,4"<#+,0#,#"$%,MLR

C1@B".%(&D,7"#$(0-<$0"#&,*(%,@*.*-B%,*$,$/%,(*$%,&@%70W%+,4"(,%*7/,%1@B".0#:,*<$/"(0$.,-.,$/%,'<#+D&,
*7$<*(.R, G/%, %1@B".%%&D, 7"#$(0-<$0"#, (*$%, 0&, @*.*-B%, 0#, *77"(+*#7%,)0$/, $/%, f"7*B,6"3%(#1%#$,
>%#&0"#,;7/%1%,_T%#%W$&U,9%1-%(&/0@,*#+,!"#$(0-<$0"#&`,2%:<B*$0"#&,IHHOR,

/_*8V8OVC;b!2**

9%1-%(&/0@,"4,$/%,'<#+,*$,$/%,.%*(^%#+,)*&,*&,4"BB")&m^

>_*U0g0U!LJ

%[* I'(5$*066$6*U'W*
, G/%,'<#+D&,*+10#0&$%(0#:,*<$/"(0$.,T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B,0&,(%01-<(&%+,c?G,,
, -.,\R,9R,2%3%#<%,*#+,!<&$"1&,*#+,$/%,*77"<#$&,*(%,&/")#,%]7B<&03%,"4,c?GR,

%%[* !":&7$*U'W*
, G/%,'<#+,0&,*,)/"BB.,%]%1@$,4<#+,*#+,&"1%,Vd,0#7"1%,$*],0&,(%7"3%(*-B%,4("1,$/%,A#B*#+,,
, 2%3%#<%R,Z/%(%,$*],7*#,-%,(%7B*01%+U,0#3%&$1%#$,0#7"1%,0#,$/%,*77"<#$&,0&,&/")#,:("&&,,
, "4,Vd,$*]R,

%%%[* A'=%#'(*?'%"3*U'W
, F",7*@0$*B,:*0#&,$*],0&,7/*(:%*-B%R

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP
C1@B".%+,9%1-%(& >@_R.. JEUIKN,
>%#&0"#%(&, /F_>F> ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,IHUJKM,
9%1-%(&,%#$0$B%+,$",S%4%((%+,T%#%W$&, /@_G@@ ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,IIUEOP,
ULU0P* R._NGQ OLUIHN

Page 102



@>01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP
V7=(&)$93d*"&97'(*:&"#9%,5#%&"3 cd... eDHHH
;7/%+<B%+,T"+0%&, R@_>D@ OLUJNI
?+10$$%+,T"+0%&, Q_GN@ DF_DGR OUIOM LEUKMJ

V7=(&)$93d*:&"#9%,5#%&"3*K*05<7$"#'#%&"
;7/%+<B%+,T"+0%& >_G@R IUMHK
?+10$$%+,T"+0%& RF@ @_>N/ NKL, IUEON

V7=(&)$93d*]$M:%#*45"6%"<
?+10$$%+,T"+0%& /@F /@F NEJ NEJ

8$7,$93d*"&97'(*:&"#9%,5#%&"3*
;7/%+<B%+,T"+0%&, >>_GR/ JIUJLI
?+10$$%+,T"+0%&, >_GDG >Q_FQQ JUNLE JEULKO

8$7,$93d*'66$6*)$'93*:&"#9%,5#%&"3*
;7/%+<B%+,T"+0%&, D.F LHM,
?+10$$%+,T"+0%&, @/ D@> NM, LNI,

U&#'( F>@_NRF MIEUJNP

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP
cd... eDHHH

2%7"3%(0%&,4"(,&%(307%&,@("30+%+ >GN IKP
!"&$,(%7"3%(0%& G J

>NF IOI

%1[* U'W'#%&"*&+*L1$93$'3*!"1$3#7$"#*!":&7$,
, G/%,'<#+,(%7%03%&,0#$%(%&$,"#,0$&,"3%(&%*&,:"3%(#1%#$,-"#+,@"($4"B0",:("&&U,-<$,*,3*(0%$.,,
, "4,*((*#:%1%#$&,*@@B.,$",$/%,$*]*$0"#,"4,0#$%(%&$,"#,7"(@"(*$%,-"#+&,*#+,+030+%#+&,"#,, ,
, "3%(&%*&,%X<0$0%&R

@_*ALJUC!OhU!LJ;*CVAV!I0OPV*

!"#$(0-<$0"#&,(%7%03*-B%,*(%,*#*B.&%+,-%B")m^,

G/%,*++%+,.%*(&,7"#$(0-<$0"#&,*-"3%,(%@(%&%#$,1%1-%(&D,@<(7/*&%,"4,*++%+,.%*(&,"(,*++0$0"#*B,
-%#%W$&,<#+%(,$/%,;7/%1%R,

?,4<($/%(,4*70B0$.,0&,@("30+%+,)/%(%-.,1%1-%(&,7*#,1*=%,?++0$0"#*B,c"B<#$*(.,!"#$(0-<$0"#&U,"#,*,
1"#%.,@<(7/*&%,-*&0&U,)/07/,*(%,0#3%&$%+,0#,0#&<(*#7%,@"B070%&,)0$/,G/%,CX<0$*-B%,f04%,?&&<(*#7%,
;"70%$.,"(,'(0%#+&,>("30+%#$,"#,-%/*B4,"4,$/%,0#+030+<*B,1%1-%(&,7"#7%(#%+R,G/%&%,7"#$(0-<$0"#&,
*(%,#"$,@*($,"4,$/%,>%#&0"#,'<#+,*#+,*(%,#"$,$/%(%4"(%,(%[%7$%+,0#,$/%,'<#+D&,*77"<#$&R,?,&$*$%1%#$,
"4,$/%,3*B<%,"4,$/%&%,0#3%&$1%#$&,0&,:03%#,0#,F"$%,MKR,

G_*LUbVC*!JAL8V*

j2%7"3%(0%&, 4"(, &%(307%&, @("30+%+D, (%4%(&, $", *+10#0&$(*$03%, *#+, *77"<#$0#:, &%(307%&, @("30+%+, $",
%1@B".0#:,-"+0%&R

Page 103



@@ 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP

cd... eDHHH
2%$0(%1%#$,>%#&0"#&, LKUHMK OPULOP
V#4<#+%+,>%#&0"#&, KUMJM D/_F@Q EUPEO LEULJK,

!"11<$*$0"#,"4,@%#&0"#&,*#+,f<1@,;<1,
2%$0(%1%#$,T%#%W$&,

IKUEJK
*****

IIUINL
,,,,,

f<1@,;<1,S%*$/,T%#%W$&, IUENP JUHOO
/D_.RG IEUJIE
F/F_/>/ MMMUMKM,

N_*OVJV4!U;*20e0OPV*

.'"/0#(#+*1+2%*##+3!'!4)#+5"0"6/!+60+708!9:

.'"/0#(#+*1+2%*##+3!'!4)#+5"0"6/!+60+;<8/*0('&+3*=09:

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP

cd... eDHHH
;7/%+<B%+,8,2%&"B<$0"#,T"+0%& FF>_F/N MHNUINP

?+10$$%+,T"+0%& R_F.N KUPMI,
F/F_/>/* MMMUMKM,

Q_*OVJV4!U;*CVAb0C?V]*UL*V82PLeVC;*

T%#%W$&,(%7/*(:%+,0#7B<+%,*BB,@%#&0"#,@*.1%#$&,)0$/,(%:*(+,$",*++%+,.%*(,-%#%W$&,*)*(+%+,-.,$/%,
C1@B".%(,$",f6>;,1%1-%(&U,0#7B<+0#:,(%B*$%+,@%#&0"#,0#7(%*&%&U,*#+,@%#&0"#,0#7(%*&%&,0#,(%&@%7$,
"4,7%($*0#,-"+0%&,)0$/,#",@%#&0"#*-B%,%1@B".%%&, 0#, $/%,'<#+R,G/%(%,*(%,*B&",*,&1*BB,#<1-%(,"4,
"$/%(,@%#&0"#,&<@@B%1%#$&,)/07/,*(%,(%7/*(:%+,*#+,0#7B<+%+,0#,$/%,W:<(%&,-%B")R

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP

cd... eDHHH
O$"$M#3*C$:B'9<$6* *************N_F>F ,,,,,,,,,,,EUPEO,,

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP

P$'1$93 cd... eDHHH
2%4<#+&,$",1%1-%(&,B%*30#:,&%(307%, *******************QQ* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,MML,
A#+030+<*B,!*&/,G(*#&4%(,c*B<%&,$","$/%(,&7/%1%&, F@_G@F PUMNM
T<B=,!*&/,G(*#&4%(& K************************** ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,^,,,

F@_NFR ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,PUIEP,

G/%(%,/*3%,-%%#,#",-<B=,$(*#&4%(&,+<(0#:,$/%,.%*(R

Page 104



@G01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

R_*0]8!J!;UC0U!LJ*Vg2VJ;V;**

!"&$&,0#7<((%+,0#,$/%,1*#*:%1%#$,*#+,*+10#0&$(*$0"#,"4,$/%,'<#+,*(%,&%$,"<$,-%B")R

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP

cd... eDHHH
?+10#0&$(*$0"#,*#+,@("7%&&0#:, F_NR. ,,,,,,,,,MUKNM,
?7$<*(0*B,4%%&, ***************FQR* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,INJ,
?<+0$,4%%&, ***************QF* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,OH,
f%:*B,*#+,@("4%&&0"#*B,4%%&, *****************F* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,M,
!%#$(*B,(%7/*(:%&,4("1,?+10#0&$%(0#:,?<$/"(0$. *************@F.* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,IPP,

/_>@. ,,,,,,,,,IUIEN,

D_*!JIV;U8VJU*Vg2VJ;V;***

C]@%#&%&,0#7<((%+,0#,$/%,1*#*:%1%#$,"4,$/%,'<#+,*(%,&%$,"<$,-%B")R

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP

cd... eDHHH
>"($4"B0",1*#*:%1%#$, N_@ND ,NULML
6B"-*B,7<&$"+., *******************Q@* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,KL,
A#3%&$1%#$,*+30&"(&, *********************FQF* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,JM,
>%(4"(1*#7%,1%*&<(%1%#$, *******************>>* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,JI,
A#3%&$1%#$,*77"<#$0#: *********************//* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,IN,
i$/%(,*+30&"(.,4%%&, *******************DF* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,NO,

N_RN. EUHIH,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

F._*!JIV;U8VJU*!JAL8V****

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP

cd... eDHHH
A#$%(%&$,4("1,W]%+,0#$%(%&$,&%7<(0$0%& ***********@_F>G**** ,,,,,,,,,,,NUOJM,,,,
S030+%#+&,4("1,%X<0$0%& N_/QG ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,EUKLK,
A#7"1%,4("1,A#+%],f0#=%+,&%7<(0$0%&, >_R@. ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,IUILI,
A#7"1%,4("1,@""B%+,0#3%&$1%#$,3%/07B%& F_GQ@ ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,MUMMN,
A#$%(%&$,"#,7*&/,+%@"&0$& FQ/ ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,KUHMI,
i$/%(,^,;$"7=,B%#+0#: FR***************** II
ULU0P* FN_.F@ MPULNO

G/%,'<#+,/*&,*#,*((*#:%1%#$,)0$/, 0$&,7<&$"+0*#, _?TF,?92i,9%BB"#`, $", B%#+,%B0:0-B%,&%7<(0$0%&,
4("1,0$&,@"($4"B0",$",$/0(+,@*($0%&,0#,(%$<(#,4"(,)/07/,$/%,$/0(+,@*($0%&,@*.,4%%&,$",$/%,4<#+R,G/%,$/0(+,
@*($0%&,@("30+%,7"BB*$%(*B,$",$/%,'<#+,)/07/,0&,/%B+,+<(0#:,$/%,@%(0"+,"4,$/%,B"*#R,G/0&,&$"7=,B%#+0#:,
@(":(*11%,)*&,0#$("+<7%+,)0$/,%44%7$,4("1,h<B.,IHHNR,

G/%,3*B<%,"4, $/%,&$"7=,"#, B"*#,*&,*$,JM,9*(7/,IHMH,)*&,ePRNI,10BB0"#, _JM,9*(7/,IHHP,eKIRMK,
10BB0"#`R,G/0&,)*&,&%7<(%+,-.,7"BB*$%(*B,)"($/,ePROJ,10BB0"#,7"1@(0&0#:,iC!S,&"3%(%0:#,+%-$R

Page 105



@N 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

c*B<%,*$
HMQHNQHP

><(7/*&%&
*$,!"&$

;*B%&
>("7%%+&

!/*#:%,0#
9*(=%$
c*B<%

I'(5$*'#
>FE.>EF.

eDHHH eDHHH eDHHH eDHHH cd...
Vd,'0]%+,A#$%(%&$,60B$& FG._RQR MIMUIHI _LIUPHM` _NUOKO` FR@_@F/
Vd,A#+%],f0#=%+,60B$& F.Q_.RN EJUMKN _MPULHH` OUHJJ F@Q_@R>
;$%(B0#:,T"#+& DN_FGN NMUMHJ _NLUHHH` JEUMKL F/@_@/Q
F"#^;$%(B0#:,T"#+& GR_N@/ MJUHHH H OHO Q/_>@D
CX<0$0%& F_.@._F@/ JHOULMO _JKEUHHN` ENEULOJ F_G/R_R/R
\%+:%,'<#+& FD/_D/R JMM H MPUOJN /F/_DQ>
>("@%($. . MJIUIIN _JIUJIO` IULMK F./_QF>

F_N@G_R>/ KKLULIM _ENLUHJI` KHKUEKN /_>Q>_FRG
!*&/,S%@"&0$& F>F_/>F _KLUOMP` EJH N>_.@/
A#3%&$1%#$,S%-$"(&Q
!(%+0$"(&

/_/Q. MUMNI >_@F/

U&#'(*!"1$3#7$"#*033$#3 F_QQD_>>> KKLULIM _KMKUOEM` KHLUIJK /_@>D_N>D
KKHUJHK

?+g<&$1%#$&,4"(,2%3%#<%U,
S%-$"(&,8,!(%+0$"(&

JPUONP _NOULOM` MLUPNP

U&#'(*J$#*033$#3 F_RFD_.R/ KMIUNJE /_@GR_GRR

FF_*!JIV;U8VJU;*

G/%,AB'"<$*%"*8'9-$#*I'(5$,"4,0#3%&$1%#$&,7"1@(0&%&,*BB,:*0#&,*#+,B"&&%&,"#,'<#+,0#3%&$1%#$&,
+<(0#:,$/%,.%*(U,)/%$/%(,(%*B0&%+,"(,<#(%*B0&%+R

G/%,AB'"<$*%"*8'9-$#*I'(5$,4"(,7*&/,+%@"&0$&,(%@(%&%#$&,:*0#&,"#,4"(%0:#,7<((%#7.,+%@"&0$&,*#+,
4"(%0:#,%]7/*#:%,$(*#&*7$0"#&,+<(0#:,$/%,.%*(R

!"1$3#7$"#*U9'"3':#%&"*A&3#3,$"$*BB0#:,eLJMUJJL,*(%,0#7B<+%+,0#,$/%,*-"3%R,G/%&%,7"#&0&$,"4,*#.,
4%%&U,7"110&&0"#&,"(,$*]%&,+<%,0#,(%:*(+,$",$(*#&*7$0"#&R,

Page 106



@Q01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP
h^*Va5%#%$3 cd... eDHHH
p<"$%+ FDF_QFR MINUILL
>""B%+,A#3%&$1%#$& @GN_Q.R NNMUOMI
'G;C,'<$<(%& FG/ N@R_GQR OIJ EKKUOIJ

L1$93$'3*Va5%#%$3
p<"$%+ @D_G@N ,,,,,,NJUEOP
>""B%+,A#3%&$1%#$& R>._Q.@ RR._/G. ,,,,NIPULNH, NOJUNMP

h^*4%W$6*!"#$9$3#*?%(#3
p<"$%+ F>@_DDD ,,,,,,PKUJEK,
>""B%+,A#3%&$1%#$& @D_@F> FR@_@F/ ,,,,,,ENUEII, MEHULOL

h^*!"6$W*P%"-$6*?%(#3
p<"$%+ F@Q_@R> ,,,,MHOUHLK,
>""B%+,A#3%&$1%#$& ***************K*** F@Q_@R> ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,^,,, MHOUHLK

;#$9(%"<*O&"63*S$W:(56%"<*?%(#3T
>""B%+,A#3%&$1%#$& F/@_@/Q F/@_@/Q PKUMEK PKUMEK

J&"K;#$9(%"<*O&"63
>""B%+,A#3%&$1%#$& Q/_>@R Q/_>@R ,,,,,,ELUKNI, ,,,,,,ELUKNI,

b$6<$*45"63
>""B%+,A#3%&$1%#$& /F/_DQ> /F/_DQ> MPIUPIL, MPIUPIL,

29&=$9#)
>""B%+,A#3%&$1%#$& F./_QF> F./_QF> ^ ^

A'3B*]$=&3%#3
;$%(B0#: G/_N/Q ,,,,MJHUPEJ,
'"(%0:#,!<((%#70%& F._@FG* N>_.@/ ,,,,,,,,,,,,IOL, MJMUIJM

!"1$3#7$"#*]$,#&93EA9$6%#&93
A#3%&$1%#$,A#7"1% >_/>F ,,,,,,,,IUKMO,
;*B%&,"4,A#3%&$1%#$& ********DFD* LJP
'"(%0:#,C]7/*#:%,\%+:% K _EK`
><(7/*&%&,"4,A#3%&$1%#$& SQ>QT >_@F> _MUMJH` IUIOH,
ULU0P*!JIV;U8VJU*0;;VU; /_@>D_N>D ,,MUOOPUJJJ,

F/_*!JIV;U8VJU*0;;VU;****

'<($/%(,*#*B.&0&,"4,$/%,1*(=%$,3*B<%,"4,0#3%&$1%#$&,*&,&%$,"<$,0#,$/%,F%$,?&&%$&,;$*$%1%#$,0&,:03%#,
-%B")m^

Page 107



@R 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

2LLPV]*!JIV;U8VJU;*0J0Pe;!; >F*8'9:B*/.F.
*cd...

29&=$9#)
V#0$,G(<&$& @>_N.R
V#0$0&%+,A#&<(*#7%,>"B070%& >>_.>@
i$/%(,9*#*:%+,'<#+& /N_.QF
J&"*29&=$9#)
V#0$0&%+,A#&<(*#7%,>"B070%& RQ>_.@.
i$/%(,9*#*:%+,'<#+& RQ>_G>>
ULU0P*2LLPV]*!JIV;U8VJU*0;;VU; F_R@D_/RN

]VC!I0U!IV;*0J0Pe;!;* >F*8'9:B*/.F.
*cd...

ai3%(,G/%,!"<#$%(b !

VW:B'"<$*U9'6$6
!"#$(*7$,G.@% C]@0(*$0"# T""=,!"&$ V#(%*B0&%+,6*0#
'G;C,'<$<(%& f%&&,$/*#,J,1"#$/& IHULLOUMLH MEIUMPE

?,+%(03*$03%, 0&,*,W#*#70*B,7"#$(*7$,-%$)%%#, $)",@*($0%&U, $/%,3*B<%,"4,)/07/, 0&,+%$%(10#%+,-., $/%,
<#+%(B.0#:,*&&%$R,A#3%&$1%#$,0#,+%(03*$03%&,1*.,"#B.,-%,1*+%,04,$/%.,7"#$(0-<$%,$",*,(%+<7$0"#,"4,
(0&=&,*#+,4*70B0$*$%,%4W70%#$,@"($4"B0",1*#*:%1%#$R

G/%,Vd,CX<0$., 4<$<(%&, 7"#$(*7$&, *(%, /%B+, $", 4*70B0$*$%, %4W70%#$, @"($4"B0",1*#*:%1%#$, 4"(, *, &/"($,
$%(1,@*&&03%B.,1*#*:%+,0#3%&$1%#$,)/%(%,$/%,7"&$&,"4,0#3%&$0#:,+0(%7$B.,0#,Vd,%X<0$0%&,)"<B+,-%,
&0:#0W7*#$R

'"()*(+,a"3%(,$/%,7"<#$%(b,4"(%0:#,%]7/*#:%,7"#$(*7$&,*(%,&"1%$01%&,/%B+,-.,"#%,"4,$/%,0#3%&$1%#$,
1*#*:%(&,$",%B010#*$%,$/%,01@*7$,"4,$/%,7<((%#7.,"#,$/%,&$%(B0#:,(%$<(#R

Page 108



@D01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP
cd... \ eDHHH Y

T*(7B*.&,6B"-*B,A#3%&$"(& F_@./_R>N GQ[G MUMIMUMOL KJRH,
!*@0$*B,A#$%(#*$0"#*B GQ .[.* MJH, H,
G/(%*+#%%+B%,>%#&0"#& @ .[.* JL, H,
Z%BB0#:$"#,9*#*:%1%#$,A#$%(#*$0"#*B FR .[.* II, H,
h<@0$%(,?&&%$,9*#*:%1%#$ D@_@GF >[D* KEUHKN JRK,
6%#%&0& F>._/FF G[> EMUPIJ IRP,
A#3%&7" FGR_//> N[G* MHPULPN KRI,
;$*$%,;$(%%$ RG_NQG >[G* ELUHKM JRJ,
>*($#%(& /N_F.. F[F* ^, H,
2".*B,f"#+"#,?&&%$,9*#*:%1%#$ F//_FRG G[.* PKUMEK ERN,
GG,A#$%(#*$0"#*B F/@_QGN G[F LIUPJO NRO,
9*#,A#3%&$1%#$& DG_.@Q >[D LLUNHP ERH,
6"$$%],?&&%$,9*#*:%1%#$ GF_/R. /[F* NNUOPP IRE,
;$%#/*1,?&&%$,9*#*:%1%#$ FF_G@@ .[G* MMUHHK HRK,
;0:#%$,!*@0$*B,9*#*:%1%#$ @G_/QD F[D JPUOHL IRI,
f.&$%(,Z*$&"#,9*#*:%1%#$ D_R/> .[@* PUHHK HRE,
;7/("+%(,A#3%&$1%#$,9*#*:%1%#$ QN_QDR >[F MUHHI HRM
T*#=,"4,F%),5"(=,9%BB"# G_>G/ .[/ ^ HRHH
ULU0P*!JIV;U8VJU*0;;VU;, /_@>D_N>D F..[.* MUOOPUJJJ MHHRH

G/%,@("@"($0"#,"4,$/%,1*(=%$,3*B<%,"4,0#3%&$1%#$,*&&%$&,1*#*:%+,-.,%*7/,%]$%(#*B,1*#*:%(,*$,$/%,
%#+,"4,$/%,W#*#70*B,.%*(,)*&m^

2%&0+<*B, 3*B<%&, /%B+, -., 4"(1%(, 9*#*:%(&, !*@0$*B, A#$%(#*$0"#*BU, G/(%*+#%%+B%, >%#&0"#&, *#+,
Z%BB0#:$"#,9*#*:%1%#$,A#$%(#*$0"#*B,(%B*$%,$",(%7B*01*-B%,$*]R,

Page 109



G. 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP
,]VOULC;* cd... eDHHH
T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B F._./Q IPUNLH,

!"#$(0-<$0"#&,2%7%03*-B%,,
,^,C1@B".%(&,, Q_/NQ KUMEI,
,^,9%1-%(&,, /_DRG IUEPJ,
,S0&7(%$0"#*(.,C*(B.,2%$0(%1%#$,!"&$&, @DR* L
,i$/%(,S%-$"(&,, >Q/ /F_F@D IUHEI,, NHUILE

,ACV]!ULC;,,
9*#*:%1%#$,'%%&,, S>D>T _NEN`
f<1@,;<1,2%$0(%1%#$,T%#%W$& SF_QF/T H
i$/%(,!(%+0$"(&,, SDGT S/_/..T _LI` _EJK`
JVU*AhCCVJU*0;;VU;,, FR_D@D ,,,,,,JPUONP,

F>_*]VOULC;*0J]*ACV]!ULC;*

>("30&0"#,/*&,-%%#,1*+%,0#,$/%,*77"<#$&,4"(,+%-$"(&,*#+,7(%+0$"(&,=#")#,$",-%,"<$&$*#+0#:,*$,JM,
9*(7/,IHMHR

S%-$"(&,*#+,7(%+0$"(&,0#7B<+%+,0#,$/%,*77"<#$&,*(%,*#*B.&%+,-%B")m^,

G/%,+%-$"(,)0$/,T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B,(%@(%&%#$&,1"#0%&,/%B+,-.,$/%,?+10#0&$%(0#:,
?<$/"(0$.,*#+,0&,$/%,&<(@B<&,"4,7"#$(0-<$0"#&,"3%(,@%#&0"#&R,G/0&,3*(0*#7%,)*&,/0:/,*$,JM,9*(7/,IHHP,
@%#+0#:,$/%,(%30%),"4,0#3%&$1%#$,&$(*$%:.,0#,IHHPR,?,#"(1*B,7"11%(70*B,(*$%,"4,0#$%(%&$,0&,@*0+,"#,
$/0&,1"#%.R

f<1@,;<1,2%$0(%1%#$,T%#%W$&, +<%,*&,*$, JM&$,9*(7/,IHMH,-<$, #"$, @*0+, /*3%,-%%#,*77(<%+, 0#,
*77"(+*#7%,)0$/,(%7"11%#+%+,@(*7$0&%R,A#,$/%,.%*(,%#+0#:,JM&$,9*(7/,IHHP,f<1@,;<1,2%$0(%1%#$,
T%#%W$&,)%(%,*77"<#$%+,4"(,"#,*,@*.1%#$&,-*&0&R,f<1@,;<1,2%$0(%1%#$,T%#%W$&,+<%,*&,*$,JM&$,
9*(7/,IHHP,-<$,#"$,*77(<%+,*&,+%-$"(&U,*1"<#$%+,$",eMUEHIUHHHR

F@_*ALJU!J?VJU*P!0O!P!U!V;**

G/%(%,)%(%,#",7"#$0#:%#$,B0*-0B0$0%&,*&,*$,JM,9*(7/,IHMHR,_9*(7/,IHHP,s,FAf`

FG_*UC0J;4VC;*!J**

G(*#&4%(&,A#,+<(0#:,$/%,.%*(,)%(%,*BB,0#,(%B*$0"#,$",0#+030+<*B&R,G/%(%,)%(%,#",:("<@,$(*#&4%(&,0#,$",
$/%,4<#+,+<(0#:,$/%,.%*(,%#+0#:,JM,9*(7/,IHMHR

FN_*0]]!U!LJ0P*ILPhJU0Ce*ALJUC!OhU!LJ;*S0IA3T**

;7/%1%,1%1-%(&, 1*.,1*=%,?++0$0"#*B, c"B<#$*(., !"#$(0-<$0"#&, $/*$, *(%, 0#3%&$%+, 0#, 0#&<(*#7%,
@"B070%&,)0$/,G/%,CX<0$*-B%,f04%,?&&<(*#7%,;"70%$.,"(,'(0%#+&,>("30+%#$U,$/%,'<#+D&,#"10#*$%+,?c!,
@("30+%(&R,?++0$0"#*B,c"B<#$*(.,!"#$(0-<$0"#&,(%7%03%+,4("1,%1@B".%%&,*#+,@*0+,$",G/%,CX<0$*-B%,
f04%, ?&&<(*#7%, ;"70%$., +<(0#:, IHHPQMH, )%(%, eOUJMP, _IHHLQHP, ^, eKUOLE`R, ?++0$0"#*B, c"B<#$*(.,
!"#$(0-<$0"#&,(%7%03%+,4("1,%1@B".%%&,*#+,@*0+,$",'(0%#+&,>("30+%#$,+<(0#:,IHHPQMH,)%(%,eEIOUKEE,
_IHHLQHP,^,eNMKUIKP`R

Page 110



GF01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

>F*8'9:B*/.F. JM,9*(7/,IHHP
cd... eDHHH

Va5%#',($*P%+$
Z0$/,>("W$&,2%$0(%1%#$,T%#%W$&, DFQ ,,,,,,MUHKO,
V#0$,f0#=%+,2%$0(%1%#$,T%#%W$&, *************@@D* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,JJJ,
T<0B+0#:,;"70%$.,T%#%W$&, *************>/Q* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,JOL,

****F_ND>* ,,,,,,,,,MUOOL,

S%*$/,0#,;%(307%,T%#%W$ **********/DN IPO

49%$"63*29&1%6$"#
Z0$/,>("W$&,2%$0(%1%#$,T%#%W$& *************/N>* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,ILN,
V#0$,f0#=%+,2%$0(%1%#$,T%#%W$& >_//Q ,,,,,,,,,IUEPH,
!*&/,'<#+ *************@R/* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,EHM,

>_DQ/ ,,,,,,,,,JUJOE,

G/%,$"$*B,3*B<%,"4,$/%,*&&%$&,0#3%&$%+U,"#,*,1"#%.,@<(7/*&%,-*&0&U,)0$/,$/%&%,?c!,@("30+%(&,)*&m^

?c!,0#3%&$1%#$&,*(%,#"$,0#7B<+%+,0#,$/%,'<#+D&,W#*#70*B,&$*$%1%#$&R

FQ_*CVP0UV]*20CU!V;

A#,IHHPQMH,eJKULPJ,)*&,7/*(:%+,$",$/%,'<#+,0#,(%&@%7$,"4,?BB")*#7%&,@*0+,$",$/%,3"$0#:,9%1-%(&,"4,
$/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,!"110$$%%,_eMLUNII,0#,IHHLQHP`R,G/%,0#7(%*&%,(%[%7$&,$/%,:(%*$%(,#<1-%(,
"4,9%1-%(&,%#$0$B%+,$",3"$%,"#,$/%,!"110$$%%R

G)", A#+%@%#+%#$,G(<&$%%&,)%(%,@*0+,*BB")*#7%&,"4,eNUOIK,*#+,eMHUJJI, (%&@%7$03%B.,+<(0#:, $/%,
.%*(,4"(,$/%0(,)"(=,0#,(%B*$0"#,$",$/%,>%#&0"#,'<#+,!"110$$%%,*#+,$/%,A#3%&$1%#$,@*#%BR,G/%.,*(%,
*B&",%#$0$B%+,$",7B*01,(%*&"#*-B%,%]@%#&%&R

'03%,3"$0#:,1%1-%(&,*#+,$/(%%,#"#,3"$0#:,1%1-%(&,"4,$/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,!"110$$%%,_0#7B<+0#:,
$/(%%, T8FC;, !"<#70BB"(, 9%1-%(&`, )%(%, 1%1-%(&, "4, $/%, f"7*B, 6"3%(#1%#$, >%#&0"#, ;7/%1%,
+<(0#:, $/%,W#*#70*B,.%*(,IHHPQIHMHR, _@<,--% )*%X]]djX]]^L%3((%GcHI1%&'"*#)((',%A-;F-,+`R,G/%,
0#7(%*&%,(%[%7$&,$/%,)0+%#0#:,"4,$/%,%#$0$B%1%#$,$",3"$%,"#,$/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,!"110$$%%R,G/%,
A#+%@%#+%#$,G(<&$%%&,*(%,#"$,%B0:0-B%,$",g"0#,$/%,f"7*B,6"3%(#1%#$,>%#&0"#,;7/%1%R

G/%(%,*(%,#","$/%(,(%B*$%+,@*($.,$(*#&*7$0"#&,%]7%@$,*&,*B(%*+.,+0&7B"&%+,%B&%)/%(%R

FR_*LhU;U0J]!J?*AL88!U8VJU;*

?&,*$,$/%,JM&$,9*(7/,IHMH,$/%,'<#+,/*+,"<$&$*#+0#:,7"110$1%#$&,(%B*$0#:,$",0#3%&$1%#$&,0#,@("@%($.,
$/*$,)0BB,-%,+(*)#,+")#,0#,$(*#7/%&,-.,$/%,A#3%&$1%#$,9*#*:%(&,$"$*BB0#:,eOJUHJNUNHIR

Page 111



FD_*V82PLe!J?*OL]!V;*

?&,*$,JM,9*(7/,IHMH,$/%,4"BB")0#:,%1@B".0#:,-"+0%&,/*+,&7/%1%,1%1-%(&,0#,$/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,
'<#+m

G/ 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

;:B$65($6*O&6%$3
29%":%='(*A&5":%(3*'"6*;$91%:$*29&1%6$93* V65:'#%&"*V3#',(%3B7$"#3
?3"#,!"<#$.,!"<#70B, T*$/,;@*,V#03%(&0$.,!"BB%:%,
?3"#,'0(%,T(0:*+% T(0&$"B,!*$/%+(*B,!/"0(,;7/""B
?3"#,9*:0&$(*$%&w,!"<($&,!"110$$%%, !*-"$,f%*(#0#:,'%+%(*$0"#
?3"#,>("-*$0"#,;%(307%, !0$.,?7*+%1.,T(0&$"B,
T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B, !0$.,"4,T*$/,!"BB%:%,
T(0&$"B,!0$.,!"<#70B, !0$.,"4,T(0&$"B,!"BB%:%,

F"($/,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B !"B&$"#,60(BD&,;7/""B,?7*+%1.
;"<$/,6B"<7%&$%(&/0(%,!"<#70B, '0B$"#,!"BB%:%

9%(7/*#$D&,?7*+%1.
i*&0&,?7*+%1.,T(0:/$&$")%

4&5"6'#%&"*;:B&&(3* i*&0&,?7*+%1.,T(0&$"B
T%%7/%#,!B044,;7/""B, F"($"#,2*+&$"7=,!"BB%:%,
\*.%&W%B+,;7/""B, ;$R,T(%#+*#w&,!"BB%:%,
iB+W%B+,;7/""B G/%,20+0#:&,'%+%(*$0"#,Z0#$%(-"<(#%

G/%,20+0#:&,'%+%(*$0"#,5*$%
V#03%(&0$.,"4,$/%,Z%&$,"4,C#:B*#+,
Z%&$"#,!"BB%:%

]$3%<"'#%"<*O&6%$3*
T*$/,G"<(0&1,>B<& 9*#:"$&W%B+,>*(0&/,!"<#70B
T*7=)%BB,>*(0&/,!"<#70B, F*0B&%*,G")#,!"<#70B,
T(*+B%.,;$"=%,G")#,!"<#70B, F"($"#,2*+&$"7=,G")#,!"<#70B,
!/*($%(,G(<&$%%&,"4,$/%,!0$.,"4,T*$/, iB+B*#+,>*(0&/,!"<#70B,
!B%3%+"#,G")#,!"<#70B >*$7/)*.,G")#,!"<#70B,
S%&$0#*$0"#,T(0&$"B >*<B$"#,>*(0&/,!"<#70B,
S"+0#:$"#,>*(0&/,!"<#70B, >"($0&/%*+,8,F"($/,Z%&$"#,G")#,!"<#70B,
S")#%#+,8,T("1B%.,\%*$/,>*(0&/,!"<#70B, ;*B$4"(+,>*(0&/,!"<#70B,
C*&$"#,0#,6"(+*#",>*(0&/,!"<#70B ;$"=%,6044"(+,>*(0&/,!"<#70B,
'0B$"#,G")#,!"<#70B, G/"(#-<(.,G")#,!"<#70B,
'(*1@$"#,!"$$%(%BB,>*(0&/,!"<#70B, Z%&$%(B%0:/,>*(0&/,!"<#70B
\*#/*1,>*(0&/,!"<#70B Z%&$"#,;<@%(,9*(%,G")#,!"<#70B,
\*#/*1,?--"$&,>*(0&/,!"<#70B Z/0$7/<(7/,>*(0&/,!"<#70B
d%.#&/*1,G")#,!"<#70B, Z0#$%(-"<(#%,>*(0&/,!"<#70B
f"#:,?&/$"#,>*(0&/,!"<#70B, 5*$%,G")#,!"<#70B

Page 112



G>01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

067%33%&"*O&6%$3*
?7$03%,!"11<#0$.,C#:*:%1%#$,f$+ 9"<7/%B,T<&0#%&&,;%(307%&,o
?:0#7*(%,f$+,o 9"<7/%B,T<&0#%&&,;%(307%&,f$+,_F*0B&%*,AG`,o
?X<*$%((*,f%0&<(%,f$+,o F"($/:*$%,A#4"(1*$0"#,;"B<$0"#&,o
?(*1*(=,f$+,o F"($/,;"1%(&%$,\"<&0#:
?&/B%.,\"<&%,\"&$%B, i44,G/%,2%7"(+,T*$/,8,F"($/,C*&$,;"1%(&%$,
T?9,!"#&$(<7$,Vd,f$+,_4"(,\%#-<(.,;7/""B`,o >("&@%7$,;%(307%&,f$+,o
T*$/,8FC,;"1%(&%$,2*70*B,CX<*B0$.,!"<#70B 29,S*$*,;"B<$0"#&
T%&@"=%,!B%*#0#:,o ;/*),\%*B$/7*(%,_F"($/,;"1%(&%$`,f$+,o
T(0&B0#:$"#,F%0:/-"<(/""+,!%#$(%, ;AG?,\"B+0#:&,Vd,f$+,o
G/%,!*(%,p<*B0$.,!"110&&0"# ;=*#&=*,_!*-"$,f%*(#0#:,'%+%(*$0"#`,o
!%#$(%,'"(,S%*4,>%"@B%, ;f9,!"11<#0$.,f%0&<(%,o
!/<(7/0BB,!"#$(*7$,;%(307%& ;f9,'0$#%&&,*#+,\%*B$/,o
!B04$"#,;<&@%#&0"#,T(0+:%,G(<&$, ;"1%(,!"11<#0$.,\"<&0#:,G(<&$,
!"11<#0$.,?7$0"#, ;"1%(,\"<&0#:,6("<@,f$+,
C+%#,'""+,;%(307%&,o ;"<$/,6B"<7%&$%(&/0(%,f%0&<(%,G(<&$,o
C#:B0&/,f*#+&7*@%&,o ;"<$/%(#,T(""=&,!"11<#0$.,>*($#%(&/0@
\"B-<(#%,9<&%<1,"4,?($ ;"<$/)%&$,6(0+,4"(,f%*(#0#:,G(<&$
A;;,9%+07B%*#,_T(0&$"B`,o ;G?,G(*3%B,o
A;;,9%+07B%*#,_!*-"$,f%*(#0#:,'%+%(*$0"#`,o G%*1,!B%*#,f$+,o
f%*(#0#:,>*($#%(&/0@,Z%&$,f010$%+ G/%,T(*#+"#,G(<&$,o
9*1*,T%*(&,T*-.,F<(&%(.,f$+ p<*+("#,;%(307%&,o
9%(B0#,\"<&0#:,;"70%$.,f$+ V#03%(&0$.,"4,T*$/
9%(B0#,\"<&0#:,;"70%$.,_;6` c0&0"#,F"($/,;"1%(&%$
9f?,;"<$/,Z%&$ Z%&$,"4,C#:B*#+,;@"($&,G(<&$
9"<7/%B,o 5%&,S0#0#:,f$+,o

o;7"@%,-"+0%&m,?,-"+.,$/*$,@("30+%&U,-.,1%*#&,"4,7"#$(*7$U,*,&%(307%,0#,*,7"##%7$0"#,)0$/,$/%,
%]%(70&%,"4,*,4<#7$0"#,"4,*,&7/%1%,%1@B".%(R

Page 113



]9'+#*#&*,$*9$=(':$6

G/%,;$*$%1%#$,"4,
2%&@"#&0-0B0$0%&,
4"(,$/%,?3"#,
>%#&0"#,'<#+,
?77"<#$&

O'#B*f*J&9#B*V'3#*;&7$93$#*
A&5":%(d3*9$3=&"3%,%(%#%$3

G/%,!"<#70B,0&,(%X<0(%+m

0`, $", 1*=%, *((*#:%1%#$&,
4"(,$/%,@("@%(,*+10#0&$(*$0"#,"4,
$/%,W#*#70*B,*44*0(&,"4,$/%,?3"#
>%#&0"#, '<#+, *#+, $", %#&<(%,
$/*$,"#%,"4, 0$&,"4W7%(&,/*&, $/%,
(%&@"#&0-0B0$.,4"(,$/%,,
*+10#0&$(*$0"#, "4, $/"&%,*44*0(&R,,
A#, $/0&, ?<$/"(0$.U, $/*$, "4W7%(,
0&, $/%, ;$(*$%:07, S0(%7$"(, "4,
2%&"<(7%&, *#+, ;<@@"($,
;%(307%&, (%&@"#&0-B%, 4"(,
W#*#70*B,*+10#0&$(*$0"#R
00`,, $",1*#*:%,$/%,*44*0(&,"4,
$/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,0#,"(+%(,
$", &%7<(%, %7"#"107U, %4W70%#$,
*#+,%44%7$03%,<&%,"4, (%&"<(7%&,
*#+,&*4%:<*(+,0$&,*&&%$&R
000`,, ?@@("3%, $/%, &$*$%1%#$,
"4,*77"<#$&,4"(,$/%,.%*(

UB$*;#9'#$<%:*]%9$:#&9*&+*
C$3&59:$3*'"6*;5==&9#*
;$91%:$3*9$3=&"3%,%(%#%$3

G/%, ;$(*$%:07, S0(%7$"(, "4,
2%&"<(7%&, *#+, ;<@@"($,
;%(307%&, 0&, (%&@"#&0-B%, 4"(,
$/%, @(%@*(*$0"#, "4, $/%, ?3"#,
>%#&0"#,'<#+,*77"<#$&,)/07/U,
0#,7"1@B0*#7%,)0$/, $/%,!A>'?Q
f?;??!, !"+%, "4, >(*7$07%, "#,
f"7*B, ?<$/"(0$., ?77"<#$0#:,
0#, 6(%*$, T(0$*0#U, *(%, (%X<0(%+,
$", @(%&%#$, 4*0(B., $/%, W#*#70*B,
@"&0$0"#, "4, $/%, ?3"#, >%#&0"#,
'<#+, *$, $/%, -*B*#7%, &/%%$,

+*$%, JM, 9*(7/, IHHP, *#+, 0$&,
0#7"1%,*#+,%]@%#+0$<(%,4"(,$/%,
W#*#70*B,.%*(,%#+%+,JM,9*(7/,
IHHPR

A#, @(%@*(0#:, $/0&, ;$*$%1%#$,
"4, ?77"<#$&U, $/%, ;$(*$%:07,
S0(%7$"(, "4, 2%&"<(7%&, *#+,
;<@@"($,;%(307%&,/*&m^

n, &%B%7$%+,&<0$*-B%,*77"<#$0#:,
@"B070%&, *#+, $/%#, *@@B0%+,
$/%1,7"#&0&$%#$B.k

n, 1*+%, g<+:%1%#$&, )/07/,
)%(%, (%*&"#*-B%, *#+,
@(<+%#$k

n, 7"1@B0%+, )0$/, $/%, !"+%, "4,
>(*7$07%R

G/%, ;$(*$%:07, S0(%7$"(, "4,
2%&"<(7%&, *#+, ;<@@"($,
;%(307%&,/*&,*B&"m^

n, @("@%(, *#+, <@, $", +*$%,
*77"<#$0#:,(%7"(+&k

n, $*=%#, (%*&"#*-B%, &$%@&,
4"(, $/%, @(%3%#$0"#, *#+,
+%$%7$0"#,"4,4(*<+,*#+,"$/%(,
0((%:<B*(0$0%&R,

056%#*L=%"%&"*&"*#B$*
0::&5"#3*&+*#B$*01&"*
2$"3%&"*45"6

G/%,*<+0$"(&,"4,B"7*B,*<$/"(0$0%&,
*(%, *@@"0#$%+, -., $/%, ?<+0$,
!"110&&0"#, <#+%(, &%7$0"#, I,
"4, $/%, ?<+0$, !"110&&0"#, ?7$,
MPPL, $", *<+0$, $/%, *77"<#$&, "4,
*, B"7*B, *<$/"(0$., *&, *, )/"B%U,
0#7B<+0#:, $/%, *77"<#$&, "4, $/%,
B"7*B,*<$/"(0$.D&,@%#&0"#,4<#+R

G/%,*<+0$,"@0#0"#,"#, $/%,?3"#,
>%#&0"#, '<#+, @("30+%+, -.,
$/%,?<+0$, !"110&&0"#, 7*#, -%,
4"<#+,"#,@*:%,EIR,

;#'#$7$"#*&+*#B$*;#9'#$<%:*
]%9$:#&9*&+*C$3&59:$3*'"6*
;5==&9#*;$91%:$3

A, /%(%-., 7%($04., $/*$, $/0&,
&$*$%1%#$,"4,*77"<#$&,@(%&%#$&,
4*0(B., $/%, W#*#70*B, @"&0$0"#, "4,
$/%,?3"#, >%#&0"#, '<#+, *&, *$,
$/%, *77"<#$0#:, +*$%, *#+, 0$&,
0#7"1%,*#+,%]@%#+0$<(%,4"(,$/%,
.%*(,%#+%+,JM,9*(7/,IHHPR

7(<+>(?-!'#

S0(%7$"(, "4, 2%&"<(7%&, *#+,
;<@@"($,;%(307%&U,
_;AEM,i4W7%(`
T*$/, 8, F"($/, C*&$, ;"1%(&%$,
!"<#70B,
;C>GC9TC2,IHMH,

G@ 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 114



GG01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

]9'+#*#&*,$*9$=(':$6

?<+0$"(&,2%@"($

!"6$=$"6$"#*'56%#&9d3*9$=&9#*
#&* #B$*8$7,$93*&+* S"'7$*&+*
'5#B&9%#)T

A,/*3%,*<+0$%+,$/%,@%#&0"#,4<#+,
*77"<#$0#:, &$*$%1%#$&, 4"(, $/%,
.%*(, %#+%+, JM, 9*(7/, IHMHR,
G/%, @%#&0"#, 4<#+, *77"<#$0#:,
&$*$%1%#$&, 7"1@(0&%, $/%,
'<#+,?77"<#$U, $/%,F%$,?&&%$&,
;$*$%1%#$, *#+, $/%, (%B*$%+,
#"$%&R, G/%, @%#&0"#, 4<#+,
*77"<#$0#:, &$*$%1%#$&, /*3%,
-%%#, @(%@*(%+, <#+%(, $/%,
*77"<#$0#:, @"B070%&, &%$, "<$, 0#,
$/%, ;$*$%1%#$, "4, ?77"<#$0#:,
>"B070%&R

G/0&,(%@"($,0&,1*+%,&"B%B.,$",$/%,
1%1-%(&,"4,x#*1%,"4,*<$/"(0$.y,
0#, *77"(+*#7%, )0$/, >*($, AA, "4,
$/%,?<+0$,!"110&&0"#,?7$,MPPL,
*#+, 4"(, #", "$/%(, @<(@"&%U, *&,
&%$,"<$, 0#,@*(*:(*@/,NP,"4, $/%,
;$*$%1%#$, "4, 2%&@"#&0-0B0$0%&,
"4, ?<+0$"(&, *#+, "4, ?<+0$%+,
T"+0%&, @<-B0&/%+, -., $/%,?<+0$,
!"110&&0"#,0#,?@(0B,IHHLR

C$3=$:#%1$* 9$3=&"3%,%(%#%$3*
&+*#B$*iC$3=&"3%,($*4%"'":%'(*
L+M:$9j***'"6*'56%#&9*

G/%, x2%&@"#&0-B%, '0#*#70*B,
i4W7%(y, 0&, (%&@"#&0-B%, 4"(,
@(%@*(0#:, $/%, @%#&0"#, 4<#+,
*77"<#$0#:, &$*$%1%#$&U, 0#,
*77"(+*#7%,)0$/,(%B%3*#$, B%:*B,
*#+, (%:<B*$"(., (%X<0(%1%#$&,
*#+, $/%, !"+%, "4, >(*7$07%, "#,
f"7*B, ?<$/"(0$., ?77"<#$0#:, 0#,

$/%, V#0$%+, d0#:+"1, IHHPm, ?,
;$*$%1%#$, "4, 2%7"11%#+%+,
>(*7$07%R, A#, @(%@*(0#:, $/0&,
@%#&0"#, 4<#+, *77"<#$0#:,
&$*$%1%#$&U, $/%, x2%&@"#&0-B%,
'0#*#70*B,i4W7%(y,0&,(%&@"#&0-B%,
4"(m
n, &%B%7$0#:, &<0$*-B%,

*77"<#$0#:,@"B070%&,*#+,$/%#,
*@@B.0#:,$/%1,7"#&0&$%#$B.k

n, 1*=0#:, g<+:1%#$&, *#+,
%&$01*$%&, $/*$, )%(%,
(%*&"#*-B%,*#+,@(<+%#$k

n, =%%@0#:, @("@%(, *77"<#$0#:,
(%7"(+&, )/07/, )%(%, <@, $",
+*$%k

n, $*=0#:, (%*&"#*-B%, &$%@&,
4"(, $/%, @(%3%#$0"#, *#+,
+%$%7$0"#,"4,4(*<+,*#+,"$/%(,
0((%:<B*(0$0%&R

9., (%&@"#&0-0B0$., 0&, $", *<+0$,
$/%, @%#&0"#, 4<#+, *77"<#$0#:,
&$*$%1%#$&,*#+,(%B*$%+,#"$%&,0#,
*77"(+*#7%,)0$/,(%B%3*#$, B%:*B,
*#+, (%:<B*$"(., (%X<0(%1%#$&,
*#+,A#$%(#*$0"#*B,;$*#+*(+&,"#,
?<+0$0#:,_Vd,*#+,A(%B*#+`R,

A, (%@"($, $", ."<, 1., "@0#0"#,
*&, $", )/%$/%(, $/%, @%#&0"#,
4<#+, *77"<#$0#:, &$*$%1%#$&,
:03%, *, $(<%, *#+, 4*0(, 30%)U, 0#,
*77"(+*#7%,)0$/,(%B%3*#$, B%:*B,
*#+, (%:<B*$"(., (%X<0(%1%#$&,
*#+, $/%, !"+%, "4, >(*7$07%, "#,
f"7*B, ?<$/"(0$., ?77"<#$0#:, 0#,
$/%, V#0$%+, d0#:+"1, IHHPm, ?,
;$*$%1%#$, "4, 2%7"11%#+%+,
>(*7$07%U, $/%, W#*#70*B,

$(*#&*7$0"#&,"4,$/%,@%#&0"#,4<#+,
+<(0#:,$/%,.%*(,*#+,$/%,*1"<#$,
*#+, +0&@"&0$0"#, "4, $/%, 4<#+D&,
*&&%$&, *#+, B0*-0B0$0%&U, "$/%(,
$/*#, B0*-0B0$0%&, $",@*.,@%#&0"#&,
*#+, "$/%(, -%#%W$&, *4$%(, $/%,
%#+,"4,$/%,&7/%1%,.%*(R,A,*B&",
(%@"($, $", ."<, )/%$/%(U, 0#, 1.,
"@0#0"#U, $/%, 0#4"(1*$0"#, )/07/,
7"1@(0&%&, $/%, 7"11%#$*(.,
"#, $/%, W#*#70*B, @%(4"(1*#7%,
0#7B<+%+, )0$/0#, $/%, >%#&0"#,
'<#+, ?##<*B, 2%@"($U, 0&,
7"#&0&$%#$, )0$/, $/%, @%#&0"#,
4<#+, *77"<#$0#:, &$*$%1%#$&R,
G/*$,0#4"(1*$0"#,7"1@(0&%&,xB0&$,
%B%1%#$&,*&,*@@("@(0*$%y,U
A, (%30%), )/%$/%(, $/%,
:"3%(#*#7%, 7"1@B0*#7%,
&$*$%1%#$, @<-B0&/%+, 0#,
$/%, >%#&0"#, '<#+, ?##<*B,
2%@"($, (%[%7$&, 7"1@B0*#7%,
)0$/, $/%, (%X<0(%1%#$&, "4, $/%,
f"7*B, 6"3%(#1%#$, >%#&0"#,
;7/%1%, _?+10#0&$(*$0"#`,
2%:<B*$0"#&, IHHL, *#+, (%B*$%+,
:<0+*#7%R, A, (%@"($, 04, 0$, +"%&,
#"$, 1%%$, $/%, (%X<0(%1%#$&,
&@%70W%+, -., $/%, S%@*($1%#$,
"4, !"11<#0$0%&, *#+, f"7*B,
6"3%(#1%#$,"(,04,$/%,&$*$%1%#$,
0&, 10&B%*+0#:, "(, 0#7"#&0&$%#$,
)0$/, "$/%(, 0#4"(1*$0"#, A, *1,
*)*(%,"4, 4("1,1.,*<+0$, "4, $/%,
*77"<#$0#:, &$*$%1%#$&R, A, *1,
#"$, (%X<0(%+, $", 7"#&0+%(U, #"(,
/*3%, A, 7"#&0+%(%+U, )/%$/%(,
$/%, :"3%(#*#7%, &$*$%1%#$,
7"3%(&, *BB, (0&=&, *#+, 7"#$("B&R,
F%0$/%(, *1, A, (%X<0(%+, $", 4"(1,

Page 115



]9'+#*#&*,$*9$=(':$6

*#,"@0#0"#,"#,$/%,%44%7$03%#%&&,
"4, $/%, ?<$/"(0$.D&, 7"(@"(*$%,
:"3%(#*#7%, @("7%+<(%&, "(, 0$&,
(0&=,*#+,7"#$("B,@("7%+<(%&

A, (%*+, "$/%(, 0#4"(1*$0"#,
@<-B0&/%+, )0$/, $/%, @%#&0"#,
4<#+, *77"<#$0#:, &$*$%1%#$&,
*#+,(%B*$%+,#"$%&,*#+,7"#&0+%(,
)/%$/%(, 0$, 0&, 7"#&0&$%#$, )0$/,
$/%, *<+0$%+, @%#&0"#, 4<#+,
*77"<#$0#:, &$*$%1%#$&R, G/0&,
"$/%(, 0#4"(1*$0"#, 7"1@(0&%&,
$/%, (%1*0#0#:, %B%1%#$&, "4, $/%,
>%#&0"#,'<#+,?##<*B,2%@"($, R,
A, 7"#&0+%(, $/%, 01@B07*$0"#&, 4"(,
1.,(%@"($,04,A,-%7"1%,*)*(%,"4,
*#.,*@@*(%#$,10&&$*$%1%#$&,"(,
1*$%(0*B, 0#7"#&0&$%#70%&, )0$/,
$/%, @%#&0"#, 4<#+, *77"<#$0#:,
&$*$%1%#$&, *#+, (%B*$%+, #"$%&R,
9., (%&@"#&0-0B0$0%&, +", #"$,
%]$%#+,$",*#.,"$/%(,0#4"(1*$0"#R

O'3%3*&+*'56%#*&=%"%&"*

A, 7"#+<7$%+, 1., *<+0$, 0#,
*77"(+*#7%, )0$/, $/%, ?<+0$,
!"110&&0"#, ?7$, MPPLU, $/%,
!"+%, "4,?<+0$, >(*7$07%, 0&&<%+,
-., $/%,?<+0$, !"110&&0"#, *#+,
A#$%(#*$0"#*B, ;$*#+*(+&, "#,
?<+0$0#:, _Vd, *#+, A(%B*#+`,
0&&<%+, -., $/%, ?<+0$0#:,
>(*7$07%&, T"*(+R, ?#, *<+0$,
0#7B<+%&,%]*10#*$0"#U,"#,*,$%&$,
-*&0&U, "4, %30+%#7%, (%B%3*#$, $",
$/%, *1"<#$&, *#+, +0&7B"&<(%&,
0#,$/%,@%#&0"#,4<#+,*77"<#$0#:,
&$*$%1%#$&, *#+, (%B*$%+, #"$%&R,
A$,*B&",0#7B<+%&,*#,*&&%&&1%#$,
"4, $/%, &0:#0W7*#$, %&$01*$%&,
*#+, g<+:1%#$&, 1*+%, -., $/%,
?<$/"(0$., 0#, $/%, @(%@*(*$0"#, "4,
$/%, @%#&0"#, 4<#+, *77"<#$0#:,
&$*$%1%#$&, *#+, (%B*$%+, #"$%&U,
*#+,"4,)/%$/%(,$/%,*77"<#$0#:,
@"B070%&, *(%, *@@("@(0*$%, $", $/%,
?<$/"(0$.D&, 70(7<1&$*#7%&U,
7"#&0&$%#$B., *@@B0%+, *#+,
*+%X<*$%B.,+0&7B"&%+R

A, @B*##%+, *#+, @%(4"(1%+, 1.,
*<+0$, &", *&, $", "-$*0#, *BB, $/%,
0#4"(1*$0"#, *#+, %]@B*#*$0"#&,
)/07/, A, 7"#&0+%(%+, #%7%&&*(.,
0#, "(+%(, $", @("30+%, 1%, )0$/,
&<4W70%#$, %30+%#7%, $", :03%,
(%*&"#*-B%, *&&<(*#7%, $/*$,
$/%, @%#&0"#, 4<#+, *77"<#$0#:,
&$*$%1%#$&, *#+, (%B*$%+,
#"$%&, *(%, 4(%%, 4("1, 1*$%(0*B,
10&&$*$%1%#$U,)/%$/%(,7*<&%+,
-., 4(*<+, "(, "$/%(, 0((%:<B*(0$.,
"(,%(("(R,A#,4"(10#:,1.,"@0#0"#,
A, *B&", %3*B<*$%+, $/%, "3%(*BB,
*+%X<*7., "4, $/%, @(%&%#$*$0"#,
"4, 0#4"(1*$0"#, 0#, $/%, @%#&0"#,
4<#+, *77"<#$0#:, &$*$%1%#$&,
*#+,(%B*$%+,#"$%&R

L=%"%&"*

A#,1.,"@0#0"#m

n, $/%,@%#&0"#,4<#+,*77"<#$0#:,
&$*$%1%#$&, *#+, (%B*$%+,
#"$%&, :03%, *, $(<%, *#+, 4*0(,
30%)U, 0#, *77"(+*#7%, )0$/,
$/%, !"+%, "4, >(*7$07%, "#,
f"7*B, ?<$/"(0$., ?77"<#$0#:,
0#, $/%, V#0$%+, d0#:+"1,
IHHPm, ?, ;$*$%1%#$, "4,
2%7"11%#+%+,>(*7$07%U,"4,
$/%, W#*#70*B, $(*#&*7$0"#&,
"4,$/%,>%#&0"#,'<#+,+<(0#:,
$/%, .%*(, %#+%+, JM, 9*(7/,
IHMHU, *#+, $/%, *1"<#$, *#+,
+0&@"&0$0"#, "4, $/%, 4<#+D&,
*&&%$&, *#+, B0*-0B0$0%&, *&, *$,
JM,9*(7/,IHMHU,"$/%(, $/*#,
B0*-0B0$0%&, $", @*., @%#&0"#&,
*#+,"$/%(,-%#%W$&,*4$%(,$/%,
%#+, "4, $/%, &7/%1%, .%*(k,
*#+

n, $/%,0#4"(1*$0"#,:03%#,0#,$/%,
7"11%#$*(., "#, W#*#70*B,
@%(4"(1*#7%,0#7B<+%+,)0$/0#,
$/%, >%#&0"#, '<#+, ?##<*B,
2%@"($,0&,7"#&0&$%#$,)0$/,$/%,
@%#&0"#, 4<#+, *77"<#$0#:,
&$*$%1%#$&R

iJ'7$j

i4W7%(,"4,$/%,?<+0$,!"110&&0"#

x?++(%&&y
x?++(%&&y
x?++(%&&y
x?++(%&&y
x?++(%&&y

xS*$%y
,

GN 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 116



GQ01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

'03%,5%*(,
;<11*(.,
"4,'0#*#70*B,
;$*$0&$07&

e$'9*V"6$6*>F*8'9:B /..N /..Q /..R /..D /.F.
C$1$"5$*0::&5"# cd7 cd7 cd7 cd7 cd7
!":&7$
F%$,!"#$(0-<$0"#& PJRN MHERM MMIRN MIERJ MJNRO
A#3%&$1%#$,A#7"1% JMRK NNRI JIRK MPRP MKRH
F%$,!*&/,G(*#&4%( NRH ERO ERE NRL HRJ

F/D[. FGG[. FG.[G FG.[. FGF[.

VW=$"6%#59$
>%#&0"#,8,T%#%W$& OERK LLRM PERH MHERI MMERM
9*#*:%1%#$,C]@%#&%& ERK KRM KRK ORH LRL

RF[/ D@[/ F.F[N FF/[/ F/>[D

;<(@B<&,4"(,$/%,5%*( NORL KHRL NLRP JORL IORM
2%3*B<*$0"#,"4,A#3%&$1%#$& JOHRK OPRO _EERH` _JPKRN` KMIRN

!/*#:%,0#,'<#+,c*B<% @FR[@ F@.[G SN[FT S>GR[NT N>D[G
G"$*B,'<#+,c*B<% /_.@>[> /_FR>[R /_FQQ[Q F_RFD[F /_@GR[N

Page 117



>%#&0"#,A#7(%*&%

A#7(%*&%&, 0#, @%#&0"#&,
_%]7B<+0#:, $/%, ;$*$%,
6<*(*#$%%+,90#01<1,>%#&0"#`,
*(%,-*&%+,"#,$/%,7/*#:%,0#,$/%,
@<-B0&/%+, 2%$*0B, >(07%, A#+%],
_2>A`, 4"(, $/%, MI,1"#$/&, $", JH,
;%@$%1-%(, "4, %*7/, .%*(, *#+,
*(%, @*0+, $/%, 4"BB")0#:, .%*(,
4("1, $/%, W(&$, 9"#+*., 0#, $/%,
#%), W#*#70*B, .%*(R, >%#&0"#&,
*)*(+%+, *4$%(, $/%, +*$%, "4,
$/%, B*&$, 0#7(%*&%, (%7%03%, *#,
*@@"($0"#%+,0#7(%*&%,(%B*$%+,$",
$/%,+*$%,$/%,@%#&0"#,-%:*#R

?BB,@%#&0"#&,*(%,&<-g%7$,$",$/%,
0#7(%*&%,)0$/, $/%, %]7%@$0"#, "4,
$/"&%, @%#&0"#&, *)*(+%+, 4"(,
#"#,0BB,/%*B$/,(%$0(%1%#$&,)/%(%,
$/%, (%70@0%#$, 0&, <#+%(, $/%, *:%,
"4, EE, .%*(&R, G/%&%, @%#&0"#&,
*(%, &<-g%7$, $", $/%, *77(<%+,
0#7(%*&%,(*$%,@*.*-B%,4("1,$/%,
(%70@0%#$D&,EE$/,-0($/+*.R

G*-B%, MN, &/")&, $/%, (*$%, "4,
0#7(%*&%&, $/*$, /*3%, *@@B0%+,
+<(0#:,$/%,B*&$,$%#,.%*(&R

?&, %]@%7$%+, $/%, 7/*#:%, 0#,
$/%, 2>A, 4"(, MI, 1"#$/&, $", JH,
;%@$%1-%(, IHHP, )*&, -%B"),
l%(", *$, ^MRNY, *#+, *&, *, (%&<B$,
$/%(%, )*&, #", 0#7(%*&%, $",
1%1-%(&D, @%#&0"#&, 0#, ?@(0B,
IHMHR, 9%1-%(&, &/"<B+, #"$%,
$/*$,$/%(%,0&,#",@("30&0"#,0#,$/%,
7<((%#$,(%:<B*$0"#&,$",(%+<7%,

@%#&0"#&, 0#, $/%, %3%#$, "4, *,
#%:*$03%,2>AR

G/%, '<#+, 0&, (%&@"#&0-B%,
4"(, 0#7(%*&%&, 0#, $/%, ;$*$%,
6<*(*#$%%+,90#01<1,>%#&0"#,
*77(<%+,&0#7%,?@(0B,MPLL,<@,$",
*,1*]01<1,"4, JY,@%(, *##<1,
_"(, $/%,(*$%,"4, 0#[*$0"#, 04, B%&&`R,
?#., 0#7(%*&%, *-"3%, JY, 0&,
$/%, (%&@"#&0-0B0$., "4, $/%, ;$*$%R,
G/%(%,)*&,*B&",#",0#7(%*&%,"#,
$/%&%,@%#&0"#&,0#,?@(0B,IHMHR

G/%, 0#7(%*&%&, &/")#, *-"3%,
*B&",*@@B.,$",+%4%((%+,@%#&0"#&R

AB'"<$* !"*2$"3%&"* !":9$'3$*
O'3%3,

'("1, ?@(0B, IHMM, 0#7(%*&%&,
0#, @%#&0"#&, _%]7B<+0#:, $/%,
;$*$%, 6<*(*#$%%+, 90#01<1,
>%#&0"#`,)0BB, -%,-*&%+,"#, $/%,
!"#&<1%(, >(07%, A#+%], _!>A`R,
G/%,6"3%(#1%#$,*(%,%]@%7$%+,
$", *##"<#7%, &/"($B., /"), $/0&,
)0BB,-%,*@@B0%+R

G/0&, 0#7(%*&%, )0BB, *@@B., $",
-"$/, +%4%((%+, @%#&0"#&, *#+,
@%#&0"#&,0#,@*.1%#$R,,

e$'9*O$<%"%"<*0=9%( C'#$*&+*!":9$'3$*\
IHHH MRM
IHHM JRJ
IHHI MRO
IHHJ MRO
IHHN IRL
IHHE JRM
IHHK IRO
IHHO JRK
IHHL JRP
IHHP ERH
IHMH HRH

@3F(-%V[W%D-*+)'*%U*#,-3+-

GR 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 118



!"#$*7$,F*1%&

'"(,4<($/%(,0#4"(1*$0"#,"#,0&&<%&,(%B*$0#:,$",$/%,'<#+D&,A#3%&$1%#$&,
*#+,$/%,?77"<#$&,@B%*&%,7"#$*7$m

8'9#%"*2B%((%=3
>%#&0"#,'<#+,?77"<#$*#$

P%k*4$%"3#$%"
A#3%&$1%#$&,9*#*:%(

A4,."<,/*3%,*#.,X<%(0%&,"#,$/%,-%#%W$&,"(,*+10#0&$(*$0"#,"4, $/%,
?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,@B%*&%,7"#$*7$m

;#$1$*8:8%(('"
>%#&0"#&,9*#*:%(

i(,."<,7*#,)(0$%,$",<&,*$m

01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6
4(&&9*>*;&5#B
C%1$93%6$_*U$7=($*;#9$$#_
^$)"3B'7_
O;>F*FP0

4'WH*.F//G*>DG/GR
U$(H*.F//G*@Q*Q...

?B$%(#*$03%B.U,%1*0B,<&,*$,*3"#q@%#&0"#r-*$/#%&R:"3R<=
'<($/%(,:%#%(*B,0#4"(1*$0"#,(%:*(+0#:,$/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,7*#,
-%,4"<#+,*$m,)))R*3"#@%#&0"#4<#+R"(:R<=

GD01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH Page 119



0AACh0P*C0UV
G/%,@%(7%#$*:%,"4,W#*B,&*B*(.,
)/07/,0&,@*.*-B%,*&,@%#&0"#,
4"(,%*7/,.%*(,"4,&%(307%,
*77(<%+R,'"(,%]*1@B%U,<#+%(,
$/%,#%),&7/%1%,%44%7$03%,4("1,
M,?@(0B,IHHLU,%*7/,.%*(,"4,
&%(307%,)0BB,:%#%(*$%,MQKH$/,"4,
W#*B,&*B*(.R

0AUh0Ce
?#,0#+%@%#+%#$,7"#&<B$*#$,
)/",*+30&%&,$/%,'<#+,*#+,
(%30%)&,$/%,W#*#70*B,@"&0$0"#,
"4,$/%,'<#+,%3%(.,$/(%%,
.%*(&R,G/%,*7$<*(.,@("+<7%&,
*,(%@"($U,=#")#,*&,$/%,
*7$<*(0*B,3*B<*$0"#,(%@"($U,
)/07/,7"1@*(%&,$/%,'<#+D&,
*&&%$&,)0$/,0$&,B0*-0B0$0%&,*#+,
@(%&7(0-%&,$/%,(*$%&,*$,)/07/,
$/%,%1@B".0#:,-"+0%&,1<&$,
7"#$(0-<$%R

0AU!IV*!JIV;U!J?
?#,0#3%&$1%#$,&$(*$%:.,
)/%(%-.,$/%,1*#*:%(,+%30*$%&,
4("1,*#,0#+%],"(,-%#7/1*(=,
$/("<:/,&$"7=,&%B%7$0"#,"(,
*&&%$,*BB"7*$0"#,0#,"(+%(,$",
:%#%(*$%,*,(*$%,"4,(%$<(#,
0#,%]7%&&,"4,$/%,0#+%],"(,
-%#7/1*(=R

A!I!P*20CUJVC
?,7030B,@*($#%(&/0@,0&,*,
(%B*$0"#&/0@,-%$)%%#,$)",
@%"@B%,"4,$/%,&*1%,&%],)/07/,
0&,4"(1%+,)/%#,$/%.,(%:0&$%(,
*&,7030B,@*($#%(&,"4,%*7/,"$/%(R

ALJ;h8VC*2C!AV*!J]Vg*
SA2!T
;010B*(,$",2>AU,!>A,0&,*#,
*B$%(#*$03%,1%*&<(%,"4,0#[*$0"#,
*B&",-*&%+,"#,$/%,7/*#:%,
0#,$/%,@(07%,"4,*,W]%+,-*&=%$,
"4,:""+&,*#+,&%(307%&R,G/%,
+044%(%#7%,-%$)%%#,!>A,*#+,
2>A,0&,$/*$,!>A,%]7B<+%&,&"1%,
0$%1&,<&%+,0#,2>A,&<7/,*&,
1"($:*:%,0#$%(%&$,@*.1%#$&,
*#+,!"<#70B,G*]U,*#+,0#7B<+%&,
"$/%(,0$%1&,#"$,<&%+,0#,2>AR

AL88hJ!Ue*0]8!;;!LJ*
OL]!V;
T"+0%&U,)/07/,%0$/%(,/*3%,
&<4W70%#$,B0#=&,)0$/,*,;7/%1%,
%1@B".%(U,*#+,@("30+%&,*,
@<-B07,&%(307%,0#,$/%,V#0$%+,
d0#:+"1,"$/%()0&%,$/*#,4"(,
$/%,@<(@"&%&,"4,:*0#,"(,*(%,
*@@("3%+,-.,$/%,;%7(%$*(.,
"4,;$*$%,4"(,$/%,@<(@"&%&,"4,
*+10&&0"#,$",$/%,;7/%1%k,*,
-"+.U,"$/%(,$/*#,$/%,:"3%(#"(&,
"(,1*#*:%(&,"4,*,3"B<#$*(.,
&7/""BU,$",$/%,4<#+&,"4,)/07/,*,
;7/%1%,%1@B".%(,7"#$(0-<$%&R,
;<7/,*,-"+.,7*#,-%7"1%,*,
1%1-%(,"4,$/%,?3"#,>%#&0"#,
'<#+,&<-g%7$,$",>%#&0"#,
!"110$$%%,*@@("3*BR,

ALC2LC0UV*OLJ];
'0]%+,0#$%(%&$,&%7<(0$0%&,*#+,
0#+%]^B0#=%+,&%7<(0$0%&,0&&<%+,
-.,7"1@*#0%&,(%:0&$%(%+,
%0$/%(,0#,$/%,VRdR,"(,"3%(&%*&R,
G/%.,(%@(%&%#$,jB"*#&D,$",
$/%,7"1@*#0%&,)/07/,*(%,
(%@*.*-B%,"#,*,&$*$%+,4<$<(%,
+*$%,_4"(,+%W#0$0"#&,"4,aW]%+,
0#$%(%&$b,*#+,a0#+%]^B0#=%+b,&%%,
j'0]%+,A#$%(%&$,6"3%(#1%#$,

;%7<(0$0%&D,*#+,jA#+%]^B0#=%+,
6"3%(#1%#$,;%7<(0$0%&D`R,A#,
$/%,*##<*B,*77"<#$&U,$/%&%,*(%,
0#7B<+%+,0#,j;$%(B0#:,T"#+&D,
*#+,jF"#^;$%(B0#:,T"#+&DR

Ah;UL8!;V]*OVJAb80C^
?,7<&$"10&%+,-%#7/1*(=,
(%[%7$&,$/%,*&&%$,10],
+%$%(10#%+,-.,$/%,'<#+R,A$,0&,
%]@(%&&%+,0#,$%(1&,"4,*&&%$,
@("@"($0"#&,*#+,1*(=%$,0#+07%&,
_%R:R,NEY,Vd,CX<0$0%&,0#3%&$%+,
0#,$/%,'G;C^?7$<*(0%&,?BB,
;/*(%,A#+%]`R,i#,$/0&,-*&0&,
*,-%#7/1*(=,(%$<(#,7*#,-%,
7*B7<B*$%+R,G/%,&0:#0W7*#7%,
"4,*,7<&$"10&%+,-%#7/1*(=,0&,
$/*$,0$,(%@(%&%#$&,a#"(1*B,4<#+,
@"B07.bR

]V4VCCV]*2VJ;!LJ
G/%,@%#&0"#,-%#%W$,@*.*-B%,
4("1,F"(1*B,2%$0(%1%#$,?:%,
_"(,%*(B0%(,04,$/%,2<B%,"4,LE,
0&,&*$0&W%+`,$",*,1%1-%(,"4,
$/%,'<#+,)/",/*&,7%*&%+,$",
7"#$(0-<$%,*&,*,(%&<B$,"4,B%*30#:,
%1@B".1%#$,"(,"@$0#:,"<$,"4,
$/%,@%#&0"#,&7/%1%,-%4"(%,
(%$0(%1%#$,*:%R

]!;ACVU!LJ0Ce*
AL82VJ;0ULCe*0]]V]*
eV0C;
V#$0B,M,?@(0B,IHHOU,%1@B".%(&,
7"<B+,*)*(+,*#,*++0$0"#*B,
@%(0"+,"4,&%(307%,<#+%(,
+0&7(%$0"#*(.,(%:<B*$0"#&,<@,
$",*,1*]01<1,"4,MH,*++%+,
.%*(&R,;0#7%,$/0&,+*$%U,$/0&,
@("30&0"#,/*&,-%%#,)0$/+(*)#R,
C1@B".%(&,)/",/*3%,*)*(+%+,
*++0$0"#*B,&%(307%,*(%,
(%7/*(:%+,4"(,*#.,@*.1%#$&,
1*+%,0#,(%&@%7$,"4,$/%1,
%]%(70&0#:,&<7/,*,+0&7(%$0"#R

Vlh!U!V;,
i(+0#*(.,&/*(%&,0#,Vd,*#+,
i3%(&%*&,7"1@*#0%&,$(*+%+,
"#,*,(%7":#0&%+,&$"7=,

6B"&&*(.

N. 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 120



NF01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMH

%]7/*#:%R,;/*(%/"B+%(&,/*3%,
*#,0#$%(%&$,0#,$/%,@("W$&,"4,$/%,
7"1@*#.,*#+,*(%,%#$0$B%+,$",
3"$%,*$,&/*(%/"B+%(&D,1%%$0#:&R

4!J0P*;0P0Ce*;AbV8V
?,@%#&0"#,&7/%1%,$/*$,
@("30+%&,*,@%#&0"#,*#+,0#,
&"1%,7*&%&,*,B<1@,&<1,
-%#%W$,7*B7<B*$%+,*&,*,
@("@"($0"#,"4,*,1%1-%(D&,
@*.,0#,$/%0(,B*&$,.%*(,"4,
1%1-%(&/0@,+%@%#+0#:,"#,$/%,
B%#:$/,"4,1%1-%(&/0@,0#,$/%,
&7/%1%R

4!gV]*!JUVCV;U*
?LIVCJ8VJU*;VAhC!U!V;
A#3%&$1%#$&,0#,:"3%(#1%#$,
&$"7=&U,)/07/,:<*(*#$%%,
*,W]%+,(*$%,"4,0#$%(%&$R,
A#3%&$1%#$&,0#,:"3%(#1%#$,
&$"7=&,(%@(%&%#$,jB"*#&D,
$",6"3%(#1%#$,)/07/,*(%,
(%@*.*-B%,"#,*,&$*$%+,4<$<(%,
+*$%R

bV]?V*4hJ];
i$/%()0&%,=#")#,*&,a*-&"B<$%,
(%$<(#,4<#+&DU,$/%&%,4<#+&,
/*3%,*&,$/%0(,"-g%7$03%,*,
@%(4"(1*#7%,$*(:%$,%]@(%&&%+,
*&,*,1*(:0#,*-"3%,$/%,(%$<(#,
)/07/,7*#,-%,*7/0%3%+,"#,7*&/,
+%@"&0$&R,G/%,*+3*#$*:%,"4,
$/%&%,4<#+&,0&,$/*$,$/%.,&/"<B+,
*7/0%3%,*,@"&0$03%,(%$<(#,%3%#,
04,$/%,&$"7=,1*(=%$,4*BB&R

!J]V2VJ]VJU*UCh;UVV;
c"$0#:,1%1-%(&,"4,$/%,?3"#,
>%#&0"#,'<#+,!"110$$%%,)/",
*(%,#"$,7"<#70BB"(&,*#+,)/",
/*3%,#",@"B0$07*B,*$$*7/1%#$&R,
G/%(%,*(%,$)",&<7/,1%1-%(&,
"#,$/%,7"110$$%%U,*@@"0#$%+,
@(0#70@*BB.,-%7*<&%,"4,$/%,
W#*#70*BQ0#3%&$1%#$,%]@%($0&%,
)/07/,$/%.,/*3%,*7X<0(%+,0#,
$/%,7"<(&%,"4,$/%0(,@("4%&&0"#*B,
7*(%%(&R

A$,0&,7"#3%#0%#$,$",(%4%(,
$",$/%&%,1%1-%(&,*&,
a0#+%@%#+%#$,$(<&$%%&b,
%3%#,$/"<:/,$/%.,*(%,#"$,
$(<&$%%&,0#,$/%,&$(07$,B%:*B,
&%#&%,_$/%,>%#&0"#,'<#+,0&,
#"$,7"#&$0$<$%+,*&,*,$(<&$`R,
?+10#0&$(*$0"#,"4,$/%,?3"#,
>%#&0"#,'<#+,0&,*,&$*$<$"(.,
(%&@"#&0-0B0$.,"4,T*$/,8,F"($/,
C*&$,;"1%(&%$,!"<#70B,*#+,$/%,
?3"#,>%#&0"#,'<#+,!"110$$%%,
/*&,-%%#,%&$*-B0&/%+,-.,
$/%,!"<#70B,$",+0&7/*(:%,
$/0&,4<#7$0"#,"#,0$&,-%/*B4R,
G/%,3"$0#:,1%1-%(&,"4,$/%,
!"110$$%%,@%(4"(1,*,("B%,$/*$,
0&,&010B*(,$",$/*$,"4,$(<&$%%&,
0#,$/%,@(03*$%,&%7$"(,0#,$/*$,
$/%.,*7$,0#,$/%,0#$%(%&$&,"4,$/%,
'<#+D&,&$*=%/"B+%(&D,(*$/%(,
$/*#,$/%,!"<#70B,0$&%B4R

!J]VgKP!J^V]*
?LIVCJ8VJU*;VAhC!U!V;
A#3%&$1%#$&,0#,:"3%(#1%#$,
&$"7=&,_Vd,*#+,"3%(&%*&`,
)/%(%,-"$/,$/%,*##<*B,0#$%(%&$,
@*.1%#$,*#+,$/%,7*@0$*B,&<1,
(%@*.*-B%,-.,$/%,:"3%(#1%#$,
*(%,*+g<&$%+,$",*BB"),4"(,
0#[*$0"#R,A#3%&$1%#$&,0#,
:"3%(#1%#$,&$"7=&,(%@(%&%#$,
jB"*#&D,$",$/%,:"3%(#1%#$,
)/07/,*(%,(%@*.*-B%,"#,*,
&$*$%+,4<$<(%,+*$%R

80C^VU*I0PhV
G/%,@(07%,*$,)/07/,*#,
0#3%&$1%#$,7*#,-%,-"<:/$,"(,
&"B+,*$,*,:03%#,+*$%R

8eJVC;*2C!JA!2PV;
?,&%$,"4,(%7"11%#+*$0"#&,
(%B*$0#:,$",$/%,0#3%&$1%#$,"4,
@%#&0"#,4<#+&,)/07/,)%(%,
@(%@*(%+,-.,>*<B,9.#%(&,0#,
IHHM,*$,$/%,(%X<%&$,"4,$/%,
!/*#7%BB"(,"4,$/%,C]7/%X<%(,
*#+,)/07/,)%(%,&<-&%X<%#$B.,
%#+"(&%+,-.,6"3%(#1%#$R,
G/%0(,&0:#0W7*#7%,0&,$/*$,

@%#&0"#,4<#+&,*(%,%]@%7$%+,
$",4"BB"),$/%&%,@(0#70@B%&,"(U,
04,$/%.,+",#"$U,@("30+%,*#,
%]@B*#*$0"#,*&,$",)/.,$/%.,
/*3%,+%70+%+,#"$,$",+",&"R

JL8!J0UV]*ALKb0O!U!J?*
20CUJVC
;"1%"#%,."<,/*3%,#"10#*$%+,
$",(%7%03%,*,&<(303"(D&,
@%#&0"#,0#,$/%,%3%#$,"4,."<(,
+%*$/R,G/%,#"10#%%,1<&$,-%,
&"1%"#%,."<,*(%,B030#:,)0$/,
*&,04,."<,*(%,1*((0%+,"(,*(%,0#,
*,7030B,@*($#%(&/0@U,*#+,."<(,
(%B*$0"#&/0@,/*&,$",1%%$,7%($*0#,
7"#+0$0"#&,B*0+,+")#,-.,$/%,
f6>;R,G/%,#"10#*$0"#,1<&$,
-%,&<-10$$%+,"#,*,jF"10#*$0"#,
"4,*,!"/*-0$0#:,>*($#%(D,4"(1R

JLC80P*CVU!CV8VJU*0?V
?:%,KE,4"(,-"$/,1%#,*#+,
)"1%#,-<$,7%($*0#,@("$%7$%+,
1%1-%(&,)/"&%,*:%,*#+,
1%1-%(&/0@U,)/%#,7"1-0#%+U,
$"$*B,LE,"(,1"(%,7*#,(%$0(%,*$,
*#.,$01%,4("1,*:%,KH,)0$/"<$,
*7$<*(0*B,(%+<7$0"#,_&%%,2<B%,
"4,LE`R

20;;!IV*!JIV;U!J?*
S!J]Vg0U!LJT
?#,0#3%&$1%#$,&$(*$%:.,
)/%(%-.,$/%,1*#*:%(,
(%@B07*$%&,*#,0#+%],0#,"(+%(,$",
:%#%(*$%,*,(*$%,"4,(%$<(#,0#,B0#%,
)0$/,$/%,0#+%]R,G/%,1*#*:%(,
/*&,#",+0&7(%$0"#,"3%(,&$"7=,
&%B%7$0"#,)0$/0#,$/%,0#+%]R,A4,
0$,0&,*,1<B$0^*&&%$,@"($4"B0"U,
$/%,*&&%$,@("@"($0"#&,*(%,
@(%&7(0-%+,)0$/0#,$/%,1*#+*$%R

2LLPV]*4hJ];
>""B%+,'<#+&,*(%,4<#+&,)/07/,
1*#*:%,$/%,0#3%&$1%#$&,
"4,1"(%,$/*#,"#%,0#3%&$"(,
"#,*,7"BB%7$03%,-*&0&R,C*7/,
0#3%&$"(,0&,*BB"7*$%+,<#0$&,
)/07/,*(%,(%3*B<%+,*$,(%:<B*(,
0#$%(3*B&R,A#7"1%,4("1,$/%&%,

Page 121



0#3%&$1%#$&,0&,#"(1*BB.,
(%$<(#%+,$",$/%,@""B%+,4<#+,
*#+,0#7(%*&%&,$/%,3*B<%,"4,$/%,
<#0$&R,G/%&%,0#7B<+%,9*#*:%+,
'<#+&,)/07/,*(%,*,4"(1,"4,<#0$,
$(<&$,)/%(%-.,$/%,'<#+,1*=%&,
@*.1%#$&,<#+%(,*#,0#&<(*#7%,
@"B07.,*#+,0&,*BB"7*$%+,<#0$&,
0#,*#,A#3%&$1%#$,'<#+,-.,
)*.,"4,-%#%W$&R,A#,7%($*0#,
70(7<1&$*#7%&,$/0&,4"(1,"4,<#0$,
$(<&$,7*#,/*3%,$*],*+3*#$*:%&,
7"1@*(%+,)0$/,*,7"#3%#$0"#*B,
<#0$,$(<&$R

CVU0!P*2C!AV*!J]Vg*SC2!T
?,1%*&<(%,"4,$/%,:%#%(*B,
B%3%B,"4,0#[*$0"#,-*&%+,"#,$/%,
7/*#:%,0#,$/%,@(07%,"4,*,W]%+,
-*&=%$,"4,:""+&,*#+,&%(307%&U,
&<7/,*&,4""+U,%#%(:.U,@%$("BU,
$(*3%BB0#:,7"&$&U,1"($:*:%,
0#$%(%&$,@*.1%#$&,*#+,!"<#70B,
G*]R,

ChPV*L4*RG
G/%,(<B%,"4,LE,)*&,*-"B0&/%+,
*#+,+"%&,#"$,*@@B.,$",F%),
;7/%1%,1%1-%(&,4("1,M,
i7$"-%(,IHHKU,/")%3%(,
7%($*0#,@("$%7$0"#&,7*#,*@@B.,
$",&7/%1%,1%1-%(&,0#,$/%,
&7/%1%,-%4"(%,M,i7$"-%(,
IHHKR,

Z/%#,*,1%1-%(,%B%7$&,$",
(%$0(%,-%4"(%,*:%,KEU,$/%,2<B%,
"4,LE,$%&$,0&,<&%+,$",W#+,"<$,
)/%$/%(,$/%,1%1-%(,(%$0(%&,"#,
4<BB,"(,(%+<7%+,-%#%W$&R,G/%,
*:(%%1%#$,"4,$/%,%1@B".%(,0&,
(%X<0(%+,4"(,%1@B".%%&,)/",
)0&/,$",(%$0(%,-%4"(%,$/%,*:%,"4,
KHR,A4,$/%,&<1,"4,$/%,1%1-%(D&,
*:%,*#+,$/%,#<1-%(,"4,)/"B%,
.%*(&,"4,;7/%1%,1%1-%(&/0@,
0&,LE,"(,1"(%U,-%#%W$&,*(%,
@*0+,0#,4<BBk,04,$/%,$"$*B,0&,B%&&,
$/*#,LEU,$/%,-%#%W$&,)0BB,-%,
(%+<7%+R,G/%,%1@B".%(,+"%&U,
/")%3%(U,/*3%,$/%,@")%(,
$",)*03%,*#.,(%+<7$0"#,"#,

7"1@*&&0"#*$%,:("<#+&,*#+,
$",@*.,$/%,-%#%W$&,0#,4<BBR,
G/%,2<B%,"4,LE,0&,#"$,(%B%3*#$,
)/%(%,*,1%1-%(,0&,1*+%,
(%+<#+*#$U,(%$0(%+,"#,:("<#+&,
"4,%4W70%#7.,"(,(%7%03%&,*#,0BB,
/%*B$/,@%#&0"#R

;AL2V*OL]!V;*
SUC0J;4VCVV*0]8!;;!LJ*
OL]eT
?,-"+.U,$/*$,@("30+%&U,-.,
1%*#&,"4,*,7"#$(*7$U,*,&%(307%,
0#,7"##%7$0"#,)0$/,$/%,%]%(70&%,
"4,*,4<#7$0"#,"4,*,;7/%1%,
%1@B".%(U,7*#,-%7"1%,*#,
*+10$$%+,-"+.,)0$/0#,$/%,?3"#,
>%#&0"#,'<#+R,G/%,;7/%1%,
C1@B".%(,$(*#&4%(0#:U,1<&$,*7$,
*&,:<*(*#$"(,4"(,&<7/,-"+0%&R

hJP!;UV]*;VAhC!U!V;
\"B+0#:&,0#,7"1@*#0%&,)/07/,
+",#"$,4"(1,@*($,"4,$/%,1*0#,
&$"7=,1*(=%$R,G/%.,1*.,-%,
+%3%B"@0#:
7"1@*#0%&,"(,&1*BB%(,
7"1@*#0%&,)/"&%,&/*(%&,*(%,
#"$,4(%X<%#$B.,$(*+%+R,V#B0&$%+,
&%7<(0$0%&,*(%,<&<*BB.,B%&&,
B0X<0+,$/*#,$/"&%,$(*+%+,0#,$/%,
1*0#,1*(=%$&R

X8*PLA0P*0hUbLC!Ue*
0IVC0?V
G/%,*3%(*:%,B"7*B,*<$/"(0$.,
@%#&0"#,4<#+,0#3%&$1%#$,
(%$<(#,*&,7*B7<B*$%+,-.,G/%,
Z9,!"1@*#.R,G/%,<#03%(&%,
7"1@(0&%&,*@@("]01*$%B.,MHH,
B"7*B,*<$/"(0$.,4<#+&R

N/ 01&"*2$"3%&"*45"6,?##<*B,2%@"($,IHHPQMHPage 122



!"#$"#%&"'(()*($+#*,('"-

Page 123



!"#$%&'#()$*+,%-'#.
!"#$%&'()*+,-%(.,%/+%*.&+%.0.#1./1+%#,%.
2.,3+%'4%('**),#-5%1.,3).3+$6%1.23+%72#,-6
82.#11+6%',%-.7+6%+1+(-2',#(%.,&%.((+$$#/1+
4'2*.-$6%-'%2+9)+$-%.,%.1-+2,.-#0+%0+2$#',
71+.$+%(',-.(-%-"+%:0',%;+,$#',%<),&%
)$#,3%-"+%&+-.#1$%72'0#&+&=

!/01*2314501*+617
8.-"%>%?'2-"%@.$-%A'*+2$+-%B'),(#1
<1''2%C%A')-"6%D#0+2$#&+
!+*71+%A-2++-6%E+5,$".*
8ACF%FG:

!+1H%% IFJJK%LM%MIII
<.NH%% IFJJK%CO%KJKP
@*.#1H%% .0',Q7+,$#',R/.-",+$=3'0=)S
T+/$#-+H%UUU=.0',7+,$#',4),&='23=)S

2%$8'%$9*:;*!),&*2$&.(,&*+<&9
;)/1#$"+&%/5%8.-"%>%?'2-"%@.$-%A'*+2$+-%B'),(#1V$%;2#,-%A+20#(+$6%W.2-*')-"%:0+,)+6%X1&Y+1&%;.2S6%8.-"6%8:J%F:APage 124



Printed on recycled paper 1

  

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
MEETING 
DATE: 

24 SEPTEMBER 2010  AGENDA 
ITEM 
NUMBER 

10 
TITLE: FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT 2010 
WARD: ALL 
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix 1 – Funding Strategy Statement 
Appendix 2 – Comments from Employing Bodies  
 
 

1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) regulations require each 

administering authority to prepare and publish a Funding Strategy Statement 
(FSS).  The FSS sets out the key assumptions which the actuary has used in 
preparing the actuarial valuation and, in those cases where the Administering 
Authority has some discretion, the policies adopted by the Administering Authority.  
A Committee workshop was held on 23 July 2010 to discuss the FSS prior to it 
being circulated to the employing bodies for comment.  The deadline for receipt of 
comments was 31 August 2010. 

1.2 The FSS is attached as Appendix 1 and the comments from the employing bodies 
following the consultation period are summarised in Appendix 2.   

 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 That, subject to the insertion of information which can only be included when the 

actuarial valuation is complete, the Committee approves the Funding Strategy 
Statement as set out in Appendix 1 for general publication and distribution to the 
Fund’s employing bodies. 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 125



Printed on recycled paper 2

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS            
3.1 The actuarial costs for reviewing the FSS is included in the 2010 actuarial 

valuation fee and is provided for in the 2009/10 budget. 
4 BACKGROUND 
4.1 The LGPS regulations require each administering authority to prepare and publish 

a FSS.  The key points of the regulation for the FSS are as follows:- 
• After consultation with all employing bodies, the administering authority 

must prepare and publish their funding strategy 
• In preparing the FSS, the administering authority must have regard to: 
•  The CIPFA guidance (published in 2004) 
•  The Statement of Investment Principles  
• The FSS must be revised and published whenever there is a material 

change in either the policy on the matters set out in the FSS or the 
Statement of Investment Principles.  

• The Fund’s actuary must have regard to the FSS as part of the valuation 
process. 

 
4.2 The FSS sets out all the key assumptions which the actuary has used in preparing 

the actuarial valuation, together with the Administering Authority’s policies in the 
areas where the Administering Authority has discretion. 

4.3 Procedurally, the Fund’s actuary cannot finalise the valuation until the FSS has 
been approved by the Committee. 

4.4 It is not anticipated that, unless there is a significant change in the Fund’s 
investment policy or to the structure of the LGPS, the FSS will be revised until the 
next actuarial valuation in 2013.   

4.5 The FSS attached as Appendix 1, estimates certain information that can only be 
confirmed once the valuation has been completed. 

 
5 COMMITTEE WORKSHOP AND CONSULTATION WITH EMPLOYING BODIES 
5.1 At the Committee workshop on the 23 July 2010, the actuary gave a presentation 

on the actuarial valuation process and the basis for the assumptions to be used in 
the valuation.  Following the presentation, the Committee agreed the draft FSS.  

5.2 The draft FSS was circulated to the employing bodies on 3 August 2010, with 
comments required by 31 August 2010.  Those comments which have been 
received are summarised in Appendix 2. 

5.3 The comments received from the employing bodies were not such as to prompt 
any change to the FSS as agreed at the Committee workshop. However, a 
number of points were made which are relevant to the way in which the actuary 
applies the FSS in practice and there is one particular issue which will need to be 
considered in conjunction with a number of the employing bodies. Details are set 
out in the next section. 

Page 126



Printed on recycled paper 3

6 RESPONSES FROM EMPLOYING BODIES 
6.1 The following action has been taken in respect of the responses received:  
(i) Where there was a request for more information this has been supplied. Where 

there appeared to be an implied criticism of the approach adopted by the Fund – 
either in actuarial or investment terms – an explanation has been provided.  

(ii) Bristol City Council’s request for an assurance that a 30 year maximum deficit 
recovery period is consistent with rate stability stems from a presentation given to 
the unitary councils by the actuary on 21 June. At that time it appeared that a 35 
year deficit recovery period might be necessary. However, the Chancellor’s 
announcement on 22 June that public sector pension increases would be index-
linked to the CPI rather than the RPI meant that a 30 year limit was judged to be 
sufficient. In the unlikely event that this did not achieve the objective, the FSS 
would need to be reviewed. Bristol City Council has been informed accordingly. 

(iii) For those bodies who have indicated that they might struggle with the practical 
implications of expressing the deficit recovery element as a cash sum, an 
undertaking has been given that this matter will be investigated further. The 
expectation is that a solution can be found without compromising the principle of 
making deficit recovery payments independent of the size of the payroll.  

6.2 In the light of the responses, discussions will need to take place with the actuary 
as to the manner in which the short term pay adjustment should be applied. 

6.3 Otherwise there was universal support for the Fund’s policy of prioritising rate 
stability in the short term subject to reverting to a more normal deficit recovery 
period when the prospective Hutton review savings become available. 

6.4 A meeting has already taken place with Somer and agreement reached on the 
range of deficit recovery periods which will be considered. However, there are two 
other issues which they raised – firstly, concerning the Fund’s investment policy 
and, secondly, the use of assets to underwrite a deficit – where further 
discussions between the Fund and Somer might be beneficial.  

7 RISK MANAGEMENT 
7.1 The Avon Pension Fund Committee is the formal decision-making body for the 

Fund.  As such it has responsibility to ensure adequate risk management 
processes are in place.  It discharges this responsibility by ensuring the Fund has 
an appropriate investment strategy and investment management structure in 
place that is regularly monitored.  In addition it monitors the benefits 
administration, the risk register and compliance with relevant investment, finance 
and administration regulations. The creation of an Investment Panel further 
strengthens the governance of investment matters and contributes to reduced risk 
in these areas. 

8 EQUALITIES 
8.1 An equalities impact assessment is not necessary. 
9 CONSULTATION 
9.1 This is reporting the outcome of a consultation process. 

Page 127



Printed on recycled paper 4

10 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
10.1 Are contained in the report. 
11 ADVICE SOUGHT 
11.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer (Divisional Director - 

Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for 
publication.  

Contact person  Liz Feinstein, Investments Manager 01225 395306 
Background 
papers 

CIPFA Pensions Panel (guidance on preparing FSS) 
Correspondence with actuary 
Responses to FSS from employing bodies 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative 
format 
 

Page 128



1 

AVON PENSION FUND 
 

FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT (FSS) 
 
This Statement has been prepared by Bath and North East 
Somerset Council (the Administering Authority for the Local 
Government Pension Scheme in the area formerly known as Avon) 
to set out the funding strategy for the Avon Pension Fund (“the 
Fund”), in accordance with Regulation 35 of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 (as amended) 
and the guidance paper issued in March 2004 by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Pensions 
Panel. 

 
1. Introduction 

 
The Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 (as 
amended) (the “Administration Regulations”) replaced the Local Government 
Pension Scheme Regulations 1997 (as amended) providing the statutory 
framework from which the Administering Authority is required to prepare a 
Funding Strategy Statement (FSS). The key requirements for preparing the FSS 
can be summarised as follows: 
 
• After consultation with all relevant interested parties involved with the 

Scheme the Administering Authority will prepare and publish their 
funding strategy; 

 

• In preparing the FSS, the Administering Authority must have regard 
to:- 

(i) the guidance issued by CIPFA for this purpose; and 
(ii) the Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) for the Scheme 

published under Regulation 12 of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulations 2009 (as amended); 

 

• The FSS must be revised and published whenever there is a material 
change in either the policy set out in the FSS or the Statement of 
Investment Principles. 

 
Benefits payable under the Scheme are guaranteed by statute and thereby the 
pensions promise is secure. The FSS addresses the issue of managing the 
need to fund those benefits over the long term, whilst at the same time 
facilitating scrutiny and accountability through improved transparency and 
disclosure. 
 
The Scheme is a defined benefit final salary scheme under which the benefits 
are specified in the governing legislation (the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007 (as 

Page 129



2 

amended), the “BMC Regulations”). The required level of employee 
contributions are also specified in the BMC Regulations. 
 
Employer contributions are determined in accordance with the Regulations 
(principally Administration Regulation 36) which require that an actuarial 
valuation is completed every three years by the actuary, including a rates and 
adjustments certificate. Contributions to the Scheme should be set so as to 
“secure its solvency”, whilst the actuary must also have regard to the desirability 
of maintaining as nearly constant a rate of contribution as possible. The actuary 
must have regard to the FSS in carrying out the valuation. 
 

2. Purpose of the FSS in policy terms 
 
Funding is the making of advance provision to meet the cost of accruing benefit 
promises. Decisions taken regarding the approach to funding will therefore 
determine the rate or pace at which this advance provision is made. Although 
the Regulations specify the fundamental principles on which funding 
contributions should be assessed, implementation of the funding strategy is the 
responsibility of the Administering Authority, acting on the professional advice 
provided by the actuary. 
 
The purpose of this Funding Strategy Statement is: 
 
• to establish a clear and transparent fund-specific strategy which will 

identify how employers’ pension liabilities are best met going forward; 
• to support the regulatory requirement to maintain as nearly constant 

employer contribution rates as possible; and 
• to take a prudent longer-term view of funding those liabilities. 
 
The intention is for this strategy to be both cohesive and comprehensive for the 
Fund as a whole, recognising that there will be conflicting objectives which need 
to be balanced and reconciled. Whilst the position of individual employers must 
be reflected in the statement, it must remain a single strategy for the 
Administering Authority to implement and maintain. 
 

3. Aims and purpose of the Pension Fund 
 
The aims of the fund are to: 

 

• ensure that sufficient resources are available to meet all liabilities as they fall 
due  

• enable employer contribution rates to be kept as nearly constant as possible 
and at a reasonable and affordable cost to the taxpayers, scheduled, 
resolution and admitted bodies 

• support the employers so that they can manage their liabilities effectively, 
and 

• maximise the returns from investments within reasonable risk parameters. 
 
 
 
 

Page 130



3 

The purpose of the fund is to: 
 
• receive monies in respect of contributions, transfer values and investment 

income, and 
• pay out monies in respect of scheme benefits, transfer values, costs, 

charges and expenses 
 
(all the above items as defined in the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Administration) Regulations 2008 (as amended), the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007 
(as amended) and in the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management 
and Investment of Funds) Regulations 1998 (as amended)). 
 

4.  Responsibilities of the key parties 
 

The Administering Authority should: 
 
• collect employer and employee contributions 
• invest surplus monies in accordance with underlying legislation 
• ensure that cash is available to meet liabilities as and when they fall due 
• manage the valuation process in consultation with the actuary 
• prepare and maintain an FSS and a SIP, both after due consultation with 

interested parties, and 
• monitor all aspects of the Scheme’s performance and funding, amending the 

FSS/SIP as necessary. 
 

The Individual Employer should: 
 
• deduct contributions from employees’ pay correctly after determining the 

appropriate employee contribution rate (in accordance with BMC Regulation 
3) 

• pay all contributions, including their own as determined by the actuary, 
promptly by the due date 

• exercise discretions within the regulatory framework 
• make additional contributions in accordance with agreed arrangements in 

respect of, for example, augmentation of scheme benefits, early retirement 
strain, and 

• notify the Administering Authority promptly of any changes to membership 
which may affect future funding, before the event. 

 
The Fund Actuary should: 
 
• prepare valuations including the setting of employers’ contribution rates after 

consulting the Administering Authority and having regard to their FSS, and 
• prepare advice and calculations in connection with bulk transfers and 

individual benefit-related matters, and 
• advise on funding strategy, the preparation of the FSS and the inter-

relationship between the FSS and the SIP. 
 
 

Page 131



4 

5.  Solvency issues and target levels 
 

To meet the requirements of the Administration Regulations the Administering 
Authority’s long-term funding objective is to achieve and then maintain assets 
equal to 100% of projected accrued liabilities, assessed on an ongoing basis 
including allowance for projected final pay. 
 
The financial assumptions making up the funding strategy in respect of past 
service and as adopted for the 2010 valuation are: 
    

Rate of discount [6.85]% per annum (pre-retirement) 
5.70% per annum (post-retirement) 
 

Rate of Pensionable Pay Inflation 
 

[4.50]% per annum 
Rate of pension increase inflation [3.00]% per annum 

 
 

The key financial assumptions for Past Service are as follows: 
 

• the extent to which the Fund’s investments are expected to outperform a 
portfolio of Government bonds (“asset outperformance assumption” – AOA).  
An AOA of 2.35% per annum has been assumed in respect of pre-retirement 
liabilities and 1.2% per annum in respect of post-retirement liabilities. 

 
• the expected rate of Pensionable Pay increase above CPI price inflation 

(“real Pensionable Pay growth”).  This has been assumed to be 1.50% per 
annum in the long term (see further comments below). 

 
The AOA represents the advance allowance which, for valuation purposes, the 
actuary is making for the return which will be achieved on the Fund’s assets 
over and above Government bonds.  This reflects the liability profile of the Fund 
and the fact that the Fund is invested predominantly in higher return assets as 
detailed in Section 7.  If the return actually achieved is higher than this the Fund 
deficit will be reduced; if the return is lower then the Fund deficit will increase 
(provided that all the other assumptions remain valid). 
 
The rate of pensionable pay inflation relates to pay increases for scheme 
members during their period of employment (this will determine the level of their 
final salaries, on which the pension is based).  If the actual rate of pensionable 
pay inflation is greater than the actuary’s assumption the Fund deficit will 
increase; if it is lower then the Fund deficit will be reduced (again, provided that 
all the other assumptions remain valid). 
 
There are special circumstances relating to this valuation such as the 
government’s announcement that all public sector employees earning over a 
whole time equivalent of £21,000 per annum, would not receive any pay 
increases for at least two years whilst other employees would receive a flat 
increase.   Given this, the Administering Authority will, on the advice of the Fund 
Actuary, make an adjustment to the valuation results to reflect this short term 
pay progression as far as it relates to those employers affected by the change.  

Page 132



5 

 
The rate of price inflation applies primarily to pensions in payment and the 
assumption incorporates an adjustment to allow for supply/demand distortions 
in the bond market which is used to derive the market implied rate as at the 
valuation date.  The rate of price inflation is important as retirement pensions 
are increased each April by the Consumer Price Index applying in the previous 
September.   This is a departure from the historic approach based on the Retail 
Price Index and was announced by the Chancellor in his Emergency Budget in 
June 2010 and will apply from April 2011.    The above assumptions make due 
allowance for this revised basis of indexation as advised by the Actuary. 
 
In testing whether actual experience has been in line with the actuary’s 
assumptions (which are intended to be long term allowances rather than 
predictive of rates in the three year period between valuations), any monitoring 
exercise would need to focus on their aggregate effect.  
 
For calculating the cost of future accruals (the future service basis) a non-
market related basis is adopted. This focuses on stability in the future service 
contribution rate, rather than linking it directly to variable gilt yields at each 
valuation, with the object of introducing an element of smoothing into the costs 
falling on employers.  The use of a different basis for future service also reflects 
the fact that market conditions at time of payment of future contributions are at 
present unknown. 
 
The future service basis for the 2010 valuation assumes a real rate of discount 
in excess of price inflation of 3.75% per annum (pre and post retirement).   
 
The 2010 valuation takes into account modified longevity, ill health and 
proportions married assumptions compared to that adopted at the previous 
valuation following an analysis of Fund experience carried out by the Fund 
Actuary.   It also assumes that the accelerated trend in longevity seen in recent 
years will continue in the longer term and as such, builds in a minimum level of 
longevity ‘improvement’ year on year in the future. 
 
The following two tenets underpin the 2010 valuation: 
 
• that the Fund and the major employers are expected to continue for the 

foreseeable future; and 
• favourable investment performance can play a valuable part in achieving 

adequate funding over the longer term.  
 
The current actuarial valuation of the Fund is effective as at 31 March 2010. 
The results indicate that overall the assets of the Fund represented [83]% of 
projected accrued liabilities at the valuation date.  
 
Historically, any shortfall of assets relative to liabilities has been recovered over 
a period of 15 years.  At the 2004 valuation, the administering authority for the 
Avon Pension Fund, Bath & North East Somerset Council agreed to consider 
requests from employing bodies to increase their recovery periods from 15 to 20 
years and this position remained unchanged at the 2007 valuation  At this 
valuation the Administering Authority is recognising the pressures on public 

Page 133



6 

sector finances by extending the recovery period for Scheduled and 
Designating Bodies with the aim of maintaining a stable rate of contribution, 
subject to an employer’s strength of financial covenant.  The Actuary has drawn 
the Fund’s attention to the uncertain position regarding the willingness of the 
government to guarantee the outstanding pension liabilities of a scheduled 
body, in particular, a college or academy.  Because there are no immediate 
concerns about the financial covenant over the next three years, the same 
maximum deficit recovery period applied to the scheduled bodies will be applied 
to the collages and academies.  The financial risks of the colleges and 
academies will be monitored during the valuation period and, on the basis of 
this, different treatment may be necessary at the next valuation.  In addition, 
special arrangements continued to apply so far as the admitted bodies are 
concerned, these being subject to the outcome of the Fund’s review (see 
Appendix 1). 
 

Therefore the administering authority proposes to introduce the option for 
employing bodies to extend the maximum deficit recovery period to those 
shown in the table below, subject to there being no reduction in the 
employer contribution rate.   Employers will be able to select any shorter 
deficit recovery period than the maximum periods stated below. 
 
Employer Category Maximum Deficit Recovery Period 
Scheduled and Designating Bodies 
(except Bath Tourism Plus and 
Destination Bristol 
 

[30] years subject to no reduction in 
the employer rate 

Community Admission Bodies 
(guaranteed by another Scheme 
Employer within the Fund) 
 

[30] years subject to agreement with 
Guarantor 

Community Admission Bodies (with no 
guarantee), Bath Tourism Plus and 
Destination Bristol 
 

Determined on a case by case basis 

Transferee Admission Bodies 
(guaranteed by the letting Scheme 
Employers) 
 

Deficit recovery period to be agreed 
with the letting scheme employer 

 
Ideally, the Fund would have been seeking to move back to a lower deficit 
recovery period at this stage but, in view of the continuing funding pressures it 
has not proved practicable.  Any savings arising as a result of scheme 
changes or any improvement in the funding position at the next valuation 
will be used to reduce the deficit recovery period to at least the 2007 
position and therefore reduce the overall cost of the scheme.  Only after this 
has been achieved, will any reductions in employer contribution rates be 
considered.  
 
Similarly, any increase in contribution rates necessary to restore full funding and 
again after discussion with the actuary, the Fund will consider allowing 
employing bodies to phase in the increase over a period not normally exceeding 

Page 134



7 

[three] years. However, it should be noted that it may not be possible to extend 
this facility to all admitted bodies. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the Fund, in consultation with the actuary, has also 
had to consider whether any exceptional arrangements should apply in 
particular cases. 
 
In exercising their discretion within the maximum deficit recovery period, the 
employing bodies will be given detailed advice by the Avon Pension Fund. 
 

6. Admitted Bodies, Destination Bristol and Bath Tourism Plus 
 

There are particular issues which need to be addressed in this Statement 
regarding the way in which the liabilities of admitted bodies are funded. The 
essential issues are (i) what valuation basis should be used when an admitted 
body leaves the Fund, (ii) what steps can reasonably be taken to protect 
employing bodies generally from the financial risk of an admitted body 
becoming insolvent and (iii) what level of contribution rate is affordable. These 
issues are addressed in detail in Appendix 1.  
 
The main item of policy set out in Appendix 1 is that, unless the liabilities 
of an admitted body are transferred on closure to another employing 
body, the residual liabilities will be valued using either: 
 
• an “ongoing” valuation basis; consistent with the 2010 actuarial 

valuation assumptions but updated for market yields/inflation 
applying at the cessation date, or  

 
• a “corporate bond yield” basis; consistent with the 2010 actuarial 

valuation assumptions, updated for market yields/inflation applying 
at the cessation date but with a discount rate based on the long 
dated Sterling AA Corporate Bond yield, 

 
whichever produces the higher liability value. 
 
(It should be noted that this principle would apply to any employing body which 
leaves the Fund.  Although the number of occasions when this is likely to occur 
are few, the bodies involved can be quite sizable. These events are normally 
triggered by restructurings initiated by government). Additionally, where an 
admitted body becomes insolvent and leaves a deficit with the Fund, there is 
a change in the way in which this deficit will be funded in future.  
 
Although Destination Bristol and Bath Tourism Plus are resolution bodies, these 
have the same characteristics as some of the Fund’s admitted bodies and must 
be considered in the same way.  
 
Since the Fund's policy on admitted bodies will have implications for 
every employing body in the Fund, this Appendix should be regarded as an 
integral part of the Funding Strategy Statement and be read as such.  
 
 

Page 135



8 

7. Link to investment policy as set out in the Statement of Investment 
Principles (SIP) 

 
The results of the 2010 valuation show the liabilities to be [83]% covered by the 
current assets, with the funding deficit of [17]% being covered by future deficit 
contributions. 
 
In assessing the value of the Fund’s liabilities in the valuation, allowance has 
been made for asset out-performance as described below, taking into account 
the investment strategy adopted by the Fund, as set out in the SIP. 
 
It is not possible to construct a portfolio of investments which produces a stream 
of income exactly matching the expected liability outgo.  However, it is possible 
to construct a portfolio which closely matches the liabilities and represents the 
least risk investment position.  Such a portfolio would consist of a mixture of 
long-term index-linked and fixed interest gilts. 
 
Investment of the Fund’s assets in line with the least risk portfolio would 
minimise fluctuations in the Fund’s ongoing funding level between successive 
actuarial valuations. 
 
If, at the valuation date, the Fund had been invested in this portfolio, then in 
carrying out this valuation it would not be appropriate to make any allowance for 
out-performance of the investments or any adjustment to market implied 
inflation assumption due to supply/demand distortions in the bond markets.  On 
this basis of assessment, the assessed value of the Fund’s liabilities at the 2010 
valuation would have been significantly higher. 
 
Departure from a least risk investment strategy, in particular to include equity 
investments, gives the prospect that out-performance by the assets will, over 
time, reduce the contribution requirements. The target position of having 
sufficient assets to meet the Fund’s pension obligations might in practice 
therefore be achieved by a range of combinations of funding plan, investment 
strategy and investment performance.  
 
The current benchmark investment strategy, and expected long-term 
returns, as set out in the SIP are: 
 

Asset Class % of Fund Expected Return 
(long term, p.a.) 

UK Equities 27% 8.4% 
Overseas Equities 33% 8.4% 
Index-Linked Gilts 6% 5.1% 
Fixed Coupon Gilts 6% 4.7% 
UK Corporate Bonds 5% 5.6% 
Overseas Fixed Interest 3% 5.6% 
Fund of Hedge Funds 10% 6.6% 
Property 10% 7.4% 

 
As documented in the SIP, the investment strategy and return expectations set 
out above equate to an overall expected return of 2.8% per annum in excess of 

Page 136



9 

long-dated gilt returns.  For the purposes of setting funding strategy however, 
the Administering Authority believes that it is appropriate to take a margin for 
prudence on these return expectations.  
 
The funding strategy adopted for the 2010 valuation is based on an assumed 
asset out-performance of [2.35%] in respect of liabilities pre-retirement and 
[1.2%] in respect of post-retirement liabilities. Based on the liability profile of the 
Scheme at valuation, this equates to an overall average asset out-performance 
allowance of [1.6]% per annum in the short term to keep pace with the liabilities. 
The Administering Authority believes that this is a reasonable and prudent 
allowance for asset out-performance, based on the investment strategy set out 
in the SIP. 
 

8.  Identification of risks and counter-measures 
 
The funding of defined benefits is by its nature uncertain. Funding of the 
Scheme is based on both financial and demographic assumptions. These 
assumptions are specified in the actuarial valuation report. When actual 
experience is not in line with the assumptions adopted a surplus or shortfall will 
emerge at the next actuarial assessment and will require a subsequent 
contribution adjustment to bring the funding back into line with the target. 
 
The Administering Authority has been advised by the actuary that the greatest 
risk to the funding level is the investment risk inherent in the predominantly 
equity based strategy, so that actual asset out-performance between 
successive valuations could diverge significantly from that assumed in the long 
term. 
 
The chart below illustrates the range and uncertainty in the future progression of 
the funding level, relative to the funding target adopted at the valuation.   Using 
a simplified model, the chart shows the probability of exceeding a certain 
funding level over a [10] year period from the valuation date assuming no 
change in contribution rates, investment strategy or the benefits of the Scheme.   
For example, the top line shows the 95th percentile level (i.e. there is a 5% 
chance of the funding level at each point in time being better than the funding 
level shown, and a 95% chance of the funding level being lower.)  
 
CHART TO BE CONSIDERED - TBC 
 
Financial 
 
The financial risks are as follows:- 
 
• Investment markets fail to perform in line with expectations 
• Market yields move at variance with assumptions 
• Investment Fund Managers fail to achieve performance targets over the 

longer term 
• Asset re-allocations in volatile markets may lock in past losses 
• Pay and price inflation significantly more or less than anticipated 
 

Page 137



10 

To the extent that employer contribution rates need to increase as a result of 
these risks, there will in turn be an impact on service delivery and the financial 
position of admitted/scheduled bodies. 
 
In practice the extent to which these risks can be reduced is limited. However, 
the Fund’s asset allocation is kept under constant review and the performance 
of the investment managers is regularly monitored.  
 
Demographic 
 
The demographic risks are as follows:- 
 
• Longevity horizon continues to expand 
• Deteriorating pattern of early retirements (including those granted on the 

grounds of ill health) 
 
Increasing longevity is something which government policies, both national and 
local, are designed to promote. It does, however, result in a greater liability for 
pension funds. 
 
Apart from the regulatory procedures in place to ensure that ill-health 
retirements are properly controlled, employing bodies should be doing 
everything in their power to minimise the number of ill-health retirements. 
Early retirements for reasons of redundancy and efficiency do not affect the 
solvency of the Fund because they are the subject of a direct charge. 
 
Regulatory 
 
The regulatory risks are as follows:- 
 
• Changes to Regulations, e.g. changes to the benefits package, retirement 

age, potential new entrants to scheme,  
• Changes to national pension requirements and/or Inland Revenue Rules 
 
Membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme is open to all local 
government staff and should be encouraged as a valuable part of the contract 
of employment. However, increasing membership does result in higher 
employer costs.  
 
Governance 
 
The Avon Pension Fund Committee has done as much as it believes it 
reasonably can to enable employing bodies and scheme members (via their 
trades unions) to make their views known to the Fund and to participate in the 
decision-making process. So far as the revised Funding Strategy Statement is 
concerned, it will be circulating copies of the first draft to all employing bodies 
for their comments and will also place a copy on the Fund’s website. The first 
draft is being released after consultation with Members of the Avon Pension 
Fund Committee; the final version will be approved at the Committee’s meeting 
in September after the Fund has received feedback from the employing bodies.  
 

Page 138



11 

Governance risks are as follows:- 
 
• Administering Authority unaware of structural changes in employer’s 

membership (e.g. large fall in employee numbers, large number of 
retirements) with the result that contribution rates are set at too low a level 

• Administering Authority not advised of an employer closing to new entrants, 
something which would normally require an increase in contribution rates 

• An employer ceasing to exist with insufficient funding or adequacy of a bond. 
  
For these risks to be minimised much depends on information being supplied to 
the Administering Authority by the employing bodies. Bond arrangements are 
strictly controlled and monitored, but in most cases the outsourcing employer, 
rather than the Fund, bears the risk. 

 
9.  Monitoring and Review 

 
The Administering Authority has taken advice from the actuary in preparing this 
Statement. 
 
A full review of this Statement will occur no less frequently than every three 
years, to coincide with completion of a full actuarial valuation. Any review will 
take account of the current economic conditions and will also reflect any 
legislative changes. 
 
The Administering Authority will monitor the progress of the funding strategy 
between full actuarial valuations. If considered appropriate, the funding strategy 
will be reviewed (other than as part of the triennial valuation process), for 
example: 
 
• if there has been a significant change in market conditions, and/or deviation 

in the progress of the funding strategy 
• if there have been significant changes to the Scheme membership, or LGPS 

benefits 
• if there have been changes to the circumstances of any of the employing 

authorities to such an extent that they impact on or warrant a change in the 
funding strategy 

• if there have been any significant special contributions paid into the Fund. 
 
When monitoring the funding strategy, if the Administering Authority considers that 
any action is required, the relevant employing authorities will be contacted. In the 
case of admitted bodies, there is statutory provision for rates to be amended 
between valuations but it is unlikely that this power will be invoked other than in 
exceptional circumstances. 

 
 
Avon Pension Fund 
[to be updated] 
 

Page 139



12 

FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT – APPENDIX 1 
 

ADMITTED BODIES including DESTINATION BRISTOL AND BATH 
TOURISM PLUS 

 
Introduction 
 

1. An admitted body is an employer which, if it satisfies certain regulatory 
criteria, can apply to participate in the Fund. If its application is accepted 
by the administering authority, it will then have an “admission 
agreement”. In accordance with the Regulations, the admission 
agreement sets out the conditions of participation of the admitted body 
including which employees (or categories of employees) are eligible to 
be members of the Fund.  

 
2. There are basically two types of admitted body, as follows:- 

 
Transferee admission bodies – An employer which participates in the 
Fund for the benefit of employees involved with delivery of a specific 
function or service for a Scheme Employer (the “transferor scheme 
employer”). An example is where a local authority outsources a specific 
service (e.g. waste management) to a private sector employer. In these 
cases the Scheme Employer acts as ultimate guarantor and would be a 
party to the admission agreement in addition to the admitted body itself. 
 
Community admission bodies – These are the traditional type of 
admitted body, i.e. those which provide some form of public service and 
whose funding in most cases derives primarily from local or central 
government. In reality they take many different forms but the one 
common element is that they are “not for profit” organisations.  
 
Destination Bristol and Bath Tourism Plus – These bodies are 
companies limited by guarantee in which the outsourcing Scheme 
Employer has a controlling interest. Although they are “Designating 
Bodies”, they have similar characteristics to admitted bodies (viz. they 
are similar to transferee admission bodies in that there is an “outsourcing 
employer” and they are similar to most of the Fund’s community 
admission bodies in that there is no guarantee). For the purpose of the 
Funding Strategy Statement they will be treated as if they are community 
admission bodies. 
 

3. As mentioned above, community admission bodies in the Avon Pension 
Fund are a diverse group. Some are financially very secure in that they 
receive funding from either the government or local authorities on a quasi 
permanent basis. Others either have short-term funding contracts with 
local authorities, which may not be renewed when they expire, or depend 
heavily on various forms of fund raising. Most of the recently admitted 
bodies are backed by a guarantee; however, those which were admitted 
more than eight years ago will have no such backing and, as such, will 
constitute a potential risk to the Fund. This is because they may cease 

Page 140



13 

operations with insufficient residual assets to meet their pension 
liabilities.  

 
4. The risks associated with admitted bodies have always existed but these 

risks have assumed a higher profile recently because most Funds – and, 
by extension, most employing bodies – now have a deficit of assets 
relative to liabilities. It is important that, in the interests of the other 
employing bodies, as much as possible is done to manage the risks 
associated with the admitted bodies. There is also the question of the 
basis on which the liabilities of the admitted bodies are valued by the 
actuary when the admitted body leaves the Fund. These have always 
been valued on a stronger basis (= more highly valued) than that used 
for the triennial valuation.    

 
Valuation Basis 
 

5. When the actuary prepares the triennial valuation, the rate at which he 
discounts future pension payments back to a present value reflects the 
return which he expects, or “assumes”, that the Fund will earn on its 
investments over the long term. If this return is not achieved, either in the 
short term or the long term, all other things being equal, contribution 
rates would have to be increased at subsequent valuations. 

 
6. When an admitted body leaves the Fund, there is no facility to revert to 

that body if the contributions paid by that body to meet future pension 
payments prove to be inadequate. Because the body responsible for 
generating these liabilities has no ongoing obligation to meet any future 
increase in liabilities relative to assets, the liabilities left with the Fund are 
known as “orphan liabilities”.  

 
7. Therefore, unless the liabilities of an admitted body are transferred 

on closure to another employing body, the residual liabilities will be 
valued by the actuary using either 

 
• an “ongoing” valuation basis consistent with the 2010 actuarial 

valuation assumptions but updated for market yields/inflation 
applying at the cessation date,  

or 
• a “corporate bond yield” basis consistent with the 2010 

valuation assumptions, updated for market yields/inflation 
applying at the cessation date but with a discount rate based on 
the long dated Sterling AA Corporate Bond yield, 

 
whichever produces the higher liability value.  
 
The theory is that, if the assets left by the admitted body are invested in 
corporate bonds, the Fund can be assured of achieving a return which 
would approximate to the underlying liabilities and thereby eliminate most 
of the investment risk arising from “orphan liabilities”. The Sterling AA 
Corporate Bond yield is, of course, the discount rate currently used for 

Page 141



14 

FRS 17 purposes, albeit over a range of durations appropriate to the 
underlying liabilities.  

 
8. For the purposes of the actuarial valuation, there is arguably a case for 

using the Sterling AA Corporate Bond yield to discount the liabilities of a 
substantial number of admitted bodies. This would have a twofold benefit 
in that (i) it would achieve consistency between the triennial valuation 
and the valuation basis used on closure and (ii) the higher contributions 
would provide greater protection for the other employing bodies in the 
Fund who, by default, would have to meet any deficit left by an admitted 
body which became insolvent. 

 
9. Ahead of the 2010 valuation only a small number of admitted bodies are 

in the position of having their liabilities valued on the Sterling AA 
Corporate Bond basis. Had financial circumstances been more 
favourable at the last valuation, there would have been more.     

 
10.However, for the benefit of the admitted bodies, additional information will 

be provided showing the past service deficit which would have resulted if 
the Sterling AA Corporate Bond yield had been used as the discount 
rate.  Employers will then have input as to whether they wish to reduce 
investment risk and volatility by investing in corporate bonds with the 
liabilities being valued accordingly.  However, this reduction in volatility 
will come at an increase in the contribution rate. 

 
Transferee Admission Bodies 
  

11. As at 31 March 2010 the transferee admission bodies in the Avon 
Pension Fund, with the outsourcing Scheme Employer in brackets, were 
as follows:- 

 
Active Community Engagement Ltd (Bristol City Council) 
Agincare (Bath & North East Somerset Council) 
Aquaterra Leisure Ltd. (Bath & North East Somerset Council) 
Aramark Ltd (City of Bristol College) 
BAM Construction UK Ltd (Bristol City Council) 
Bespoke Cleaning Services Ltd (Filton College)  
Churchill Contract Services Ltd (Bristol City Council) 
Eden Food Services (Bristol City Council) 
English Landscapes (Bristol City Council)  
ISS Mediclean (Bristol City Council) 
Mama Bears (City of Bristol College) 
Mouchel Business Services Ltd (Bath & North East Somerset Council) 
Northgate Information Systems (Bristol City Council) 
Prospect Services Limited (Gloucestershire County Council) 
Quadron Services Ltd (Bristol City Council) 
Shaw Healthcare (North Somerset) Ltd. (North Somerset Council) 
SITA Holdings UK Ltd. (South Gloucestershire Council) 
Skanska Rashleigh Weatherfoil (Bristol City Council)  
SLM Community Leisure (Bristol City Council) 

  SLM Fitness and Health (Bristol City Council) 

Page 142



15 

 South Gloucestershire Leisure Trust (South Gloucestershire Council) 
The Brandon Trust (North Somerset Council) 
Yes Dining Ltd (Bristol City Council) 
 
The Fund’s actuary has advised that, if the outsourcing employer is 
willing to take over the liabilities of the admitted body when the admission 
agreement is terminated, the existing valuation basis can continue to be 
used (this does not preclude the possibility of the admitted body 
compensating the outsourcing employer for any deficit which may exist 
on closure). If, however, the outsourcing employer is not willing to take 
over the liabilities, the admitted body’s liabilities would become “orphan 
liabilities” and the stronger valuation basis would apply.   
 

12. The information which the Fund will be seeking in respect of these 
admitted bodies is the policy stance of the outsourcing Scheme 
Employer with regard to the treatment of the transferee admission 
body’s liabilities on closure. It will also be looking for guidance 
from these employers with regard to ongoing deficit management.  

 
Community Admission Bodies (with guarantee) 
 

13. In 2002 new legislation was introduced which made it possible for the 
Fund to seek guarantees from local authorities in support of applications 
made by potential community admission bodies wishing to participate in 
the Fund. The current policy of the Avon Pension Fund is that any 
such applications must, with few exceptions, be accompanied by a 
guarantee or, failing that, a bond. 

 
14. As at 31 March 2010 the community admission bodies in the Avon 

Pension Fund supported by a guarantee were as follows:- 
 

Merlin Housing Society Ltd. (Transferred Staff Only) 
North Somerset Housing 

 Southwest Grid for Learning Trust 
 West of England Sport Trust (Wesport) 
 

15.The guarantors for Merlin Housing Society Ltd and North Somerset 
Housing are South Gloucestershire Council and North Somerset Council 
respectively. In this case the relationship between the community 
admission bodies and the “outsourcing” employer is, from the Fund’s 
standpoint, much the same as for transferee admission bodies. The Fund 
will accordingly seek to establish the policy stance of the outsourcing 
employer with regard to the treatment of the community admission 
body’s liabilities both on an ongoing basis and on closure. 

 
16.The admission agreement for Southwest Grid for Learning Trust involves 

multiple guarantors, many of whom are not employers in the Avon 
Pension Fund. In this case it is not practical for any deficit on closure to 
be transferred to another employer in the Fund. The Sterling AA 
Corporate Bond valuation basis would therefore apply on closure and the 

Page 143



16 

Fund will be discussing with Southwest Grid for Learning Trust the 
feasibility of adopting this valuation basis at the 2010 valuation. 

 
17.  Wesport was admitted to the Fund with effect from 1/1/2007. In this case 

the guarantors are the four unitary councils. It was agreed with these 
Councils that the Sterling AA Corporate Bond valuation basis should 
apply from the outset.   

 
Community Admission Bodies (without guarantee) 

 
18. The majority of community admission bodies in the Fund are, for 

historical reasons, not supported by a guarantee. Some were admitted 
prior to 1974, the year in which Avon County Council became the 
administering authority for the Avon Pension Fund. Some were admitted 
during the Avon County Council era (1974 to 1996). Others were 
admitted during the first five years of Bath & North East Somerset 
Council’s administration of the Fund when there was no provision in law 
for local authorities to provide guarantees to underpin an admission 
agreement. 

 
19. As at 31 March 2010 the community admission bodies in the Avon 

Pension Fund without a guarantee were as follows:- 
 

Ashley House Hostel 
Bath & North East Somerset Racial Equality Council 
Brislington Neighbourhood Centre 

 Bristol Council for Racial Equality 
 Care Quality Commission  

Centre for Deaf People 
 Clifton Suspension Bridge Trust 
 Connexions West of England 
 Direxions for Success Ltd 
 Holburne Museum of Art 

Learning Partnership West Ltd  
Off The Record Bath & North East Somerset 

 Somer Community Housing Trust 
 Somer Housing Group Ltd 
 Southern Brooks Community Partnership 
 University of Bath 
 West Mendip Internal Drainage Board 
 Woodspring Association for Blind People 
 

20. Some of these organisations provide a service which, because it is 
supported by a particular employing body, can be regarded as providing 
the service on behalf of that employing body. In the event that an 
organisation of this sort goes into liquidation and leaves the Fund with an 
excess of liabilities relative to assets (using the Sterling AA Corporate 
Bond valuation basis) the most equitable solution, after utilising any legal 
remedies which may exist to obtain the necessary funds from the defunct 
body itself, would be to transfer the deficit to the relevant (i.e. “linked”) 

Page 144



17 

employing body. (Alternatively, the employing body might choose to take 
over both the liabilities and assets of the defunct body).  

 
21.The test which would be applied to establish whether a “link” exists is 

taken from the regulations themselves, viz, whether the defunct body 
“has sufficient links with a Scheme Employer for the body and the 
Scheme Employer to be regarded as having a community of interest, 
whether because the operations of the body are dependent on the 
operations of the Scheme Employer or otherwise.” The alternative to this 
solution would be for the deficit to be shared among all employing bodies 
in the Fund in accordance with the Regulations, something which has 
been normal practice for the Avon Pension Fund but which clearly has 
shortcomings from the standpoint of equity.  

 
22. Since there is no regulatory backing to support this approach, it 

can only be adopted by agreement. To date it has not been possible 
to secure this agreement. However, if the employers in the Fund 
were willing to agree to this approach, it would also be possible to 
reflect the stronger covenant when calculating the contribution rate 
for such bodies (in particular, this could affect the deficit recovery 
period).  

 
23. In more general terms, the question of whether the valuation basis 

should be changed for community admission bodies without a 
guarantee will depend very much on individual circumstances. For 
example, some of these bodies may intend to remain with the Fund 
indefinitely and, in the hypothetical event of closure, would have 
sufficient resources to meet the closure cost. In these cases it will be 
sufficient to simply draw the body’s attention to the Fund’s policy on 
closure as set out in this Statement. Otherwise the desirability of moving 
to a Sterling AA Corporate Bond basis of valuation has to be weighed 
against the ability of that body to pay higher contribution rates.  

 
Destination Bristol and Bath Tourism Plus 

 
24. The Fund remains concerned that there is no provision in the 

Regulations for the Scheme Employers which “control” Bath Tourism 
Plus and Destination Bristol to underwrite the liabilities of those bodies 
and has brought this matter to the attention of the Government. Given 
the present situation where there is no guarantee in place the case for 
moving to a Sterling AA Corporate bond basis remains and will be 
explored as part of the 2010 valuation.  

 
Valuation 2010 

 
25. The Fund’s officers will, prior to the setting of new contribution rates, 

meet representatives of each of the admitted bodies, firstly, to explain the 
background to the 2010 valuation and, secondly, to establish, if possible, 
the extent to which they can accommodate any contribution rate 
increases. It is anticipated that on this occasion affordability 

Page 145



18 

considerations will be paramount and that action to accelerate deficit 
recovery will need to await future valuations.  

 

Page 146



Appendix 2 
 

Responses to Funding Strategy Statement 2010 
 

Employing Body Comments 
 

Bath & North East 
Somerset Council 

• Supportive of the key elements of the FSS, in particular 
rate stability and the use of prospective Hutton review 
savings to reduce the deficit recovery period in future. 
Request to explore the practical implications, from an 
accounting perspective, of expressing the deficit 
recovery element of the contribution rate as a cash sum 

Bradley Stoke TC • Content with a maximum 30 year deficit recovery period 
provided that they have the option to reduce it following 
calculation of the new rates. Favour short term pay 
adjustment but Town Council is not directly linked to local 
government pay scales 

Bristol City Council • Request assurance that maximum 30 year deficit 
recovery period is consistent with rate stability. May wish 
to discuss practicalities of expressing deficit recovery 
element of the contribution rate as a cash sum  

Downend & Bromley 
Heath PC 

• No comment (presumed in favour) 
ISS Mediclean • Queries re projected investment returns and request for 

more information about demographic assumptions 
North Somerset 
Council 

• Support the extension of the deficit recovery period. 
Stress the importance of factoring in the short term pay 
adjustment. 

Somer Housing Group • Query as to what the effect of determining the deficit 
recovery period for community admission bodies on an 
individual basis will mean for Somer. Query re 
investment policy (is it too risky?) and request for more 
information about demographic assumptions. Supportive 
of short term pay adjustment but believe long term pay 
assumption of 4.5% may be “too high” 

South Gloucestershire 
Council 

• In broad agreement with the thrust of the FSS 
University of Bath • Supportive of increase in maximum deficit recovery 

period, subject to the Hutton review savings being used 
to reduce it again in the future. Argue forcefully that 
short-term pay adjustment would be appropriate in their 
case 

UWE • Appreciate the emphasis on rate stability in the short run 
but stress importance of using the prospective Hutton 
review savings to reduce the deficit recovery period as 
soon as possible. Argue that they should be considered 
as part of the public sector in terms of pay constraint   

Yate TC • No comment (presumed in favour) 
 

Page 147



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING:  AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE AGENDA 
ITEM 
NUMBER 

12 MEETING 
DATE: 

 24 SEPTEMBER 2010 

TITLE: PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION - EXPENDITURE FOR 4 MONTHS TO 31st 

JULY 2010 AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR THE 3 MONTHS 
ENDING 31ST JULY 2010 

WARD: ‘ALL’                          
  AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

List of attachments to this report:   
Appendix 1     Summary Financial Account: current financial year to 31st July 2010 
Appendix 2     Summary of Budget Variances: 4 months ending 31st July 2010 
Appendix 3A   Balanced Scorecard : 3 months to 31st July 2010 
Appendix 3B   Balanced Scorecard : Graphs for selected items 
Appendix 4A  Customer Satisfaction Feedback in 3 months to 31st July 2010 

(Retirements from ACTIVE status) 
Appendix 4B  Customer Satisfaction Feedback in 3 months to 31st July 2010 
                        (Retirements from DEFERRED status) 
Appendix 5    Customer Satisfaction Feedback in 3 months to 31st July 2010 for 

members attending  Pension Clinics 
 
 
 
 
 
1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of administration and 
management expenditure incurred against budget for the current financial year to 
31st July 2010. This information is set out in Appendices 1 and 2.  

1.2 This report also contains Performance Indicators (Appendix 3) and Customer 
Satisfaction Feedback for 3 months to 31stJuly 2010 recently retired members and 
from members attending Pension Clinics. (Appendices 4 and 5). 

 
2 RECOMMENDATION  

2.1 That the Committee:- 
(i) Notes the expenditure for administration and management expenses 

incurred for the 4 months ending 31st July 2010.  
(ii) Notes the Performance Indicators and Customer Satisfaction feedback for 

3 months to 31st July 2010. 

Agenda Item 12

Page 149



 2

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 The administrative and management costs incurred by the Avon Pension Fund are 

recovered from the employing bodies through the employers’ contribution rates. 
3.2 The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 

Regulations 2009 provide that any costs, charges and expenses incurred 
administering a pension fund may be paid from it.  

4.   COMMENT ON BUDGET  
  
4.1 The summary Financial Accounts have been prepared to cover the period 1 April to 

31st July 2010 and are contained in Appendix 1.  
 
4.2 The forecast variance for the full year to 31 March 2011 is £392,000 under budget. 

Excluding Investment Management and custody fees a net under-spend of £8,000 
is forecast. The total forecast variance is mainly due to a reduction in fees payable 
to the Fund’s investment managers and to the external auditors. 

 
4.3 The forecast under-spend on investment management fees for the full year is a 

result of the appointment of the Global Equity Manager not being made as early as 
was assumed in the preparation of the budget. This is also the basis of the forecast 
small reduction in expenditure on Custodian’s fees. Within investment manager 
fees £127,000 of the budget relates to performance related fees.    

 
4.4 Communications costs for the full year are forecast to be £12,000 over-spent. This 

is largely due to £32,000 of the one off initial costs of Heywood’s Member Self 
Services system occurring in the current year. The cost of this system is expected 
to be recouped through the savings it generates over the next two years. The 
additional expenditure is forecast to be partly offset in the current year by savings in 
the cost of Guides and Leaflets. 

 
4.5 Salaries costs for the full year are forecast to be on budget.  
 
4.6 Compliance Costs for the full year are forecast to be £23,000 under-spent. This is 

entirely as a result of the forecast reduction in fees from the Audit Commission that 
was included in the Annual Audit Fee Letter presented to the Committee in June.  

 
4.7 A summary of variances to 31st July 2010 and forecast for the full year is contained 

in Appendix 2 to this Report. 
 
 
5. BALANCED SCORECARD SHOWING PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (“PIs”) FOR 3 
MONTHS TO 31ST JULY 2010 (APPENDIX 3A (STATISTICAL) AND APPENDIX 3B 
(GRAPHICAL) FORMATS 

5.1 The information provided in this report is consistent with the methodology applied to 
the Council generally but has been customised to reflect the special circumstances 
of the Avon Pension Fund. Full details of performance against target, in tabular 
and graph format, are shown in Appendices 3A and 3B  

5.2 Data Cleansing: The effect on work. This period saw a final assault on cleansing 
member data before the due date to send to the Scheme’s actuary on 15th July for 
the Actuarial triennial valuation. As a result many “old” unprocessed leavers needed 
to be cleared, in many cases with limited or missing information.  Death cases 

Page 150



 3

revealed by the Data Cleansing Exercise proved in many cases to be complex and 
time-consuming resulting in performance dropping to below 60% against the usual 
90% target. This is not seen as a cause for concern as this is an exceptional 
circumstance, unlikely to be repeated for some time. In general the data cleansing 
increased the number and difficulty of cases to be processed.   
Nevertheless in the 3 month period, over 95% of cases set up were cleared resulting 
in outstanding cases below 5% - considerably ahead of the 10% target. This is 
commendable as this was during the Data Cleansing Exercise,  

5.3 Transfers: Both transfers in and out back on track and above target of 75% having 
now cleared the backlog following receipt of GAD guidance in September 2009. 
However a further revision and publication of transfer factors is needed following the 
government’s recent move to increasing pensions in the future by CPI (Consumer 
Price Index)  instead of RPI( Retail Price Index). This has meant that “Club 
Transfers” in and out (viz. mainly Public Sector) are having to be stockpiled until 
revised factors are received from GAD. This is expected to be within the next few 
months. 

5.4 Complaints:  There were no complaints received in the period  
 
5.5 APF Website: Visits to APF Website averaged more than double the monthly 

1500 target. As the hit rate has been above 3,000 for over a year now the target 
going forward will be increased to 3,000 per calendar month. The increased activity 
indicates the growing  interest in pensions  

5.6 Sickness absence: APF had an excellent record in the period with no long-term 
sickness and only 1.18% short- term sickness both well ahead of the APF 3% target 
and the Administering Authority’s 5% target.  

 
6.  CUSTOMER SATISFACTION FEEDBACK IN 3 MONTHS TO 31ST JULY 2010  
6.1 RETIREMENT QUESTIONNAIRES (Details are in Appendices 4A & 4B) 

On average over 80% of active members retiring from service received their lump sum 
and 76% their first pension payments within 10 days of the selected time measure.  

 On average 90% of former active members retiring from deferred status received their 
lump sum and 87% their first pension payments within “10 day” target.  

     Good/excellent responses were received from members on the service received from 
Avon Pension Fund staff handling their retirement. Overall service rating as good or 
excellent from both actives and deferreds was 91% (Item 5 on both graphs). 

   
6.2  CLINICS FEEDBACK 
 
6.2.1 Pension Clinics:  Four clinics were held in this period – one at Bath Spa University, 

two for civilians at the Avon Fire & Rescue and one at Weston College.  From the 
questionnaire responses (reported on in detail in Appendix 5) it can be seen that 
ratings in the high 90%s were given, except for the venue which was rated only 81% 
of attendees as good or above. The Fund has little control over this: however 
employers are made aware of members’ comments and we would expect the 
suitability of venues to improve.  

 
Page 151



 4

6.2.2 Redundancy Clinics: In addition to the “regular” clinics, during the period Avon 
Pension Staff were asked to attend special Redundancy Clinics at two South 
Gloucestershire care homes where a total of 23 staff at risk of redundancy were 
provided with estimated pension figures on redundancy.  It is not felt appropriate to 
ask attendees to complete feedback forms in these circumstances.  

 
FUTURE Redundancy Clinics: It is expected that during the remainder of 2010, and 
in 2011 and 2012, more redundancy clinics will be requested particularly by the four 
unitary employing authorities who are expected to be significantly downsizing their 
workforces. 

 
7. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
7.1   None appropriate. 
8. RISK MANAGEMENT 
8.1 This report contains only recommendations to note - no risk assessment is necessary. 
9. EQUALITIES 
9.1 No equalities impact assessment is required as the Report contains only 

recommendations to note. 
10. ADVICE SOUGHT 
10.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) and Section 151 Officer 

(Divisional Director - Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and 
have cleared it for publication. 

.Contact person  Martin Phillips, Finance & Systems Manager (Pensions) (Budgets) 
Tel: 01225 395369   
Steve McMillan, Pensions Manager (Performance Indicators and 
Customer Feedback) Tel: 01225 395254 

Background papers Various Accounting and Statistical Records 

 

Page 152



APPENDIX 1
AVON PENSION FUND
SUMMARY FINANCIAL ACCOUNT  :  FOUR MONTHS ENDING  31 JULY 2010

FOUR MONTHS TO JULY 2010 FULL YEAR 2010/2011
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST BUDGET VARIANCE

£ £ £ £ £ £

Investment Expenses 45,202 37,672 7,530 113,016 113,016 0
Administration Costs 16,876 30,000 -13,124 90,883 89,999 884
Communication Costs 55,881 84,281 -28,401 265,097 252,844 12,253
Information Systems 93,962 52,906 41,056 158,719 158,719 0
Salaries 413,152 421,831 -8,679 1,265,493 1,265,493 0
Central Allocated Costs 84,059 131,573 -47,514 396,718 394,718 2,000
Miscellaneous Recoveries/Income -5,090 -44,900 39,810 -134,700 -134,700 0
Total Administration 704,042 713,363 -9,321 2,155,226 2,140,090 15,137

Global Custodian Fees 26,082 29,280 -3,198 83,282 87,840 -4,558
Investment Manager Fees 2,252,062 2,368,911 -101,205 6,727,420 7,106,733 -379,313
Governance Costs 42,919 88,731 -45,812 266,192 266,192 0
Members' Allowances -7,110 15,403 -22,513 46,210 46,210 0
Independent Members' Costs 4,818 6,253 -1,435 18,758 18,758 0
Compliance Costs 42,336 70,800 -28,464 189,400 212,400 -23,000
Compliance Costs recharged -22,268 -17,333 -4,935 -52,000 -52,000 0
Investment Governance & Compliance 2,338,839 2,562,044 -207,562 7,279,262 7,686,133 -406,871

NET TOTAL COSTS 3,042,881 3,275,408 -216,883 9,434,489 9,826,223 -391,734

P
age 153



P
age 154

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Summary of Budget Variances: Forecast for year, as at 31st July 2010    APPENDIX 2 
 
Variances Analysis of the full year budget against forecasted outturn to the year end 
 
Expenditure Heading Amount of 

Variance * 
Most Significant Reasons for Variance 

Communications Costs 12,000 The initial one off costs of the Heywood’s Member Self Services system 
(£50,000) will all be charged to the current year. The savings generated by this 
system are expected to recoup its cost over the next two years. This additional 
expenditure in the current year will be partially offset by savings in the cost of 
Guides and Leaflets.  

Custody Fees -4,000 A small reduction in custody fees is expected as a result of the appointment of 
a Global Equity Manager taking place later than was assumed in the 
preparation of the budget. 

Investment Manager Fees: 
 

-379,000 A reduction in ad valorem fees is expected as a result of the appointment of a 
Global Equity Manager taking place later than was assumed in the preparation 
of the budget. 
Note: £127,000 of the budgeted fees is due to performance related fees. 

Compliance Costs -23,000 Compliance costs are expected to be reduced by £23,000 as a result of 
reduced audit fees announced in the Audit Fee letter presented to the 
Committee in June.  
Compliance costs recharged relate mainly to actuarial costs. 

-ve variance represents an under-spend or recovery of income over budget 
+ve variance represents an over-spend or recovery of income below budget 

P
age 155



P
age 156

T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3A to Budget Monitoring Report at 31st July 2010

Green 
Red 

Amber
Reporting 

Dept 2009/10 Actual Target for 
2010/11

Actual - 3 
months to 
31/07/2010

Comment

A
1a G Admin 97% 95% 99% 4 clinics held during period. Graph 1
1b G Admin 95% 95% 90%+ Generally good from response from retirees
2 G Admin 90% 95% 97% Chartermark Accreditation obtained as part of B&NES Finance in 

2008 - re-assessment is due in 2011

3 G Admin 100% 100% 100% Level 3 obtained by B&NES in June 2010

4a
A Admin 89% 90% 57.58% 19 of 33 tasks were completed within target.
A Admin 70% 90% 86.47% 390 of 451 tasks were completed within target.
R Admin 82% 75% 43.33% 510 of 1177 tasks were completed within target.
G Admin 62% 60% 93.33% 84 of 90  tasks were completed within target.
A Admin 65% 75% 79.50% 128 of 161 tasks were completed within target.
A Admin 50% 75% 85.42% 82 of 96 tasks were completed within target.
G Admin 91% 90% 94.16% 677 of 719 tasks were completed within target.

4b G Admin 100% 100% 100% Should always be 100%
5 G Admin 22 0 0 No complaints received in the period
6 G Admin 100% 100% 100% All paid on time
7 G Admin n/a 100% 100% Should always be 100%
8 G Admin 44743 18000p/a 

1500p/m 11375 3791 per calendar month . More than double target Graph 2
9 G Admin 100% 100% 100% Should always be 100%
10 G Admin 100% 100% 100% Should always be 100%
11 G Admin 70% 100% 100% All sent by year end

Advising members of Reg Changes within 3 months of implementation
Issue of Newsletter (Active & Pensioners)
Annual Benefit Statements distributed by year end

Estimates [10 days]
Service Standards Processing tasks within statutory limits
Number of complaints
Pensions paid on time
Statutory Returns sent in on time (SF3/CIPFA)
Number of hits per period on APF website

Deaths [12 days]
Retirements [15 days]
Leavers (Deferreds) [20 days]
Refunds [5 days]
Transfer Ins [20 days]
Transfer Outs [15 days]

Service Standards - Processing tasks within internal targets (SLA)

General Satisfaction with Service - clinic feedback
General Satisfaction with Service - retirees feedback
Percentage Compliance with Charter Mark criteria

Level of Equalities Standard for Local Government

PENSIONS SECTION ADMINISTRATION
Key Performance Indicators

INDICATOR

Customer Perspective

P
age 157



Green 
Red 

Amber
Reporting 

Dept 2009/10 Actual Target for 
2010/11

Actual - 3 
months to 
31/07/2010

Comment

B

1 G All 100% 100% 100% Should always be 100%
2 G All 0% 100% 100%  n/a - reassessment due late Summer 2010
3 G All 0% 4% 0%  Well within target
4 G All 97% 100% n/a None due in this period
5 G All 2.50%  a) 3%                

b) 3%
a) 1.4%      
b) 0% Ahead of APF target and well ahead of corporate target of 5% Chart 3

6 G All 100% 100% 100%
Each person has a Personal Development Plan Folder. Program of 
courses (internal & external)  in place for 2009/10. Training needs 
identified at performance reviews.

C

1 A Admin a) 0.3%             
b) 100%

   a) 4%           b) 
100%

a) 0.3%                     
b) 100%

a)0.03% represents the members who  agreed receive the Newsletter 
electronically.   Gandlake initiative means that over 1500 members are 
happy to receive info electronically                                        b) Section able 
to deliver all targeted services electronically

2 G Admin 99% 98% 99.45% 9172 calls, 9120 answered within 20 seconds Graph 4
3 G Admin 100% 100% 100% Should never be less than  100%
4 G Admin 95% 95% 100% Ahead of target

5 G Admin 10.59% 10% 4.65% 5121 Created, 4883 cleared ( 95.35.% leaving 4.65% of workload 
outstanding) Ahead of target

Graphs 5 
6 & 7)

6 G Accounts  a) 6% b) 0.05%        a)  0% b)  0% a) 1.4%          
b)  0.005%       

Over the 3 month period only 2 small employers out of 108 employers 
remitted their contributions  late.    No  persistent late-payers. Average 
delay of late payers 5 days.  Employers are reminded regularly of their 
legal obligations to pay on time and the possibility (under the 2007 Admin 
Regs) of billing them for  extra  charges if unnecessary additional work is 
created for APF.

7 G Admin 81% 100% 100%

Returns from Employers of member contributionss for 2009/10 and 
Pen Rems at 31.03.2010 were due in by mid May 2010 and most 
were received by that date - all were received and updated by the 
target date of 31.08.2010. Records updated and sent to Actuary for 
tri-enniel valuation in July.  APF are preparing 2010 Annual Benefit 
Statements to go out starting in October 2010.

8 G Admin 2% 3% 2% Acceptable error level

D

1 G Admin 91% 94% 94.05% Business Financial Services (inc Pensions) figure is for 2 months  
(July figure not available yet)   On target. 

2 G All 0.40% 3% 2.54% Below target -  temporary admin assistant post  from September 
2009 as a result of acting ups on staff maternity absence. 

3 R Tech & Dev 24% 100% (25% p/q) 20%
EDI progressing slow. The new Admin Strategy will be used to 
encourage employers to provide information electronically as the 
norm by April 2012.  A promotional campaign will start in 2011.  

4 G Tech & Dev 100% 100% 100%
Staff training requirements for all staff identified from 2009 annual 
performance reviews. A  programme of courses (internal & 
external) is in place for 2010 to meet these needs. 

Resource Perspective

% Supplier Invoices paid within 30 day or mutually agreed terms

Temp Staff levels (% of workforce)

% of IT plan achieved against target

% of Training Plan achieved against target

% Complaints dealt with within Corporate Standards
Letters answered within corporate standard

Maintain work in progress/outstanding at below 10% 

Collection of Pension Contributions:-    a) % Received late      b) Total 
Value of late contributions

Year End update procedures (conts & salaries received by 31/08/2010)

No. of customer errors (due to incomplete data)

% of staff with an up to date training plan

Process Perspective

a) 5 Services actually delivered & b) electronically & services capable 
of delivery to members

% Telephone answered within 20 seconds

% of staff with Investor in People Award (IIP)
% of new staff leaving within 3 months of joining
% of staff with up to date Performance Reviews
% Sickness Absence a) Short Term b) Long Term

People Perspective

INDICATOR

Health & Safety Compliance

P
age 158



2

3

1 APPENDIX 3B to Budget Monitoring Report at at 31st July  2010: selected items in GRAPH format

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

WEBSITE HITS
target 1500 per calendar month

Hits

0.00%
0.50%
1.00%
1.50%
2.00%
2.50%
3.00%
3.50%
4.00%
4.50%
5.00%

SICKNESS - target 3% 
TEMP STAFF

ST Sick

LT Sick

Temp Staff

0 0

0.9466 1

0

0.9828 0.9734

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0.9657 1

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

Apr 09 May 09 Jun 09 Jul 09 Aug 09 Sep 09 Oct 09 Nov 09 Dec 09 Jan 10 Feb 10 Mar 10 Apr 10 May 10 Jun 10 Jul 10

PENSION CLINIC SATISFACTION

Page 159



4

5

6

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

140.00%
COMPLETED & CREATED

Create/Comp
TARGET

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500
NEW CASES CREATED & COMPLETED

Created
COMPLETED
Trendline

90.00%
91.00%
92.00%
93.00%
94.00%
95.00%
96.00%
97.00%
98.00%
99.00%

100.00%

TELEPHONE RESPONSE
TARGET 98%

Response 
Within 20 Secs

Page 160



7

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500
OUSTANDING CASES

OUTSTANDING
WORKABLE CASES

Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



DEATHS 5 5 10 10 2 12 4 7 11 19 14 33 57.58%
DEFERREDS 66 194 260 92 204 296 352 269 621 510 667 1177 43.33%
ESTIMATES 210 11 221 209 9 218 258 22 280 677 42 719 94.16%
REFUNDS 27 1 28 23 3 26 34 2 36 84 6 90 93.33%
RETIREMENTS 131 20 151 127 7 134 132 34 166 390 61 451 86.47%
TV INS 54 9 63 48 11 59 26 13 39 128 33 161 79.50%
TV OUTS 43 10 47 22 4 26 17 6 23 82 20 96 85.42%

1890 843 2727 69.31%

Data Taken from 3 month performance tab on Monthly Stats spreadsheet

MONTH1 MONTH2 MONTH3 MONTH4

P
age 165



P
age 166

T
his page is intentionally left blank



63

1 Yes 63 100%
NO 0%

A Before R'ment date 32 51%
2

B Within 10 working days after R'ment date 11 17%

C Later than 10 days after R'ment date 20 32%

Within 10 days after R'ment date 30 94%
3A

Later than 10 days after R'ment date 2 6%

Within 10 days after returning Opt Form 10 91%
3B

Later than 10 days after returning Opt Form 1 9%

Within 10 days after returning Opt Form 11 55%
3C

Later than 10 days after returning Opt Form 9 45%

Within 1 month after R'ment date 48 76%
4

Later than 1 month after R'ment date 15 24%

Excellent 42 67%

Good 17 27%
5

Average 3 5%

Poor 1 1%

Yes 9 14%
6

No 54 86%

Yes 63 100%
7

No 0%

Overall, how would you rate the service you received 
from Avon Pension Fund?

Did you receive your Lump Sum Payment…..

Responses to Retirement Questionnaire
1 May 2010 - 31 July 2010

Did you receive your LGPS Retirement Benefits Option 
Form…….

Did you receive your Lump Sum Payment…..

Is there anything we could have done to improve the 
service we provided?

Were you treated with sensitivity & fairness?

Number of Questionnaires in this period

Was the information provided to you bythe Avon 
Pension Fund both clear & concise?

Did you receive your Lump Sum Payment…..

Did you receive your first Pension Payment….

Page 167



From Question 2 above (column 1) From Question 2 above (column 2 & 3) 

Appendix 4B1 May 2010 - 31 July 2010

51%

17%

32%

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%
100%

Before R'ment date Within 10 working 
days after R'ment 

date
Later than 10 days 
after R'ment date

2.  Did you receive your LGPS Retirement 
Benefits Option Form…...?

100%

0%0%

20%
40%

60%
80%

100%

Yes NO

1.  Was the information provided to you by 
the Avon Pension Fund both clear & 

concise?

94%

6%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 10 days after R'ment 
date

Later than 10 days after R'ment 
date

3A.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 
Payment…..?

4.  Did you receive your first Pension 

91%

9%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 10 days after returning 
Opt Form

Later than 10 days after 
returning Opt Form

3B.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 
Payment...?

3C.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 

76%

24%

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%
100%

Within 1 month after R'ment 
date

Later than 1 month after 
R'ment date

4.  Did you receive your first Pension 
Payment...?

67%

27%

5% 1%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Excellent Good Average Poor

5.  Overall, how would you rate the service 
you received from Avon Pension Fund?

14%

86%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes No

6.  Is there anything we could have done to 
improve the service we provided?

100%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

7.  Were you treated with sensitivity & 
fairness?

55%
45%

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%
100%

Within 10 days after returning 
Opt Form

Later than 10 days after 
returning Opt Form

3C.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 
Payment….?

0%0%
Yes No

Page 168



APPENDIX 4B 

31

1 Yes 30 97%
NO 1 3%

A Before R'ment date 26 84%
2

B Within 10 working days after R'ment date 3 10%

C Later than 10 days after R'ment date 2 6%

Within 10 days after R'ment date 25 96%
3A

Later than 10 days after R'ment date 1 4%

Within 10 days after returning Opt Form 2 67%
3B

Later than 10 days after returning Opt Form 1 33%

Within 10 days after returning Opt Form 1 50%
3C

Later than 10 days after returning Opt Form 1 50%

Within 1 month after R'ment date 27 87%
4

Later than 1 month after R'ment date 4 13%

Excellent 20 65%

Good 11 35%
5

Average 0%

Poor 0%

Yes 2 6%
6

No 29 94%

Yes 31 100%
7

No 0%
Were you treated with sensitivity & fairness?

Did you receive your LGPS Retirement Benefits Option 
Form…….

Did you receive your Lump Sum Payment…..

Did you receive your Lump Sum Payment…..

Did you receive your first Pension Payment….

Did you receive your Lump Sum Payment…..

Responses to Retirement Questionnaire
1 May 2010 - 31 July 2010

Number of Questionnaires in this period

Was the information provided to you bythe Avon 
Pension Fund both clear & concise?

Overall, how would you rate the service you received 
from Avon Pension Fund?

Is there anything we could have done to improve the 
service we provided?

Page 169



Page 170



From Question 2 above (column 1) From Question 2 above (column 2 & 3) )

Appendix 4B1 May 2010 - 31 July 2010

97%

3%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes NO

1.  Was the information provided to you by 
the Avon Pension Fund both clear & 

concise?
84%

10%
6%

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%

100%

Before R'ment date Within 10 working 
days after R'ment 

date
Later than 10 days 
after R'ment date

2.  Did you receive your LGPS Retirement 
Benefits Option Form...?

96%

4%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 10 days after R'ment 
date

Later than 10 days after R'ment 
date

3A.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 
Payment...?

67%

33%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 10 days after returning 
Opt Form

Later than 10 days after 
returning Opt Form

3B.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 
Payment...?

4.  Did you receive your First Pension 
Payment...?3C.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 

Payment….?
87%

13%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 1 month after R'ment 
date

Later than 1 month after 
R'ment date

Payment...?

65%

35%

0% 0%0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Excellent Good Average Poor

5.  Overall, how would you rate the service 
you received from Avon Pension Fund?

6%

94%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes No

6.  Is there anything we could have done to 
improve the service we provided?

100%

40%

60%

80%

100%

7.  Were you treated with sensitivity & 
fairness?

50% 50%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 10 days after returning 
Opt Form

Later than 10 days after 
returning Opt Form

Payment….?

0%0%

20%

Yes NoPage 171



Page 172



Bath Spa University 16.6.2010 Appendix 5
       Avon Fire Brigade Temple Back 13.7.2010 & 21.7.2010

Weston College 01.07.2010 
Number of questionnaires 32

No. %
5 30 94%
4 1 3%
3 1 3%
2 0%
1 0%
5 30 94%
4 2 6%
3 0%
2 0%
1 0%

Yes 32 100%
No 0%
5 19 59%
4 7 22%
3 5 16%
2 0%
1 1 3%

Yes 31 97%
No 1 3%

No response 0%
Yes 32 100%
No 0%

No response 0%
Yes 31 97%
No 1 3%

Were you afforded sufficient privacy during your appointment?

If you had further questions and we held a Clinic at this venue again would you attend?    

Was this location convenient for you?

Clinic Feedback Results (1st May to 31st July 2010)

Were your questions answered to your full satisfaction?

Was the member of staff who dealt with you helpful and polite?

Do you feel your appointment provided enough time to adequately resolve your query?

How do you rate the venue?

Were your questions answered to you full Was the member of staff who dealt with you helpful & 

94%

3% 3% 0% 0%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

1 2 3 4 5

Were your questions answered to you full 
satisfaction?

(1=Good - 5=Poor) 94%

6%
0% 0% 0%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

1 2 3 4 5

Was the member of staff who dealt with you helpful & 
polite?

(1=Good - 5=Poor)

100%

0%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes No

Do you feel your appointment time provide enough 
time to adequatley resolve your query?

59%

22% 16%
0% 3%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

1 2 3 4 5

How do you rate the venue?
(1=Good - 5=Poor)

97%

3% 0%
0%

20%

40%
60%
80%

100%

Yes No No response

Were you afforded sufficient privacy during your 
appointment?

100%

0% 0%0%
20%
40%
60%
80%

100%

Yes No No response

If you had further questions and we held a Clinic at 
this venue again, would you attend?

97%

60%

80%

100%

Was this location convenient for you?

3%
0%

20%

40%

Yes No Page 173



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 1

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: Avon Pension Fund Committee 
MEETING 
DATE: 24 September 2010 AGENDA 

ITEM 
NUMBER 13 

TITLE: Review Of Investment Performance For Quarter Ending 30 June 2010 
WARD: ALL 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix 1 – Fund Valuation 
Appendix 2 – JLT performance monitoring report  
 
1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 This report contains performance statistics for the quarter ending 30 June 2010.  

The report focuses on the strategic investment policy, the managers’ performance 
to date, a valuation update, portfolio rebalancing and the property portfolio. 

1.2 Most of the detail is contained in the appendices.  The Fund’s investment 
consultant, JLT, have prepared a report (Appendix 2) covering the performance of 
the investment strategy, the performance of the investment managers and the 
market commentary.   

 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
That the Avon Pension Fund Committee: 
2.1 notes the information as set out in the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 13

Page 175



Printed on recycled paper 2

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 The returns achieved by the Fund for the three years from 1 April 2010 to 31 

March 2013 will impact the actuarial valuation which will be struck as at 31 March 
2013.  

3.2 Section 6 of this report discusses the Fund’s liabilities and the funding level. 
 
4 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
4.1 Appendix 1 provides a breakdown of the Fund valuation and allocation of monies 

by asset class and managers.  
4.2 JLT’s report in Appendix 2 provides a full commentary on the performance of the 

strategic benchmark (pages 12-16), the investment managers (pages 17-40) and 
a commentary on investment markets (pages 5-11). In the section on the Fund 
(page 14), three year rolling returns are included to provide a longer term 
perspective.  Qualitative summaries for the property managers are included for 
the first time. 

4.3 The Fund’s investment return and performance relative to benchmarks is 
summarised in the following table for the periods to 30 June 2010: 

 3 months   
 

12 months 
 

3 years  
 (p.a.) 

Avon Pension Fund -6.1% 18.6% 0.1% 
Strategic benchmark (Fund 
relative to benchmark) 

-6.0% (-0.1%) 18.7% (-0.1%) n/a 
Customised benchmark (Fund 
relative to benchmark) 

-6.2% (+0.1%) 18.4% (+0.2%) 1.0% (-0.9%) 
WM Local Authority Average 
Fund (Fund relative to universe) 

-6.8% (0.7%) 18.6% (0.0%) -1.7% (1.8%) 
 
4.4 The Fund’s assets fell in value by £149m (-6.1%) in the quarter giving a value for 

the Fund of £2,305m at 30 June 2010.  This investment return was driven mainly 
by the falls in equity markets caused by concerns that the austerity measures in 
Europe and a slowdown in the pace of economic recovery in the US could lead to 
a double dip recession. Sterling depreciated against the US$ and Yen but it 
appreciated against the Euro. 

4.5 More importantly over the last twelve months the Fund’s assets rose by £377m or 
18.6%, driven by positive returns across all asset classes, in particular equities 
and corporate bonds.  Hedge funds lagged the rally in equities but generated 
positive returns. 

4.6 The initial estimate for the Fund’s return in July is +2.5%.   However equity 
markets have retreated again in August.  

4.7 Against its strategic benchmark (60% equities, 20% bonds, 10% property, 10% 
hedge funds) the Fund marginally underperformed over the year.  The high cash 

Page 176



Printed on recycled paper 3

balance early in the year detracted value whereas the tactical switch from gilts into 
corporate bonds added value. 

4.8 Against its customised benchmark (which measures the relative performance 
of the managers), the Fund marginally outperformed in the quarter.  Jupiter had a 
strong quarter given its lack of exposure to oil stocks.  Most of the other managers 
added value against their benchmark except TT Int’l and the hedge funds. 

4.9 Over the year the Fund marginally outperformed the customised benchmark 
mainly due to the outperformance of Jupiter, Royal London, Genesis and two of 
the hedge funds.   

4.10 Over the last three years the Fund has generated a return of 0.1% p.a. 
underperforming the customised benchmark return by -0.9%.  This is attributable 
to manager performance. Asset allocation has been a positive contributor. 

4.11 Compared to the WM Local Authority Fund universe, the Fund is in line with 
the average fund over the year.  Over three years the Fund’s return of 0.1% p.a. is 
ahead of the average fund return of -1.7% p.a.   

4.12 The report by JLT identifies no areas of significant concern regarding the 
managers, but did note that despite a good quarter the SRI constraints on Jupiter 
may be at the cost of significant volatility relative to the benchmark. The continued 
underperformance of MAN, although slight last quarter, should be considered 
when the fund of hedge fund investments are reviewed in 1Q11.  

4.13 The Investment Panel has a workshop on 16 September 2010 to review the 
property portfolios. The purpose of the workshop is to understand the manager’s 
investment process and how it is applied to our portfolios, review the outlook for 
the property market and discuss future investment strategy.  The Panel will 
identify any particular performance or operational concerns to raise with the 
Committee.    

4.14 In May MAN announced the acquisition of GLG, a global multi-strategy manager. 
GLG manages a range of funds and managed accounts across equity and bond 
markets. GLG investment products will complement and broaden the range of 
products offered by the enlarged group. GLG will operate as an independent 
investment unit within MAN Group.  GLG do not manage fund of hedge funds and 
therefore will not directly impact the team that manages our investment.  
Shareholders will vote on the proposal with the outcome of the vote expected 1 
September 2010.  The acquisition is expected to complete in September 2010. 

4.15 Jupiter became a public company in June following its flotation on the London 
Stock Exchange.  The officers will monitor the company closely especially in 
relation to key man risk.  Until the Fund is satisfied that the full impact from this 
corporate restructuring is known, no new monies should be allocated to Jupiter. 

4.16 The search for the new global equity manager is progressing and submissions 
are currently being evaluated. The process is on schedule to appoint early in 
2011. 

5 INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
5.1 JLT’s report did not highlight any new strategy issues for consideration. The report 

does highlight the risk return profile of the Fund on pages 18 & 19 and the impact 
Page 177



Printed on recycled paper 4

on risk/return by each of the managers.  In particular JLT conclude that the 
volatility of the various portfolios/funds is in line with expectations and that the 
Fund has benefited from diversification by asset classes as the Fund volatility is 
lower than the equity managers and passive Blackrock portfolio which comprise 
c.75% of the total Fund. 

 
6 ACTUARIAL VALUATION UPDATE 
6.1 At the 31 March 2007 valuation the funding level was 83% (the assets were 

sufficient to meet 83% of the projected liabilities at that date given the existing 
investment and funding strategies).     

6.2 The full triennial actuarial valuation is being undertaken as at 31 March 2010 
which will set the employer rates for the three years commencing 1 April 2011. 
The funding level at 31 March 2010 incorporating the revised assumptions 
discussed below is estimated to be around 80%.     

6.3 For the 2010 valuation, the Actuary will review the assumptions to be used and 
will also incorporate the government’s recent announcement of changing the 
inflation rate used to value pension benefits.  As part of the valuation process, the 
Committee will approve the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) which sets out the 
parameters for the valuation.  The FSS was discussed in depth at the Committee 
workshop held on 23 July 2010 and is included elsewhere on this agenda.  

6.4 The effect of changing the basis of valuing pension benefits from the Retail Price 
Index (RPI) to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) is to reduce liabilities by between 
5-8% (depending on the employer profile) as CPI is normally lower than RPI.  
(historically CPI has been c. 0.5% lower than the RPI).  This difference arises due 
to the composition of the basket of goods and services used for each index and 
the method of calculation.  The main difference in the underlying baskets is that 
the CPI does not include housing costs such as mortgage costs or council tax.   

6.5 In addition the Actuary is introducing an inflation risk premium (IRP) adjustment to 
the market derived inflation rate used in the valuation. This adjustment allows for 
supply/demand distortions in the bond market which is used to derive the implied 
inflation rate.   

6.6 The changes in the Fund’s funding level to 31 March 2010 are summarised below: 
Triennial valuation Interim valuation Interim valuation Estimated % change

March 2007 March 2008 March 2009 Mar-10 since 2007

Assets (£m) 2,184 2,175 1,819 2,505 15%

Liabilities (£m) 2,643 3,099 3,017 3,126 18%

Deficit (£m) -459 -924 -1,198 -621

Funding Level 83% 70% 60% 80%
 
6.7 The funding level and increase in the deficit means there is still some pressure on 

employer contribution rates to rise.  However, where possible this will be managed 
Page 178



Printed on recycled paper 5

by extending the deficit recovery period beyond the current 15-20 years.  Any 
future reduction in employer costs will first of all be used to reduce this recovery 
period back to 15-20 years.  The Fund’s officers have met with outsourcing 
employers and community admission bodies to discuss their specific situation with 
regard to the valuation.   

6.8 Before the 2010 valuation is completed the government may adopt 
recommendations from the Independent Commission on Public Service pensions 
(Hutton Commission).  This may result in further changes to the 2010 valuation.   

6.9 It is anticipated that the total Fund valuation results will be completed by early 
October.  Individual employer contribution rates will be available late October/early 
November.  Officers will be meeting with employers to discuss the outcome of the 
valuation.  

 
7 CASH MANAGEMENT 
7.1 Cash is not included in the strategic benchmark.  However, cash is held by the 

managers at their discretion within their investment guidelines, and internally to 
meet working requirements.  The segregated portfolios, TT, Jupiter and 
BlackRock utilise money market funds offered by the custodian, BNY Mellon.  The 
cash within the pooled funds is managed internally by the manager.  The cash 
managed by BlackRock in the property portfolio is invested in the BlackRock 
Sterling Liquidity Fund.  The officers closely monitor the management of the 
Fund’s cash held by the managers and custodian with a particular emphasis on 
the security of the cash.   

7.2 Management of the cash held internally by the Fund to meet working requirements 
is delegated to the Council's Treasury Management Team.  The monies are 
invested separately from the Council's monies and are invested in line with the 
Fund's Treasury Management Policy which was approved on 18 December 2009.   

 
8 REBALANCING POLICY 
8.1 The rebalancing policy requires rebalancing of the Equity/Bond allocation to occur 

when the equity portion deviates from 75% by +/- 2%, and the valuation metric, in 
this case the equity gilt yield ratio, confirms that the relative valuation between 
equities and bonds is favourable.  The implementation of this policy is delegated 
to officers.  

8.2 There was no rebalancing undertaken this quarter. As at 4 August 2010 the 
Equity:Bond allocation was estimated at 74.5:25.6.  

 
9 LAPFF ACTIVITY 
9.1 The Fund is a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF), a 

collaborative body that exists to serve the investment interests of local authority 
pension funds.  In particular, LAPFF seeks to maximise the influence the funds 

Page 179



Printed on recycled paper 6

have as shareholders through co-ordinating shareholder activism amongst the 
pension funds.  

9.2 LAPFF’s current activity includes:  
(1) BP - The Forum will continue to engage with BP, having built a good 

relationship with the company in the recent past. LAPFF is planning to seek a 
meeting with the company to learn more about the company’s response to the 
crisis. Forum members will be updated as soon possible. 

(2) The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has published the first Stewardship 
Code for institutional investors. This Code will replace the Combined Code.  
The purpose of the Code is to improve the quality of corporate governance 
through promoting better dialogue between shareholders and company 
boards, and more transparency about the way in which investors oversee 
companies they own.  The Code includes principles on:-  
• The monitoring of investee companies;  
• The escalation of activities taken to protect or enhance shareholder value; 
• Collective engagement; 
• Voting policy; 
• Managing conflicts of interest; and 
• Public reporting and reporting to clients. 

 
It is intended that a paper on the FRC Stewardship Code will be brought to the 
December committee meeting. LAPFF will be providing guidance on how 
funds can apply the Code. 

 
10 RISK MANAGEMENT 
10.1 A key risk to the Fund is that the investments fail to generate the returns required 

to meet the Fund’s future liabilities.  This risk is managed via the Asset Liability 
Study which determines the appropriate risk adjusted return profile (or strategic 
benchmark) for the Fund and through the selection process followed before 
managers are appointed.  This report monitors the return of the strategic 
benchmark and the performance of the investment managers.  An Investment 
Panel has been established to consider in greater detail investment performance 
and related matters and report back to the committee on a regular basis. 

11 EQUALITIES 
11.1 This report is primarily for information and therefore an equalities impact 

assessment is not necessary. 
12 CONSULTATION 
12.1 This report is primarily for information and therefore consultation is not 

necessary. 
13 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
13.1 The issues to consider are contained in the report. 

Page 180



Printed on recycled paper 7

14 ADVICE SOUGHT 
14.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) and Section 151 Officer 

(Divisional Director - Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and 
have cleared it for publication. 

 

Contact person  Liz Feinstein, Investments Manager (Tel: 01225 395306) 
Background 
papers 

Investment manager reports for quarter ending 31 December 
2009 
LAPPF Member Bulletins 
 Data supplied by The WM Company 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 
 

Page 181



Page 182

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
AVON PENSION FUND VALUATION – 30 JUNE 2010 

 Passive Multi-
Asset 

Active Equities Enhanced 
Indexation 

Active 
Bonds 

Funds of 
Hedge 
Funds 

Property In 
House 
Cash 

TOTAL Avon 
Asset 
Mix % 

All figures in £m Black-
Rock 

Black-
Rock 2* 

TT 
Int’l 

Jupiter 
(SRI) 

Genesis Invesco State 
Street 

Royal 
London 

 Schroder 
Partners 

   

EQUITIES              
UK 401.0   18.3 106.6 89.3          615.2 26.7% 
North America 98.5   10.1            108.6  4.7% 
Europe 103.8  6.8     26.2       136.8  5.9% 
Japan  33.5   7.2     26.4         67.1  2.9% 
Pacific Rim  38.8      23.9         62.7  2.7% 
Emerging Markets      123.1         123.1  5.3% 
Global ex-UK      140.4        140.4   6.1% 
Global inc-UK 128.8             128.8   5.5% 
Total Overseas 403.4   24.1   123.1 140.4 76.5       767.5 33.3% 
Total Equities 804.4   42.4 106.6 89.3 123.1 140.4 76.5     1382.7 60.0% 
BONDS              
Index Linked Gilts 151.5             151.5   6.6% 
Conventional Gilts  143.6   52.6            196.2   8.5% 
Sterling Corporate    3.6       124.5      128.1   5.6% 
Overseas Bonds   74.3               74.3   3.2% 
Total Bonds  373.0  52.6      124.5      550.1 23.9% 
Hedge Funds         208.7     208.7   9.1% 
Property           112.6    112.6   4.8% 
Cash     3.5  25.3    1.7   2.3         1.3 16.7     50.8   2.2% 
TOTAL 1180.9  120.3 108.3 91.6 123.1 140.4 76.5 124.5 208.7 113.9 16.7 2304.9 100.0% 
N.B. (i) Valued at BID (where appropriate) 
 (ii) In-house cash = short term deposits at NatWest managed on our behalf by B&NES plus general cash held at Custodian 
 (iii) BlackRock 2 * = represents the assets to be invested in property, temporarily managed by BlackRock 

P
age 183



P
age 184

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Avon Pension Fund  
  
  
  1 

Review 
for period to 30 June 2010 
Avon Pension Fund    

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JLT BENEFIT SOLUTIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Performance Report: Appendix 2 

Page 185



 

Avon Pension Fund  2 

Contents 

 

Section One - Executive Summary 3 

Section Two – Market Background 5 

Section Three – Fund Valuations 12 

Section Four – Performance Summary 14 

Section Five - Manager Performance 20 

Jupiter Asset Management – UK Equities (Socially Responsible Investing) 22 

TT International – UK Equities (Unconstrained) 23 

Invesco – Global ex-UK Equities Enhanced (Enhanced Indexation) 24 

SSgA - Europe ex-UK Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 25 

SSgA - Pacific incl. Japan Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 26 

Genesis Asset Managers – Emerging Market Equities 27 

Lyster Watson Management Inc – Fund of Hedge Funds 28 

MAN – Fund of Hedge Funds 29 

Signet – Fund of Hedge Funds 30 

Stenham – Fund of Hedge Funds 31 

Gottex – Fund of Hedge Funds 32 

BlackRock - Passive Multi-Asset 33 

BlackRock No.2 – Property account (“ring fenced” assets) 34 

Royal London Asset Management – Fixed Interest 35 

Schroder – UK Property 36 

Partners – Overseas Property 38 

Appendix A - Glossary of Charts 41 

Appendix B - Summary of Mandates 43 
 

Bekki Jones, BSc (Hons), IMC  Dave Lyons, BA (Hons), IMC 

Investment Consultancy Analyst  Divisional Director 

  August 2010  

Page 186



 

Avon Pension Fund  3 

Section One - Executive Summary 
 

•••• This report is produced by JLT Benefit Solutions to assess the performance and risks of the 

investment managers of the Avon Pension Fund (the “Fund”), and of the Fund as a whole. 

 

Highlights 

•••• The total Fund's assets fell in value by £149m over the second quarter of 2010, to £2,305m as at the 

end of June 2010.   

•••• Over the last quarter the total Fund's assets produced a negative absolute investment return of -6.1%, 

outperforming the customised benchmark by 0.1%.  Over the last year, the Fund produced a return of 

18.6%, which was ahead of the customised benchmark return of 18.4%.  Over 3 years, the Fund has 

produced a return of 0.1% p.a., underperforming the customised benchmark by 0.9% p.a. 

•••• The absolute performance over the quarter was driven by the majority of managers producing 

negative absolute returns, in particular the equity and hedge fund managers.  The returns from the 

equity funds were the most disappointing, as equity markets were unsettled by fears of a double dip 

recession.  The assets invested in bonds and property produced positive absolute returns.   

•••• Over the year performance remains positive, however the one year return has reduced following the 

negative return witnessed over the last quarter.  

•••• The small relative outperformance over the quarter resulted from the outperformance of a number of 

the managers, in particular Jupiter, Genesis, SSgA (Europe and Pacific Rim) and Schroder.  The 

assets with BlackRock, Invesco and RLAM performed broadly in line with their benchmarks.  The 

overall outperformance was achieved despite underperformance from TT, Gottex, Lyster Watson, 

MAN, Signet, Stenham and Partners. 

•••• There were no significant changes to the Fund's asset allocation during the quarter besides those 

driven by market movements.   

•••• In May 2010 Jupiter successfully listed on the London Stock Exchange, valuing the firm at £755million.   

•••• In May 2010 GLG Partners announced that it had agreed to be acquired by Man Group plc, through a 

cash and share exchange, subject to Board and regulatory approval.  Shareholders are now invited to 

vote on the proposal with the outcome of the vote expected 1 September 2010.  The acquisition is 

expected to complete in September 2010.  Further news also emerged over the quarter when it was 

announced that Luke Ellis, a managing director at fund of funds firm Financial Risk Management 

("FRM"), also a non-executive chairman of GLG Partners, will join Man Group plc when the proposed 

acquisition of GLG by MAN either closes or terminates. 

Page 187



 

Avon Pension Fund  4 

 

Conclusion 

•••• Strategic allocation:  The Fund's strategic allocation remains well diversified in terms of asset class 

and regional exposure.  We have identified no causes for concern with this strategy outside of the 

areas that are currently being discussed and progressed by the Investment Panel.  We note that the 

Invitation to Tender stage of the Fund's search for a global equity investment manager closed on 11 

August 2010, and the assessment of submissions received is currently underway.   

•••• Manager Performance:   We have identified no areas of significant concern regarding the managers.  

However, we note that the SRI constraints on Jupiter may be at the cost of continued 

underperformance relative to the benchmark (notwithstanding that their performance over the last 

quarter has been very strong in relative terms) and continued volatility from this investment.  This links 

in to wider considerations regarding the Fund’s approach to Socially Responsible Investment which 

will be reviewed in the near future.  The continued underperformance of MAN, although not of 

significant magnitude on a quarterly basis, should be considered when the fund of hedge fund 

investments are reviewed later this year.  Besides these concerns, we see no reason not to invest with 

any of the active managers during any rebalancing process, although given that the SRI policy is to be 

reviewed, this would imply that no new investment should be made with Jupiter until firmer 

conclusions have been drawn as to future policy. 

•••• While we have no immediate concerns over the changes to Jupiter and proposed changes to MAN's 

ownership structures and the impact on the management of the funds, we recommend that further 

investment is not made into these funds until the impact of these changes is clear. 

Page 188



 

Avon Pension Fund  5 

Section Two – Market Background 
 
•••• The tables below summarise the various market returns to 30 June 2010, which relate the analysis of 

the Fund's performance to the global economic and market background. 

 

Market statistics 

Market Returns 

Growth Assets 

3 Mths 

% 

1 Year 

% 
 Change in Sterling 

3 Mths 

% 

1 Year 

% 

UK Equities -11.8 21.1  Against US Dollar -1.4 -9.2 

Overseas Equities -10.5 24.1  Against Euro 9.0 4.0 

USA -10.4 26.0  Against Yen -6.6 -16.7 

Europe -14.2 17.0  Yields as at 30 June 2010 % p.a. 

Japan -8.7 10.5  UK Equities 3.34 

Asia Pacific (ex Japan) -6.9 34.6  UK Gilts (>15 yrs) 4.14 

Emerging Markets -6.5 37.7  Real Yield (>5 yrs ILG) 0.67 

Property 3.6 23.9  Corporate Bonds (>15 yrs AA) 5.31 

Hedge Funds -2.3 11.6  Non-Gilts (>15 yrs) 5.40 

Commodities -9.2 4.1    

High Yield -0.7 38.9  Absolute Change in Yields 3 Mths 1 Year 

Cash 0.1 0.5  UK Gilts (>15 yrs) -0.3 -0.2 

    Index-Linked Gilts (>5 yrs) 0.0 -0.2 

Corporate Bonds (>15 yrs AA) -0.2 -0.9 Market Returns 

Bond Assets 

3 Mths 

% 

1 Year 

% 
 

Non-Gilts (>15 yrs) -0.2 -0.8 

UK Gilts (>15 yrs) 6.4 8.0     

Index-Linked Gilts (>5 yrs) 1.6 8.4 

Corporate Bonds (>15 yrs AA) 3.6 17.3 
   

Non-Gilts (>15 yrs) 3.1 17.6 

 

   

   
Inflation Indices 

3 Mths 

% 

1 Year 

% 
 

   

Price Inflation (RPI) 1.5 5.0     

Earnings Inflation  -1.9 1.9     

Consumer Price Index (CPI)       

 

Statistical highlights 

•••• In the UK, the General Election resulted in a hung parliament and the formation of a coalition 

government.  The new government has quickly taken action to allay concerns about the high budget 

deficit and, in the emergency budget, increased VAT, imposed a levy on banks and announced that 

most government departments would have to reduce spending by 25% by 2014/15. 

•••• Short term factors, such as the restoration of the standard rate of VAT to 17.5%, higher oil prices and 

the past depreciation of sterling have led to a rise in the rate of RPI inflation to 5%. 

Page 189



 

Avon Pension Fund  6 

•••• The crisis of confidence in the Eurozone sovereign debt markets has led to a significant rise in the 

spread between yields on most government bonds within the region and German bunds, and, over the 

quarter, the rating agencies downgraded Greece, Spain and Portugal.  With uncertainty as to how the 

Eurozone problems would be solved, the government bond markets in the UK and the United States 

both benefited from a ‘flight to quality’. 

•••• Against this background, global equity markets performed poorly over the quarter on concerns that the 

imposition of austerity measures in Europe and a slowdown in the pace of economic recovery in the 

US could lead to a double dip recession. 

•••• Over the quarter, sterling strengthened against the euro owing to the crisis of confidence in the single 

currency, although sterling depreciated against the US dollar and the Japanese yen. 

 

UK market events – Q2 2010 

•••• Quantitative Easing:  The Bank of England has kept its £200 billion quantitative easing programme 

on hold.   

•••• General Election:  The results of the General Election in May gave the nation's first hung parliament 

since February 1974.  The Conservative Party led by David Cameron won the largest amount votes 

and seats, however this was still short of an outright majority win.  Following this, the Conservative 

party joined forces with the Liberal Democrat Party led by Nick Clegg; forming a coalition government 

(something which had not been seen in the UK for over 60 years).  David Cameron promptly named 

his cabinet and the newly appoint Chancellor of the Exchequer, George Osborne, announced the 

2010 Budget on 22 June 2010 which contained severe fiscal tightening.  

•••• Government Debt:  In mid August 2010 (latest available) UK national debt stood at £939 billion, or 

63.7% of GDP. 

•••• Unemployment:  The unemployment rate in the UK fell by 49,000 to 2.46 million during the three 

months to June 2010.  The rate of unemployment fell by 0.2% to 7.8%, according to the Office for 

National Statistics.  This was the second month in succession where the jobless number has fallen 

and is the biggest such drop in three years.  The number of people employed increased by 184,000, 

the largest quarterly rise since 1989.   

•••• Manufacturing Sector:  The Purchasing Managers’ Index (“PMI”) manufacturing survey fell from 54.6 

in March 2010 to 54.4 in June 2010 (the 50-level being the point at which ‘contraction’ is deemed to 

become ‘growth’). 

•••• Inflation:  CPI annual inflation fell from 3.4% at the start of the quarter to 3.2% at the end of June 

2010.  RPI annual inflation rose from 4.4% at the start of the quarter, to 5.0% at the end (RPIX 

inflation, which excludes mortgage interest payments remains unchanged at 5.0%).  The equivalent 

annualised EU CPI figure was 1.9%.  The Governor of the Bank of England, Mervyn King, was forced 

to write a letter to the Chancellor of the Exchequer, George Osbourne, explaining why the CPI was 

more than one percentage point above the 2% target, warning he would write similar letters in the 

short term as prices are expected to continue to rise.  Short term factors, such as the restoration of the 

standard rate of VAT to 17.5%, higher oil prices and the past depreciation of sterling have led to a rise 

in the rate of inflation.   

•••• Gross Domestic Product:  In the second quarter of 2010 GDP grew by 1.1%, compared with (an 

adjusted) 0.3% in the previous quarter.  This is the third successive quarter of economic expansion, 

which was mainly attributed to growth across the board for example in services, construction and 

production.  Manufacturing made the largest contribution to the growth, where output rose 1.6%.   

Page 190



 

Avon Pension Fund  7 

•••• Interest Rate:  Despite the fact inflation remains well above the Bank of England's target of 2.0%, the 

Bank's Monetary Policy Committee maintained interest rates at a record low of 0.5%, which has been 

in place since March 2009.  The economic recovery continued in the UK, with output growth across 

the first half of 2010, close to historical levels.  However, the level of economic activity remained well 

below its pre-crisis peak and the revival of the economy remains fragile with significant downside risks 

and spare capacity is likely to persist.  Economists have largely welcomed the Bank of England's 

decision arguing low interest rates are needed to aid the recovery in the economy, particularly with 

cuts in public sector spending expected to have a detrimental effect on growth prospects.   

 

Europe market events – Q2 2010 

•••• European sovereign debt crisis:  The European sovereign debt crisis dominated markets, with the 

strength of the euro falling against major currencies.  Investors become increasingly risk averse 

leading to a large scale sell-off of southern European government bonds in a so-called 'flight to 

quality', with investors switching to (perceived safer) German and UK government bonds.  As a result 

bond yields fell for German and UK government bonds and rose for the so-called "Club Med", 

Southern European countries of Greece, Italy, Spain and Portugal. 

•••• Greece:  The Greek economy remains deep in economic crisis after being forced to adopt harsh 

austerity measures to reduce the national debt.  Public spending has been severely cut and the 

government has raised the level of taxation in an effort to halt the country's rising budget deficit.  The 

Greek economy shrank by 1.5% in the second quarter and unemployment increased to 12%, pointing 

to a deep recession as the country battles its debt crisis.  The disappointing official GDP figures have 

increased the cost of protecting Greek government debt against default.  The cost of insuring 

exposure to €10m of Greek government bonds now stands at €795,000 a year, according to CDS 

monitor Markit.   

•••• Spain:  The Spanish economy remains fragile against a backdrop of volatile financial markets and an 

acute crisis of confidence, following the spread of the effects of the Greek fiscal crisis to other 

European economies.  GDP rose by 0.2% during the second quarter despite the Spanish 

government's austerity measures designed to reduce the national debt.  Unemployment rose to a 

decade high of 20.1% and there are fears the economy will slip back into recession as fiscal tightening 

implies the economy will have to fend for itself.   

•••• Germany:  The German economy expanded at its fastest pace in nearly 20 years during the second 

quarter, which saw a 2.2% expansion with the economy showing signs of improvement where the 

services and industrial sectors provided strong return figures and the stress test results in the banking 

sector largely restored confidence in markets.   

•••• Unemployment:  Unemployment in the EU 27 remained at 9.6% over the second quarter.  The lowest 

unemployment levels were in Austria (3.9%) and the Netherlands (4.4%), and the highest in Latvia 

(20.0% estimated) and Spain (20.0%). 

•••• Services and Manufacturing Sectors:  The Eurozone’s services sector PMI expanded over the 3 

months in the second quarter of 2010 to 56.0 in June 2010 (again, the 50-level separating growth from 

contraction), and continued to rise to 56.7 in July 2010.  Manufacturing output has shown signs of 

improving with the PMI increasing to 55.6 in June 2010.   

•••• Inflation:  Annual inflation in the Eurozone remained unchanged at 1.4% in June 2010. 

•••• Gross Domestic Product:  GDP increased by 1.0% in both the Eurozone and the EU 27 during the 

first quarter of 2010. 

Page 191



 

Avon Pension Fund  8 

•••• Interest Rate:  The European Central Bank has maintained its decision to keep the base rate at a 

record low of 1.0% since May 2009. 

 

US market events – Q2 2010 

•••• Unemployment:  The rate of unemployment in the US rose from 9.3% in May 2010 to 9.6% in June 

2010.   

•••• Manufacturing and Industrial Production:  The growth in manufacturing production fell over Q2 

2010, leading commentators to suggest production could actually tip into negative territory.   

•••• Inflation:  The Consumer Price Index annual change fell to 1.1% p.a. in June 2010 from 2.3% p.a. as 

at 31 March 2010.  The weak global outlook dampened inflation expectations, with recent economic 

data suggesting growth in the US economy was stuttering, with investors switching to so-called safe 

heaven assets such as government bonds. 

•••• Gross Domestic Product:  US GDP increased by 2.4% over the second quarter of 2010, which has 

slowed from the previous quarter.    

•••• Interest Rate:  The Federal Reserve continues to hold interest rates at 0.25%. 

•••• US Housing Market:  Sales of existing homes in the US have plunged to their lowest level in more 

than 10 years, caused by the end of tax credits for home buyers hitting the housing market.  The 

figures have added to fears about the US economic recovery. 

 

Emerging Markets market events – Q2 2010 

•••• Emerging Markets produced negative returns over the second quarter of 2010.  However, the Chinese 

economy only produced a return of -2.5% and India achieved a slight positive return of 0.2%.  

Emerging Markets are seen by many commentators as being the most resilient markets in the face of 

a potential double-dip recession in the developed Western economies.   

•••• Policy makers in Brazil and China have been fretting about the excessive pace of expansion and in 

recent months have applied the policy brakes on their economies.  Questions remain whether the 

Emerging Market nations can sustain their recoveries given the economic uncertainties returning to 

the developed world.   

 

Market events – Global summary – 1 year 

•••• Over the past year the global economy has continued to recover and all the major economies have 

emerged from recession, with many of the less developed countries growing strongly.  Indeed, in 

China there is speculation of imminent policy tightening to curb inflation, whilst Australia’s central bank 

raised interest rates for the fifth time in seven months in April 2010 to prevent the economy from 

overheating.  However, towards the end of the period, there were signs that the pace of the recovery 

in both the US and Europe was beginning to slow. 

Page 192



 

Avon Pension Fund  9 

•••• The sovereign debt crisis affecting mainly the so-called “Club Med” economies and Ireland in the 

Eurozone has had a major influence on the financial markets over the past few months and has led to 

fears that the Eurozone economic recovery might stall.  As the crisis unfolded in Greece, the 

Portuguese, Spanish and Irish economies came under the spotlight and the euro depreciated against 

all the major currencies, with some debate regarding a possible ‘break-up’ of the euro.  Initially 

Germany and France refused to intervene on behalf of Greece, citing the no bail-out clause in the 

Maastricht Treaty, but market pressures eventually forced the EU, in conjunction with the International 

Monetary Fund, to provide a €750 bn liquidity package.  The package provides a short-term financing 

facility that enables governments to rollover maturing debt at favourable rates.  This reduces the 

likelihood of a sovereign default, which potentially could lead to a default of a major European bank, 

many of which have significant exposure to government debt in these countries.  Fiscal tightening 

measures are now being implemented in most Eurozone countries in order to head off a worsening of 

the debt crisis, although this has led to demonstrations in both Greece and Spain.  

•••• The Bank of England spent £200bn under its policy of quantitative easing (“QE”) by purchasing gilts in 

order to improve liquidity in the markets and to stimulate the economy.  Although the UK economy has 

emerged from recession, it remains fragile, growing by just 0.3% in the first quarter of 2010, and the 

newly created Office for Budgetary Responsibility forecasts that the economy will grow by 1.2% in 

2009/10 and 2.3% in 2010/11 notwithstanding the figure of 1.1% for GDP growth in Q2 2010. 

•••• In the latter part of 2009 and during the run up to the General Election, there was increasing concern 

about the spiralling level of government debt and a rapid rise in the rate of both RPI and CPI rates of 

inflation, albeit from a very low level.  In the UK, the prospect of a hung parliament also led to 

uncertainty in the UK financial markets.  The General Election resulted in a hung parliament and the 

formation of a coalition government.  However the new coalition government has quickly taken action 

to allay concerns about the high budget deficit and, in the emergency budget, increased VAT, imposed 

a levy on banks and announced that most government departments would have to reduce spending 

by 25% by 2014/15.  Against this background, the Monetary Policy Committee of the Bank of England 

(MPC) has maintained interest rates at 0.5% throughout the period.  Most analysts now believe that 

interest rates will remain at a lower level for longer than had previously been forecast, despite the 

recent increase in the rate of inflation.  Some analysts still remain concerned that the scale of the 

cutback in government spending could lead to a double dip recession. 

•••• Interest rates in the US and the Eurozone were also unchanged over the year at 0.25% and 1.0% 

respectively. 

Page 193



 

Avon Pension Fund  10 

 
Equities 

•••• Amid increasing evidence that the global economy was emerging from recession, the recovery in the 

global equity markets from the low point in March 2009 gained momentum during the remainder of the 

2009.  The markets continued to rally during Q1 2010, but during Q2 2010 they performed poorly as 

the pace of the economic recoveries in the United States and Europe moderated.  Nevertheless, the 

return on the UK equity market over the year was 21.1% and that on overseas equity markets was 

24.1%.  During the period, the FTSE All-Share Index rose to a level above that last seen prior to the 

collapse of Lehman Brothers. 

•••• More recently, the European debt crisis has dominated the headlines, leading to major falls in share 

prices, particularly those of the Southern European banks.  In local currency terms the worst 

performing equity market over the last quarter was in Japan, which fell by 14.7% but the US, UK, 

Europe ex UK, Emerging Markets and Asia Pacific fell by 11.6%, 11.8%, 8.2%, 6.0%, and 4.7% 

respectively. 

•••• The optimism in the UK equity market that had emerged since last June quickly evaporated during Q2 

2010 as it emerged that the UK economic recovery was not gaining momentum.  The BP oil spill in the 

Gulf of Mexico dominated the headlines over the quarter and has led to strained relations between the 

US and UK governments.  At one stage, BP comprised almost 7% of the FTSE All-Share Index but its 

share price has more than halved and, at one stage, it comprised only around 4% of the index.  

Following pressure from the US government, the company is suspending dividend payments.  The 

impact of the suspension in dividend payments on UK pension schemes is severe, because roughly 

speaking £1 in every £7 of dividend income from the FTSE 100 companies comes from BP.  The 

disaster has damaged the reputation of BP, is likely to lead to punitive fines and has also had an 

adverse impact on the valuation of other energy companies. 

•••• Over the period as a whole, the equity markets in the developed and emerging markets of the Pacific 

Basin produced the best returns as their economies were growing rapidly, their banking systems were 

not subject to the same pressures as those in the West and there was not a large overhang of 

government debt. 

 

Bonds & credit 

•••• At the start of the 12 month period, the spread of long-dated AA rated corporate bond yields over long-

dated gilt yields stood at approximately 1.9% and over the period it fell to around 1.2%. 

•••• The recovery in the corporate bond market from the low point in March 2009 had begun when it 

became apparent that investors' worst fears regarding the length and depth of the recession were not 

being realised and corporate defaults were at a much lower level than had been priced into the 

market.  Despite a high level of new issuance, during the review period there was significant demand 

from investors as they recognised that corporate bonds offered an equity like long-term rate of return 

for a much lower level of risk. 

•••• Spreads have widened slightly over the last few weeks because of the flight to quality to gilts rather 

than any particular concern about corporate bonds and the yields on corporate bonds are still 

attractive on a longer term view.  

•••• Index-linked gilt yields also fell over the 12 months as fears about the outlook for inflation kept demand 

at a high level relative to supply. 

 

Page 194



 

Avon Pension Fund  11 

Alternative asset classes 

•••• From mid-2009 onwards, property staged something of a bounce-back as investors began to believe 

that the market had reached the bottom and started to invest their capital.  Indeed, towards the end of 

2009 and in early in 2010, high demand for property from retail, institutional and foreign investors 

caused some pooled funds to close to new investment, or to introduce a waiting period.  This is the 

reverse of the situation observed as recently as late 2007 / 2008, when funds closed in order to 

manage requests for disinvestments. 

•••• Hedge funds on the whole had a positive year, although they have tended to underperform the equity 

markets.  In some cases this resulted from a decision by some funds to lock in their profits for 2009 

rather than continue to be exposed to market movements in the latter part of 2009.  Perhaps 

surprisingly, hedge funds produced a negative return over the last quarter despite the volatility in the 

financial markets.   Distressed debt and long / short equity funds were among the better performing 

hedge fund strategies over the period.  

•••• For most of the period under review, commodities performed well, benefitting from the strength of the 

global economic recovery.  Although commodity prices fell by more than 9% during the last quarter as 

the pace of the global recovery slowed, commodities have produced a return of 4.1% over the year. 

•••• Mirroring the events in the corporate bond market, high yield bonds performed strongly with spreads 

relative to government bonds falling substantially.  

 

Page 195



 

Avon Pension Fund  12 

Section Three – Fund Valuations 
 
•••• The chart and table below show the asset allocation of the Fund as at 30 June 2010, with the 

BlackRock Multi-Asset portfolio and the BlackRock property portfolio (assets “ring fenced” for 

investment in property) split between the relevant asset classes. 

Asset class allocation as at 30 June 2010 

UK Equities
26.7%

Overseas 
Equities
33.4%

Bonds
23.9%

Fund of Hedge 
Fund
9.0%

Cash
2.0%

Property
5.0%

 

Asset Class 30 June 2010 

Value 

£'000 

Proportion 

of Total 

 

% 

Strategic 

Benchmark 

Weight 

% 

UK Equities  615,013 26.7 27.0 

Overseas Equities 770,987 33.4 33.0 

Bonds 550,230 23.9 20.0 

Fund of Hedge Funds 208,668 9.0 10.0 

Cash 45,842 2.0 - 

Property 114,484 5.0 10.0 

Reconciling differences and rounding -337 0.0 - 

TOTAL FUND VALUE 2,304,887 100.0 100.0 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services 

•••• The value of the Fund's assets fell by £149m over the second quarter of 2010 to £2,305m, mainly as a 

result of negative absolute investment performance from asset classes such as UK and overseas 

equities, as well as hedge funds.  These assets comprise approximately 69% of the Fund's assets. 

•••• There has been no significant change to the asset allocation, which has largely drifted with investment 

market movements over the quarter.  There were some investments during the quarter, which 

included the funding of property investments. 

•••• The valuation of the investment with each manager is provided on the following page. 

Page 196



 

Avon Pension Fund  13 

 

  31 March 2010  30 June 2010 

Manager Asset Class Value 

 

£'000 

Proportion 

of Total 

% 

Net New 

 Money 

£'000 

Value 

 

£'000 

Proportion 

 of Total 

% 

Jupiter UK Equities  94,241 3.8 - 91,647 4.0 

TT International UK Equities 124,756 5.1 - 108,259 4.7 

Invesco Global ex-UK 
Equities 

158,223 6.4 - 140,403 6.1 

SSgA Europe ex-UK 
Equities and 
Pacific incl. 
Japan Equities 

86,044 3.5 - 76,444 3.3 

Genesis Emerging 
Market Equities 

130,121 5.3 - 123,064 5.3 

Lyster Watson Fund of Hedge 
Funds 

9,823 0.4 - 9,530 0.4 

MAN Fund of Hedge 
Funds 

95,047 3.9 - 92,143 4.0 

Signet Fund of Hedge 
Funds 

45,279 1.8 - 45,059 2.0 

Stenham Fund of Hedge 
Funds 

11,544 0.5 - 11,225 0.5 

Gottex Fund of Hedge 
Funds 

51,280 2.1 - 50,712 2.2 

BlackRock Passive Multi-
asset 

1,273,197 51.9 1,300 1,180,980 51.2 

BlackRock 
(property fund) 

Equities, 
Futures, Bonds, 
Cash (held for 
property inv) 

130,355 

 

5.3 

 

-7,130 120,337 

 

5.2 

 

RLAM Bonds 122,185 5.0 - 124,456 5.4 

Schroder UK Property 76,786 3.1 1,630 81,125 3.5 

Partners Property 30,116 1.2 5,500 32,825 1.4 

Internal Cash Cash 15,161 0.6 -1,300 16,676 0.7 

Rounding  1 0.1 - 2 0.1 

TOTAL  2,454,159 100.0 - 2,304,887 100.0 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services   

Page 197



 

Avon Pension Fund  14 

Section Four – Performance Summary 
 
Total Fund performance 

•••• The chart below shows the absolute performance of the total Fund’s assets over the last 3 years. 

 

                               Total Fund absolute and relative performance 

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10
Quar ter ly r etur n Rolling 3 year  r etur n (% p.a.)
Quar ter ly r elative r etur n Rolling 3 year  benchmar k r etur n (% p.a.)

 
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services 

 

•••• Please note that the rolling 3 year return has been included in place of the rolling 1 year returns in 

previous quarters, to provide a longer term view of investment performance. 

•••• Over the last quarter (blue bars) the total Fund's assets produced a return of -6.1%, outperforming the 

customised benchmark by 0.1%. 

•••• Over the last year (not shown above) the total Fund's assets produced a positive return of 18.6%, 

outperforming the customised benchmark by 0.2%. 

•••• Over the last 3 years (blue versus grey line) the total Fund's assets produced a positive return of 0.1% 

p.a., underperforming the customised benchmark by 0.9% p.a. 

•••• The driver of negative absolute performance over the last quarter was the negative absolute returns 

from the majority of the Fund's managers across the asset classes (see page 17), in particular those 

within equities (both UK and overseas) and hedge funds. 

•••• The slight outperformance over the quarter arose from positive relative returns from a number of the 

managers, most notably Jupiter, Genesis, SSgA  and Schroder.  BlackRock (multi asset), Invesco and 

RLAM performed broadly in line with their benchmarks.  There were some underperforming managers 

(namely TT and the hedge fund managers) however these were outweighed by the positive relative 

returns. 

Page 198



 

Avon Pension Fund  15 

Asset classes performance 

•••• The chart and table below show the absolute performance of the Fund’s assets by asset class over 

the quarter and year to 30 June 2010.  Note that the returns from the BGI Multi-Asset portfolio and the 

second BGI portfolio (now under the name of BlackRock), which hold a combination of asset classes, 

are aggregated within the relevant asset class returns. 

 

                                   Asset class absolute performance to 30 June 2010 

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

UK Equities Overseas
Equities

Bonds Fund of Hedge
Fund

Cash Property

Absolute return over 1 quarter Absolute return over 1 year
 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services 

 

•••• Over the second quarter of 2010, UK equities, overseas equities and fund of hedge funds all produced 

negative returns; bonds produced positive returns, as did cash and property, albeit small. 

•••• The key drivers of absolute performance are: 

•••• UK and overseas equity markets had a turbulent quarter and produced disappointing returns of            

-10.8% and -10.4% respectively.   

•••• Sterling depreciated against the dollar and yen over the quarter, meaning a higher return on the dollar 

and yen denominated overseas equities in sterling terms.  Sterling appreciated against the euro, 

meaning a lower return on the euro denominated overseas equities in sterling terms.   All major 

markets produced negative returns for the quarter in local currency terms.  The highest local currency 

return came from the Asia Pacific region, and the lowest from the Japan region. 

•••• Bonds produced reasonable returns over the quarter, with the highest bond returns being produced by 

UK government bonds. 

•••• The fund of hedge fund portfolio produced negative returns of -2.0%.  

•••• The table overleaf shows the returns from major asset class indices over the quarter and year to 30 

June 2010: 

Page 199



 

Avon Pension Fund  16 

 

Asset Class Weight in 
Strategic 

Benchmark 

Q2 2010        
(index returns) 

1 year          
(index returns) 

  UK Equities 27% -11.8% 21.1% 

  Overseas Equities 33% -10.5% 24.1% 

  Index Linked Bonds * 6% 1.7% 9.0% 

  Gov Bonds – Fixed * 4.5% 6.7% 

  Corporate Bonds * 
14% 

1.0% 19.0% 

  Hedge Funds 10% -2.3% 11.6% 

  Property 10% 3.6% 23.9% 

 Total Fund 100%   

*Please note that these are 'all maturities' index returns and so differ from the 'long maturities' index 
returns shown on the Market Background page in Section Two. 

 

Page 200



 

Avon Pension Fund  17 

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

Ju
pite

r TT

Inve
sco

SSg
A Eur

SSgA
 Pac

Gen
esi

s

Lys
ter

M
AN

Sign
et

Sten
ha

m

Gotte
x

Blac
kR

oc
k M

ult
i

Blac
kRock

 2

RLAM

Interna
l C

ash

Sch
rode

r

Part
ne

rs

1 Quarter absolute return 1 Quarter relative to benchmark

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Ju
pite

r
TT

Inv
esc

o

SSg
A Eur

SSg
A Pac

Gen
esi

s

Lyste
r

M
AN

Sign
et

Sten
ham

Gotte
x

Blac
kRock

 M
ult

i

Black
Rock

 2

RLAM

Int
ernal 

Cash

1 Year absolute return 1 Year relative to benchmark

Manager performance 

•••• The charts below show the absolute return for each manager over the quarter and the year to the end 

of June 2010.  The relative quarter and one year returns are marked with green and blue dots 

respectively.  

Absolute and relative performance - quarter to 30 June 2010 

 

Absolute and relative performance - year to 30 June 2010 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services 

 

•••• The Fund invested with Partners for the first time in late Q3 2009 and as such their performance is 

now shown in the quarterly chart.  One year performance data is not yet available for Schroders or 

Partners.   

•••• Nearly all of the Fund’s investment managers produced negative absolute returns over the quarter, the 

exceptions to this were RLAM, the internally managed cash and the two property funds with Schroder 

and Partners. 

•••• Over the quarter, the strongest absolute performance came from the Schroder property fund. In 

relative terms Jupiter performed the best over the quarter, outperforming their benchmark by an 

impressive 9.1%. 

Page 201



 

Avon Pension Fund  18 

Total Fund

BlackRock 
M ulti-Asset

BlackRock 2

Jupiter

Internal - Cash

TT Int
RLAM

Genesis

SSgA Europe

SSgA Pacific

Invesco

M AN

Gottex

Signet

Stenham
Lyster 

Watson

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

Annual Risk

A
nn

ua
l A

bs
ol

ut
e 

R
et

ur
n

•••• Over the year, all absolute returns were positive.  Of note is the one year return achieved by the 

Genesis Emerging Markets equity portfolio, which was 48.9%, well ahead of its benchmark return of 

36.2%.  

Manager and total Fund risk v return 

•••• The chart below shows the 1 year absolute return (“Annual Absolute Return”) against the 1 year 

volatility of absolute returns (“Annual Risk”), based on monthly/quarterly (as available) data points in 

sterling terms, to the end of June 2010 of each of the funds, along with the total Fund.   

 

                                      1 Year Risk v 1 Year Return to 30 June 2010 

 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services  

•••• The managers are colour coded by asset class, as follows: 

−−−− Green: UK equities 

−−−− Blue: overseas equities 

−−−− Red: fund of hedge funds 

−−−− Black: bonds 

−−−− Maroon: multi-asset 

−−−− Brown: BlackRock No. 2 portfolio 

−−−− Grey: internally managed cash 

−−−− Green Square: total Fund 

•••• Note: the property funds have invested for less than 1 year so are not shown in the chart above. 

•••• The volatility of returns over the year has overall risen compared to last quarter.  This is unsurprising 

given the returns which were witnessed over the last quarter.  The funds where volatility increased 

notably compared with last quarter were Invesco, BlackRock Multi-Asset, SSgA Pacific and BlackRock 

No. 2.  Jupiter decreased in volatility over the last quarter.  Overall the changes to the volatility in the 

hedge funds were marginal. 

Page 202



 

Avon Pension Fund  19 

•••• There has again been a shift downwards in the annual returns compared to last quarter, particularly 

the equity funds.  This was driven by the fact that these funds produced negative returns over the last 

quarter particularly for the equity funds.  

•••• The returns from the fund of hedge funds are again at a lower level (lower down on chart) than most of 

the other managers, but at significantly lower volatility (to the extreme left).   

•••• The very strong absolute return from Genesis over the last year has provided a very good risk 

adjusted absolute return, when compared with its annualised volatility and other funds. 

•••• The volatility of all of the various funds is broadly in line with expectation.  The total Fund has 

benefited from diversification by asset classes, as Fund volatility is lower than the equity managers 

and the BlackRock multi-asset portfolio, despite these making up a large proportion of the total assets. 

Page 203



 

Avon Pension Fund  20 

Section Five - Manager Performance 
 
•••• This section provides a one page summary of the key risk and return characteristics for each 

investment manager.  An explanatory summary of each of the charts is included in the Glossary in 

Appendix A, with a reference for each chart in the chart title (e.g. #1).  A summary of mandates is 

included in Appendix B, which shows the benchmark and outperformance target for each fund. 

 

Summary of conclusions 

•••• We have not identified any significant issues with the performance of the active investment managers 

and have no concerns with investment into any of the active managers for rebalancing purposes.  

However, we do note that SRI remains under ongoing consideration by the Investment Panel and 

Committee, which would imply that any new investment with Jupiter should be at least subject to 

discussion until firm conclusions as to the practical implications of this review are reached. 

•••• UK Equity Funds:   

−−−− Jupiter significantly outperformed over the quarter, with their current SRI restrictions continuing 
to drive their relative returns, and impacting on the longer term performance.  Previously, Jupiter 
had suffered from their very underweight allocation to the mining and Oil and Gas sectors; these 
sectors were the worst performers over the quarter, as such this position contributed strongly to 
the relative returns over the period. 

−−−− In May Jupiter announced that they intended to list on the London Stock Exchange, this took 
place in June 2010 with the firm being valued at £755million.  This will give a cash windfall to 
existing employees (although they will have lock-in periods).  Any cash raised from the initial 
public offering is expected to be used to pay off debt dating from a private equity backed 
management buyout in 2007.  

−−−− TT International underperformed their benchmark over the quarter, with the overweight 
positions in Oil & Gas, and underweights in Telecommunication and Technology detrimental to 
the relative returns. 

•••• Non-UK Enhanced Indexation Funds:  Both SSgA Enhanced Indexation funds produced modest 

outperformance relative to the benchmarks over the quarter.  Invesco performed in line with their 

benchmark over the quarter, although, as has been noted in previous reports, their performance can 

be affected by the 'timing' of the pricing of the fund compared to the benchmark index, particularly in 

more volatile market conditions. 

•••• Emerging Market:  Genesis outperformed their benchmark over the quarter, and produced a negative 

absolute return.  The absolute return was driven by equity markets themselves, which overall 

produced negative returns over the quarter; the relative return was driven by Emerging Market equity 

returns and stock selection.  The latest quarter of outperformance was the fifth consecutive quarter of 

outperformance from the manager. 

•••• Fund of Hedge Funds:  

−−−− In May GLG Partners announced that it had agreed to be acquired by Man Group plc, through a 
cash and share exchange.  The shareholders are invited to vote on the proposed acquisition, 
with the results from this expected 1 September 2010.  Provided approval is received, the 
acquisition is due for completion in September 2010.   

−−−− It was announced over the quarter that Luke Ellis, a managing director at fund of funds firm 
Financial Risk Management ("FRM"), also non-executive Chairman of GLG Partners, will join 
Man Group plc when the proposed acquisition of GLG by MAN either closes or terminates. 

−−−− Hedge Funds had a difficult quarter, which was driven by market movements; however, Hedge 
Funds outperformed equity markets.   

Page 204



 

Avon Pension Fund  21 

−−−− All the Hedge Fund managers underperformed their benchmarks this quarter, and all the 
managers produced negative absolute returns.  The best performing manager in both absolute 
and relative terms was Signet and the bottom performer was MAN.  

−−−− Over the year to 30 June 2010, only Signet and Gottex are ahead of their objectives. 

−−−− The continued, underperformance of MAN should be considered in conjunction with the further 
review of the fund of hedge fund investments agreed for the second half of 2010.   

•••• BlackRock passive Funds:  there is nothing unusual arising in risk and performance for the two 

BlackRock passive funds. 

•••• Fixed Interest:  RLAM have performed in line with their benchmark.  There are no notable changes in 

the risk profile of their fund.   

•••• Property:  performance of the property funds over the quarter was positive in absolute terms.  

Schroder outperformed their benchmark, whilst Partners underperformed.  Due to the short period 

since investment in the property funds, details are not provided in the charts following.  These will be 

included in the future, once sufficient performance history is available.  For the time being, a 

qualitative assessment is included for each of these two managers. 

•••• While we have no immediate concerns over the changes to Jupiter and proposed changes to MAN's 

ownership structures and the impact on the management of the funds, we recommend that further 

investment is not made into these funds until the impact of these changes is clear. 

 

Page 205



 

Avon Pension Fund  22 

Jupiter Asset Management – UK Equities (Socially Responsible Investing) 

 

Relative returns #1 

-12.5%

-10.0%

-7.5%

-5.0%

-2.5%

0.0%

2.5%

5.0%

7.5%

10.0%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-12.5%

-10.0%

-7.5%

-5.0%

-2.5%

0.0%

2.5%

5.0%

7.5%

10.0%

Qua r te r l y r e l a t ive  r e tur n

R ol l ing 3  ye a r  r e l a t ive  r e tu r n (% p. a . )

R ol l ing 3  ye a r  be nc hma r k r e tur n  (% p. a . ) [r ight  a xi s ]

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 � mont hl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � mont hl y (over  1 year )  

Performance v fund size #3 

-10%
-8%
-6%
-4%
-2%
0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%

De

c-

06

Ma

r-

07

Ju

n-

07

Se

p-

07

De

c-

07

Ma

r-

08

Ju

n-

08

Se

p-

08

De

c-

08

Ma

r-

09

Ju

n-

09

Se

p-

09

De

c-

09

Ma

r-

10

Ju

n-

10

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

£m

Fund si ze (r i ght  ax i s) P 'f ol i o qt r l y  excess r etur n (l ef t  ax i s)

1 � i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r 2 � i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r
 

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

Dec

06

Mar

07

Jun

07

Sep

07

Dec

07

Mar

08

Jun

08

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

-1.5

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

T ur nover  (%) [ r i ght  axi s ]

T r acki ng E r r or  - r ol l i ng 3 year  (% p.a. ) [ l ef t  ax i s]

I nf or mat i on Rat i o - r ol l i ng 3 year  (t i mes) [ r i ght  ax i s ]  
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Jupiter 

Comments: 
•••• In May 2010 Jupiter announced that they 

intended to list on the London Stock Exchange; 
Jupiter's float went ahead in June 2010, with the 
company being valued at £755m, whilst this was 
slightly below the previously targeted value of 
£1bn, the initial value was within the target range 
which Jupiter had set (albeit towards the lower 
end).   

•••• Whilst there can be a risk attached to any 
significant capital restructuring, it is expected 
that Jupiter will use the opportunity to grow the 
business and become a larger and stronger 
organisation.   

•••• We continue to have no significant concerns 
over the change, however it may take time 
before the full impact of the change is known, 
and therefore we recommend that further 
investment is not made into this Fund. 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 9.2%, producing an absolute 
return of -2.7%. 

 

•••• Over the last year the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 5.8%, producing an absolute 
return of 27.0%.  Over the last 3 years the 
Fund underperformed the benchmark by 3.8% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of -9.6% 
p.a. 

•••• Over the second quarter of 2010, small cap 
stocks outperformed mid and large cap stocks 
(-6.1%: -7.1%: -12.6% respectively).  The 
outperformance of small caps benefitted 
Jupiter's relative performance. 

•••• The Fund has a small exposure to cash 
(2.6%) which had a positive impact on 
absolute performance. 

•••• The industry allocation is considerably 
different from the benchmark allocation (as 
expected from Socially Responsible 
Investing), so the variability of relative returns 
(volatility) is expected to be high.  Over Q2 
2010, Jupiter were significantly underweight 
Mining and Oil and Gas, with overweights in 
Telecommunications and Utilities.  These 
positions, driven by the SRI nature of their 
mandate, were positive contributors to relative 
returns.   

Page 206



 

Avon Pension Fund  23 

TT International – UK Equities (Unconstrained) 

 

Relative returns #1  

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

Qua r te r l y r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n

R ol l i ng s inc e  inc e pt i on r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n  (% p. a . )

Si nc e  i nc e pt ion be nc hma r k r e tur n  (% p. a . ) [r ight  a xi s ]

note: Q3 2007 is only a partial period of investment 

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

M ont hl y r et ur n

+/ - 1 � monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � monthl y (over  1 year )  

Performance v fund size #3 

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

Sep-07 Dec-07 Mar -08 Jun-08 Sep-08 Dec-08 Mar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar -10 Jun-10

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

£m

Fund size (r ight  axis)
P'f olio qt r ly excess ret urn ( lef t  axis)  

Turnover #4 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

Dec
07

M ar
08

Jun
08

Sep
08

Dec
08

M ar
09

Jun
09

Sep
09

Dec
09

M ar
10

Jun
10

Turnover 

 
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and TT International 

Comments: 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 1.4%, producing an absolute 
return of -13.2%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund underperformed the 
benchmark by 1.2%, producing an absolute 
return of 19.9%.  Over the period since inception 
the Fund outperformed the benchmark by 0.2% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of -5.8% p.a. 

•••• The Fund was overweight in Oil & Gas by 1.7% 
relative to the benchmark, which was one of the 
worst performing sectors over the second quarter 
of 2010. The main underweights, 
Telecommunication and Technology (3% and 1% 
respectively) were amongst the strongest 
performers.  These positions were detrimental to 
performance. 

 

•••• The volatility of monthly relative returns has 
not changed significantly over the most recent 
quarter.  Turnover has been marginally lower 
than in previous quarters, but not significantly 
so. 

•••• Apart from the particularly poor quarter in Q3 
2008, the volatility of this Fund relative to the 
benchmark is lower than that of Jupiter.  This 
is driven by the fact that TT International’s 
sector positions tend to be less severe than 
Jupiter’s (which are a product of their Socially 
Responsible Investment brief). This more 
pragmatic style may be more suited for 
investment when rebalancing to active UK 
equities, not least given the ongoing review of 
SRI and Corporate Governance. 

Page 207



 

Avon Pension Fund  24 

Invesco – Global ex-UK Equities Enhanced (Enhanced Indexation) 

 

Relative returns #1 

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-12%

-8%

-4%

0%

4%

8%

12%

16%

20%

Qua r te r ly r e l a t ive  r e tur n

R o l l ing 3  ye a r  be nc hma r k r e tur n  (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a x i s ]

R o l l ing 3  ye a r  r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n (% p. a . )

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10
M ont hl y r et ur n

+/ - 1 � monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � monthl y (over  1 year )

 
Performance v fund size #3 

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

Jun-

07

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

0

50

100

150

200

250

£m

Fund s i ze (r i ght  ax i s) P 'f ol i o qt r l y  excess r etur n (l ef t  ax i s)

+/ - 1 � i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r +/ - 2 � i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r
 

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4 

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%
1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

1.6%

1.8%

Jun
07

Sep
07

Dec
07

M ar
08

Jun
08

Sep
08

Dec
08

M ar
09

Jun
09

Sep
09

Dec
09

M ar
10

Jun
10

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

Turnover (r ight  axis)
Tracking Error -  rolling 3 year (% p.a.)  [ lef t  axis]
Inf ormat ion Rat io -  rolling 3 year ( t imes) [ r ight  axis]

 
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Invesco 

Comments: 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund performed in line 
with its benchmark, producing an absolute return 
of -11.3%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund marginally 
underperformed the benchmark by 0.2%, 
producing an absolute return of 21.3%.  Over 
three years, the Fund outperformed, by 1.4% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of -1.2%p.a. 

•••• Contributions to relative performance from stock 
selection and country selection were broadly 
neutral.  The timing of the pricing of the Fund 
versus the benchmark also remains a factor in its 
short term relative performance. 

 

•••• The volatility of monthly relative returns has 
reduced gradually over time, as the volatile 
2008 has rolled out of the calculations.  As an 
enhanced indexation fund the magnitude of 
the volatility is quite low.  The larger 
deviations from the benchmark tend to be 
upwards, which is favourable. 

•••• Turnover decreased slightly over Q2 2010 
remaining low, as expected for this mandate.  
The number of stocks remains at 
approximately 500, which reduces stock 
specific risk through diversification. 

•••• The industry allocation is relatively close, with 
all standard ICB industry sectors within 1.8% 
of the benchmark allocation, as is to be 
expected with this mandate. 

 

Page 208



 

Avon Pension Fund  25 

SSgA - Europe ex-UK Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 

 

Relative returns #1 

-0.8%

-0.6%

-0.4%

-0.2%

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

Q4

06

Q1

07

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Qua r t e r l y r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n

R ol l i ng  3  ye a r  r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n  (% p. a . )

R ol l i ng  3  ye a r  be nc hma r k r e t ur n  (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a xi s ]  

Monthly relative returns #2 

-1.0%

-0.8%

-0.6%

-0.4%

-0.2%

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

Q4

06

Q1

07

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10
M onthl y  r et ur n

+/ - 1 � monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � monthl y (over  1 year )  
Performance v fund size #3 

-1.0%
-0.8%
-0.6%
-0.4%
-0.2%
0.0%
0.2%
0.4%
0.6%
0.8%
1.0%

Ma

r-

07

Ju

n-

07

Se

p-

07

De

c-

07

Ma

r-

08

Ju

n-

08

Se

p-

08

De

c-

08

Ma

r-

09

Ju

n-

09

Se

p-

09

De

c-

09

Ma

r-

10

Ju

n-

10

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

£m

Fund si ze (r i ght  axi s) P 'f ol i o qtr l y  excess r etur n (l ef t  axi s)

1 � i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r 2 � i n 3 y r  excess r etur n per  qt r  

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4 

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

1.6%

1.8%

Mar

07

Jun

07

Sep

07

Dec

07

Mar

08

Jun

08

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

jun

10

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

T ur nover  p.a.  appr ox  (r i ght  axi s)

T r ack i ng Er r or  - r ol l i ng 3 year  (% p.a. ) [ l ef t  axi s]
I nf or mat i on Rat i o - r ol l i ng 3 year  (t i mes) [ r i ght  axi s]

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and SSgA 

Comments: 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 0.9%, producing an absolute 
return of -13.9%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 1.4%, producing an absolute 
return of 16.7%.  Over the last 3 years the Fund 
outperformed the benchmark by 0.6% p.a., 
producing an absolute return of -5.0%p.a. 

•••• Stock selection has been the primary driver of 
relative performance, continuing to account for 
approximately 90% of relative performance. 

 

•••• The volatility of monthly relative returns 
remained fairly constant over the last year.  
As an enhanced indexation fund the 
magnitude of the volatility is very low. 

•••• Turnover remains consistent over the last 3 
years.  The tracking error has decreased 
over the last quarter back to a similar level as 
at December 2009. 

•••• Given its reasonable return and low risk this 
Fund would appear to be suitable for new 
contributions or suitable for investment if 
rebalancing is required into active overseas 
equities subject to the strategic benchmark 
constraints. 

Page 209



 

Avon Pension Fund  26 

SSgA - Pacific incl. Japan Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 

 

Relative returns #1 

-2.0%

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-16%

-12%

-8%

-4%

0%

4%

8%

12%

Qua r te r ly r e l a t i ve  r e tur n

Rol l ing 3 ye a r  r e l a t ive  r e tur n  (% p . a . )
Rol l ing 3 ye a r  be nc hma r k  r e tu r n (% p. a . ) [r ight  a xi s ]

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

Q2
07

Q3
07

Q4
07

Q1
08

Q2
08

Q3
08

Q4
08

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Q1
10

Q2
10

M onthl y  r etur n

+/ - 1 � monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � monthl y (over  1 year )

 
Performance v fund size #3 

-2.0%

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

Mar -
07

Jun-
07

Sep-
07

Dec-
07

Mar -
08

Jun-
08

Sep-
08

Dec-
08

Mar -
09

Jun-
09

Sep-
09

Dec-
09

Mar -
10

Jun-
10

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

£m

Fund si ze (r i ght  axi s) P 'f ol i o qt r l y excess r etur n (l ef t  axi s)

1 � i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r 2 � i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r
 

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4 

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

Mar

07

Jun

07

Sep

07

Dec

07

Mar

08

Jun

08

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

T ur nover  (r i ght  axi s)

T r acki ng E r r or  - r ol l i ng 3 year  (% p.a. ) [ l ef t  axi s]
I nf or mat i on Rat i o - r ol l i ng 3 year  (t i mes) [ r i ght  ax i s]

 
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and SSgA 

Comments: 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 0.2%, producing an absolute 
return of -9.1%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 0.7%, producing an absolute 
return of 19.4%.  Over the last 3 years the Fund 
underperformed the benchmark by 0.6% p.a., 
producing an absolute return of 0.0% p.a. 

•••• Similar to the other SSgA portfolio, stock 
selection has been the primary driver of relative 
performance over the year, accounting for 
approximately 90% of relative performance. 

 

•••• The industry allocation remains close to the 
benchmark allocation, as would be expected 
from an enhanced indexation fund. 

•••• Given its reasonable return and low risk this 
Fund would also appear to be suitable for 
new contributions or suitable for investment if 
rebalancing is required. 

 

Page 210



 

Avon Pension Fund  27 

Genesis Asset Managers – Emerging Market Equities 

 

Relative returns #1 

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

Qua r te r ly r e l a t ive  r e tur n

Rol l ing 3  ye a r  r e l a t ive  r e tur n  (% p . a . )
Rol l ing 3  ye a r  be nc hma r k  r e tu r n (% p. a . ) [r ight  a xi s ]

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 � monthl y  (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � monthl y  (over  1 year )  
Performance v fund size #3 

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Mar-

07

Jun-

07

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

£m

P or t f ol i o val ue (r i ght  axi s) P 'f ol i o qt r l y  excess r etur n (l ef t  axi s)

1 � i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r 2 � i n 3 y r  excess  r et ur n per  qt r
 

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

Mar

07

Jun

07

Sep

07

Dec

07

Mar

08

Jun

08

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

-0.8

-0.6

-0.4

-0.2

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

T ur nover  (r i ght  ax i s)

T r acki ng er r or  - 3 year  r ol l i ng (% p.a. ) [ l ef t  ax i s]

Inf or mat i on Rat i o - r ol l i ng 3 year  (t i mes) [ r i ght  ax i s]

 
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Genesis 

Comments: 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 1.6%, producing an absolute 
return of -5.4%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 12.7%, producing an absolute 
return of 48.9%.  Over the last 3 years the Fund 
outperformed the benchmark by 4.1% p.a., 
producing an absolute return of 12.5% p.a. 

•••• The Fund is overweight to South Africa, India 
and Russia, and underweight China and Brazil.  
Please note that the over and underweights are a 
result of Genesis' stock picking approach, rather 
than taking a view on countries.  Note that the 
China underweight is partly due to the 
restrictions on non-local investors. 

 

 

•••• The 3 year tracking error (proxy for risk) fell 
slightly over the quarter. The 3 year 
information ratio (risk adjusted return) rose 
slightly over the quarter. 

•••• On an industry basis, the Fund is overweight 
in Consumer Staples (+9.4%) and 
underweight Information Technology    (-
5.5%) and Energy (-3.8%). 

 

Page 211



 

Avon Pension Fund  28 

Lyster Watson Management Inc – Fund of Hedge Funds 

 

Relative returns #1  

-30%

-25%
-20%

-15%

-10%
-5%

0%

5%
10%

15%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-30%

-25%
-20%

-15%

-10%
-5%

0%

5%
10%

15%

Qua r te r ly r e l a t ive  r e tur n

Sinc e  inc e pt ion be nc hma r k  r e tu r n (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a xi s ]

Rol l ing  s inc e  inc e pt ion r e l a t ive  r e t ur n (% p. a . )

 
note: Q3 2007 is only a partial period of investment  

Monthly relative returns #2 

-12%

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10
M onthl y  r etur n

+/ - 1 � monthl y  (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � monthl y  (over  1 year )  

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6 

- 12 %

- 10 %

- 8 %

- 6 %

- 4 %

- 2 %

0 %

2 %

4 %

6 %

8 %

10 %

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Conver t i bl e Ar bi t r age Cr edi t  St r ategi es

Di st r ess Secur i t i es Event Dr i ven

Fi xed Income Ar bi t r age Long/ shor t  E qui t y

M acr o St r ategi es - Di scr et i onar y M acr o St r ategi es - Systemat i c

Quant i tat i ve St r ategi es Vol at i l i t y A r bi t r age

Por t f ol i o r etur n

 

Correlation with indices #7 

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

-15.0% -10.0% -5.0% 0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0%

Portfolio return - quarterly (%)

Benchmark

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gilt s All St ocks
 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Lyster Watson 

Comments: 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 4.1%, producing an absolute 
return of -3.0%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund underperformed the 
benchmark by 2.2%, producing an absolute 
return of 2.5%.  Over the period since inception 
the Fund underperformed the benchmark by 
12.8% p.a., producing an absolute return of         
-5.7% p.a. 

•••• The key driver of the Fund’s negative absolute 
return over the quarter has been the allocation to 
Distressed Securities, Event Driven Strategies 
and Long/Short Equity.  There were some 
positive contributions from Credit Strategies and 
Fixed Income Arbitrage, but these were 
outweighed by the negative contributors.  

 

•••• The Fund continues to have a diverse 
exposure to hedge fund strategies, although 
there is a continued high allocation of 40% to 
Distressed Securities and Long/Short Equity 
strategies.   

•••• There is no clear correlation between this 
Fund and cash, global equities or non gilt 
bonds.  This suggests that this Fund acts as a 
good diversifier to the Avon Pension Fund's 
other asset classes. 

Page 212



 

Avon Pension Fund  29 

MAN – Fund of Hedge Funds 

 

Relative returns #1  

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

Qua r te r l y r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n

Si nc e  i nc e pt i on  be nc hma r k r e t ur n (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a x i s ]

R ol l i ng s i nc e  i nc e pt i on r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n (% p . a . )

note: Q3 2007 is only a partial period of investment 

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 � monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � monthl y (over  1 year )

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6 

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Sep-07 Dec-07 M ar -08 Jun-08 Sep-08 Dec-08 M ar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 M ar -10 Jun-10

Long shor t Shor t  sel l i ng Ar bi t r age

Di st r essed Commodi t i es M ul t i -st r ategi es  RV

Spec i al  Si tuat i ons Gl obal  T r adi ng Other

Por t f ol i o r etur n  

Correlation with indices #7 

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%
Port f olio ret urn -  quart er ly 

Benchmark

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gilt s All St ocks
 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and MAN 

Comments: 

•••• In May 2010 GLG Partners announced that it had 
agreed to be acquired by Man Group plc, through 
a cash and share exchange.  Man Shareholders 
have a meeting scheduled for 1 September, 
which will allow them to vote on the proposed 
resolution to approve and implement the 
acquisition.  Provided approval is received, the 
acquisition is expected to complete in September 
2010.   

•••• The merged hedge fund business will manage 
c.US$63 billion of assets.  The acquisition has 
been stated as the merging of complementary 
and uncorrelated investment strategies, with 
significant cost savings identified. 

•••• There are no immediate concerns with the 
impact on the management of the Fund, although 
we recommend that further investment is not 
made into this Fund until the impact of the 
acquisition is clear. 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 4.7%, producing an absolute 
return of -3.1%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 5.3%, producing an 
absolute return of 1.1%.  Over the period 
since inception the Fund underperformed the 
benchmark by 12.2% p.a., producing an 
absolute return of -3.3% p.a. 

•••• The key driver of performance was the high 
allocation to Commodities, Long/Short Asia 
Pacific and Long/Short, while the remaining 
strategies produced returns that where either 
slightly negative or broadly neutral.   

•••• The Fund has a diverse exposure to hedge 
fund strategies, although 64% is made up of 
Long/Short and Commodities strategies. 

••••  There is no clear correlation between this 
Fund and cash, global equities or non gilt 
bonds. This suggests that this Fund acts as a 
good diversifier to the Avon Pension Fund's 
other asset classes. 

Page 213



 

Avon Pension Fund  30 

Signet – Fund of Hedge Funds 

 

Relative returns #1  

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

Qua r t e r l y  r e l a t i ve  r e tur n

Sinc e  i nc e pt i on be nc hma r k r e tur n (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a xi s ]

R ol l i ng s i nc e  i nc e pt i on r e l a t i ve  r e tur n (% p. a . )

 
note: Q3 2007 is only a partial period of investment 

 

Monthly relative returns #2  

-12%

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 � monthl y  (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � monthl y  (over  1 year )

 

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6 

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Conver t i bl e Ar bi t r age Di st r ess Secur i t i es E vent  Dr i ven

Fi xed Income Ar bi t r age Gl obal  M acr o Other

Por t f ol i o r etur n

 

Correlation with indices #7 

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%
Port f olio ret urn -  quart er ly (%)

Benchmark 

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gilt s All St ocks
 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Signet 

Comments: 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 1.4%, producing an absolute 
return of -0.5%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 8.0%, producing an absolute 
return of 11.7%.  Over the period since inception 
the Fund underperformed the benchmark by 
6.4% p.a., producing an absolute return of -0.2% 
p.a. 

 

 

••••  There is no clear correlation between this 
Fund and cash, global equities or non gilt 
bonds.  This suggests that this Fund acts as 
a good diversifier to the Avon Pension 
Fund's other asset classes. 

 

Page 214



 

Avon Pension Fund  31 

Stenham – Fund of Hedge Funds 

 

Relative returns #1  

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

Qua r te r ly r e l a t ive  r e tu r n

Sinc e  i nc e p t ion  be nc hma r k r e tu r n (% p. a . ) [r ight  a xi s ]

Ro l l ing  s inc e  inc e p t ion  r e la t ive  r e tu r n (% p. a . )

 

note: Q3 2007 is only a partial period of investment 

 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 � monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � monthl y (over  1 year )  

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6 

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Event  Dr iven Global Macro Long/ short  Equit y
Relat ive Value Long Volat il it y Port f olio ret urn  

Correlation with indices #7 

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%
Port f olio ret urn -  quart er ly 

Benchmark

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gilt s All Stocks

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Stenham 

Comments: 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 3.7%, producing an absolute 
return of -2.8%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund underperformed the 
benchmark by 2.8%, producing an absolute 
return of 1.0%.  Over the period since inception 
the Fund underperformed the benchmark by 
6.4% p.a., producing an absolute return of         -
0.2% p.a. 

•••• The main contributor to the negative absolute 
performance was the Long/Short Equity, 
however all the underlying strategies produced 
negative absolute returns.   

 

•••• The allocation to the Global Macro and 
Long/Short Equity strategies made up 71% 
of the total Fund allocation.  The allocation 
to cash was increased from 2% to 7.5% 
over the quarter. 

••••  There is no clear correlation between this 
Fund and cash, global equities or non gilt 
bonds.  This suggests that this Fund acts as 
a good diversifier to the Avon Pension 
Fund's other asset classes. 

Page 215



 

Avon Pension Fund  32 

Gottex – Fund of Hedge Funds 

 

Relative returns #1  

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

Qua r t e r ly r e la t ive  r e t ur n

Si nc e  inc e pt ion be nc hma r k r e tur n (% p. a . ) [r ight  a xi s ]

R ol l ing s in c e  i nc e pt i on r e la t ive  r e tur n (% p. a . )

note: Q3 2007 is only a partial period of investment 

Monthly relative returns #2  

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

M onthl y  r etur n

+/ - 1 � monthl y  (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � monthl y  (over  1 year )

 

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6 

-8%
-6%

-4%
-2%

0%
2%

4%
6%

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10
Con ver t ible Ar bit r age Opt ion s Ar bit r age M BS St r at egies

Fixed I n come Ar b. Cr edit  Ar bit r age Ot her  Relat ive Value
Lon g -  Shor t  Cr edit Asset - Backed Secur it ies Closed- En d Fun d Ar bit r age

M er ger  Ar bit r age Dist r essed Secur it ies Asset - Based Len din g

Pr ivat e Placemen t  Ar bit r age Capit al St r uct ur e Ar bit r age Quan t it at ive M N Equit y

Fun damen t al M N Equit y Lon g -  Shor t  Equit y Even t  -  Dr iven  Equit y
Fut ur es St r at egies M acr o St r at egies Ot her

Por t f olio r et ur n

 

Correlation with indices #7 

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%

Port f olio ret urn -  quart er ly

Benchmark

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gilt s All St ocks
 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Gottex 

Comments: 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 1.8%, producing an absolute 
return of -0.9%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 5.3%, producing an absolute 
return of 9.0%.  Over the period since inception 
the Fund underperformed the benchmark by 
9.9% p.a., producing an absolute return of         -
3.7%p.a. 

•••• The key drivers of performance were Mortgage 
Backed Securities ("MBS"), Asset Backed 
Securities ("ABS"), Options Arbitrage, Asset 
Based Lending and Asset Based Securities.  The 
largest contributor to performance was from 
MBS. 

 

••••  The Fund has a diverse range of strategy 
exposures, with the major exposures 
continuing to be Convertible Arbitrage, Long-
Short Credit and ABS Strategies.   

••••  There is no clear correlation between this 
Fund and cash, global equities or non gilt 
bonds.  This suggests that this Fund acts as a 
good diversifier to the Avon Pension Fund's 
other asset classes. 

 

Page 216



 

Avon Pension Fund  33 

BlackRock - Passive Multi-Asset 

 

Relative returns #1 

-0.3%
-0.2%
-0.1%

0.0%
0.1%
0.2%
0.3%
0.4%

0.5%
0.6%
0.7%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-6%
-4%
-2%

0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%

Qua r te r ly r e l a t i ve  r e tur n

Rol l ing  3 ye a r  r e l a t i ve  r e tur n  (% p . a . )

Rol l ing  3 ye a r  be nc hma r k  r e t ur n (% p. a . ) [r ight  a xi s ]

 

Monthly/Quarterly relative returns #2 

-0.7%
-0.6%
-0.5%
-0.4%
-0.3%
-0.2%
-0.1%
0.0%
0.1%
0.2%
0.3%
0.4%
0.5%
0.6%
0.7%
0.8%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

M onthl y/ quar t er l y r et ur ns

+/ - 1 � mont hl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � mont hl y (over  1 year )

 
Note that return after Q4 2008 above are quarterly returns. 

 

 *Contribution to absolute return #6 

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10
UK equi t i es Nor th Amer i can Equi t i es

Eur opean Equi t i es Japan equi t i es

Pac Ri m Equi t i es Bonds

Cash Fund(s) Canada Equi t i es

T otal  

Asset Allocation #5 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

UK equit ies Canada Equit ies
North American Equit ies European Equit ies
Japan equit ies Pac Rim Equit ies
total bonds Cash Fund(s)

 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and BlackRock 

Comments: 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund very marginally 
outperformed benchmark (by <0.1%), producing 
an absolute return of -7.4%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 1.0%, producing an absolute 
return of 20.3%.  Over the last 3 years the Fund 
outperformed the benchmark by 0.5% p.a., 
producing an absolute return of 0.8% p.a. 

•••• Being a passive mandate, with a customised 
benchmark based on the monthly mean fund 
weights, there is nothing unusual arising in risk 
and performance. 

•••• The portfolio has outperformed its benchmark 
for the last 10 consecutive quarters, though 
being passively managed the outperformance 
has been marginal.  This is positive as it 
indicates minimal relative risk in the portfolio. 

•••• The magnitude of the relative volatility in the 
portfolio is very small.   

•••• Over the last quarter, and the start position 1 
year ago, there has been some change within 
the underlying asset allocation; the total 
allocation to bonds has increased and the 
allocation to equities has reduced, although 
over the latest quarter in particular this was 
largely driven by market movements rather 
than a strategic change. 

 

Page 217



 

Avon Pension Fund  34 

BlackRock No.2 – Property account (“ring fenced” assets) 

 

Relative returns #1  

-0.5%
-0.4%
-0.3%
-0.2%
-0.1%
0.0%
0.1%
0.2%
0.3%
0.4%
0.5%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-5.0%

-2.5%

0.0%

2.5%

5.0%

Qua r t e r l y r e la t i ve  r e tur n

Rol l ing  s i nc e  i nc e pt i on r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n (% p. a . )

Si nc e  i nc e pt i on be nc h ma r k r e tu r n (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a xi s ]

Note: Q3 2007 is only a partial period of investment 

 

Monthly relative returns #2  

-0.5%

-0.4%

-0.3%

-0.2%

-0.1%

0.0%

0.1%

0.2%

0.3%

0.4%

0.5%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10
M onthl y/ quar t er l y  r etur ns

+/ - 1 � mont hl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � mont hl y (over  1 year )

 
Note that return after Q4 2008 above are quarterly returns. 

 
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and BlackRock 

 

Comments: 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 0.3%, producing an absolute 
return of -2.5%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund produced a return of 
8.1%, underperforming the benchmark by 0.1%.  
Over the period since inception the Fund 
produced as absolute return of 1.4%p.a., which 
was broadly in line with the benchmark return. 

•••• Despite a high cash element, the Fund has 
produced a relatively low absolute return.  Over 
the last year it has produced a return very close 
to the benchmark. 

 

 

•••• Being passively managed the relative 
performance has been marginal over the last 
12 quarters.  This is positive as it indicates 
minimal relative risk in the portfolio. 

•••• The magnitude of the relative volatility in the 
portfolio is very small.  

•••• There was no significant change to the asset 
allocation over the year. 

 

Page 218



 

Avon Pension Fund  35 

Royal London Asset Management – Fixed Interest 

 

Relative returns #1  

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

-10%
-8%
-6%

-4%
-2%
0%
2%
4%

6%
8%
10%

Qua r t e r l y r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n

Rol l i ng s inc e  i nc e p t ion r e l a t i ve  r e t u r n (% p. a . )
Si nc e  i nc e pt i on be nc hma r k r e t ur n  (%p. a . ) [r i gh t  a x is ]

note: Q3 2007 is only a partial period of investment 

Monthly relative returns #2 

-3.0%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 � monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 � monthl y (over  1 year )

 

Performance v fund size #3 

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

£m

Fund size (r ight axis) P'f ol io qtr ly excess r etur n (lef t axis)

 

Relative Maturity exposure #8 

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Short : < 5 years M edium: 5-10 years

M edium: 10-15 years Long: >15 years

 
Duration #10 

6.0

6.2

6.4
6.6

6.8

7.0

7.2

7.4
7.6

7.8

8.0

Sep

07

Dec

07

Mar

08

Jun

08

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

P or t f ol i o dur at i on Benchmar k dur at i on

 

Relative Ratings exposure #9 

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

AAA (or equivalent) AA (or equivalent) A (or equivalent)

BBB (or equivalent) Sub-inv. Grade Other

 
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and RLAM 

Comments: 

•••• Over the last quarter the Fund performed in line 
with the benchmark, producing an absolute 
return of 1.9%. 

•••• Over the last year the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 4.6%, producing an absolute 
return of 20.5%.  Over the period since inception 
the Fund underperformed the benchmark by 
1.7% p.a., producing an absolute return of 3.9% 
p.a. 

 

•••• The Fund performed in line with the 
benchmark over the last quarter, this is 
despite the portfolio being underweight to 
AAA, in favour of BBB, sub-investment and 
unrated bonds.   

•••• The Fund continues to be considerably 
overweight in medium term maturity bonds, 
and underweight short maturity bonds. 

 

Page 219



 

Avon Pension Fund  36 

8%

10%

22%

17%

7%

13%

11%

12%

Standard Retail

Shopping centres

Retail warehouses

Central London offices

Rest of UK offices

Industrial

Alternatives / other

Cash

 

Schroder – UK Property 
 
•••• The mandate awarded to Schroders by the Fund commenced in February 2009. 

•••• The Fund appointed Schroder to manage UK property on a segregated, multi-manager basis.  The 

investments held within the underlying funds are primarily direct, although some managers might use 

listed securities for diversification.  

•••• Due to the recency of the first investments into the portfolio, a full quantitative assessment of Schroder 

is not yet possible.  However, we provide here a qualitative update and assessment of the manager. 

 

Portfolio update 

As at 10 August 2010, approximately 84% of the Fund's £90million committed cash had been drawn by 

Schroder.  

 

To date, the drawn down monies have been invested across 13 different underlying funds.  Of these funds, 4 

are "core" investments (comprising 58% of the total portfolio) and 9 are "value add" investments (the 

remaining 42% of the portfolio). 

 

The investments in the funds noted above have resulted in a UK property portfolio that, as at 30 June 2010, 

was split between sectors as shown in the following chart.  

 
     Portfolio split by sector 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

In terms of relative positioning, the allocations above are, compared with the benchmark (the UK IPD Pooled 

Property Index), underweight standard retail, non-London offices and industrial properties and overweight in 

the other sectors.  The most significant overweights are to central London offices and cash. 

 

Page 220



 

Avon Pension Fund  37 

Although the portfolio is not yet fully invested the allocation is consistent with Schroder's outlook.  For 

example, they believe that non-London offices may be vulnerable to government spending cuts, whereas 

central London offices, and the South East more generally, will be potentially more resilient.  Cash is above 

benchmark levels due to one particular holding, the Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust, which has a 

high proportion of cash.  However, with capital values now stabilising somewhat, Schroder are less concerned 

about the opportunity cost of holding cash than would have been the case twelve months ago.  

 

Over the latest quarter, Schroder made two new investments, totalling approximately £1.6 million.  The monies 

were invested into: 

•••• The Columbus UK Real Estate Fund, which recently acquired its first asset in the form of a shopping 

centre in Motherwell, which Schroder note has a secure income profile with scope to increase the 

rental income.  The price paid for the property was at a 45% discount to that paid in 2007 by the 

previous owner. 

•••• The Henderson UK Retail Warehouse Fund, where Schroder believe that the underlying properties 

held are attractive, and debt is secured on favourable terms until the expiry of the fund 

 
Performance over Q2 2010 

Schroder produced a return of 3.6% over the three months to 30 June 2010, versus the benchmark return of 

3.1%.  The key drivers of the relative return over the period were: 

•••• Allocations to the West End of London Property Unit Trust, the Standard Life Investments Pooled 

Pensions Property Fund and the Threadneedle Investments Strategic Property Fund IV. 

•••• Investments with higher than average gearing levels, in particular value add and opportunity funds, 

have boosted returns over the quarter, and over the last twelve months as a whole. 

•••• On the negative side, Schroder's circa 5% allocation to the Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust 

has disappointed, driven by this Unit Trust's high levels of uninvested cash, which has diluted returns. 

Schroder remain confident that this particular fund's strategy of buying high yielding multi-let industrial 

estates from distressed sellers will be successful over the longer term.  

 

Conclusion 

Schroder's intention when they were appointed was to fully establish the Fund's portfolio over a period of 

around 18 months, and this appears to be on track.  The portfolio is diverse, as one might expect for a multi-

manager vehicle, although even at this early stage evidence of Schroder's outlook can be seen in the portfolio 

positioning.  Schroder do note that the portfolio sector structure and property fund allocations will be reviewed 

again once the portfolio is fully invested. 

 

We have no concerns with Schroder.  We also note that they are due to attend the September Investment 

Panel meeting, where their outlook and strategy will be discussed further. 

Page 221



 

Avon Pension Fund  38 

Partners – Overseas Property 

•••• The mandate awarded to Partners by the Fund commenced in August 2009, although draw downs are 

being made gradually over time, and the full extent of the Fund's commitment has not yet been 

invested. 

•••• Partners invest in direct, primary and secondary private real estate investments on a global basis. 

 

Portfolio update 

To date, Partners have drawn down approximately £32.3 million of the Fund's intended commitment of 

approximately £90 million.  The draw downs commenced in September 2009.   

 

Partners have communicated that the extent of the draw downs to date are broadly as they expected, and they 

note that their strategy is to build a diversified portfolio in a disciplined manner, spread across different 

"vintage" years. 

 

The funds invested to date have been split by Partners between funds as follows: 

Partners Fund Net Drawn Down  

(£ m) 

Net Asset Value as at 
30 June 2010  

(£m) 

Asia Pacific and Emerging Market Real Estate 2009 5.81 6.02 

Distressed US Real Estate 2009  7.65 8.28 

Global Real Estate 2008  15.65 14.54 

Real Estate Secondary 2009  3.22 3.17 

Total 32.33 32.01 

Source: Partners 

 

Page 222



 

Avon Pension Fund  39 

Geographical split based on Net Asset Value

Asia Pacific 
and Rest of 
the World

41% (10% - 
60%)

Europe
23% (10% - 

50%)

North 
America

36% (10% - 
50%)

Investment type split based on Net Asset Value

Secondary
34% (0% - 

30%)

Primary
55% (60% - 

100%)

Direct
11% (0% - 

20%)

The investments in the funds noted above have resulted in a portfolio that was, as at 30 June 2010, split 

regionally as shown in the chart on the left below, and across different investment types as shown on the right.  

We show in brackets for each region the current guideline allocations to each region that are in place for the 

Fund's portfolio. 

  

 

Source: Partners 

 

The geographical allocation shown is consistent with Partners' current investment outlook, which favours Asia 

Pacific and Emerging Markets on the grounds that such economies will drive future global growth.  In contrast, 

Partners believe that Europe’s sovereign debt crisis creates risks on the downside for Europe, hence the 

relative underweight to this region.  Partners are have a broadly neutral view with respect to North America, 

and the current overweight to this region is expected to reduce as further draw downs are made. 

 

In terms of the portfolio allocation by investment type, currently Partners are underweight primary investments 

and this allocation is below the lower bound of the investment restrictions in place for the longer term portfolio, 

with a commensurate overweight to secondary investments. 

 

Short term deviation from the allocation restrictions in place can be expected at such an early stage of 

investment and we do not believe the current positioning to be of concern.  Additionally, the overweight to 

secondary investments reflects Partners' strong view that this market offers attractive value.  

 

Encouragingly, the Fund's portfolio has already experienced its first distributions (to date, distributions of 

approximately £0.61 million have been paid).  This would ordinarily be unexpected from a private investment 

portfolio, however, Partners' use of secondary vehicles, many of which they have been able to purchase at a 

discount from distressed sellers, are at the stage where distributions are being made.    

 

Performance over Q2 2010 

Partners produced a return of 2.0% over the three months to 30 June 2010.  Information for the portfolio's 

stated benchmark (the IPD Global Pooled Property Index) is not yet available.  We do note that the Partners 

portfolio proved a good diversifier from global equities over this short period.  Performance attribution for 

Page 223



 

Avon Pension Fund  40 

Partners is unavailable at this point, as benchmark data is not yet published and the Fund's investments are at 

such an early stage. 

 

Conclusion 

The early stages of investment in a private real estate portfolio are about establishing a diversified portfolio 

whilst aiming to mitigate the "J curve effect" (the tendency of private investments to deliver negative returns in 

early years, driven by initial costs, and positive returns in later years as the portfolio matures). 

 

Although it remains very early days for Partners, they have stuck to their stated approach of building a diverse 

portfolio by region, type of investment (primary, secondary and direct), and by vintage year.  The manager has 

employed a strategy whereby value opportunities are attained via the purchase of perceived high quality funds 

at discounts from distressed sellers, and growth is sought by overweighting Emerging Markets.  This appears 

to be a sensible approach to mitigating the impact of the J-curve effect  

 

We have no concerns with Partners.  We also note that they are due to attend the September Investment 

Panel meeting, where their outlook and strategy will be discussed further. 

 

Page 224



 

Avon Pension Fund  41 

Appendix A - Glossary of Charts 
 
The following provides a description of the charts used in Section 5 and a brief description of their 

interpretation. 

Reference Description 

#1 

- 0.3%
- 0.2%
-0.1%
0.0%
0.1%
0.2%
0.3%
0.4%
0.5%
0.6%
0.7%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

-6%

-2%

2%

6%

10%

14%

Qua r t e r l y r e l a ti ve  r e t ur n

R oll ing  3  y e a r  r e l a t ive  r e tur n (% p.a . )

R oll ing  3  y e a r  be n c hma r k r e tu r n (% p. a . )  [r i ght  a xis ]  

This chart shows the quarterly relative return (blue bars) and rolling 3 year 

relative return (blue line) for the manager over 3 years/since inception.  This 

shows the ability of the manager to achieve and outperform the benchmark 

over the medium term.  The rolling 3 year benchmark absolute return (grey 

line) is overlayed to provide a context for relative performance, e.g. 

consistent underperformance in a falling market. 

#2 

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Q1
07

Q2
07

Q3
07

Q4
07

Q1
08

Q2
08

Q3
08

Q4
08

Q1
09

Q2
09

Q3
09

Q4
09

Monthly return
+/- 1 � monthly (over 1 year)
+/- 2 � monthly (over 1 year)
-1 � monthly (over 1 year)

 

This chart shows the relative monthly returns for 3 years/since inception.  It 

shows the level of fluctuation about the zero axis, i.e. the level of volatility of 

monthly returns and any tendency for positive or negative returns.  The 

dotted lines show the standard deviation of returns over 1 year periods - this 

is a standard measure of risk which shows the magnitude of fluctuations of 
monthly returns.  Under common assumptions, being within the inside 

dotted lines (i.e. 1 standard deviation) is roughly likely to occur 2/3rds of the 

time, while being within the outside lines is roughly likely to occur 1 in 20 

times (i.e. 2 standard deviation - which is considered unlikely). 

#3 

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Mar-
07

Jun-
07

Sep-
07

Dec-
07

Mar-
08

Jun-
08

Sep-
08

Dec-
08

Mar-
09

Jun-
09

Sep-
09

Dec-
09

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

£m

Fund size (right axis) P'folio qtrly excess return (left axis)
1 � in 3 yr excess return per qtr 2 � in 3 yr excess return per qtr

 

This chart shows the relative performance on a quarterly basis.  The dotted 

lines show the standard deviation of returns for a quarter - based on the 

latest quarter 3 year standard deviation.  (See #2 above for further detail on 

interpretation).  The total size of the underlying fund is overlayed in yellow 

(portfolio value in blue) to identify any trend in diminished performance with 

increasing fund (portfolio) size, as sometimes observed. 

#4 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

Mar
07

Jun
07

Sep
07

Dec
07

Mar
08

Jun
08

Sep
08

Dec
08

Mar
09

Jun
09

Sep
09

Dec
09

-1.5

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Turnover (%) [right axis]

Tracking Error - rolling 3 year (% p.a.) [left axis]
Information Ratio - rolling 3 year (times) [right axis]

 

This chart shows the 3 year annualised tracking error (this is the standard 

deviation of returns which shows the magnitude of the fund returns 

compared to the benchmark) and the 3 year information ratio (this is the 

excess return divided by the tracking error).  If tracking error increases, the 

risk taken away from the benchmark increases, and we would expect an 

increase in the excess return over time (albeit more variable).  The turnover 

is provided to show if any increase in risk is reflected in an increase in the 

level of active management, i.e. purchases/sales in the portfolio. 

#5 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Mar-08 Jun-08 Sep-08 Dec-08 Mar-09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09

UK equities Canada Equities North American Equities European Equities

Japan equities Pac Rim Equities total bonds Cash Fund(s)

 

This chart shows the absolute asset allocation or hedge fund strategy 

allocation over time.  This helps to identify any significant change or trends 

over time in allocation to particular asset allocations/hedge fund strategies. 

#6 

-12%

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Sep-07 Dec-07 Mar-08 Jun-08 Sep-08 Dec-08 Mar-09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09

Convertible Arbitrage Credit Strategies

Distress Securities Event Driven

Fixed Income Arbitrage Long/short Equity

Macro Strategies - Discretionary Macro Strategies - Systematic

Quantitative Strategies Volatility Arbitrage

Portfolio return

 

These charts show the breakdown of the return provided by each of the 

different hedge fund strategies or asset classes over time - this provides a 

profile of where the returns come from, and should be compared with the 

volatility chart above to see if risk taken is being rewarded accordingly.  The 

total portfolio return is also shown. 

Page 225



 

Avon Pension Fund  42 

#7 

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

-15.0% -10.0% -5.0% 0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0%
Portfolio return - quarterly (%)

Benchmark

Cash Global Equities Non Gilts All Stocks

 

This chart plots the quarterly returns of the fund against quarterly returns of 

various indices.  Any plots on the diagonal line represent the fund and the 

index achieving the same quarterly return - any below the line represents 

underperformance relative to the index, above the line represents 

outperformance.  This is to highlight any apparent correlation between the 

fund returns and any particular index.  If a fund is used as a diversifier from, 

say equities, we would expect to see a lack of returns plotted close to the 

diagonal line. 

#8 

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

Sep-07 Dec-07 Mar-08 Jun-08 Sep-08 Dec-08 Mar-09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09
Short: < 5 years Medium: 5-10 years

Medium: 10-15 years Long: >15 years

 

This chart shows the holding in short, medium and long maturity bonds 

relative to the benchmark.  Over/underweight positions expose the fund to 

changes in the yield curve at different terms. 

#9 

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

Sep-07 Dec-07 Mar-08 Jun-08 Sep-08 Dec-08 Mar-09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09

AAA (or equivalent) AA (or equivalent) A (or equivalent)

BBB (or equivalent) Sub-inv. Grade Other

 

This chart shows the holding in bonds with different credit ratings.  AAA is 

the highest grading (usually for government or supranational organisation 

bonds) while below BBB is sub-investment grade and has a considerably 

higher risk of default.  The lower the grade the higher the risk and therefore 

the higher the return expected on the bond. 

#1

0 

6.0

6.2

6.4

6.6

6.8

7.0

7.2

7.4

7.6

7.8

8.0

Sep 07 Dec 07 Mar 08 Jun 08 Sep 08 Dec 08 Mar 09 Jun 09 Sep 09 Dec 09

Portfolio duration Benchmark duration

 

This chart shows the duration of the fund against the benchmark duration.  It 

shows whether the fixed interest fund manager is taking duration bets 

against the benchmark. 

Page 226



 A
vo

n
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

43
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 -
 S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 M

an
da

te
s 

 
M

an
ag

er
 

M
an

d
at

e 
B

en
ch

m
ar

k 
O

u
tp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 t

ar
g

et
 

(p
.a

.)
 

Ju
pi

te
r 

 
U

K
 E

qu
iti

es
 (

S
oc

ia
lly

 R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 In
ve

st
in

g)
 

F
T

S
E

 A
ll 

S
ha

re
 

+2
%

 

T
T

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
U

K
 E

qu
iti

es
 (

U
nc

on
st

ra
in

ed
) 

F
T

S
E

 A
ll 

S
ha

re
 

+3
-4

%
 

In
ve

sc
o 

G
lo

ba
l e

x-
U

K
 E

qu
iti

es
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

(E
n.

 In
de

xa
tio

n)
 

M
S

C
I W

or
ld

 e
x 

U
K

 N
D

R
 

+0
.5

%
 

S
S

gA
 

E
ur

op
e 

ex
-U

K
 E

qu
iti

es
 (

E
nh

an
ce

d 
In

de
xa

tio
n)

 
F

T
S

E
 A

W
 E

ur
op

e 
ex

 U
K

 
+0

.5
%

 

S
S

gA
 

P
ac

ifi
c 

in
c.

 J
ap

an
 E

qu
iti

es
 (

E
nh

an
ce

d 
In

de
xa

tio
n)

 
F

T
S

E
 A

W
 D

ev
 A

si
a 

P
ac

ifi
c 

+0
.5

%
 

G
en

es
is

 
E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
t E

qu
iti

es
 

M
S

C
I E

M
 IM

I T
R

 
- 

Ly
st

er
 W

at
so

n 
F

un
d 

of
 H

ed
ge

 F
un

ds
 

3M
 L

IB
O

R
 +

 4
%

 
+0

-2
%

 

M
A

N
 

F
un

d 
of

 H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

 
3M

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 5

.7
5%

 
+0

-0
.2

5%
 

S
ig

ne
t 

F
un

d 
of

 H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

 
3M

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 3

%
 

+1
-3

%
 

S
te

nh
am

 
F

un
d 

of
 H

ed
ge

 F
un

ds
 

3M
 L

IB
O

R
 +

 3
%

 
+1

-3
%

 

G
ot

te
x 

F
un

d 
of

 H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

 
3M

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 3

%
 

+1
-3

%
 

B
la

ck
R

oc
k 

P
as

si
ve

 M
ul

ti-
as

se
t 

In
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 
cu

st
om

is
ed

 
be

nc
hm

ar
ks

 
us

in
g 

m
on

th
ly

 m
ea

n 
fu

nd
 w

ei
gh

ts
 

0%
 

B
la

ck
R

oc
k 

O
ve

rs
ea

s 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

C
us

to
m

is
ed

 
be

nc
hm

ar
ks

 
us

in
g 

m
on

th
ly

 
m

ea
n 

fu
nd

 w
ei

gh
ts

 

0%
 

R
LA

M
 

U
K

 C
or

po
ra

te
 B

on
d 

F
un

d 
iB

ox
x 

£ 
no

n-
G

ilt
s 

al
l m

at
ur

iti
es

 
+0

.8
%

 

S
ch

ro
de

r 
U

K
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

IP
D

 U
K

 p
oo

le
d 

+1
.0

%
 

P
ar

tn
er

s 
G

lo
ba

l P
ro

pe
rt

y 
IP

D
 G

lo
ba

l p
oo

le
d 

+2
.0

%
 

C
as

h 
In

te
rn

al
ly

 M
an

ag
ed

 
7 

da
y 

LI
B

ID
 

 

Page 227



 

Avon Pension Fund  44 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This report is written for the addressees only and may not be further copied or distributed without the prior permission of JLT Benefit 
Solutions.  The value of investments can fall as well as rise and you may get back less than your original investment.  The past is no 
guide to future performance.  The information contained in this report is compiled from sources which we believe to be reliable and 
accurate at the date of this report.

Page 228



 

Avon Pension Fund  45 

JLT Benefit Solutions. A trading name of JLT Actuaries and Consultants Limited 
Authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority.  
Registered in England: 6 Crutched Friars, London EC3N 2PH 
Tel +44 (0)20 7528 4000 Fax +44 (0)20 7528 4500. www.jltgroup.com.  
Registered in England Number 676122. VAT No. 244 2321 96   
© December 2009 

CONTACTS  
Dave Lyons 
JLT Benefit Solutions 
Tel:  +44 (0) 0161 253 1153 
Email:  dave_lyons@jltgroup.com 
 
Bekki Jones 
JLT Benefit Solutions 
Tel:  +44 (0) 0161 253 1159 
Email:  bekkijones@jltgroup.com 
 

 
••••  

JLT Benefit Solutions 

St James's House, 7 Charlotte Street 
Manchester, M1 4DZ 
Fax +44 (0) 161 253 1169 

Page 229



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 1

                         

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
MEETING 
DATE: 

24 September 2010 AGENDA  
ITEM 
NUMBER 14 

TITLE: RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE INVESTMENT PANEL  
WARD: ALL 
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report:  
Exempt Appendix 1 – TT brief on BP 
Exempt Appendix 2 – Partner’s IMA Guidelines (Current and Proposed) and Partner’s 
rationale for change  
Appendix 3 – Definitions of terms within Partners IMA Guidelines 
 

 
1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 The Investment Panel meeting on 16 September is after the deadline for 
distributing the Committee papers.  Therefore it is not possible to put forward 
recommendations on the issues that will be discussed at the Panel meeting.  Any 
urgent recommendations will be received from the Panel at the Committee 
meeting. 

1.2 The issues to be discussed at the Investment Panel meeting are: 
(1) TT’s holding in BP 
(2) The Fund’s passive investments 
(3) Annual review of property mandates 
 

1.3 As the minutes of the Panel meeting are not available for distribution with these 
papers, appendices 1-3 to this report replicate the information provided to the 
Panel with regard to TT’s holding in BP and the annual review of the property 
mandates.  These are appended to provide background information to the 
Committee should the Panel make a recommendation to the Committee regarding 
either issue. 

1.4 The minutes from the Panel meeting of 16 September will be included in the 
agenda for the December committee meeting. 

 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 Any recommendations will be received from the Panel at the Committee meeting. 
 

Agenda Item 14

Page 231



Printed on recycled paper 2

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 The budget provides for investment management fees and the procurement of 

investment advice.  Any changes to the investment strategy may incur costs not 
yet provided for. 

4 BACKGROUND  
4.1 The Panel will discuss various reports at their meeting on 16 September 2010 and 

may recommend action which needs to be considered immediately by the 
Committee on the following investment issues:  
(1) TT’s recent actions regarding BP (see appendix 1) 
At the meeting on 25 June 2010, the Committee considered the implications for 
the Fund of its investment in BP following the fall in the BP share price.  As a 
result, the Committee requested a written response from TT explaining their 
investment decisions on BP during the period since the oil spill.  TT’s explanation 
of their decisions is in Exempt Appendix 1 and they also presented to the 
Investment Panel on 16 September.  The Panel will make any urgent 
recommendations regarding this issue to the Committee following the 
presentation/meeting on 16 September. 
(2) The Fund’s passive investments  
The Panel is currently considering a number of issues regarding the investment 
management structure and allocation between passive and active equity 
mandates that have arisen following their meetings with the investment managers 
and the BP incident.  Any conclusions from these ongoing discussions will be 
brought to the Committee at a later date. 
 
(3) Annual review of the property mandates (see appendices 2&3) 
The illiquid nature of property assets increases the importance of portfolio 
planning when compared with mandates of more liquid assets, and requires the 
property managers to take a long term investment horizon.  Each year the Fund 
will review each manager’s investment strategy and how that strategy is to be 
implemented in the light of new investment opportunities and the reinvestment of 
any asset sales within each portfolio.   
As the property managers have been in place for at least a year, as part of the 
first annual review, both property managers presented their investment strategy to 
the Panel at the workshop on 16 September.  The Panel will review strategy 
implementation and performance at the workshop and bring any issues to the 
attention of the Committee.   
Potential recommendations:  
(i) Partners are proposing revisions to their investment guidelines in order to 
implement their long term strategy and the Panel will be asked to consider 
whether to recommend the revised guidelines to the Committee. 
(ii)  The Panel will be asked to consider whether they wish to recommend that in 
future the annual reviews of the property mandates should be delegated to the 
Officers in consultation with the Panel rather than being presented automatically 
to the Committee.  The reasoning for having delegated powers is that the 

Page 232



Printed on recycled paper 3

implementation of a strategy over a longer period will need to respond to the 
constantly evolving outlook for property in order for the manager to be able to take 
advantage of opportunities as they develop.  The Officers and Panel, through their 
meetings with the managers, will have a more informed basis to make such 
decisions.  However, any changes of a strategic nature i.e. that materially affect 
the risk return profile of either portfolio within the Fund would be referred to full 
Committee.   

5 RISK MANAGEMENT 
5.1 The Avon Pension Fund Committee is the formal decision-making body for the 

Fund.  As such it has responsibility to ensure adequate risk management 
processes are in place.  It discharges this responsibility by ensuring the Fund has 
an appropriate investment strategy and investment management structure in 
place that is regularly monitored.  In addition it monitors the benefits 
administration, the risk register and compliance with relevant investment, finance 
and administration regulations. The creation of an Investment Panel further 
strengthens the governance of investment matters and contributes to reduced risk 
in these areas. 

6 EQUALITIES 
6.1 An equalities impact assessment is not necessary. 
7 CONSULTATION 
7.1 N/a 
8 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
8.1 The issues being considered are contained in the report. 
9 ADVICE SOUGHT 
9.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer (Divisional Director - 

Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for 
publication.  

Contact person  Liz Feinstein, Investments Manager 01225 395306 
Background papers JLT reports prepared for Investment Panel meetings 

Investment Panel reports and minutes. 
 

Page 233



Page 234

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Access to Information Arrangements 

 
Exclusion of access by the public to Council meetings 

 
 
Information Compliance Ref: LGA-10-014 
 
 
Meeting / Decision: Avon Pension Fund Committee 
 
Date: 24th September 2010 
 
 
Author: Liz Feinstein 
 
Report Title: RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE INVESTMENT PANEL  
 
Exempt Appendix Title:  
Appendix 1 – TT UK Equity Mandate - Positioning in BP 
Appendix 2 - Partner’s IMA Guidelines (Current and Proposed) and Partner’s 
rationale for change 
 
 

 
The public interest test has been applied, and it is concluded that the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosure at this time. It is therefore recommended that the committee 
resolve to exclude the public. The paragraphs below set out the relevant 
public interest issues in this case. 
 
PUBLIC INTEREST TEST 
 
If the Committee wishes to consider a matter with press and public excluded, 
it must be satisfied on two matters. 
 
Firstly, it must be satisfied that the information likely to be disclosed falls 
within one of the accepted categories of exempt information under the Local 
Government Act 1972.  Paragraph 3 of the revised Schedule 12A of the 1972 
Act exempts information which relates to the financial or business affairs of 
the investment managers which is commercially sensitive to the investment 
managers.  The officer responsible for this item believes that this information 

Stating the exemption: 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 

person (including the authority holding that information). 
 

Page 235



 

falls within the exemption under paragraph 3 and this has been confirmed by 
the Council’s Information Compliance Manager.  
 
Secondly, it is necessary to weigh up the arguments for and against 
disclosure on public interest grounds.  The main factor in favour of disclosure 
is that all possible Council information should be public and that increased 
openness about Council business allows the public and others affected by 
any decision the opportunity to participate in debates on important issues in 
their local area.  Another factor in favour of disclosure is that the public and 
those affected by decisions should be entitled to see the basis on which 
decisions are reached.   
 
Weighed against this is the fact that the exempt appendices contain the 
investment strategies of the investment managers. It would not be in the 
public interest if advisors and officers could not express in confidence 
opinions which are held in good faith and on the basis of the best information 
available. The information to be discussed is also commercially sensitive and 
if disclosed could prejudice the commercial interests of the investment 
managers. 
 
It is also important that the Committee should be able to retain some degree 
of private thinking space while decisions are being made, in order to discuss 
openly and frankly the issues under discussion relating to the investment 
managers in order to make a decision which is in the best interests of the 
Fund’s stakeholders. 
 
 

Page 236



Page 237

Document is Restricted



Page 240

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 241

Document is Restricted



Page 242

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3: Definitions of Terms within Partners Investment Guidelines 
 
 
“Core Investments” are investments in well-managed properties that are occupied by 
quality tenants and leased to capacity. Returns predominantly stem from current net 
operating income and to a lesser extent, from capital appreciation.   
 
“Value added Investments” are investments in properties which are considered 
undervalued due to sub-optimal management. The objective is typically to improve 
net operating income (and thereby property value) through renovation, releasing, 
repositioning, redevelopment, improved management and/or similar measures.  
Returns from such assets are typically a mix of current income and capital gains. 
 
“Opportunistic Investments” are investments in development projects, turnaround 
projects or special situations such as distressed real estate assets. The objective is 
to create or significantly improve net operating income through repositioning, 
redevelopment, implementation of a new development and/or substantially improved 
property management. The creation of a regular net operating income stream 
ultimately translates into substantial capital gains which are the predominant source 
of returns. 
 
“Primary Investments” are interests (including all related Securities) in Portfolio 
Funds, which are acquired directly from the relevant vehicle’s general partner or 
other managing agent. 
 
“Secondary Investments” are interests (including all related Securities) in (i) Portfolio 
Funds, (ii) investment vehicles that invest predominantly in Portfolio Funds, and/or 
(iii) Direct Investments, which are (in each case) acquired in the secondary market. 
 
“Direct Investments” are interests (including all related Securities) in (typically 
unlisted) Real Estate Investments.  
 

Page 243



Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 1

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: Avon Pension Fund Committee 
MEETING 
DATE: 24 September 2010 AGENDA 

ITEM 
NUMBER 16 

TITLE: WORKPLANS 
WARD: ALL 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM  
List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix 1 – Investments Workplan to 31 March 2011 
Appendix 2 – Pensions Benefits Workplan to 31 March 2011 
Appendix 3 – Committee Workplan to 31 March 2011 
Appendix 4 – Investments Panel Workplan to 31 March 2011 
 
 
 
 
1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 Attached to this report are updated workplans for the Investments and Pensions 

Benefit teams which set out the various issues on which work will be undertaken 
in the period to 31 March 2011 and which may result in reports being brought to 
Committee.  In addition there is a Committee workplan which sets out provisional 
agendas for the Committee’s forthcoming meetings. 

1.2 The workplan for the Investment Panel is also included for the Committee to 
review and amend as appropriate. 

1.3 The workplans are consistent with the 2010/2013 Service Plan but also include a 
number of items of lesser significance which are not in the Service Plan.     

1.4 The workplans will be updated quarterly 
 
 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 That the workplans for the period to 31 March 2011 be noted. 
 

Agenda Item 16

Page 245



Printed on recycled paper 2

 
3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
4 THE PURPOSE OF THE WORKPLANS 
4.1 The purpose of the workplans is to enable members to have a better appreciation 

of their future workload and the associated timetable. In effect they represent an 
ongoing review of the Service Plan while including a little more detail.      

5 RISK MANAGEMENT 
5.1 This report is for information only so no risk assessment is necessary. 
6 EQUALITIES 
6.1 This report is for information only and therefore an equalities impact assessment 

is not necessary. 
7 CONSULTATION 
7.1 N/a 
8 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
8.1 N/a 
9 ADVICE SOUGHT 
9.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer (Divisional Director – 

Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for 
publication. 

 

Contact person  Liz Feinstein, Investments Manager;  
Steve McMillan, Pensions Manager 

Background 
papers 

 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative 
format 
 

Page 246



   Appendix 1 
 

INVESTMENTS TEAM WORKPLAN TO 31 MARCH 2011 
 

Project Proposed Action Committee Report 
Member Training Develop training policy for members (and 

then officers) in line with CIPFA 
Knowledge and Skills Framework and 
Toolkit (when issued). Arrange training 
sessions as necessary to  
ensure that all Committee members stay 
abreast of the latest developments in the 
world of local government pensions by 
being given the opportunity to attend 
seminars 
 

ongoing 

Review of 
investment strategy 

Investment Panel to make 
recommendations to Committee – see 
Investment Panel workplan for projects 
 

ongoing 

Annual Accounts Draft accounts to be approved by 
Committee in June  
 
Final accounts to be approved by 
Committee in September before formal 
approval by Corporate Audit Committee 
on 30 September 
 

September 2010 

Review AAF 01/06 
& SAS70 reports 

Annual review of external providers 
internal control reports 
 

December 2010 

Training Policy Develop training framework for members 
and then officers 
 

December 2010 

Actuarial Valuation Work on valuation with Actuary  
Consult employers on FSS during 4Q10 
 

December 2010 

Self Assessment of 
Decision making 
process 

Develop framework for self assessment of 
decision making process – issue to 
members in 4Q10 

 

Global Equity 
Tender 

Tender for investment mandate December 2010 
Vote monitoring Tender for agent to monitor voting by 

managers 
December 2010  

Review Hedge 
Funds 

Review performance once mandates in 
place for 3 years and then review strategy 
 

March 2011 

   
Budget and Service 
Plan 2011/14 

Preparation of budget and service plan for 
2011/14 
 

March 2011 

FX hedging Tender mandate March 2011 
Page 247



 

 
Custody Contract Re tender or Market test the custody 

contract  
 

June 2011 

Use of SWAPS 
 

Investigate the use of SWAPS by the 
Fund in order to reduce the risk 
associated with the mismatching of assets 
and liabilities. 
 

June 2011 

Statement of 
Investment 
Principles 

Revise following any change in Fund 
strategy/policies. Publish within 6 months 
of any changes. 
 

ongoing 

Investments Forum Organise forum meetings expected to be 
held in  Autumn 2010 and Spring 2011 
 

 

FRS 17 Liaise with the Fund’s actuary in the 
production of FRS 17 disclosures for the 
larger employing bodies 
 

 

Page 248



WORK PLANS - APPENDIX 2  
      

WORKPLAN - PENSION ADMINISTRATION TO 31 MARCH 2011 
 

 
Project 

 
Proposed Action 

 
Report

? 
 “Altair”– 
Upgraded AXIS 
administration 
software 
(Heywood)  
 

Migration to Altair (updated pension administration and payment 
software). Deferred from January 2010 until after data extract for the 
triennial actuarial valuation due to Heywood experiencing  technical 
problems. Will now go live following in-depth testing on 21st September 
2010 . 
 

 
N/A  

Member & 
Employer 
Access – a 
change of 
provider 
 

Following a visit to see the alternative Heywood products, it was decided 
not to renew the contract with Gandlake in October 2010 and instead to 
move to the Heywood facility for member and employer access which 
has additional facilities such as a pensions calculator and two-way portal 
which had not been developed by Gandlake. This will run on new Altair 
and member access will switch from Gandlake in October 2010 and 
employer access will begin in early in 2011. 
 

 
 

N/A 

Employer two-
way portal 
(“Globalscape”) 
 

B&NES have purchased a two way portal which will allow employers and the 
Fund to send information electronically to each other. Pensions will be one of 
the departments that will share use of this facility at a very reasonable cost. 
Expected to go live in late September. 
 

N/A 

Administration 
Strategy/ 
Partnership (SLA) 
Agreements  

Consultation with employers on the Administration Strategy Policy 
document will take place in autumn 2010. Individual partnership (SLA) 
agreements with employers will provide efficient delivery of key 
information to improve the service that Pensions can provide to Fund 
members. The strategy will incorporate communication, employer staff 
training and technological enhancement /development (e.g. Electronic 
Data Interface (“EDI”) Monitoring) Regular review meetings will be 
integral to a successful process. 
 
Will also allow the Fund to pass on to a poor-performing employer extra 
costs where failure to supply information causes a disproportionate 
amount of work by Pensions or where “monetary fines” are incurred as a 
result of that employer’s poor performance. The document is seen as a 
positive way forward to improve ongoing working between the Fund and 
its 108 diverse employers. Additional costs will be only passed on as a 
“last resort.” 
 

 
Poss. 
Dec 
2010 

EDI - auto designer 
interface 

Work continuing on setting up major employers to enable automatic 
electronic update of member data changes including starters. Focus 
groups originally set up with employers for the New Look Scheme will be 
continued to keep momentum going. Specific focus of the newly created 
Employer Relationship team for 2010 onwards. EDI will be included in 
the Administration Strategy to work more closely with Fund employers 
with an expected date of April 2012 for all employers to provide 
data electronically. 

 
N/A 

 

Actuarial 
Valuation/Data 
cleanse  
 

All data sent to Mercer on 15th July 2010 (on schedule).and sent to 
Govt. Actuary end of August for the National Fund evaluation in 
connection with Cost Sharing coming in 2013. Results of the Valuation 
are due in October and will be reported to Committee in December 2010 
 

 
Dec 
2010 

 Page 249



Page 250

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 
Committee Workplan to 31 March 2011 

 
December 2010 

Review of Investment Performance for Quarter Ending 30 September 2010 
Pension Fund Administration – Budget Monitoring 2010/11, Performance 
Indicators for Quarter Ending 30 September 2010 and Risk Register Action 
Plan 
Update on Actuarial Valuation 
Review Investment Panel Recommendations 
Annual review of internal control reports of external service providers 
Review training policy for members 
Review framework for self assessment of decision making process (any 
conclusions) 
Approve Administration Strategy (post consultation with employers) 
Additional Voluntary Contributions Monitoring Report 
Workplans 
 
 

March 2011 
Review of Investment Performance for Quarter Ending 31 December 2010 
Pension Fund Administration – Budget Monitoring 2010/11, Performance 
Indicators for Quarter Ending 31 December 2010 and Risk Register Action 
Plan 
Budget and Service Plan 2011/14 
Review of Custody Contract 
Review of Hedge Funds 
 
Workplans 
 
 

Page 251



Page 252

This page is intentionally left blank



   Appendix 4 
 

INVESTMENT PANEL WORKPLAN to 31 March 2011 

 
 

 
  

 

Panel meeting Proposed reports Outcome 
16 September 
2010  

• Review managers 
performance to June 2010 

 
• Review passive investing 

issues 
 
• Meet the managers workshop 

– property managers 
 

• Agree any 
recommendations to 
Committee 

 
 

11 November 
2010  

• Review of Hedge Fund 
managers – performance and 
meet the managers 

 
• Review managers 

performance to Sept 10 
 

 

• Input to committee 
workshop in 1Q11 

 
 
• Agree any 

recommendations to 
Committee 

 
1Q11 • Review managers 

performance to Dec 10 
 
 
• Meet the managers workshop 
 

• Agree any 
recommendations to 
Committee 

 
• Agree any 

recommendations to 
Committee 

 

Page 253



Page 254

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 MINUTES: 25TH JUNE 2010
	8 AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2009/10
	Audited Statement of Accounts & the AGR
	AGR Pension fund 20 sept 2010

	9 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2009/10
	Draft Annual Report and Accounts 2009-2010 - Appendix 1

	11 FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT 2010
	Funding Strategy Statement - Appendix 1
	Funding Strategy Statement - Appendix 2

	12 PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION - EXPENDITURE FOR 4 MONTHS TO 31ST JULY 2010 AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING 31ST JULY 2010
	Budget Monitoring Report Appendix 1
	Budget Monitoring Report  Appendix 2
	Budget Monitoring Report  Appendix 3Aa  3B Balanced Scorecard to 31 July 2010
	Budget Monitoring Report  Appendix 4a & 4B Retirement Feedback May - July 2010
	Budget Monitoring Report  Appendix 5 Clinic Feedback 3 months  to 31 July 2010

	13 REVIEW OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE FOR QUARTER ENDING 30 JUNE 2010
	Review of Investment Performance for Quarter Ending 30Jun10 - Appendix 1
	Review of Investment Performance for Quarter Ending 30Jun10 - Appendix 2

	14 RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE INVESTMENT PANEL
	Investment Panel Recommendations - Appendices 1 & 2 Public Interest Notice
	Investment Panel recommendation - Exempt Appendix 1
	Investment Panel recommendations - Exempt Appendix 2
	Investment Panel recommendations - Appendix 3

	16 WORKPLANS
	Workplan to31 March 2011 - Appendix 1 Investments
	Workplan to31 March 2011 - Appendix 2 Benefits  Admin
	Workplan to31 March 2011 - Appendix 3 Committee
	Workplan to31 March 2011 - Appendix 4 Investment Panel


